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1 OPENING PRAYER AND STATEMENTS OF
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

2 APOLOGIES AND REQUESTS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE

3 PRIOR NOTIFICATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

4 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

Confirmation of the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 27 April 2021.

5 PRESENTATIONS

6 PETITIONS

7 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

8 ADMISSION OF URGENT BUSINESS
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9 PLANNING PERMIT APPLICATIONS

9.1 Planning Application PLN20/0447 for Construction of a part six-storey,
part seven-storey residential apartment building (containing 93 Dwellings)
- at Tullamore 57 Stables Circiut, Doncaster

The report for this item was unavailable when the Agenda was compiled.

It will be available on Friday, 21 May 2021 at the Customer Service Desk at the Civic
Centre and on Council’s website.
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10 CITY PLANNING & COMMUNITY

10.1 Yarra Strategic Plan - Endorsement of the Plan

File Number: IN21/252
Responsible Director:  Director City Planning and Community
Attachments: 1 Draft Yarra Strategic Plan (Version 12) (confidential)
2 Proposed Amendments to Draft Yarra Strategic Plan
(confidential)

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to seek Council endorsement of the draft Yarra Strategic
Plan — Version 12 (Confidential Attachment 1). It is the first plan of its kind with
bicultural aspirations to protect the Yarra River and adjoining parkland as one
integrated, natural entity.

The Yarra Strategic Plan (the Plan) applies to the entire length of the Yarra River
(242km) extending from Mount Baw Baw to the mouth of Port Phillip Bay.

The preparation and implementation of the Plan is a requirement of the Yarra River
Protection (Wililp-gin Birrrarung murron) Act 2017(the Act) that calls for the
collaborative management of the Yarra River corridor.

The draft Plan has been prepared by Melbourne Water, as the lead agency, in
conjunction with the Yarra Collaboration Committee (YCC) that is made up of 15 state
and local government authorities, and representatives of the Wurundjeri Woi-wurrung
Cultural Heritage Aboriginal Corporation. Manningham Council have been an active
and participating stakeholder to this, and have previously provided endorsement of
earlier revisions of the YSP.

Under the Act, Melbourne Water, as the lead agency is required to seek endorsement
from all the responsible public entities. The draft YSP will remain confidential until the
relevant endorsements are in place and the document is made publicly available.

The YSP is the first of its kind that connects planning law with land use and waterway
management. As a 10 year strategy, the YSP sets the foundation to achieve the 50
year community vision, and delivery of the aspirations of the Wurundjeri Woi wurrung
Cultural Heritage Aboriginal Corporations Water Policy (Wurundjeri Water Policy).

For Manningham, the draft YSP has been prepared at the same time as other six key
projects were being developed, each of which will have an impact on future land use
and connectivity within the Yarra River corridor (including the associated parklands).
They include:

¢ North East Link Project

e Proposed soccer facility on Bulleen Driving Range site (Amendment C132 -
gazetted 7 December 2020)

e Yarra River - Bulleen Precinct Land Use Framework Plan

¢ Amendment C125 (Yarra Valley Country Club redevelopment)

e Suburban Rail Loop

e Fitzsimons Lane road upgrade between Eltham and Templestowe

tem 10.1 Page 4
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Throughout the evolution of the draft YSP, Council officers have sought to ensure that
the draft Plan is consistent with and reflects Council’s advocacy position for the six
abovementioned projects.

It is considered that the current version appropriately reflects Council’s position on key
strategic projects that are in the process of being prepared (and refined) in the Yarra
River Corridor precinct. It is therefore recommended that the draft YSP be endorsed in
accordance with Section 36(1) of the Yarra River Protection (Wililp-gin Birrrarung
murron) Act 2017, subject to minor wording changes to reflect the current status of the
North East Link project.

RECOMMENDATION:

That Council endorse the draft Yarra Strategic Plan (Version 12) shown at
confidential Attachment 1 in accordance with Section 36 of theYarra River
Protection (Wilip-gin Birrarung murron) Act 2017 subject to minor wording
changes shown in confidential Attachment 2 to reflect the current status of the
North East Link project.

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

BACKGROUND

The Yarra River provides 70% of Melbourne’s drinking water, adjoins an estimated
2,450 hectares of urban parkland and open space and significantly contributes to
Melbourne’s liveability. However, the River faces increased challenges from population
growth, development pressures and unpredictable weather patterns as a result of
climate change.

In 2015, the Victorian Government established the Yarra Ministerial Advisory
Committee (MAC) to provide recommendations for the improved management,
promotion and protection of the Yarra River.

In 2017, the landmark Yarra River Protection (Wilip-gin Birrarung murron) Act (the Act)
enshrined in law the protection of the Yarra River. Its main purpose was to declare the
Yarra River and public land in its vicinity as ‘one living and integrated natural entity’.

The YSP is the first of its kind that connects planning law with land use and waterway
management. As a 10 year strategy the YSP sets the foundation to achieve the 50 year
community vision, and deliver of the aspirations of the Wurundjeri Woi wurrung Cultural
Heritage Aboriginal Corporations Water Policy (Wurundjeri Water Policy).

The draft Plan (Attachment 1) has been prepared by Melbourne Water, as the lead
agency, in conjunction with the Yarra Collaboration Committee (YCC) that is made up
of 15 state and local government authorities and representatives of the Wurundjeri
Woi-wurrung Cultural Heritage Aboriginal Corporation. Manningham Council has been
one of these key stakeholders.

The intention of the YSP is to provide an overarching policy and planning framework to
ensure a consistent approach to managing land use and development along the entire
Yarra River Corridor.

The Plan applies to public and private land within 1 km either side of the banks of the
Yarra River along its entire length (242km) extending from Mount Baw Baw to the
mouth of Port Phillip Bay.
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2.8

2.9

2.10

The Act designates three categories of land to which the Plan applies:

Yarra Strategic Plan area — This area generally applies to land within one kilometre
either side of the bank of the Yarra River, including public and privately owned land.

Yarra River Land — This area makes up the main parcel of land protected by the Act. It
generally includes Crown and state government owned land within 500 metres of a
bank of the river.

Greater Yarra Urban Parklands — this area identifies the network of parklands along the
Yarra. The Greater Yarra Urban Parklands include Yarra River land that is used as
public open space between Punt Road, South Yarra and the urban growth boundary in
Warrandyte.

¥om Bvar Lond B Grechar Yoo Urbon Foricionds Billzbong

The Yarra River is divided into four reaches. They include:

- Upper Rural: Upper Yarra Reservoir to Healesville
- Lower rural: Healesville to Warrandyte

- Suburban: Warrandyte to Dights Falls

- Inner City: Dights Falls to West Gate Bridge.

Manningham is predominately located in the Suburban reach with Wonga Park and
Warrandyte included in the lower rural reach of the Yarra River.

Structure of the Plan

2.11

The Plan comprises two parts:

o Part 1 - ‘Working together to achieve the community vision’ acknowledges the
connection the Traditional Owners have to the Yarra River and includes four (4)
performance objectives. It also includes actions that are to be carried out on
Yarra River Land.

e Part 2 - ‘Land Use Framework’ provides direction for land use and development
on public and private land.
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2.12 In November 2019, Melbourne Water presented to SBS on the purpose and key
directions of the Plan. Following this, Council provided ‘in-principle’ support to place
the draft YSP on public exhibition. Public exhibition took place between 23 January
and 29 March 2020, during which Manningham lodged a submission. A total of 138
submissions were received.

2.13 Inresponse, Melbourne Water supported all of Manningham’s suggested changes.
Only the non-resolved submissions relating to Part 2 Land Use Framework were
referred to a panel hearing, which took place between 26 May and 5 June 2020.

Other Strateqgic Planning Controls and Strategies

2.14 A project related to the YSP is Amendment GC48 — Yarra River Corridor Controls. This
amendment introduced interim planning controls in February 2017 (for four years) to
provide a consistent approach to managing built form and vegetation removal in the
Yarra River corridor between Richmond and Warrandyte.

2.15 In June 2020, the Minister for Planning sought feedback from all six affected councils
(Manningham, Banyule, Boroondara, Nillumbik, Stonnington and Yarra), on the
operation of the controls to determine whether further refinements and improvements
were required.

2.16 Inresponse, Council advised that whilst it supports the protection of the Yarra River
environs in principle, it did not support making the existing controls permanent. Rather,
it recommended that a more site responsive approach was preferred, particularly given
the developmental change anticipated as a result of a number of projects being
planned in the area, including:

North East Link Project

Yarra River - Bulleen Precinct Land Use Framework Plan

- Proposed soccer facility on Bulleen Driving Range site (Amendment C132
gazetted 7 December 2020)

- Proposed amendment for the Yarra Valley Country Club (Amendment C125)

- Suburban Rail Loop

2.17 Consequently, on 20 April 2021 the Minister for Planning introduced permanent
planning controls (VC197) for the protection of the Yarra River Corridor between
Richmond and Warrandyte.

2.18 Furthermore, the Bulleen Precinct Advisory Committee Hearing took place between
January and March 2021. This Committee was appointed by the Minister for Planning
to hear submissions regarding the Department of Environment, Land, Water and
Planning’s (DELWP’s) Bulleen Land Use Framework Plan and Amendment C125
relating to the redevelopment of the Yarra Valley Country Club site. At the hearing
Manningham Council was represented by legal representatives, Harwood Andrews,
who also represented Council on the hearing for the North East Link Project and
related matters.

2.19 DELWP advises that the Advisory Committee lodged its report with the Minister on 16
April 2021. At this stage it is unknown when the Minister will release the report.
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Endorsement Process

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

3.1

3.2

3.3

Section 36(1) of the Yarra River Protection (Wilip-gin Birrarung murron) Act 2017
requires the 15 state and local government authorities to endorse the draft Yarra
Strategic Plan. The draft Plan will then be submitted to the Minister for Water and then
to Cabinet for approval.

Importantly Section 3G of the Local Government Act 1989 requires Council to act
consistently with the YSP when performing a function or duty on Yarra River land.

Endorsing the draft YSP means that each relevant authority:
- Agrees in principle with the objectives and actions outlined in the Plan.

- Will act consistently with the directions outlined in the Plan, particularly Part 2 (Land
Use Framework)

- Will have regard to the protection principles of the Act and Yarra Strategic Plan
when performing its own work and making decisions that affect Yarra River land, as
outlined in S3G of the Local Government Act 1989.

The above obligations do not apply to land affected by the Major Transport Projects
Facilitation Act 2009.

DISCUSSION / ISSUE

For Manningham, the draft YSP has been prepared at the same time as other key
projects were being (and still are) being developed, each of which will have an impact
on future land use and connectivity within the Yarra River corridor. They include:

- North East Link Project

- Proposed soccer facility on Bulleen Driving Range site (C132 gazetted on 7
December 2020).

- Bulleen Land Use Framework Plan
- Amendment C125 (Yarra Valley Country Club redevelopment)
- Suburban Rail Loop

- Fitzsimons Lane road upgrade between Eltham and Templestowe

During the development of the draft YSP, Manningham has emphasised the impact of
the NEL project on its existing open space networks, and the resultant loss of soccer
facilities at Bulleen Park. Furthermore its advocacy has been based on the approved
Manningham Yarra River Corridor Concept Plan (2019) that provides improved
connectivity for pedestrians and cyclists within the Yarra River corridor, as well as
identifying potential sites for sporting facilities.

It is considered that the current version has been modified to appropriately reflect
Council’s position on key strategic projects in the Yarra River Corridor. It is submitted
that the draft YSP should be endorsed, subject to minor wording changes as shown in
confidential Attachment 2.
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Whole of River Actions

3.4

The draft Plan also recommends actions which will be led by the state government, in
consultation with the YCC. These include:

- Introducing permanent planning controls for the Yarra River from Richmond to
Warrandyte — this occurred on 20 April 2021 (VC197).

- Developing new planning controls from Warrandyte to Warburton.

- Strengthening the protection of the Yarra River’s heritage, riparian and biodiversity
values.

- Developing a co-ordinated approach to landscape design and native planting.

Annual reporting

3.5

4.1

4.2

5.1

Each year Council will need to report on how its actions and functions within the Yarra
River corridor align with the principles of the YSP. The Birrarung Council, established
by the Victorian Government in 2018, will compile a report that will be provided to the
Minister for Water and tabled in parliament. The format of the annual report is yet to be
decided.

COUNCIL PLAN / STRATEGY

The draft YSP is consistent with the following Council Plan themes:
- Healthy Community
- Liveable Places and Spaces
- Resilient Environment

- Vibrant and Prosperous Economy

Council’s review of its Planning Scheme (scheduled to be completed in 2022) provides
an opportunity to review local land use and development policy and / or other
implications, to ensure that they align with the objectives of the YSP.

IMPACTS AND IMPLICATIONS

The draft YSP is the first plan to provide for the co-ordinated management of the entire
length of the Yarra River. Importantly it recognises the close cultural and spiritual
connection that Traditional Owners have with the Yarra and nearby land. The whole of
government approach to protecting the Yarra River and its parklands will have cultural,
environmental, visual and economic benefits for present and future generations.

IMPLEMENTATION
6.1 Finance / Resource Implications
6.1.1  Council will continue to be represented on the YCC.
6.1.2 In accordance with Section 3G of the Local Government Act 1989
Council will need to comply with the requirements of the YSP when

performing a function or duty on Crown or State owned land within
500 metres of the Yarra River bank.
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6.1.3  Review and representation for the development of the YSP has been
funded and resourced using existing internal resource capacity and
officer time.

6.2 Communication and Engagement

6.2.1 The draft YSP has been the subject of extensive public consultation
between 2017- 2021.

6.2.2  Council may opt to further promote the YSP through its media and
communication channels.

7. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No officers involved in the preparation of this report have any general or material
conflict of interest in this matter.
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10.2 Tackling Ageism Together: EveryAGE Counts in Melbourne's East

File Number: IN21/218
Responsible Director:  Director City Planning and Community
Attachments: Nil

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Eastern Metropolitan Region (EMR) councils are collaborating on a joint
communications campaign to tackle ageism with the support and leadership of the
Inner East Primary Care Partnership.

Ageism is stereotyping and discrimination on the basis of a person’s age. The World
Health Organisation in 2015 identified it as one of the most pervasive and accepted
forms of prejudice in societies throughout the world.

The Tackling Ageism Together: EveryAGE Counts in Melbourne’s East (the EMR
campaign) will leverage off the national EveryAGE Counts campaign originally
conceived by the Benevolent Society and today led by an independent coalition of
diverse organisations and individuals. The objective of the EveryAGE Counts campaign
is to shift social norms and positively influence the way people think about ageing and
older people.

This objective aligns and is consistent with what the Manningham community have also
told us through the Manningham Local Dementia (MLDAG) and Manningham Positive
Ageing (MPAAG) Alliance Groups identifying that older people in our community have
felt hidden or misrepresented. The EMR campaign aims to raise awareness and
educate people by representing older people more accurately in the media, arts and
public discussion and help to build the grassroots social movement by encouraging
people to get involved.

The EMR councils will collaborate on activities and timelines for communications to
strengthen the local regional impact of the messaging. The EMR campaign will run
from March to October 2021 and whilst it is acknowledged that behaviour change takes
time, this campaign is an important starting point for the EMR councils and region.

Council Executive, staff, Mayors and Councillors are being asked to support the
campaign and to this end a number of activities have been proposed to raise
awareness and take action in the EMR. Some of these include:

e Sign the EveryAGE Counts pledge;

e Ensure that tackling ageism is considered in the development of new strategic
plans;

e Provide specific information to inform and educate staff and create opportunities
to reinforce positive ageing; and

e Be aware that this will be a recurring theme in our social media and other
documents over the coming months so taking opportunities to include these
themes in public addresses, share content from Council’s Facebook posts; and
ensure our communications are inclusive of older people.

The EMR campaign will be delivered jointly by the EMR councils. Manningham’s
activities during the campaign will be coordinated through the Aged and Disability
Support Services and Communications teams within approved budget.
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1. RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

A. Support the proposed Tackling Ageism Together: EveryAGE Counts in
Melbourne’s East campaign;

B. Note that Councillors will be asked to sign the EveryAGE counts pledge
and support other activities during the campaign; and

C. Note this will be a recurring theme in council’s social media and other

documents over the campaign period, March to October 2021.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

The Eastern Metropolitan Region (EMR) councils, supported by the Inner East
Primary Care Partnership (IEPCP), are joining forces to deliver a coordinated
communications campaign to tackle ageism. The campaign ties into and
supports the national EveryAGE Counts campaign and the Eastern Community
Legal Centre (ECLC) work on prevention of abuse of older people. Ageism in its
ugliest form is seen as one cause of elder abuse.

Originally planned for rollout in 2020 the campaign had to be put on hold due to
COVID and is now planned to be rolled out from March to October 2021.

What is Ageism?

Ageism essentially comes from negative attitudes and beliefs about what it
means to be an older person. For older people ageism impacts confidence,
quality of life, job prospects, health, and control over life decisions. Ageism can
take many forms, including prejudicial attitudes, discriminatory practices, or
institutional policies and practices that perpetuate stereotypical beliefs.

Ageism is often hidden. It can distort our attitudes to older people and ageing
and have profound negative impacts on our personal experience of growing
older. The World Health Organisation in 2015 identified it as one of the most
pervasive and accepted forms of prejudice in societies throughout the world.

The impacts of ageism can prevent or limit us from contributing and participating
in our communities — socially, economically and as full citizens — and even impact
our physical health and longevity. It denies society the enormous range of
benefits that can flow, economically and socially, from the full participation of
older people and is therefore a problem that needs to be addressed.

What does this campaign hope to achieve?

Feedback and input from the seven EMR councils has shaped the campaign to:

. focus on challenging stereotypes of older people; and leverage a strong
regional approach;

. to be delivered easily sharing existing content; and

. tie into existing campaigns and work, in particular the EveryAGE Counts
campaign https://www.everyagecounts.org.au/

ltem 10.2
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2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

EveryAGE Counts is an advocacy campaign aimed at tackling ageism against
older Australians. It is driven by a large coalition of organisations headed by the
Benevolent Society and includes Council on the Ageing (COTA Australia);
Federation of Ethnic Communities Council Australia (FECCA); National Seniors
Australia and Australian Human Rights Commission to name a few.

There are five key aspects of the EveryAGE Counts campaign and the EMR
campaign, will contribute to two of them: increasing the diversity and accuracy of
representations of older people in media, arts and public discussion; and help to
build the grassroots social movement by encouraging people to get involved.

What are the objectives of the EMR campaign?

The EMR campaign objectives are to:

. Raise awareness and educate people about elder ageism, its impacts and
how to make positive change;

o Ensure messaging is positive about older people and has a focus on
tackling ageism, particularly challenging stereotypes of older people;

. Leverage a strong coordinated regional approach to achieve greater

impact;
. Ensure it can be implemented easily and within existing resources; and
. Encourage people to take action via a range of ‘calls to action’.

How will this campaign be delivered?

The campaign is proposed to be rolled out in phases with the external
communications phase extending from March until October 2021.

Due to the coordination of the IEPCP and combined efforts and sharing between
the EMR councils, ECLC and the EveryAGE Counts campaign, some of the
content material for the EMR campaign has already or will be developed,
therefore facilitating the delivery of the EMR campaign.

The campaign has identified three target audiences including: Unaware — people
who know nothing or little about ageism and its impact; Aware - people who know
about ageism and its impact and are concerned; and Partners — organisations,
people, groups who would be willing to support the campaign.

The Aged and Disability Support Services team together with the
Communications team have committed to support delivery of the EMR campaign.

3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE

3.1

3.2

Tackling ageism has been recognised as an important issue for our community.

In discussions with the membership of the Manningham Local Dementia
(MLDAG) and Manningham Positive Ageing (MPAAG) Alliance Groups it has
been identified that older people in our community have felt hidden or
misrepresented whilst going about their daily business and activities of life. To
tackle this, specific actions to represent older members of our community more
positively have been suggested and included on the MPAAG Action Plan.

ltem 10.2

Page 13



COUNCIL AGENDA 25 MAY 2021

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

The Manningham experience is not unique. In Australia, independent research by
COTA highlights that ageist attitudes in the community mean that older people
are perceived to be less deserving or, alternatively, are incapacitated and in need
of protection. It is experienced by older people in the forms of speech by which
they are addressed, evident in the media where negative and ageist stereotypes
are spread, and in the health system where organisational and process bias
invariably tends to give older people and their illnesses a lower priority.

Recent Council survey data shows evidence that the community recognises that
the older population is one of the most heavily impacted cohorts in the community
as a result of COVID and are needing support in many areas as a priority.

Local government plays a vital role in helping to create healthy and connected
communities. Council works closely and connects directly with many community
members, including many older people, through our communication channels and
our wide range of services, programs and facilities. Council can therefore play an
important role to change and influence through these channels as appropriate.

Tackling this issue as a united group of EMR of councils is an opportunity to
combine efforts, share resources and more strongly embed community
messaging in an attempt to shift individual and community attitudes and
perceptions.

What are the proposed actions we will deliver?

The EMR campaign has both an internal and external communications focus and
we will seek the support of Council staff, Executive, Councillors/Mayor and local
partners (residents, organisations, and business) to deliver messages which
reinforce positive views and challenge stereotypes of older people.

Proposed activities:

. Post in Council’s social media messages, stories and articles which debunk
myths and challenge stereotypes of what it means to be older.

. Write stories and articles in council publications to convey key messages.

. Specific messaging to coincide with some of the key dates during this
period including National Volunteers Week (May), World Elder Abuse
Awareness Day (June) and International Day of Older Persons (October).

. Ask people or organisations to sign the EveryAGE Counts pledge. The
pledge is a symbolic gesture and reads as follows:

“| stand for a world without Ageism where all people of all ages are
valued and respected and their contributions are acknowledged.

| commit to speak out and take action to ensure older people can

participate on equal terms with others in all aspects of life.”

A significant activity is to have EMR Mayors sign the EveryAGE counts pledge on
or around World Elder Abuse Awareness Day, 15 June 2021. An opportunity for
Manningham Councillors to sign the pledge is being arranged.

ltem 10.2
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4. COUNCIL PLAN/STRATEGY

4.1 This campaign will support council and healthy city objectives to build healthy,
resilient, connected and inclusive communities that are generation friendly.

5. IMPACTS AND IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The EMR campaign aims to raise awareness and educate people by
representing older people more accurately in the media, arts and public
discussion and help to build the grassroots social movement by encouraging
people to get involved. The seven EMR councils will collaborate on the activities
and timelines for communications to strengthen the local regional impact of the
messaging.

5.2 Itis recognised that behaviour change takes time and is unlikely to shift
significantly in the duration of this campaign. However, this campaign is
considered an important starting point for the EMR councils and region that can
be learnt from and built upon.

6. IMPLEMENTATION

6.1 Finance / Resource Implications

. The campaign will be delivered within Council’s current budget allocations.
The EveryAGE Counts (Benevolent Society) have provided media collateral
to be co-branded and used in the EMR campaign.

6.2 Communication and Engagement

o The Aged and Disability Support Services and Communications teams
have worked collaboratively together and in consultation with other EMR
councils and the Inner East PCP in the development and support of the
EMR campaign.

o It is understood that the Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV) is also
planning this year to progress a sector wide campaign on tackling Ageism.

6.3 Timelines

. The timelines for delivery of this project are March to October 2021 but may
be subject to interruption if there are further COVID disruptions.

7. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No officers involved in the preparation of this report have any general or material
conflict of interest in this matter.
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11 CITY SERVICES

11.1 Garden Waste Recycle Centre Decommissioning and Closure and
Bushfire Prone Area Initiatives

File Number: IN21/286
Responsible Director:  Director City Services
Attachments: Nil

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report provides an overview of the closure of the Garden Waste Recycle Centre,
indefinitely closed since March 2020. The report recommending that the Garden Waste
Recycle Centre to be permanently decommissioned and closed given the significant
risk the continued operation of the facility.

A significant risk identified was the stockpiling of garden waste material on a site which
is within the BPA. This issue is further amplified as a number of incidents; where small
fires have ignited, have required the CFA to respond.

The report also outlines the outcomes of the revised Bushfire Prone Area (BPA)
Initiative known as Garden Waste Disposal Days; which were developed and trialled as
a result of the Garden Waste Recycle Centre’s closure. The report recommending an
improved service to support BPA residents to proactively manage properties and
reduce the risk of bushfires igniting, impacting their property or surrounding properties.

1. RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

A. Notes that the Garden Waste Recycle Centre will be permanently
decommissioned and closed; and

B. Notes the continuation of the Garden Waste Disposal Days to provide
ongoing support to Bushfire Prone Area residents with management of fuel
loads year round.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Manningham City Council has been operating the Garden Waste Recycle Centre
for the past 25 years.

2.2 The Garden Waste Recycle Centre is located at corner of Websters Road and
Blackburn Road Doncaster East. The site has typically operated only on a
Sunday between the hours of 9am—-3pm and services the community and local
businesses. The facility operates as a user pay service.
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2.3 The Garden Waste Recycle Centre has been supporting a ‘free’ service for
residents within the BPA to dispose of garden waste material from their property
to reduce fuel load in preparation of the summer bushfire season. This ‘free’
service has resulted in the Centre operating at a significant financial loss.

2.4 The site accepts green waste material (larger branches, stumps, etc.) which
cannot be disposed within the garden bin.

2.5 Over the past few years, a number of small fires have ignited at the site which
have required CFA to respond. The CFA are aware of the potential fire risks the
site poses.

2.6 The site is not a licenced Environment Protection Authority (EPA) site.

3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE
3.1 Impacts of the SKM Recycling Fire

3.1.1 After a significant fire at SKM Recycling’s Coolaroo resource recovery
facility in 2017; that lasted 20 days, the Victorian Government
established a Resource Recovery Facilities Audit Taskforce and
increased the EPA’s powers to regulate combustible recyclable and
waste materials facilities.

3.1.2 During the SKM fire, nearby residents were evacuated from their homes,
four people were hospitalised, and 12 required medical attention. EPA’s
new powers enable regulation of the management of fire risk, to protect
the Victorian community and environment from the risks of fire at
resource recovery facilities.

3.1.3 The focus on fire risk at waste and recycling facilities has coincided with
significant changes to markets for recovered resources. China has
progressively restricted imports of recyclable materials, which has had
flow-on effects on Australian markets. One of these effects has been
increased stockpiling of recyclable materials while new markets are
found.

3.1.4 The Victorian Government’s primary objective is to ensure that the
recycling industry continues to thrive and operates safely with a focus on
changing practices within the waste and recycling industry, to minimise
fire risk at facilities that store combustible recyclable and waste
materials.

3.2 Legislative Requirements

3.2.1 In 2018, the State Government’'s Waste Management Policy
(Compostable Recyclables and Waste Materials) took effect.

3.2.2 The objective of this policy is to ensure that combustible recyclable and
waste materials (CRWM) at waste and resource recovery facilities are
managed and stored in a manner that minimises risks of harm to human
health and the environment from fire.

3.2.3 This policy confirms that the EPA has explicit power to regulate the
storage of CRWM at resource recovery facilities that pose fire risks.
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3.2.4 A guideline was released to assist managers of resource recovery sites
with the management and storage of CRWM.

3.2.5 Organic (garden waste) material is defined as a CRWM in the policy and
guideline. Hence this policy directly impacts the Garden Waste Recycle
Centre’s operations.

3.2.6 A review of the policy and guideline has identified that the facility would
require a works approval and licence to operate.

3.2.7 The management plan for the site has been reviewed in line with the
2018 government requirements. This review identified that a works
approval and a licence to operate the facility into the future would not be
granted, given that the facility does not meet the guideline criteria
requirements.

3.3 Manningham Bushfire Prone Area

3.3.1 Manningham has a high bushfire risk within eastern parts of the
municipality. There is the potential for a large bushfire to enter from the
north, equally a fire that starts in Manningham could grow rapidly and
affect hundreds of properties within a few hours. Land tenure analysis
resulted in over 60% of land within the Manningham Bushfire Prone
Area (BPA) is privately held, constraining the ability of agencies to
directly manage vegetation (Bushfire Fuels) in over half of the
municipality. Therefore, it is the role of council in partnership with the
agencies to influence and encourage private land owners to undertake
fuel reduction works on their properties.

3.3.2 Furthermore the CFA advises that reducing vegetation around your
home is one of the most important things you can do to keep your home
safe in a bushfire.

3.3.3 Complimentary Garden Waste Disposal Vouchers for use at the
Manningham Council Garden Waste Disposal Facility were provided to
residents living in the Bushfire Prone Area (BPA) since 2003. This
initiative was introduced to assist residents with fire mitigation works on
their properties in readiness for the fire (summer) season.

3.3.4 With the recent closure of the Garden Waste Recycling Centre, there
has been a need to revise the initiative that supports Manningham BPA
residents to reduce bushfire fuels on their properties.

3.3.5 In consultation with executive, Council Officers, Councillors, and the
community, Garden Waste Disposal Days were developed for
implementation in November 2020 (Trial 1). This was initial Garden
Waste Disposal Days available to residents who had applied for Garden
Waste Vouchers in 2019/20. The trail was a success, therefore further
Garden Waste Disposal Days were held in February 2021 (Trial 2). The
February dates were advertised to over 7,700 properties that are listed
within the Bushfire Prone Area.

3.3.6 To seek feedback from the community on Garden Waste Disposal Days,
a community survey was provided to all participating residents.
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3.4 Evaluation of Garden Waste Disposal Days and Sites

3.4.1 Overall, the Garden Waste Disposal Days are a more efficient, cost

effective and favourable option for Manningham Bushfire Prone Area
(BPA) residents to dispose of one level trailer of Garden Waste. When
comparing costs of the trial, with the expenditure of the Garden Waste
Centre, the results are favourable. There are options to further
streamline the operation to reduce costs further.

3.4.2 A survey was held following the Disposal Days, the results of the user

survey provided highly positive and comprehensive feedback on the
initiative. A snapshot of the user feedback can be summarised as:

o 84.5% of respondents were satisfied or above, with nearly 60%
respondents very satisfied.

o 85% of the respondents suggested the drop off was very easy.
e Over 90% of respondents the most positive aspects were:

o Ease of completing waste drop-off at the site

o Friendly and helpful staff

e 72% of respondents said they would recommend a neighbour to use the
Garden Waste Disposal Day Service.

3.4.3 A Public Value analysis was conducted, resulting in an indication that

this initiative provides many positive outcomes that are beneficial to the
Manningham community.

3.4.4 Council officers have also undertaken a review of the 4 Disposal Day

sites. The chosen sites were located on council managed car parks
within the bushfire prone areas. This ensured the initiative met
requirements under Stage 4 Covid restrictions and allowed all residents
to have access within 5km of their property.

3.4.5 The results showed us that Warrandyte and Donvale sites were

attended by 60% (318 users) of the total users for both November &
February Days. The Warrandyte and Donvale sites were the safest sites
to operate; enabling easier truck movement, ability to replace full skips,
safest movement of public and vehicles and had least impactful to
community events held at the site or within close proximity.

3.4.6 Only 39% (205 users) of the total users opted to use Wonga Park and

Park Orchards. These sites were the smallest sites which also created
safety issues for public and staff resultant from moving vehicles, trucks
access and skips replacement difficulties. They also had the most
disruptive impactful to community events held at the site or within close
proximity — causing much angst with those attending events (non-
Garden Waste Disposal Day related) at those sites.

3.4.7 The data collected on site use and accessibility will be considered when

planning site options and dates for all future Disposal Days.
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3.5 Future Disposal Days

3.5.1 In consideration of the community feedback and operational capacity,
the options for the continuation of the Disposal Days are being
considered. At this stage it is recommended that a minimum of 4
Disposal Days are held each year. With the option for residents to pay
for extra trailer loads of garden waste at disposal sites once they have
utilised their free disposal limit.

3.5.2 The total estimated cost to deliver the Disposal Days is within the
existing operational budget. All options considered were assessed as
being cost neutral and available to fund within existing budgets and of no
additional costs to residents accessing the standard offer. Additional
trailer loads will be at a cost determined at the time of implementation to
enable cost neutrality to Council.

4. COUNCIL PLAN / STRATEGY

4.1

4.2

The decommissioning of the Garden Waste Recycle Centre aligns with the
Council Plan Goals 3.1 to ‘protect and enhance our environment and diversity’.

Providing support for residents to mitigate bushfire risk aligns with the Council
Plan 2017/21.

. Theme 1 — Healthy Community and Goal 1.1- A Healthy, Resilient and Safe
Community.

5. IMPACTS AND IMPLICATIONS

5.1

5.2

5.3

The continued operation of the Garden Waste Recycle Centre poses a risk to
Council if a fire event was to occur.

Council’'s Property Services team are planning the development of a Strategic
Plan assessing potential future land uses of the Websters Road Precinct
(including the Garden Waste Recycle Centre) which will inform the development
of the site in a manner which could better mitigate safety risks resultant from any
future site development and/or operations.

Continuation of the Garden Waste Disposal Days will provide ongoing support to
Bushfire Prone Area residents with management of fuel loads year round.

6. IMPLEMENTATION

6.1 The closure of the Garden Waste Centre will take effect immediately. A
communications campaign providing residents with reasoning for the closure and
available options for management of garden waste into the future will be
implemented.

6.2 The next Disposal Days will take place later in 2021, allowing resident’s ample
time to proactively manage their properties before the Fire Danger Period (FDP).
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7. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No officers involved in the preparation of this report have any general or material
conflict of interest in this matter.
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11.2 Arundel Road (West), Park Orchards - Road Closure

File Number: IN21/287

Responsible Director:  Director City Services

Attachments: 1 Arundel Road Park Orchards Proposed Closure Concept
Plan §

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report recommends a permanent closure of Arundel Road (west), at the
intersection of Park Road, to address residents’ concerns about vehicle speeds,
through traffic and pedestrian safety.

1. RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

A. Supports, in principle, the permanent closure of Arundel Road (west) to
through traffic at the intersection of Park Road, subject to:

. No objection being obtained from the relevant service authorities and
emergency service organisations that may be affected by the
proposal; and

. A report being obtained from the Department of Transport on the
proposed road closure.

B. Authorises officers to commence the statutory process under the
provisions of Schedule 11, Section 9 Part 1 of the Local Government Act
1989, to permanently close Arundel Road (west), at the intersection of Park
Road, Park Orchards, as shown in Attachment 1, in order to address
residents’ concerns.

C. Notes the Communications and Engagement Plan in relation to the
proposed road closure process, as detailed in Section 5.2 of this report.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Arundel Road, between Park Road and Knees Road, in Park Orchards, is a
sealed road approximately 425m long, 4.8m wide and provides access to 23
properties.

2.2 Extensive traffic management devices, including chicanes, road humps and a
road narrowing, were installed along this section of road when it was formally
constructed in the 1990s.

2.3 Knees Road, between Park Road and Falconer Road, is currently under
construction which includes the construction of a roundabout at the intersection of
Knees Road and Arundel Road.
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2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Residents of Arundel Road have raised objections over the construction of the
roundabout, stating it will make it more convenient for drivers, particularly school
parents, to use Arundel Road (west) as a drive through route, between Park
Road and Knees Road, to avoid traffic congestion.

An on-site meeting was held with residents from Arundel Road on 30 April 2021,
to discuss their concerns about non-local traffic, particularly during school pick up
and drop off times using this section of road, pedestrian safety for young children
using the road to walk and vehicle speeds.

At the meeting, attended by around 25 residents, the residents supported a
proposal to close Arundel Road at the intersection of Park Road in order to
prevent non-local traffic using the road as a shortcut and to remove the need for
the construction of a footpath along the street.

A turnaround area would be needed to facilitate large vehicle movements, such
as waste collection if the road was closed.

A concept plan showing the location of the permanent road closure is provided as
Attachment 1.

3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Traffic counts conducted over 7 days earlier this year indicates a typical mid-
block traffic volume of 210 vehicles per day and an 85" percentile speed of
42km/h. The speed and volume counts suggests that the existing traffic
management devices along the street are effective measures in traffic volume
and speed management. Traffic volumes have increased during the Knees Road
works as motorists look to avoid congestion linked to the works.

At the meeting, the residents strongly objected to a proposal to construct a
footpath along one side of the road to address pedestrian safety, citing that they
did not wish to change the streetscape or impact existing vegetation.

Residents at the meeting requested the permanent closure of Arundel Road at
Park Road, indicating that the closure of the road would prevent through traffic
using this section of Arundel Road making it safer for pedestrians to walk along
the road pavement.

The proposal to permanently close Arundel Road, west at Park Road, will not
adversely impact traffic flows in this area, as this section of Arundel Road carries
low traffic volumes, primarily serves to provide access to the abutting properties
only and performs no strategic function in Council’s road network.

Accordingly, it is proposed to proceed with the statutory process in accordance
with the Local Government Act 1989, to close the western end of Arundel Road,
at Park Road.

4. IMPACTS AND IMPLICATIONS

4.1

The Instrument of Delegation dated 8 April 2019, pursuant to Section 9 Part 1 of
Schedule 11 of the Local Government Act 1989, delegates jointly to the Director
City Planning and Manager Infrastructure Services, the power to block or restrict
the passage or access of vehicles on a road by placing and maintaining any
permanent barrier or other obstruction on the road.
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4.2

4.3

This procedure requires Council to follow the statutory process under Section
223, ‘Right to make a Submission’, of the Local Government Act 1989 prior to
closing the road to traffic.

The proposed road closure would have a positive impact on the amenity of
residents by preventing non-local, (mainly school traffic), using the road to travel
between Park and Knees Road. As a result of the road closure, vehicular access
for residents in this section of Arundel Road would be via the Knees Road end
only.

5. IMPLEMENTATION

5.1

5.2

5.3

Finance / Resource Implications

The funds required to implement the proposed road closure and construct the
turnaround area in Arundel Road west, will be sourced from Council’s 2021/2022
Capital Works budget.

Communication and Engagement
The statutory process under Section 223 of the Local Government Act 1989

requires Council to:

i. publish a public notice informing the community about the proposed road
closure;

ii. provide the opportunity for the community to make submissions regarding
the proposal; and

iii. if requested, allow a person making a submission to appear in person in
support of the submission at a meeting of the Council or a committee
determined by the Council.

It is proposed that the notification of Council’s intention to close Arundel Road
(west) at the Park Road intersection be made via:

i. letters to property owners and occupiers in the immediate vicinity of the road
closure;
ii. signage; and

iii. Council’s media outlets for the wider community.

Consultation will be undertaken with service authorities and emergency service
organisations that may have assets within the road reservation, or have an
interest in the closure from an emergency management perspective.

In accordance with the provisions of Schedule 11, Section 9 Part 1 of the Local
Government Act 1989, a report is to be obtained from VicRoads (now
Department of Transport) on the proposed road closure.

Timelines

A further report be presented to an upcoming Council meeting providing details
on the outcome from the community engagement.
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6. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No officers involved in the preparation of this report have any general or material
conflict of interest in this matter.

Item 11.2 Page 25



COUNCIL AGENDA 25 MAY 2021

Attachment 1
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11.3 Land Encroachment Policy

File Number: IN21/288
Responsible Director:  Director City Services

Attachments: 1 Land Encroachment Policy &

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This Policy is aimed to provide a clear and transparent process for the management
and decisions related to land encroachment on Council land by abutting property
owners and occupiers.

This Policy outlines the processes involved in the identification and actions to deal with
land encroachments. With responsibilities clearly defined of the various internal
Council departments involved in the consultation and the resolution of land
encroachment issues. These guidelines apply to the whole of the municipality in
regards to land encroachment on Council land.

A key component of Council’s strong commitment to responsible and ethical
management of its land assets is the need for a strong governance framework that
supports the process of identifying and managing land encroachment issues.

Throughout the municipality, land encroachments have resulted over time by abutting
property owners and occupiers who have encroached onto Council land (be it reserves,
tree reserves, or road reserves) with fencing, driveways, landscaping and other
structures.

Encroachments must be carefully assessed and controlled, to ensure appropriate and
sustainable development that is in the best interests of the public.

This Policy provides direction to Council officers on the process for the reclaiming land
from property owners and occupiers who have encroached onto Council land.

1. RECOMMENDATION

That Council note the Land Encroachment Policy approved under delegation by
the Chief Executive Officer and Director City Services.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 This Policy applies to all Council land whereby there are encroachment issues by
abutting property owners and occupiers.

2.2 Generally, the majority of land encroachments are on Council land (including
belonging to, or in the care, custody or control of Council) that are reserves, tree
reserves, or road reserves (including road encroachments, and footpath
accessibility issues).
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2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

Where a land encroachment issue arises, Council is to assess all available
advice from relevant officers in relation to the land encroachment on Council land
in order to manage an acceptable outcome for Council and to allow Council to
manage the issue according to the Policy guidelines.

Such an outcome may include the resolution for the abutting property owner or
occupier to remove its occupation and improvements (if any) from Council land
and for the property owner or occupier to be responsible for any rehabilitation and
fencing costs.

Where agreement cannot be reached and the encroachment is inappropriate, the
Council will issue a formal notice to the property owners requiring them to rectify
the encroachment.

Specific legal advice can be sought by Council officers for more problematic
and/or where there are specific legislative aspects to a land encroachment issue.

Alternatively, the Policy includes the potential to have a register whereby Council
and the abutting property owner acknowledge the land encroachment on Council
land. Council in this way could charge an annual licence fee to the abutting
property owner charged at a rate to be determined by the Manager Property
Services.

Further, any decision by Council to enable a structure to remain on Council land
must also include the land owner entering into a formal agreement with Council
for the removal of the structure upon change in property ownership or any other
time specified by Council.

Property Services would undertake the review including preparation of
agreements and the policy is intended to apply to all properties.

Where a property is subject to an agreement and as such, the encroachment
agreement has been identified on Council’s Property Ci system, should a Land
Information Certificate be applied for, when the subject property with the
identified land encroachment is scheduled for sale, then this will alert Council
officers of the property owners obligation prior to selling the property and will
hopefully avoid any potential conflict for the purchasers after they have
purchased the land.

Officers will also place a note on the Land Information Certificate where relevant,
which states that a notice has been delivered to the owner of the land advising
them that the land abutting the proposed land is encroached by the land which is
the subject of the Land Information Certificate request.

The agreement can include a number of requirements, including (but not limited
to) specific time frames for the removal of any structure, the rehabilitation of
Council land & a sunset clause in the agreement that will end the agreement
once the requirements of the agreement have been undertaken to Council’s
satisfaction.

When the abutting property owner’s property is sold, the agreement is terminated
and rehabilitation costs are to be borne by the abutting property owner or new
owner pursuant to the agreement.
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2.14 Arregister would provide Council officers with a conclusion to the land

encroachment when the abutting property is sold and the encroached land is
returned to the possession of Council.

2.15 If the abutting property owner chooses not to occupy the Council land, then the

area is reclaimed by Council and fenced on the correct boundary under the half
share fencing provisions (where applicable).

3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE

3.1

3.2

3.3

In the interests of promoting probity, fair dealing and openness to all
residents and ratepayers of the municipality, Council generally does not
permit any encroachment onto Council land by abutting property owners and
occupiers.

The best value outcome to Council and the method for the management of
land encroachment issues must be the major considerations for Council
under this Policy.

Given the number of land encroachment issues that arise, it is vital that the
procedure be conducted in an efficient, effective and transparent manner in
order to demonstrate the accountability and responsibility of Council to
ratepayers and to protect the image, credibility and reputation of Council.

4. COUNCIL PLAN / STRATEGY

Responsibility for Identification of Land Encroachment

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

In general, responsibility for identifying land encroachment issues rests with
those Council officers who identify such an encroachment through on-site
inspections during the normal course of business, either in the field or from
such other activities related to Council business, or from software platforms
used by Council (e.g. Weave, GIS), or from advice received from a resident
or ratepayer.

Where possible and to avoid any disputes, a survey plan is the best way to
determine land title boundaries, and to confirm who has constructed what on
where. Property Services will take officer advice as to the merit of
undertaking such survey.

If a Council officer visits a site and becomes aware that there is a reasonable
belief or suspicion that an encroachment has occurred, the matter is referred
to Property Services for action.

The details of the suspected encroachment are to be forwarded to the
Property Services Unit to enable a proper evaluation to be made in order for
an action plan to be prepared and in turn provided to all relevant Council
Units for consideration of the appropriate management action to resolve the
encroachment.
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4.5

Prior to declaring an appropriate action for the resolution of the
encroachment, every effort must be made to identify whether the land
encroachment can be remedied, or whether other business unit Managers within
Council have an alternate approach for an appropriate resolution of the
encroachment.

The Land Encroachment Appeal and Resolution Process

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

The process for identifying and actioning a course of action for the resolution
of a land encroachment issue follows a series of defined steps to ensure that
separation of the identification, decision making and approval processes
occur. This provides the process with rigour and transparency, reducing the
likelihood of inappropriate conflict or angst with property owners or occupiers,
or suggestion of inappropriate treatment of the issue.

In the event that Council denies the land encroachment, and the applicant is
not satisfied with the decision, the matter can be considered via an internal
appeal process, where the relevant Group Manager/Director to review all
matters related to the decision. If the decision is upheld, the applicant to be
advised of their rights to an external review process by the Victorian
Ombudsman.

Any person involved in the assessment, authorisation or management action
of any land encroachment issue must advise their Director (or CEO if a
Director or staff member reporting to the CEO) of any existing or known
potential conflict of interest which may arise from the investigation and
subsequent action of remediating the land encroachment issue, and withdraw
from the process.

In this context, a conflict of interest would be defined as any situation where
the person involved will personally receive as a result of the land
encroachment action, a benefit or will be in a better position than they were
previously.

This is referred to in the Local Government Act 2020 under conflict
definitions.

The process is detailed in the following flow chart:
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Rectification of Land Encroachment Procedure

4.12 Where a Council officer believes the appropriate outcome is for the abutting
property owner to remove its occupation and improvements (if any) from Council
land and for the property owner or occupier to be responsible for any
rehabilitation and fencing costs, the following are the key steps in the process to
provide guidance on the acceptable method of rectifying the land encroachment
issue:

4.13 A full, accurate and objective assessment of any identified land encroachment
must be undertaken to:

o Evaluate existing or foreseeable use to Council;

¢ Determine the useability, condition of any improvements erected on the land,
or other benefit to Council should remediation of the land encroachment be
undertaken;

o Determine the consequences of a forced rectification of the encroachment;
e Establish the value to Council and municipality for the use of the land;

e ldentify (if any) physical hazards rendering it unsafe or impractical to take
this action; and

o Develop remedial actions where appropriate.
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4.14

Specific legal advice can be sought by Council officers for more problematic
and/or where there are specific legislative aspects to a land encroachment issue.

Register of Land Encroachments for Continued Occupation of Council Land

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

Where not possible to rectify an encroachment, at the agreement of Council and
the property owner the encroachment nature and make good arrangements to be
included within a Section 173 agreement. If an agreement cannot be reached to
enter into a Section 173 agreement then land affected to be included within the
land certificate.

The Policy also includes the potential to have a register whereby Council and the
abutting property owner formally acknowledge that they (the property owner or
occupier) are occupying Council land.

Council must ensure that it has no immediate or longer term need or use for the
land and initiates a proper record of the acknowledgement in TRIM (& Property
Ci) to evidence the decision and to ensure any future action in respect of the
abutting property (e.g. sale, or subdivision), is promptly notified to alert Council
officers for immediate reclaiming of the land at that time.

A register of all land encroachments whereby Council accepts the ongoing
encroachment and the abutting property owner or occupier acknowledge the
encroachment on Council land MUST be maintained.

Council officer may charge an appropriate annual licence fee to the abutting
property owner charged at a rate to be determined by Council’s Manager
Property Services.

When the abutting property owner’s property is sold, any licence agreement must
provide for immediate termination, with rehabilitation costs to be borne by the
abutting property owner.

A register would provide Council officers with a conclusion to the land
encroachment when notification that the abutting property is to be sold and the
encroached land is returned to the possession of Council.

5. IMPACTS AND IMPLICATIONS

5.1

5.2

Where a land encroachment issue arises, Council is to assess all available
advice from relevant officers in relation to the land encroachment on Council land
in order to manage an acceptable outcome for Council and to allow Council to
manage the issue according to the Policy guidelines.

Such an outcome may include the resolution for the abutting property owner or
occupier to remove its occupation and improvements (if any) from Council land
and for the property owner or occupier to be responsible for any rehabilitation and
fencing costs.
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6. IMPLEMENTATION
6.1 Finance / Resource Implications

6.1.1 The Policy includes the potential to have a register whereby Council and
the abutting property owner acknowledge the land encroachment on
Council land. Council in this way could charge an annual licence fee to
the abutting property owner charged at a rate to be determined by
Council’s Manager, Property Services.

6.2 Communication and Engagement

6.2.1 The process for identifying and actioning a course of action for the
resolution of a land encroachment issue follows a series of defined
steps to ensure that separation of the identification, decision making
and approval processes occur.

6.2.2 This provides the process and engagement with the abutting
property owner and/or occupier with rigour and transparency,
reducing the likelihood of inappropriate conflict or angst with property
owners or occupiers, or suggestion of inappropriate treatment of the
issue.

7. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No officers involved in the preparation of this report have any general or material
conflict of interest in this matter.
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1.PURPOSE

This Policy is aimed to provide a clear and transparent process for the
management and decisions related to land encroachment on Council land by
abutting property owners and occupiers.

This Policy outlines the processes involved in the identification and actions to deal
with land encroachments. With responsibilities clearly defined of the various
internal Council departments involved in the consultation and the resolution of land
encroachment issues. These guidelines apply to the whole of the municipality in
regards to land encroachment on Council land.

2.BACKGROUND

A key component of Council's strong commitment to responsible and ethical
management of its land assets is the need for a strong governance framework that
supports the process of identifying and managing land encrcachment issues.

Throughout the municipality, land encroachments have resulted over time by
abutting property owners and occupiers who have encroached onto Council land
(be it reserves, tree reserves, or road reserves) with fencing, driveways, landscaping
and other structures.

Encroachments must be carefully assessed and controlled, to ensure appropriate
and sustainable development that is in the best interests of the public.

This Policy provides direction to Council officers on the process for the reclaiming
land from property owners and occupiers who have encroached onto Council land.

Observing this Policy will produce many beneficial outcomes to Council including
the removal of many disputes and angst that naturally has arisen for everyone
involved and provide a clear way forward for Council to manage land encroachment
issues.

3.POLICY STATEMENT

The Policy provides a clear and transparent process for the management and
resolution of land encroachment on Council land by abutting property owners and
occupiers.

The Policy ensures that Council has an effective management solution to identify
and action for the resolution of land encroachment issues and that they will be
undertaken in a consistent, clear and transparent manner.

Commercial In Confidence © 3
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4. SCOPE

This Policy applies to all Council land whereby there are encroachment issues by
abutting property owners and occupiers.

Generally, the majority of land encroachments are on Council land (including
belonging to, or in the care, custody or control of Council) that are reserves, tree
reserves, or road reserves (including road encroachments, and footpath
accessibility issues).

Where a land encroachment issue arises, Council is to assess all available advice
from relevant officers in relation to the land encroachment on Council land in order
to manage an acceptable outcome for Council and to allow Council to manage the
issue according to the Policy guidelines.

Such an outcome may include the resolution for the abutting property owner or
occupier to remove its occupation and improvements (if any) from Council land
and for the property owner or occupier to be responsible for any rehabilitation and
fencing costs.

Where agreement cannot be reached and the encroachment is inappropriate, the
Council will issue a formal notice to the property owners requiring them to rectify
the encroachment.

Specific legal advice can be sought by Council officers for more problematic and/or
where there are specific legislative aspects to a land encroachment issue.

Alternatively, the Policy includes the potential to have a register whereby Council
and the abutting property owner acknowledge the land encroachment on Council
land. Council in this way could charge an annual licence fee to the abutting
property owner charged at a rate to be determined by Council’'s Manager, Property
Services.

Further, any decision by Council to enable a structure to remain on Council land
must also include the land owner entering into a formal agreement with Council for
the removal of the structure upon change in property ownership or any other time
specified by Council.

Property Services would undertake the review including preparation of agreements
and the policy is intended to apply to all properties.

Where a property is subject to an agreement and as such, the encroachment
agreement has been identified on Council's Property Ci system, should a Land
Information Certificate be applied for, when the subject property with the identified
land encroachment is scheduled for sale, then this will alert Council officers of the
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property owners obligation prior to selling the property and will hopefully avoid any
potential conflict for the purchasers after they have purchased the land.

Officers will also place a note on the Land Information Certificate where relevant,
which states that a notice has been delivered to the owner of the land advising
them that the land abutting the proposed land is encroached by the land which is
the subject of the Land Information Certificate request.

The agreement can include a number of requirements, including (but not limited
to) specific time frames for the removal of any structure, the rehabilitation of
Council land & a sunset clause in the agreement that will end the agreement once
the requirements of the agreement have been undertaken to Council's satisfaction.

When the abutting property owner’s property is sold, the agreement is terminated
and rehabilitation costs are to be borne by the abutting property owner or new
owner pursuant to the agreement.

A register would provide Council officers with a conclusion to the land
encroachment when the abutting property is sold and the encroached land is
returned to the possession of Council.

If the abutting property owner chooses not to occupy the Council land, then the
area is reclaimed by Council and fenced on the correct boundary under the half
share fencing provisions (where applicable).

5.DEFINITION

"Land" includes any Council owned land asset (or in the care, custody or control
of Council).

For clarity this definition includes land where Council has a Committee of
Management responsibility over Crown land, or other similar statutory authority.

6. GOVERNING LEGISLATION

In 2015 and 2016, the Victorian government introduced a new policy framework
for managing government land, and made a number of changes including:

« establishing Land Use Victoria (LUV) to bring together key land
administration functions and provide whole-of-government advice on
determining the best use of government land.

Essentially, this provides a statutory framework at a broader higher level designed
to protect public land.
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The relevant governing legislation and statutory requirements applicable to the
management of land encroachments are:

Local Government Act 2020
Part 3 — Council decision making — Division 3 — Local Laws

Allows Council to make local laws and have delegated and discretionary authority
to manage land encroachments.

Part 4 — Planning and financial management — Division 4 — Powers in relation to
land.

7.OBJECTIVES

Overview

In the interests of promoting probity, fair dealing and openness to all residents
and ratepayers of the municipality, Council generally does not permit any
encroachment onto Council land by abutting property owners and occupiers.

The best value outcome to Council and the method for the management of
land encroachment issues must be the major considerations for Council under
this Policy.

Given the number of land encroachment issues that arise, it is vital that the
procedure be conducted in an efficient, effective and transparent manner in
order to demonstrate the accountability and responsibility of Council to
ratepayers and to protect the image, credibility and reputation of Council.

8. MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES

Responsibility for Identification of Land Encroachment

In general, responsibility for identifying land encroachment issues rests with
those Council officers who identify such an encroachment through on-site
inspections during the normal course of business, either in the field or from
such other activities related to Council business, or from software platforms
used by Council (e.g. Weave, GIS), or from advice received from a resident or
ratepayer.

Where possible and to aveid any disputes, a survey plan is the best way to
determine land title boundaries, and to confirm who has constructed what on
where. Property Services will take officer advice as to the merit of undertaking
such survey.
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If a Council officer visits a site and becomes aware that there is a reasonable
belief or suspicion that an encroachment has occurred, the matter is referred
to Property Services for action.

The details of the suspected encroachment are to be forwarded to the Property
Services Unit to enable a proper evaluation to be made in order for an action
plan to be prepared and in turn provided to all relevant Council Units for
consideration of the appropriate management action to resolve the
encroachment.

Prior to declaring an appropriate action for the resolution of the encroachment,
every effort must be made to identify whether the land encroachment can be
remedied, or whether other business unit Managers within Council have an
alternate approach for an appropriate resolution of the encroachment.

The Land Encroachment Appeal and Resolution Process

The process for identifying and actioning a course of action for the resolution
of a land encroachment issue follows a series of defined steps to ensure that
separation of the identification, decision making and approval processes occur.
This provides the process with rigour and transparency, reducing the likelihood
of inappropriate conflict or angst with property owners or occupiers, or
suggestion of inappropriate treatment of the issue.

In the event that Council denies the land encroachment, and the applicant is
not satisfied with the decision, the matter can be considered via an internal
appeal process, where the relevant Group Manager/Director to review all
matters related to the decision. If the decision is upheld, the applicant to be
advised of their rights to an external review process by the Victorian
Ombudsman.

Any person involved in the assessment, authorisation or management action
of any land encroachment issue must advise their Director (or CEOQ if a Director
or staff member reporting to the CEO) of any existing or known potential
conflict of interest which may arise from the investigation and subsequent
action of remediating the land encroachment issue, and withdraw from the
process.

In this context, a conflict of interest would be defined as any situation where
the person involved will personally receive as a result of the land encroachment
action, a benefit or will be in a better position than they were previously.

This is referred to in the Local Government Act 2020 under conflict definitions.

The process is detailed in the following flow chart.
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An encroachment has been
identified & details are sent

Property Services consider
encroachment & liaises with

SELL the land - formal
agreement and acceptance of

e

Encroachment DENIED

formal advice to occupier to

MNOTE - for more problematic
land encroachments (&
where difficulties arise in
remaving the encroachment),

Statutory Process pursuant to
the Local Government Act

— e,

Encroachment

PERMITTED formal

£l signed by occup

Rectification of Land Encroachment Procedure

When abutting owner's
property is being sold,
Council records to notify of

MNOTE - when the abutting
owner's property isin the
process of being sold, any
licence agreement must be

Where a Council officer believes the appropriate outcome is for the abutting
property owner to remove its occupation and improvements (if any) from Council
land and for the property owner or occupier to be responsible for any rehabilitation
and fencing costs, the following are the key steps in the process to provide
guidance on the acceptable method of rectifying the land encroachment issue:

A full, accurate and objective assessment of any identified land encroachment
must be undertaken to:

¢ Evaluate existing or foreseeable use to Council;

s Determine the useability, condition of any improvements erected on the land,
or other benefit to Council should remediation of the land encroachment be

undertaken;

¢ Determine the consequences of a forced rectification of the encroachment;

¢ Establish the value to Council and municipality for the use of the land;
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¢ |dentify (if any) physical hazards rendering it unsafe or impractical to take this
action; and

e Develop remedial actions where appropriate.

Specific legal advice can be sought by Council officers for more problematic and/or
where there are specific legislative aspects to a land encroachment issue.

Register of Land Encroachments for Continued Occupation of Council
Land

Where not possible to rectify an encroachment, at the agreement of Council and
the property owner the encroachment nature and make good arrangements to be
included within a Section 173 agreement. If an agreement cannot be reached to
enter into a Section 173 agreement then land affected to be included within the
land certificate.

The Policy also includes the potential to have a register whereby Council and the
abutting property owner formally acknowledge that they (the property owner or
occupier) are occupying Council land.

Council must ensure that it has no immediate or longer term need or use for the
land and initiates a proper record of the acknowledgement in TRIM (& Property Ci)
to evidence the decision and to ensure any future action in respect of the abutting
property (e.g. sale, or subdivision), is promptly notified to alert Council officers for
immediate reclaiming of the land at that time.

A register of all land encroachments whereby Council accepts the ongoing
encroachment and the abutting property owner or occupier acknowledge the
encroachment on Council land MUST be maintained.

Council officer may charge an appropriate annual licence fee to the abutting
property owner charged at a rate to be determined by Council’'s Manager Property
Services.

When the abutting property owner’s property is sold, any licence agreement must
provide for immediate termination, with rehabilitation costs to be borne by the
abutting property owner.

A register would provide Council officers with a conclusion to the land
encroachment when notification that the abutting property is to be sold and the
encroached land is returned to the possession of Council.
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12 SHARED SERVICES

12.1 Proposed 2021/22 Budget and Draft Revenue & Rating Plan

File Number: IN21/255
Responsible Director:  Director Shared Services
Attachments: 1 Proposed 2021/22 Budget §

2 Draft Revenue & Rating Plan 2021/22 to 2024/25 1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) requires Council to prepare and adopt a
Budget each year by 30 June (Section 94). The Act also requires that Council prepare
a Revenue and Rating Plan covering a minimum period of four years to be adopted by
30 June following each Council election (Section 93).

A Proposed 2021/22 Budget incorporating major initiatives and other initiatives and a
draft Revenue and Rating Plan 2021/22 to 2024/25 have been prepared for Council
approval ‘in-principle’ and release for public consultation prior to being adopted in June
2021.

Council encourages input and comments on these documents. This can be provided
via the ‘Your Say Manningham’ website, where the documents can also be viewed.
Printed copies will also be available at Council’s libraries and the Civic Centre.

1. RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

A. Approve ‘in-principle’ the Proposed 2021/22 Budget;

B. Approve ‘in-principle’ the proposed major initiatives and other initiatives
contained within the Proposed 2021/22 Budget and the Council Plan 2021-
25;

C. Approve ‘in-principle’ the Draft Revenue & Rating Plan;

D. In accordance with Council’s Community Engagement Policy seek the
community’s input into the Proposed 2021/22 Budget incorporating the
major initiatives and other initiatives and the Draft Revenue & Rating Plan;
and

E. Consider for adoption the Proposed Budget 2021/22 incorporating the
major initiatives and other initiatives and the Draft Revenue & Rating Plan
at the Council Meeting on Tuesday 29 June 2021, after consideration of
any input received from the community.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The Proposed Budget has been prepared for the 2021/22 financial year and Draft

Revenue & Rating Plan in accordance with the Local Government Act 2020 and are
included as attachments.
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2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

The documents form part of the new Integrated Strategic Planning and Reporting
Framework and must be prepared in accordance with the strategic planning principles
outlined in Section 89 of the Act and the financial management principles in Section
101 of the Act.

The strategic planning principles in section 89 include the following requirements:

e An integrated approach to planning, monitoring and performance reporting;

The Community Vision must be addressed;
o Resources needed for effective implementation must be taken into account;
o Risks to effective implementation must be identified and addressed; and

¢ Ongoing monitoring of progress and regular reviews to identify and address
changing circumstances.

The financial management principles in section 101 of the Act require that the
Revenue & Rating Plan must seek to provide stability and predictability in the financial
impact on the municipal community.

2021/22 Budget

The proposed 2021/22 Budget incorporating major initiatives and other initiatives has
been prepared based on significant feedback and input to date, including:

e A community survey in late 2020 on the communities priorities which
highlighted the importance of good governance and ongoing financial
sustainability;

¢ A Community Panel in March 2021 that provided input into the longer term 10
Year Financial Plan, which is currently being developed;

e An online consultation period in April 2021 on “Your Say Manningham”
inviting the community to provide Council with their ideas and input into the
development of the 2021/22 budget; and

e A rigorous budget development and review process involving Councillors and
Council officers.

In addition to the above, it is proposed that Council also seek community input and
comments on the proposed 2021/22 Budget (incorporating major initiatives and other
initiatives) document attached.

The proposed 2021/22 Budget has been developed in line with the Local Government
Victoria Model Budget as required by the Local Government Act 2020.

Revenue & Rating Plan

The Revenue & Rating Plan provides a medium-term plan for how Council will
generate income to deliver on the Council Plan, programs, services and capital works
commitments over the next four years. It outlines the relevant assumptions, policy
and decisions of Council with respect to each budgeted revenue source, and provides
transparency on these decisions to the community.
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2.9 The Plan includes a broad pricing policy section, which outlines Council’s approach to
each major income source. It provides an overview of the different factors that are
considered when setting Council fees and charges and highlights that Council actively
seeks to obtain grant funding and grow its own-sourced revenue to reduce the burden
on ratepayers.

2.10 The Plan also includes Council’s rating strategy providing further information about
the rating and valuation approaches and principles that are currently applied.

2.11 The Plan will be reviewed annually and updated when required to reflect any changes
to Council’s approach to revenue and rating. This may be required due to changes
that result from the development of other strategic plans including the Community
Vision, Council Plan 2021-2025 and 10 Year Financial Plan 2021/22 to 2030/31,
which are currently underway at the time of this report.

2.12 The draft Revenue & Rating Plan has been prepared based on significant feedback
and input to date including:

e A community survey in late 2020 on the communities priorities which
highlighted the importance of good governance and ongoing financial
sustainability;

e A Community Panel in March 2021 that provided input into the longer term
10 Year Financial Plan which is currently being developed;

¢ An online consultation period in April 2021 on “Your Say Manningham”
inviting the community to provide Council with their input into the
development of the Revenue & Rating Plan; and

e A rigorous development and review process involving Councillors and
Council officers.

2.13 In addition to the above, it is proposed that Council also seek community input and
comments on the draft Revenue & Rating Plan document attached.

2.14 The Plan has been prepared with reference to the Better Practice Guide and
supplementary guidance issued by Local Government Victoria.

3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE

3.1 The proposed budget has been prepared with reference to the current adopted four
year Council Plan 2017-2021 and Council’s Long Term Financial Plan. Although the
new four year Council Plan 2021-25 is being developed at the time of this report there
has been a significant amount of community input to date that has informed the
development of the proposed 2021/22 Budget. Council’s financial planning is aimed
at creating a financially sustainable organisation to enable Council to continue to
provide high quality services and infrastructure for the community in the medium and
long term.

3.2 Council’s long term Financial Plan is based on the following principles:

e Financially sustainable Council - improving financial sustainability to enable
Council to respond to financial challenges now and into the future;

e Live within our means - do not spend more than we have or which will
diminish Council's long term financial sustainability;
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3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

e Prioritised funding - align resources to Council Plan priorities and fund
projects based on demonstrated need;

¢ Financially sustainable operating surpluses over the life of the long term
financial plan to assist in funding Council's extensive capital works program
with a minimum of 33% of rate funds applied to the capital works program;

e Priority to funding capital renewal before investing in new or expanded
assets;

e Consistent funding for technology and innovation.

Council has continued to focus on a targeted reduction in operating costs and will
continue to focus on efficiencies and cost savings to ensure ongoing financial
sustainability.

It should be noted that this policy adheres to the projected State Government annual
rate cap. It is not proposed to seek a variation for a higher rate increase beyond the
rate cap. Also, Council may vary its annual Capital Works Program during the year to
ensure the maximum benefit is achieved from funds available and to offset delays in
project delivery beyond Council's control.

In accordance with the rate cap advised by the Minister for Local Government, this
budget proposes an average general rate increase of 1.5%.

Key highlights of the Budget include:

e An operating budget of $133 million to deliver more than 100 services for our
community

e A $48 million Capital Works Program to maintain and enhance Council’s $2
billion of community assets with an increased focus on funding for trees,
footpaths, bicycle strategy implementation, drainage and roads.

e An average general rate increase in line with the State Government’s rate cap
of 1.5%

e Continued support for rate payers undergoing financial difficulties through our
financial hardship provisions

e A focus on ongoing financial sustainability through innovation and efficiencies

e Key operating initiatives in priority areas including sustainability and the
environment, asset management, flood modelling, water management,
strategic land use, data management, precinct planning, North East Link
community advocacy and support, a feasibility study into a car share scheme,
and to recognise our volunteer community

e Council has also set aside $15.39 million in a Strategic Fund to create the
capacity for Council to engage in strategic property acquisition and
development opportunities, major community infrastructure development
opportunities and for other one-off specific purposes in the future where
required. $12.51 million set aside in this fund is to be internally reallocated
from the previous internal allocation of $8 million for a future Defined Benefits
superannuation call and $4.51 million of proceeds from past asset sales.
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3.7 Council’'s $133 million operating budget provides funding to deliver community
services, highlights include:

$12.3 million for the maintenance of roads, drains, footpaths and bridges
$14.4 million for waste and recycling

$11.6 million for the maintenance of sports grounds, parks and gardens
$9.9 million for customer services, Citizen Connect, IT and Transformation
$9.7 million for aged and disability support services

$7.0 million for health, local laws, animal management, food safety, litter and
traffic management

$6.1 million for planning, maintaining and operating Council’s property and
buildings

$5.7 million for community services, including maternal and child health,
immunisation, pre-schools, community development grants and community
planning services

$5.4 million for integrated strategic planning, urban design and environmental
services

$4.4 million for libraries
$3.9 million for statutory planning services
$2.3 million for community venues and hall hire, and

$2.0 million for economic development, tourism and grants.

3.8 An extensive $48 million Capital Works Program comprising:

$12.5 million for roads and bridges, including $5.1 million for the road network
renewal program, and $2 million for an upgrade of Tram and Merlin Road
intersection in Doncaster, $1.15 million for the upgrade of Knees Road in
Park Orchards, $1 million for Tuckers Road in Templestowe and $1 million
for Jumping Creek Road in Wonga Park

$9.3 million for community buildings, including $3.3 million for the ongoing
renewal of community buildings including MC2, $1.8 million for Schramms
Reserve pavilion, $0.9 million on upgrades to Civic buildings, $0.8 million for
the Mullum Mullum bowls facility, $0.7 million for Deep Creek Reserve
Pavilion, $0.5 million on the renewal of recreation buildings, and $0.3 million
for accessibility and safety improvements. $0.8 million of funding has also
been provided for environmental initiatives including solar panels and for the
Environmentally Sustainable Design (ESD) program.

$1.6 million will be spent on land purchases to increase open space within the
Municipality.

$5.5 million to recreation and community facilities, including $3.4 million for
Pettys Reserve Sporting Development Stage 2, $1.2 million for Tom Kelly
athletics track and development.

$5.4 million for parks, open space and streetscapes, including $1.0 million for
Lions Park Warrandyte river reserve, $1.0 million for Hepburn Reserve, $0.9
million for playspaces development, $0.3 million for floodlighting in reserves,
and $0.3 million for Ruffey Lake Park Master Plan implementation and $0.5
million funding ongoing for tree planting / streetscapes.
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e $4.1 million for drainage improvements. This includes an uplift of funding of
$0.60 million for drainage;

e $3.6 million to renew Council’s core IT and telecommunications infrastructure;

e $3.5 million to expand and improve footpaths and cycle ways. This includes
an uplift of funding of $0.75 million into the footpaths and cycleways
programs; and

e $1.9 million for plant and equipment.

General Rates

3.9 The proposed 2021/22 Budget is based on:

3.10

3.11

3.12

o the continuation of a single or uniform rate for all property types (no
differential rates)

e an average general rate increase of 1.5% as set by the State Government
rate cap

e general rates for an average property of $1,849.

e a $100 Council funded rebate for holders of a Commonwealth Government
Low Income (LI) Health Care Card

e the continuation of financial hardship provisions to help ratepayers who are
experiencing difficulty in paying their rates.

The State Government has assumed responsibility for property valuations for rating
purposes. A General Revaluation is conducted every year, meaning that all property
values throughout the municipality were re-assessed for the 2021/22 proposed
budget.

The change in property values will not be consistent across all properties and
localities in Manningham. This will result in only a small number of properties having a
rate increase of 1.5% (the rate cap), while most properties will see a rate increase
above or below the rate cap depending on the relative movement in the value of an
individual property compared to the average valuation movement.

Preliminary property valuation data has been released by the Valuer-General Victoria
and indicates that the average property value in Manningham decreased by
approximately 3% from $1.12 million (1 Jan 2020 valuation) to $1.08 million (1 Jan
2021 valuation).

Waste charges

3.13

3.14

Council’'s waste service charge is based on full cost recovery of Council's waste
services. The cost to Council for waste management is anticipated to increase
significantly due to the State Government increase in the landfill levy charged to
councils. This levy is increasing by over 60% to $105.90 per tonne of waste disposed
in landfill in 2021/22.

In addition to this, the recycling industry and therefore councils, continue to be
impacted by changes in the market for recyclables — both here in Australia and
overseas.
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3.15 Due to the increased cost to Council the proposed 2021/22 Waste and recycling
charge for a standard waste service will increase by 13.5% in 2021/22 to $299.00.

Combined rates and charges bill

3.16 The total rates and charges for an average property in Manningham (value $1.08
million) is detailed in the following table:

2020/21 | 2021/22 | Change $| Change

%

General rates charge $1,822 $1,849 $27 1.5%
Standard waste charge * $263.50 $299 $35.50 13.5%
Total Council charges $2,085.50 $2,148 $62.50 3.0%
State Government Fire levy ** $173 $173 - -
Total rates and charges bill | $2,258.50 $2,321 $62.50 2.8%

* The waste charge increase is due to the significant increase in waste service costs to Council.
This is primarily as a result of a large increase in the State Government Landfill Levy charged to
Council of over 60%. Council’s waste service charge is based on full cost recovery.

** Assuming that there is no change to the State Government Fire Services Levy for 2021-22.

3.17 Council has achieved the mandated rate cap of 1.5% for general rates.

Key Financial Indicators

3.18 The Local Government Performance and Reporting Framework details a range of
financial indicators, a summary of which is detailed below. The indicators show
positive trends which will contribute to an improvement in the long term financial
sustainability of Council.

Actual Forecast Projections Trend

Budget

Indicator Measure

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024125 +/o/-

Operating position
Adjusted underlying surplus (deficit) / Adjusted

Adjusted underlying result j 5.69% 1.45% 5.46% 5.44% 5.28% 5.28% [¢]
underlying revenue

Liquidity

Working Capital Current assets / current liabilities 198.35% 155.09% 159.53% 164.82% 172.69% 178.36% +
Unrestricted cash Unrestricted cash / current liabilities 36.87% 24.52% 42.07% 43.79% 46.00%  50.81% +
Obligations

Loans and borrowings Interest bearing loans and borrowings / rate revenue 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% o
Loans and borrowings :gfggjr;”ggrm’:]Z!;ffaat‘é”?s:;“j’; interest bearing 6.97% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 000%  0.00% 0
Indebtedness Non-current liabilities / own source revenue 3.04% 2.80% 2.42% 2.10% 1.89% 1.71% +
Asset renewal Qszzc'fa':;"rv]a' and upgrade expense / Asset 161.28%  131.19%| 182.82% 12154%  122.89% 111.54% 0
Stability

Rates concentration Rate revenue / adjusted underlying revenue 78.61% 80.32% 80.84% 80.84% 80.96%  80.89% o
Rates effort Rate revenue / CIV of rateable properties in the 0.20% 019%  020%  021%  021%  0.22% o

municipality

Key to Forecast Trend:

+ Forecasts improvement in Council's financial performance/financial position indicator

o Forecasts that Council's financial performance/financial position indicator will be steady

- Forecasts deterioration in Council's financial performance/financial position indicator
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Adjusted underlying result

3.19

3.20

The budgeted operating result (income less expenses) for the 2021/22 year is a
surplus of $20.55 million, an increase of $9.10 million over the 2020/21 forecast
result. Council and our community were significantly impacted by the State
Government restrictions due to Covid-19 in 2020/21. The change is primarily due to a
return back to pre-Covid income levels and a reduction in employee costs and
materials and services costs.

One measure of financial sustainability is the adjusted underlying surplus which is
budgeted to be $7.67 million in 2021/22. The adjusted underlying surplus excludes
capital income and developer income (cash and non-cash) from the operating
surplus. A positive adjusted underlying result is an indication of financial stability. A
strong adjusted underlying surplus is required to fund Council's extensive capital
works program and to ensure that it has sufficient reserves to meet financial
challenges that may arise in the future.

Major Initiatives and Other Initiatives for 2021/22

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

Major Initiatives and other Initiatives are required as part of the Budget, and are
included in the Council Plan. They are developed as a result of the Council planning
process to signify key projects that Council will resource and deliver in pursuit of the
themes and goals in the Council Plan 2021-25 (currently being developed).

The Major Initiatives and other Initiatives have been developed after a significant
consultation process involving the broad community, Councillors and staff and are
also informed by evidence and legislation. For the first time, Council engaged in a
deliberative process to inform its strategic documents. The resulting Community
Panel recommendations as well as a number of other priorities are addressed
through the Major Initiatives and other Initiatives.

Major Initiatives sit across the four year Council Plan, with progress reported through
the Manningham Quarterly Report. Progress for both the Major Initiatives and the
Initiatives are reported in the Annual Report.

Once endorsed in-principle, the Major Initiatives and Other Initiatives for 2021/22 will
go on public display as part of the Proposed 2021/22 Budget (under Section 2 of the
budget document). Once adopted in the Budget, the Major Initiatives and Other
Initiatives for 2021/22 will not be a focus of the Council Plan public display period to
avoid confusion and duplication.

The Community Panel will be advised of the above process.

The Major Initiatives and Other Initiatives under each Theme are:

3.26

Theme: Community

Major Initiatives

1. We will undertake evidence-based planning for equitable, inclusive and
accessible services and infrastructure improvements for prominent issues
including:

e Commencing gender equality impact assessments on significant
Council policies, services and programs.
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¢ Improving the range of accessible supports and services available to
young people within Manningham, exploring a youth hub, advocating
for improved mental health resources and working collaboratively with
youth agencies.

e Developing a collaborative forum to engage with businesses,
community leaders, community groups and residents from culturally
diverse backgrounds

¢ Investigating extended use of community facilities, including libraries,
to address social isolation.

2. We will work to connect service providers, community groups, local
organisations and networks to improve and profile community outcomes
through forums and connections.

3. We will educate and support to connected, inclusive and healthy communities
(inclusive of our CALD communities) through:

e environmental education and waste programs,

e implementing the Reconciliation Action Plan to enhance recognition
of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities and

e resources and information that link our community to the
understanding of and responses to family violence.

Other Initiatives

4. We will pursue strategies to reduce the impact of gambling on the community,
considering areas such as poker machines and advertising on Council
buildings.

3.27 Theme: Places and Spaces

Major Initiatives

5. We will strengthen our principles to guide responsible planning for new
developments:

e Adoption of key strategic documents including Liveable City Strategy
2040 by December 2021 and the Environmental Strategy and review
of the Manningham Planning Scheme by 30 June 2022

e Investigate enhanced planning controls to enhance protection of the
environment.

6. We will provide ways for people to connect by:

e Prioritising grant funding to support community inclusion and
connections in a way that respond to community needs.

¢ Improving people’s ability to walk or wheel safely and easily to local
shops, community facilities and schools, by developing new linkages.

¢ Deliver actions in the Transport Action Plan and Bus Network Review
2017 including contributing to planning of the Suburban Rail Loop,
Doncaster Busway, Bus Rapid Transits, bus network and service
improvements and enhancing the walking and cycling network.

ltem 12.1 Page 52



COUNCIL AGENDA 25 MAY 2021

7. We will investigate and review current facility use and opportunities to develop
or repurpose existing facilities and use of Council land for multi-use purposes
and to meet changing community needs through:

¢ Finalising the Community Infrastructure Plan by 30 September 2021
and implementing the 20 year Action Plan.

e Strengthening utilisation and performance of stadiums in conjunction
with stadium managers.

e Improving community access to sport and recreation facilities and
spaces for broad community use and benefit

8. We will continue to advocate to the North East Link Project for improved
outcomes for the Manningham community, particular around urban design, to
reduce impact of the project on the community

9. We will continue to work to maintain to a high standard our roads, footpaths and
drains.

Other Initiatives

10. We will deliver the Road Improvement Program (as scheduled) including
Jumping Creek Road, Tuckers Road, Knees Road and Templestowe Village
connecting roads.

11. We will deliver the Parks and Recreation Facilities Upgrades (as scheduled)
including Petty's Reserve Sporting Development (Stage 2), Rieschiecks
Reserve Pavilion Redevelopment, Deep Creek Reserve Pavilion and Mullum
Mullum Bowls.

12. We will deliver the Parks Improvement Program including Ruffey Lake
Masterplan, new open space on Hepburn Road, Ruffey Creek Linear Park and
Lions Park.

3.28 Theme: Environment

Major Initiatives

13. We will deliver the Environmental Strategy and strengthen principles to protect
the environment, biodiversity and wildlife by:

e Advocating to government and business on environmental issues

e Improving management practices of bushland maintenance, pest
animal and environmental weed control and monitoring, evaluating
and improvement mechanisms.

e Exploring biodiversity improvement or environmental community
engagement programs for local public areas in collaboration with the
Wurundjeri Woi Wurrung Cultural Heritage Aboriginal Corporation,
Melbourne Water and Parks Victoria

e Exploring protection measures in the new Community Local Law by
30 June 2022, and

e Improving the sustainability of Council's environmental practices.
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Other Initiatives

14. We will deliver our drainage program (as scheduled) including the Melbourne
Hill Road Drainage Upgrade.

3.29 Theme: Local Economy

Major Initiatives

15. We will support local businesses by:

o Demonstrating leadership to increase procurement with Social
Enterprises, Aboriginal Enterprises and Australian Disability
Enterprises (collectively known as Social Benefit Suppliers) and Local
Businesses.

e Capacity building and support through the Business Development
Program.

o Explore local opportunities to support local businesses to collaborate
via a Hub / co-working space, and

¢ Implementing the recommendations in the Doncaster Hill Strategy
and Economic Development Strategy to encourage and support
tourism and employment opportunities.

3.30 Theme: Well Governed

Major Initiatives

16. We will explore different ways to improve community satisfaction with
Council’s communications on local community issues, services and
activities.

17. We will explore ways to enhance performance reporting across social,
environment and economic outcomes against community need.

18. We will improve our Customer Experience to better understand and
meet their specific needs.

19. We will ensure the long term financial sustainability of Council through
preparing the Budget and 10 year Financial Plan incorporating key
strategies to Council by 30 June 2022.

20. We will maximise public value through the systematic review of
Council’'s services and effective, early and broad engagement on
projects.

21. We will take a proactive and motivated approach to be an open and
transparent Council.

Other Initiatives

22. We will implement Manningham’s Protective Data Security Plan
Initiatives for 2021/22.
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4,

4.1 The proposed budget has been prepared with reference to the current adopted 4 year
Council Plan 2017-2021 and Council’s Long Term Financial Plan. Although the new
4 year Council Plan 2021-25 is being developed at the time of this report there has
been a significant amount of community input to date that has informed the
development of the proposed 2021/22 Budget incorporating the proposed 2021/22

4.2

5.

5.1

5.2

5.3

COUNCIL PLAN / STRATEGY

Major Initiatives and Other Initiatives.

Progress against the Council Plan will be reported periodically through the quarterly

CEO Report and the Annual Report.

IMPLEMENTATION

Finance / Resource Implications

5.1.1 The proposed 2021/22 Budget and draft Revenue & Rating Plan have been
prepared in alignment with the community’s priorities, the Council Plan and
the long term Financial Plan.

5.1.2 The proposed budget adopts a balanced budget approach. Strategies are
being implemented to ensure that Council remains financially sustainable in
the long term, and has the capability to continue to provide relevant and cost
effective services and infrastructure for our community following the
introduction of a rate cap by the State Government.

5.1.3 The Key Financial Indicators project Council to continue to be in a sound
financial position over the four year period.

Communication and Engagement

5.2.1 In addition to the extensive community engagement to date, the proposed
2021/22 Budget and the draft Revenue & Rating Plan 2021/22 to 2024/25
will be available on Council’s website and a hard copy will be available at the
Civic Centre and Council’s libraries.

5.2.2 Council encourages community input and comments on these documents.
This can be provided via the ‘Your Say Manningham’ website where the
documents can also be viewed.

5.2.3 The public display and public comment period will run from Wednesday 26
May 2021 to Monday 7 June 2021.

Timelines

Key dates in the 2021/22 Budget and Revenue & Rating Plan process include:

25 May 2021 Council Meeting to adopt ‘in principle’ Proposed
2021/22 Budget and Draft Revenue & Rating Plan
2021/22 to 2024/25

26 May 2021 Public exhibition period opens
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7 June 2021 Public exhibition period closes

8 June 2021 SBS consider public comments and Budget and
Revenue & Rating Plan (as amended)

29 June 2021 Council meeting to adopt the 2021/22 Budget and
Revenue & Rating Plan 2021/22 to 2024/25.

6. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No officers involved in the preparation of this report have any general or material
conflict of interest in this matter.
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Mayor and CEO’s Introduction

We are pleased to present our proposed 2021/22 Budget. Following a rigorous review by Councillors and
management, this proposed budget aligns with our community's priorities.

We have undertaken significant community engagement to help inform our key plans and strategies,
including our Community Vision, Council Plan, 10-year Financial Plan, our Revenue and Rating Plan and

this proposed 2021/22 Budget.
Some of the features of this year's budget include:

« An operating budget of $133 million to deliver more than 100 services for our community

e A 548 million Capital Works Program to maintain and enhance Council's $2 billion of community
assets with an increased focus on funding for trees, footpaths, bicycle strategy implementation,
drainage and roads.

* An average general rate increase in line with the State Government's rate cap of 1.5%

* The cost to Council of collecting and disposing of waste and recyclable materials in 2021/22 is
projected to increase significantly primarily due to an increase in the State Government Landfill levy

charged to Council of aver 60%. To offset the significant impact on Council and to continue to fully
recover the cost of waste services the waste service charge will increase by 13 5% in 2021/22

+ We will continue to support ratepayers undergoing financial difficulties through our financial
hardship provisions

+ A focus on ongoing financial sustainability and innovation

« New initiatives for sustainability and the environment, asset management, flood modelling, water
management, strategic land use, data management, precinct planning, North East Link community
advocacy and support, a feasibility study into a car share scheme, and to recognise our volunteer
community

e The creation of a 'Strategic Fund' to build the capacity for Council to engage in strategic property
acquisition and development opportunities and major community infrastructure development
opportunities. This fund will provide long term community benefit and ensure ongoing financial
sustainability.

Our $133 million operating budget provides funding to deliver community services. Highlights include:

$14.4 million for waste and recycling

$12.3 million for the maintenance of roads, drains, footpaths and bridges

$11.6 million for the maintenance of sports grounds, parks and gardens

$9.9 million for customer services, IT and Transformation

$9.7 million for aged and disability support services

$7.0 million for health, local laws, animal management, food safety, litter and traffic management
$6.1 million for planning, maintaining and operating Council's property and buildings

$5.7 million for community services, including maternal and child health, immunisation, childcare,
pre-schools, community development grants and community planning services

$5.4 million for integrated strategic planning, urban design and environmental services

$4.4 million for libraries

$3.9 million for statutory planning services

$2.3 million for community venues and hall hire, and

$2.0 million for economic development, tourism and grants.

« & & & & & 8 @

* & & & @

Council's extensive capital works program of $48 million comprises:
« $12.5 million for roads and bridges

This includes $5.1 million for the road network renewal program, and $2 million for an upgrade
of Tram and Merlin Road intersection in Doncaster, $1.15 million for the upgrade of Knees
Road in Park Orchards, $1 million for Tuckers Road in Templestowe and $1 million for Jumping
Creek Road in Wonga Park

Iltem 12.1 Attachment 1 Page 59



25 MAY 2021

$9.3 million for community buildings

This includes $3.3 million for ongoing renewal of community buildings including MC
Square, $1.8 million for Schramms Reserve pavilion in Doncaster, $900,000 on upgrades
to Civic buildings,

$800,000 for environmental initiatives including solar panels and the Environmentally
Sustainable Design (ESD) program, $800,000 for Mullum Mullum Bowls, $700,000 for
Deep Creek Reserve Pavilion, $500,000 for renewal of recreation buildings, $300,000 for
accessibility and safety

$5.5 million to recreation, leisure and community facilities

This includes $3.4million for the Pettys Reserve Sporting Development project and $1.2
million for Tom Kelly Athletics Track development

$5.4 million for parks, open space and streetscapes

This includes $1 million for Lions Park upgrade at the Warrandyte River Reserve, $1
million for Hepburn Reserve, $900,000 for playspace upgrades, $300,000 for floodlighting
in reserves, and

$300,000 to implement the Ruffey Lake Park Masterplan. We have also made an ongoing
commitment of an additional $500,000 for tree-planting each year.

$4.1 million for drainage improvements including an additional allocation of $600,000 for our

drainage program

$3.6 million to renew Council’s core IT and telecommunications infrastructure

$3.5 million to expand and improve footpaths and cycleways including an additional allocation

of $750,000 into the footpath and cycleways programs
$1.9 million for plant and equipment.

Our proposed 2021/22 Budget has been prepared based on community feedback and input including

« A community survey in late 2020 on the community’s priorities which highlighted the importance of

good governance and ongoing financial sustainability

+  The recommendations made by our Community Panel in March 2021 which provided input into the
longer term 10 Year Financial Plan and a number of other key Council plans which are currently

being developed

+ |deas and suggestions received for the Annual Budget and Revenue and Rating Plan via Your

Say Manningham during April 2021

We now invite you to read through this proposed 2021/22 Budget and provide your feedback eitheronline
at yoursay. manningham.vic.gov.au/budget or by post before Monday 7 June 2021.

We welcome your input on this proposed 2021/22 Budget We will consider all feedback received
before the budget is considered for adoption in late June 2021.

Cr Andrew Conlon Andrew Day
MAYOR CEO
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Budget summary

The 2021/22 Budget has been through a rigorous process of review by Councillors and management to ensure
that it aligns with our community's priorities and will help meet the objectives set out in our CouncilPlan.
Council has engaged and consulted with our community throughout its development.

Council has also developed a Revenue & Rating Plan for 2021/22 to 2024/25 which provides a medium- term
plan for how Council will generate income to deliver on the Council Plan, programs, services and capital
works commitments over the next four years

The 2021/22 Budget balances the demand for services and infrastructure with the community’s capacity to pay.
The proposed 2021/22 Budget represents the first four years of a longer term 10-year Financial Plan.

Strategic Budget Principles

The 2021/22 Budget and ten year Financial Plan are based on a number of Budget Principles. These principles
guide the development of the operating and capital budgets and ensure that a consistent approach is applied.
The Budget Principles are:

+ Financially sustainable Council - improving financial sustainability to enable Council to respond to
financial challenges now and into the future.

s Live within our means - do not spend more than we have or which will diminish Council's long term
financial sustainability.

+  Prioritised funding - align resources to Council Plan prionties and funding based on demonstrated need
¢ A minimum of 33% of rate funds applied to the capital program.

« Consistent funding for technology and innovation.
«  Priority to funding capital renewal before investing in new or expanded assets

+ Adherence to the projected State Government annual rate cap - it 1s not proposed to seek a vanation for
a higher rate increase beyond the rate cap.

+  Council may vary its annual Capital Works Program during the year to ensure the maximum benefit is
achieved from funds available and to offset delays in project delivery beyond Council's control.

In developing forward budget projections, the following factors were used:
« Labour costs fo rise by projected Enterprise Agreement increases.

« CPl and the rate cap are assumed to be 1.5% for 2021/22: 1.75% for 2022/23; 2 0% for 2023/24; and
2 5% for 2024/25

« Fees and charges to increase in line with CPl or market levels.

«  Grants revenue included where there is high probability of securing the grant for the budget and forecast
years.

» Grants revenue has been escalated by CPI unless advised otherwise.

+ Contract costs to increase in line with existing contract provisions. All other general material increases
are capped at CPI.

+ Construction and building matenial costs to increase in line with the Building Price Index
s Al new capital work proposals to be based on a detailed business case.

+ The creation of a 'Strategic Fund' to create the resourcing capacity for Council to engage in strategic
property acquisition and development opportunities and major community infrastructure development
opportunities that will enable long term community and financial benefit for the Municipality.

Key budget information about the proposed rate increase, operating result, financial sustainability, services,
cash and investments, capital works and financial position is provided below.
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A= Actual F= Forecast B= Budget P= Projections

Rates and charges
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Council raises general rates to fund universally accessed services and capital infrastructure, and waste charges
to fund the collection and disposal of waste. In the changing environment that Council operates in, Council has
been focusing on improving operational efficiency, implementing new revenue streams and cost saving
opportunities. These strategies will help to address the State Government rate cap, while still maintaining
services and preserving our investment in community infrastructure

For 2021/22, general rates will increase by an average of 1.5 per cent in line with the State Government
rate cap. Council also levies a waste charge to all properties for the cost of collecting and disposal of waste and
recyclable material. This annual charge is calculated on a cost recovery basis. The cost to Council of collecting
and disposing of waste and recyclable matenals in 2021/22 1s projected to increase significantly due to an
increase in the State Government Landfill levy charged to Council of over 60%. Due to the cost increase to
Council the waste service charge will increase by 13.5% in 2021/22

The total rates and charges bill for an average property is projected to increase by $63 or 3.0 per cent to
$2,148.

The chart below shows the comparison of general rates, waste charges and average rates and charges

movements for the period 2017/18 through to the forecast 2024/25 movement. Refer to Section 4.1 1Rates
and Charges for further details

General rates, waste charges and average rates and charges movements
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Operating Result
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The budgeted operating result (income less expenses) for the 2021/22 year is a surplus of $20.55 million,
an increase of $9.10 million over the 2020/21 forecast result. Council and our community were significantly
impacted by the State Government restrictions due to Covid-19 in 2020/21. The change is primarily due to a
return back to pre-Cowvid income levels and a reduction in employee cost and materials and services costs. Refer
to Section 4 1 Comprehensive Income Statement for further details.

A strong surplus is required to fund Council's extensive capital works program and to ensure that it has sufficient
reserves to meet financial challenges that may anse in the future. During the projected four year period, Council

is projecting to maintain an average operating surplus of approximately $19.5 million which underpins a
financially sustainable organisation.

Adjusted Underlying Surplus (a measure of financial sustainability)
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The 2021/22 budget with projections for the following three years (2021/22 to 2024/25) has been developed
to assist Council in adopting a budget within a longer term prudent financial framework. The key objective is
financial sustainability in the medium to long term, while still achieving the Council’s strategic objectives as
specified in the Council Plan. One measure of financial sustainability is the adjusted underlying result, which
excludes capital income and developer income (cash and non-cash) from the operating surplus. A
positive adjusted underlying result is an indication of financial stability.

A strong adjusted underlying surplus is required to fund Council's extensive capital works program and to ensure
that it has sufficient reserves to meet financial challenges that may arise in the future.
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Cash and investments
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cash on hand $M

As at 30 June 2022, cash and investments are expected to increase by $1.49 million to $83.46 million.
Council is forecast to still maintain a strong cash balance which is consistent with Council's strategy to
improve our long term financial sustainability.

Council holds cash balances to fund the daily working capital requirements, support cash backed reserves
required by legislation and for future intended uses as directed by Council. Of the $83.46 million cash and
investments balance, cash that is restricted or has an intended use totals $59.82 million, leaving an unrestricted
cash balance of $23.64 million as at 30 June 2022

Refer Sections 4.2 and 4.5 for detailed analysis of the cash position and components of restricted cash.
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Capital works
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capital works §M

The capital works program for the 2021/22 year is budgeted to be $48.1 million comprising of $12.5 million
for roads, $9.3 million for community buildings, $5.5 million for recreation, leisure and community facilities,

$5 4 million for parks and open space, $4.1 million for drainage improvements, and $3.5 million for footpaths
and cycleways.

The capital program is funded through $34.25 million {or 71.2 per cent) of Council's cash generated through the
operating result, $6 88 million (or 14.3 per cent) from reserves and developer contributions, $6.90 million
(14.3 per cent) from external grants, $0.08 million (or 0.2 per cent) from capital contributions. The capital works
program has been set and priontised through the development of sound business cases and consultation with
stakeholders. Capital works is forecast to be $48.81 million for the 2020/21 year.

I I ‘l“f I I I [

A201718  A2018M9  A201920  F2020/21  B2021/22  P2022/23  P2023/24  P2024/25

Financial position

2,500.00

2,000.00

1,500.00

net assets $M

1,000.00

500.00

Manningham's financial position is projected to improve with net assets (otal assets less total liabilities)
budgeted to increase by $20.55 million to $2,167 .07 million. The increase in net assets mainly arises from
the new assets added to Council's balance sheet from the capital works program detailed in Section 4 6 of this
report. Net assets is forecast to be $2,146.52 million as at 30 June 2021.

Refer Section 4.2 for an analysis of the budgeted financial position.
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Council expenditure allocations

This chart provides an indication of how Council allocates its expenditure across the main services that it delivers.
It shows how much is allocated to each service area for every $100 that Council spends. Council overheads,
governance costs and administrative costs are allocated to our external facing services usingan internal

overhead allocation model

Our services
during 2021/22

For every $100 we spend this year, we will spend this much in each area.

Capital Works Roads, footpaths and Waste services and
Program drainage recycling

$31.06 $8.85 $9.62

<= : it

Parks, gardens and Planning and environmental Arts, culture and
sportsgrounds management libraries

$8.06 $6.90 $4.74

&, A 0

Aged and disability Health, children and Community support
support services families and development

$6.51 $4.56 $2.13

B,
BEE
Customer service, governance Council owned community Risk management and
and administration buildings insurances

$14.09 $2.07 $1.41
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1. Link to the Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework

This section describes how the Budget links to the achievement of the Community Vision and Council Plan
within an overall integrated planning and reporting framewerk. This framework guides Council in identifying
community needs and aspirations over the long term (Community Visien and Financial Plan), medium term
(Council Plan, Workforce Plan, and Revenue and Rating Plan) and short term (Budget) and then helding
itself accountable (Annual Report).

1.1 Legislative planning and accountability framework

The Budget is a rolling four-year plan thal outlines the financial and non-financial resources that Council
requires o achieve the stralegic objectives described in the Council Plan. The diagram below depicts
Council's integrated planning framework. At each stage of the integrated planning framework there are
opportunities for communily and stakeholder input. This is important to ensure transparency and
accountability lo both residents and ratepayers.

Citizen Engagement

Generation 2030 Community Plan Capital Works Plan
comearn b

Asset ManagementPlans

Long term

State and
Federal Plan
and Legistation

Healthy Cty Strategy

Medlium term

Healiy Cty Ubveabie Clty Resilient City Vibwant City well Governed City

Other Councl Strateghes and Plans
lincluding the Revenue and Rating Plan)

Short Term
Business Plans Anrusl Budget
[ Progress Cutcome indicators Annusal Report

| Evaluation and Continuous Improvement Progress Reports
- L _ |
[
The timing of each component of the integrated planning framework is critical to the successful achievement
of the planned outcomes.

1.1.2 Key planning considerations

Service level planning

Although councils have a legal obligation to provide some services— such as animal management, local
roads, food safety and statutory planning—most council services are not legally mandated, including some
services closely associated with councils, such as libraries, building permils and sporting facilities. Further,
over fime, the needs and expectations of communities can change. Therefore councils need to have robust
processes for service planning and review to ensure all services continue to provide value for money and
are in line with community expectations. In doing so, councils should engage with communities to determine
how to pricritise resources and balance service provision against other responsibilities such as asset
maintenance and capital works.

Community consultation needs to be in line with a councils adopted C ity Engag it Policy and
Public Transparency Policy
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1.2 Our purpose

Our Vision

Manningham is a peaceful, inclusive and safe community. We celebrate life with its diverse culture, wildlife
and natural environment. We are resilient and value sustainable and healthy living, a sense of belonging,
and respect for one another,

Our mission
A financially sustainable Council that listens, censults and acts with integrity, value and transparency

Our values

Manningham Cily Council values are Working Together, Excellence, Accountability, Respectful and
Empowered. Our values are the cornerstone of our organisation, guiding our behaviours, decisions and
culture.

1.3 Strategic objectives

At the start of each term, Council develops a Plan in consultation with the community, to guide Council's
direction over its four year term. Manningham's current Council Plan 2017-21 includes five Strategic
Objectives (or themes) and 11 goals. Each is progressed through Council Plan actions and Majer Initiative
and Initiatives.

e

1. Healthy Community Through a strong partnership approach, Council will focus on ensuring that
people stay healthy and well, can access the services they need, are
connected to their local neighbourhoods, feel safe and live in a harmonious

and inclusive c .
2. Liveable Places and Council will focus on managing amenity to create inviting places and spaces,
Spaces enhanced parks, open space and streetscapes, well connected, safe and

accessible travel and well utilised and maintained community infrastructure

3. Resilient Environment Council will work with our community and partners to protect and enhance our
valued environment and biodiversity, as well as reduce our environmental
impact and adapt to climale change.

4. Vibrant and Prosperous  Council strives to support the local ecenomy to grow, with local business and
Economy activity centres vibrant and prosperous with a strong visitor economy.

5. Well Governed Council  We promote financially sustainability and manage resources effectively and
efficiently. Council values citizens in all that we do.

1.4 Gender Equality Act 2021

The Gender Equality Act 2021 (the Act) requires Manningham Council to consider gender, equality and diversity
as part of all plans, strategies and services that have a ‘significant effect on the public.” This is to beachieved
through Gender Impact Assessments

This budget is a significant document for Council. It is the culmination of many menths of work and the broad
parameters were developed prior to the Act coming into effect from 1 April 2021, As a result, a fullGender
Impact Assessment has not been undertaken for the budget as a whole.

At Manningham Council we are committed to a safe, respectful workplace and the community we serve. As
we move into the budget implementation in 2021-22 and into future years, we will use a Gender Impact
Assessment to influence the development of our key strategic documents such as the budget and 10-Year
Financial Plan. We will not only meet our obligations under the Act, but also provide a platform for innovation
and opportunities to develop a more equitable community

We are committed to the intent of the Act. Over the course of the next year, we will progressively review and
where necessary amend our policies, strategies and programs to ensure that the principles of the Act are
considered. We will use data and evidence as well as feedback from our community to ensure diversity in
voices and experiences in Manningham. In fulure Budgets, these will be evident in the funding principles as
well as the initiatives that are included for implementation.
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2. Services and service performance indicators

This section provides a description of the services and initiatives to be funded in the Budget for the 2021/22 year and
how these will conlribute 1o achieving the strategic objectives outlined in the Council Plan. It also describes several
initiatives and service performance outcome indicators for key areas of Council's operations. Council is required by
legislation to idenfify major initiatives, initiatives and service performance outcome indicators in the Budget and report
against them in the Annual Report to support transparency and accountability. The relationship between these
accountability requirements in the Council Plan, the Budget and the Annual Report is shown below

Budget

Annual Report

[ Strategic objective Services Indicators (outcome)
e
I > . e Report of
[ Strategic Indicators Initiatives Major initistives | s o
[ Strategic objective = Sarvices Indicaters {outcome) Service indicaters
— > — Major initiatives
[ Strategic indicators Initiatives Major initiatives - Governance &
# | managementchecklist
[ Strategic objective Sendces Indicators (outcome)
‘
>
[ Strat naicators Initiatives Majer initiatives Performance
statement
[ Strategic = Se Indicerors [outcome) $endce indicators (cutcome)
>

[ Strategic indicators

Initiatives

Major initiatives

Seures: Depanment of Jebs, Precingts and Regians

Financial indicators
Sustainable capacity indicators
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To achieve our objective of a Healthy Community, we will continue to plan, deliver and improve high quality, cost
effective, accessible and responsive services. The services, initiatives, major initiatives and service performance
indicators for each business area are described below

Services

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
Actual Forecast Budget

ices provided

§ ) $'000

Aged and Disability In partnership with Federal and State  inc 7.463 717 7277
Services Governments, these services and Exp 10,178 10,210 0.728
activities support Manningham

Surplus / (deficit) (2.715) (3.039) (2,448)

residents to stay active, independent
and living at home for as long as
possible. Services include positive
ageing events and actvities, assisted

transpeit, home and persenal care

Social Planning  This service support the community  Inc N 246 - 57 - 56
@s in community Exp 1538 a04 T80
Development inclusion, community safety. metro

Services access, sosial planning and

and Community  threugh a

community development

Surplus ¢ (deficit) {1.292) (747} iT24)

Community This service provides children, family  inc 1.818 1,990 2111

Programs and community services, including Exp 5,126 5,662 4,889

IMSIEINAl ANG LINIAGTEN's ServIces
{Universal and Enhanced), Child
Health, Early Years@MC2, Preschool
Field Officer Program and Parenting
Azsez=mant and Skill Davelopmant
Sarvica. Also included Youth and
Volunteering and Emergency
Counselling grants

Surplus / (deficit) (3.308) (3.566) (2.778)

Library Serviges  This serviee pravides publis libmary e

service for visitors and residents. The 5z 3315 4497 %440

serice s gea oy me vwnienorse
Manningham Regicnal Library
Corporation with branches at Bulleen,
Doncaster, The Fines and
Warrandyte

Surpluzs ¢ (deficit) {4.318) (4.487) (4,440)

Approvals and This service protects the community's  ine 3603 3,574 4,085

Compliance health and well being by ¢ 4 Exp F515 BE17 5088
serices 100G SEIETy Programs, mMmunIsanon, gy [5.023) 13.243) (2.803)
animal management, litter, building
services. public health, parking and
administration and enfercement of
municipal local laws.

Arts and Cultural Management, coordination and ing - 287 - are - 337

Services delivery of arts and aultural Exp 746 710 664
development program including an Art
Gallery, art studios and Flayhouse

Surplus / (defioit) {459) {332) {327)

Major Initiatives

1) We will undertake evidence-based planning for equitable, inclusive and accessible services and
infrastructure improvements for prominent issues including:

(i) Commencing gender equality impact assessments on significant Council policies, services and programs.

{ii} Improving the range of accessible supports and services available to young people within Manningham, exploring
a youth hub, advocating for improved mental health resources and working collaboratively with youth agencies.

{iii) Developing a collaborative forum to engage with businesses, community leaders, community greups and residents
from culturally diverse backgrounds, and

{iv) Investigating extended use of community facilities, including libraries, to address social isolation
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2} We will work to connect service providers, community groups, local organisations and networks to improve
and profile community outcomes through forums and connections.

3) We will educate and support connected, inclusive and healthy communities (inclusive of our CALD
communities) through:

(i} Environmental education and waste programs,

{ii) Implementing the Reconciliation Action Plan to enhance recognition of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
communities, and

{iily Resources and information that link our community to the understanding of and responses to family violence

Other Initiatives

4) We will pursue strategies to reduce the impact of gambling on the community, considering areas such as
poker machines and advertising on Council buildings.

Service Performance Qutcome Indicators

Animal Animal manag t prosecutions Mumber of suscessful animal
Management (F of | animal [ i Total
management proseculions) number of animal management
presecutions
Food safety Health and safety Critical and major non-compliance [Number of criical noncompliance
netifieations nolifications and major non-
(Percentage of critical and major  complianc e notifications about a food
v that p followed up ¢ Number of
are followed up by Council) eritical non-compliance notifications.
and major non-compliance
ific ati about food p ises]
%100
Libranes Participation Active library barrowers, [Number of active library members |
{ of the 1) X100 {over
population that are actve library  three financial years)
mambers )
Matemal and Child  Partiaipation Farticipation in the MCH service.  [Number of children who attend the
Health (Percentage of children enrolled  MCH servite atleast once (in the
whao participate in the MCH financial year) / Mumber of children
service) enralled in the MCH servica] x 100

Farticipaticn in the MCH service  [Number of Aberiginal children whe
by Abariginal children attend the MCH service at least once
(Percentage of Aboriginal children (in the financial year) / Mumber of
enrolled who participate in the Abaoriginal children enrolled in the
MCH service) MCH servica] x100
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2.2 Strategic Objective 2: Liveable Places and Spaces

To achieve our objective of Liveable Places and Spaces, we will continue to plan, deliver and improve high quality,
cost effective, accessible and responsive services. The services, initiatives, major initiatives and service performance
indicators for each business area are described below

Services

Servic

201
Actual

$'000

Budget
$'000

City Amenity, This service provides the 543
Parks and managemaent, administration and Exp 13,733 12.622 11.601
Recreation maintenance actvities for parks and Surpius 7 [deTen 28T RERED] 1058
Services recreation; Spors reserves, aguatic ’ ' '

faclliies, reserves, sportsground

maintenance, landscaping, tree

malntenance, grass eulling. bushland

management. open space. parks and

playground maintenance and

supervisien of sapital werks prajects
Roads and This service provides the day to day ine 485 - 541 k0]
Infrastructure maintenans e of Gouncil rosds, bridges £, 5191 5.162 5.459
Services and fectpaths and includes both Surplus 7 [deficl) 708 @820 a.768)

sealed and unsealed road

maintenance such as repairs to

potholes, line marking, patching,

resheeting and minor works,
Integrated These services include city planning,  Inc 7.860 - 6.855 5,300
Flanning and landscape architecture, strategic land £y 4837 4,54 3.740
Urban Design  use and devel planning and -~ ) 3023 3306 2580
Services wurban design. recreation planning and

apen space planning
Building Keeping Council owned buildings and  Inc 342 - 286 394
Maintenance community facilities (including public £y 3331 3272 3427
services Tollets, neTage ouilaings, IBranes, Sorpioe 7{deto .080) 2.988) 3033

sporting facilities) clean and well

maintained.
Civil Project With respansibility for the capital inc a5a - 410 -
Services works program, services includes

construstion and design of civil Exp 2232 2,045 2.120

projects and strategic projects relating F 2 "rrrcr Ty (1.682) 1.635) 12.120)

te Council buildings. community

facilities. recreation facilities and

sustainability projects
Traffic and This service provides the day to day  Ino 786 - 541 549
Development maintenance to support the read Exp 2,420 2212 2180
Services networ?&. Including driver saf.ety Sorpiue 7 [defot) 634 RICIEN 7,540

edugation programs, street lighting,

traffic management, traffic

engineering, bus shelters and road

safety
Statutory Planning This service is responsible for the inc 2.080 - 2,021 2,099
Services administration and enfercement ofthe £y 3,845 3.837 3861

Coordinaban of statutary planning - Surplus / (deficit) (1.588) (1,818} (1.782)

pemits including pre-application and

application service
Maintenance This service maintains and repairs all  Ine - - -
services for signs traffic signals and roadside signs and  Exp 275 455 560
and street furniture furniture including guard rails on Surplus 7 (deficit) @78) @55) 560)

Counzil roads.
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Major Initiatives

5) We will strengthen our principles to guide responsible for new d by:

{i) Adoplion of key sirategic documents including Liveable City Strategy 2040 by December 2021 and the
Environmental Stralegy and review of the Manningham Flanning Scheme by June 2022, and

{ily Investigate enhanced planning controls to enhance protection of the environment,

6) We will provide ways for people to connect by:

{i} Prioritising grant funding to suppert community inclusion and connections in a way that respond to community needs.
{ii) Improving people’'s ability to walk or wheel safely and easily to local shops, community facilities and schools, by
developing new linkages, and

(i} Deliver actions in the Transport Action Plan and Bus Network Review 2017 including contributing to planning of the
Suburban Rail Loop, Doncaster Busway, Bus Rapid Transits, bus network and service improvements and enhancing the
walking and cycling network.

7) We will investigate and review current facility use and opportunities to develop or repurpose existing
facilities and use of Council land for multi-use purposes and to meet changing community needs through:

(i) Finalising the Community Infrastructure Plan by 30 September 2021 and implementing the 20 year Action Plan.

{ii) Strengthening ulilisation and performance of stadiums in conjunction with stadium managers, and

{iiiy Improving community access to sport and recreation facilities and spaces for broad community use and benefit.

8) We will continue to advocate to the North East Link Project for improved outcomes for the Manningham
community, particular around urban design to reduce the impact of the project on the community places.

9) We will continue to work to maintain to a high standard our roads, footpaths and drains.

Other Initiatives
10) We will deliver the Road Improvement Program (as scheduled) including Jumping Creek Road, Tuckers Road,
Knees Road and Templestowe Village connecting roads.

11} We will deliver the Parks and Recreation Facilities Upgrades (as scheduled) including Petty's Reserve Sporting
Development {Stage 2), Rieschiecks Reserve Pavilion Redevelopment, Deep Creek Reserve Pavilion and Mullum Mullum
Bowls.

12) We will deliver the Parks Improvement Program including Ruffey Lake Masterplan, new open space onHepburn
Read, Ruffey Creek Linear Park and Lions Park.

Service Performance Outcome Indicators

fo

Computation
Measure L

Mumber of visils lo aguatic fac

(Number of visits to aquatic Municipal population
facilities per head of municipal
population)
Roads Satisfaction Satsfaction with sealed local Community satisfaction rating out of

roads, (Community satisfaction 100 with how Council has performed

rating out of 100 with how Council on the condition of sealed locsl
has performed an the condition of roads.
sealed local roads)

Statutory planning  Decision making Council planning decisions upheld [Number of VCAT decisions that did
at VOAT. (Percentage of nat set aside Council's decision in
planning application decisions relation to a planning application /
subject to review by VCAT and Mumber of VCAT decizsions in relation
that were not set aside ) to planning applications] x100

17
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To achieve our cbjective of a resilient environment. we will continue to plan, deliver and improve high quality. cost effective, accessible
and responsive services. The services, initistives, major inftiatives and service performance indicators for each business area are

described below.

Services

Description of se

201920
Actual

$'0

2020121 2021/22
Forecast Budget

Waste Services Providing kerbside rubbish eollections  Inc 13,847
of garbage. hard waste and green Exp 12,126 13.025 14,368
waste from all ho.\seho.l:ls and s.ome Surplus 7 (deficit] 1637 a2z 1,555
commercial properties in Council,
Services also include & waste call
centre, education =ervices and the
=strategic planning of waste services.
Azsets & Services design to protect the ine - 80 - a0 -
Environment environment including underground
drsin and pit maintenance, streat
cleaning and sweeping. roadside litter gy 3,647 3,834
pickup, tipping costs Surplus / (deficit) (3.887) {3.574)
Enviranmental This service provides environmental  Ine 40
education, public land management. g, 1,664 1,678 1.848
stewardship and fosters biodiversity as oo om0 (684 e .808)
well as protecting the land through
pest sontrol
Drains and This service performs the inspection,  inc - - -
Technical Services maintenance and cleaning of
underground drains to ensure correct
operation. Exp 477 a1 515
Surpiuz / {deficit) {477) (511) (515)

Major Initiatives

13) We will deliver the Environmental Strategy and sirengthen principles to protect the environment, biodiversity and

wildlife by:

(i} Advocating to government and business on environmental issues
{ii) Improving management practices of bushland maintenance, pest animal and environmental weed control and

monitoring, evaluating and improvement mechanisms

{iil) Exploring biodiversity improvement or environmental community engagement programs for local public areas in
collaboration with the Wurundjer Woi Wurrung Cultural Heritage Aboriginal Corporation, Melbourne Water and Parks

Victoria

{iv) Exploring profection measures in the new Community Local Law by 30 June 2022, and
(v} Improving the sustainability of Council's environmental praclices.

Other Initiatives

14) We will deliver our drainage program (as scheduled) including the Melbourne Hill Road Drainage Upgrade.

Service Performance Qutcome Indicators

Waste collection  Waste diversion

Kerbside collection waste diverted [Weight of recyclables and green

from landfill, (Percentage of

garbage. recyclables and green
organics collected from kerbside
bins that is diverted from landfill)

arganies collested from kerbside bins
/ Weight of garbage. recyclables and
green organics collected from
kerbside bins] x100
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To achieve our objective of a vibrant and prosperous economy, we will continue to plan, deliver and improve high quality
cost effective, accessible and responsive services. The services, initiatives, major initiatives and service performance
indicators for each business area are described below.

Services

2020121 202122

Forecast Budget
$'000 $'000

Description of serv

Business, Events  This Service develops programs, Ine 3 o8 24
and Grants events and support services to Exp 2160 2,051 1.985
SUPPOMLING IGLSI BCONOMY IN MRISUON "o, o) o/ fdeficit) (2.117) (1,855) (1.881)

to business. spensership. commereial

investment, business support

employment and taursm

Community This service provides for the [ - 1.072 - 1308 - 1203
Venues and management and hire of the
Funatiens Manningham Funetion Centre and hire

of halls and other venues to
community and commercial hirers. Exp 2217 2497 2208

Surpius / (deficit) (1.145) (888) (1,005)

Major Initiatives

15) We will support local businesses by

{iy Demonstrating leadership to increase procurement with Social Enterprises, Aboriginal Enterprises and
AustralianDisability Enterprises (collectively known as Social Benefit Suppliers) and Local Businesses,
Capacity building and support through the Business Development Program
Explore local opportunities to support local businesses to collaborate via a Hub / co-working space, and
Implementing the recommendations in the Doncaster Hill Sirategy and Economic Development Strategy to
encourage and support tourism and employment opportunities
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2.5 Strategic Objective 5: Well Governed

To achieve our objective of a well governed Council, we will continue to plan, deliver and improve high quality, cost
effective, accessible and responsive services. The services, initiatives, major initiatives and service performance
indicators for each business area are described below.

Services
2019 2021:22
Actual Forecast Budget
$'000 5 $'000
Governance, Legal This service supports the crganisation inc - - 150 - 150
and Risk to mests it regulstory requirements g 2313 2910 2709
through strong governance and risk
management.
DTEToE 7 [denc] TZ373] T2 7607 25547
Councillers and This area includes the Mayor, inc - - -
Execut c . Executive b

Team and associated suppor.

Exp 2718 2,841 2720
Surplus / (deficit) (2.715) (2.841) (2.720)
Communizations  This service leads the delivery of ine - - B
clear, consistent and inclusive Exp 2118 2141 2134
nana W Syrplus  (deficit (2.118) (2.141) (2.134)
the community
Citizen Connact This =ervice laads az the main lne - - -
custemer interface to create and Exp 1,880 1,034 2100
systems and p o Shpius 7 (deficit) (1.883) (1,934) (2.190)
connect with cur sitizens
Transformation Service include maintaining inc - - - 3
and Infermation infermation and information sy stems
Technology as well as advancing new solutions for
the organisation and community
interaction. Exp 7,455 7.877 7.702
Surplus / (deficit) (7.458) (7ETT) (7.600)
Emergency Services to support community ing - 133 - 80 - 80
prep: . response and recovery Eyp 893 841 484
Inan emergency- Surpius / (defioit (760) (781} (404)
Financial Services Services lead Council's financial Ing - 275 - 18z - 223
management, payrell, ascounts Exp 4537 4560 4663
payanie and reae -P " Surpius / (deficith (4.262) (4377} (4.440)
revenue and rating services, tendering
and contract administration.
Oy afl Provides organisation inc - - -
Development and human resource management Exp 1,850 2107 5001
. . ——
FErisEs ling staff " Suwplus / (deficif) {1,050} (2.107) (2.001)
training and pment,
employee and industrial relations and
workplace heslth and safety. Also
includes business planning services.
Froperty Services This service manages Council e - 2123 - 1822 - 2198
preperies and manages property Exp 2,508 2,807 2834
vaEnEns Surplus / {deficit) (475) (675) (438)
20
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Major Initiatives

16) We will explore different ways to improve community satisfaction with Council's communications on local

community issues, services and activities.

17} We will explore ways to enhance performance reporting across social, environment and economic

outcomes against community need.

18) We will improve our Customer Experience to better understand and meet their specific needs.

19) We will ensure the long term financial sustainability of Council through preparing the Budget and 10 year
Financial Plan incorporating key strategies to Council by 30 June 2022

20) We will maximise public value through the systematic planning and review of Council’s services and
effective, early and broad engagement on projects.

21) We will take a proactive and motivated approach to be an open and transparent Council.

Other Initiatives

22) We will implement Manningham’s Protective Data Security Plan Initiatives for 2021/22.

Service Performance Outcome Indicators

Satisfacton with Gounall ¢

slans
{Community satisfaction rating out
=f 100 with how Council has
performed in making decisions in
the interests of the community)

Community satisfaction rabing out of
100 with how Council has performad
in making decisions in the inferests of
the community

Governance Satisfaction
Workforee Sustainability
Tumover

Resignations and Terminations
compared to average staff

Number of permanent staff
resignations and terminations /
average number of permanent staff

for the financial year x 100

Surplus/
(Deficit)

$'000

nditure Revenue

£'000 3

Healthy Community (13.821) 13.868
Liveable Places and Spaces (22,382) 10.575
Resilient Environment {4.108) 15,874
Vibrant Prosperous Economy {2,968) 1317
Well Governed Council (24.583) 2654
Total (67,661) 112,047 44,386

Expenses added in:

Depraciation and amertisation 28,292
Finance eosts -
Cthers (11.670)
Surplusi(Deficit) before funding sources (84,283)
Funding sources added in

Rates revenue 87.640
Capital grants 8,807
Total funding sources 104,837
Operating surplusi{deficit) for the year 20,554

* \Well Governed Council includes corporate wide management and support expenses including Executive, Finance. Information Technclogy ete.

21
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3. Financial Statements

This section presents information in regard to the Financial and
the year 2021/22 has been supplemented with projections to 2024/25

Thiz section i the i i i prep. in
Gavernment (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020

Comp Income
Balance Sheet

Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows
Statement of Capital Works
Statement of Human Resources

22

of Human R The budget information for

with the Local Government Act 2020 and the Local
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Comprehensive Income Statement
For the four years ending 30 June 2025

Income

Rates and charges
Statutory fees and fines

User fees

Grants - Operating

Grants - Capital
Contributions - monetary
Contributions - non-monetary

Met gain/(less) on disposal of property,

infrastructure, plant and equipment

Ofherincome
Total income

Expenses

Employee costs

Materials and services
Depreciation

Amortisation - intangible assets
Amorfisation - right of use assets
Finance Costs - leases

Other expenses

Total expenses

Surplus/{deficit) for the year

Total comprehensive result

412
413
414
414
415
415

418

417
418
419
4110
411

4112

23

117,914

121,470

2024/25
$'000

125,488

3,725 3,765 4,001
10,233 10,440 10,700
11,705 11872 12,068

4,255 9168 1,392

6,437 6,907 6,321

1,058 1,058 1,058

a3 183 120

77 895 1,348
156,191 165,759 162,497
57,459 58,802 60,408
34,322 35746 37,723
25,895 26,851 27,734
3,501 3,655 3,693
308 308 20m

42 35 29
15,398 16,723 17.158
137,922 142 117 146,946
18,269 23,642 15,551
18,269 23 642 15,551
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Balance Sheet
For the four years ending 30 June 2025

202223 2023/24 2024/25

NOTES
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 58,856 60,313 65,621
Trade and other receivables 11,648 10,493 10,605 10,601
Other financial assets 25,000 - 20,000 20,000 20,000
Other assets 14100 4410 1,410 1,410 1.410
Total current assets 421 87026 0,759 92328 a7 632
Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables 55 _ 55 55 55
Other financial assets 8000 5000 5,000 5,000 5.000
I ol
anangement and sbsidates. 2526 252 25 2526
Property, infrasiructure, plant & equipment 100,700 138,521 2160 436 2173613
Right-of-use assefs 424 2,232 _ 1,610 1,305 1,108
Intangible assets 54710 4,648 4714 3,379 1,755
Total non-current assets 421 2,152,426 2172701 2,184,055
Total assets 2,243 185 2,265 029 2,281 687
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (27,404) (25,561) (26,509)
Trust funds and deposits (13,385) (13,385) (13,385)
Provisions (13,971) (14,320} (14,678}
Interest-bearing liabilities 423 - - -
Lease liabilities 424 (304) (199) (166)
Total current liabilities 422 (55,.064) (53,485) (54,738)
Non-current liabilities
Provisions (1,402) (1,402) (1,402)
Interest-bearing liabilities 423 - - -
Lease liabilities 424 (1,380) (1,181) (1,015)
Total non-current liabilities 422 (2,782) (2,583} (2417)
Total liabilities (57,848 (56,048) (57,155)
Met assets 2 185,339 2,208 981 2,224,532
Equity
Accumulated surplus 773,105 811,850 834 489 847,858
Reserves 1373411 4,313,380 1,373,489 1,374,512 1,376,674
Total equity 21455161 2,160,070 2,185,339 2,208 981 2,224,532
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the four years ending 30 June 2025

umulated
Surplus

Total

NOTES §°000 5000 $'000
2021 Forecast Actual

Balance at beginning of the financial year 2,135,059 759,511 1,361,262 14,286
Impact of plion of new il - - - -
Adjusted opening balance 2,135,059 759,511 1,361,262 14,285
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 11,457 11,457 - -
MNet asset ) - - - -
Transfers to other reserves - (6,933) - 6,933
Transfers from other reserves - 9,070 - (9,070)
Balance at end of the financial year 2,1m 773,1'63 1,m2 12,1@'

2023

Balance at beginning of the financial year 2,167,070 793,739 1,361,262 12,069
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 18,269 18,269 - -
Met asset revaluation

increment/{decrement) - - - -
Transfers to other reserves - (&,417) - 6417
Transfers from other reserves - 6,259 - (8,259)
Balance at end of the financial year m m 1,3?1.2?5 12,227
2024

Balance at beginning of the financial year 2,185,339 811,850 1,361 262 12,227

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 23,642 23,642 - -

Met asset revaluation

increment/{decrement) - - - -

Transfers to other reserves - (6,887) - 6,887

Transfers frem other reserves - 5,864 - {5,864)

Balance at end of the financial year 7,208,061 B34,460 1,001,202 13,250
2025

Bal at beginning of the financial year 2,208,981 834,469 1,361,262 13,250

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 15,551 15,551 - -

MNet asset revaluation

increment/{decrement) - - - -

Transfers to other reserves - (6,300) - 6,300

Transfers from other reserves - 4,138 - (4,138)

Balance at end of the financial year 2,224,532 m 1,m2 m

25
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the four years ending 30 June 2025

Cash flows from operating activities

Rates and charges

Statutory fees and fines

User fees

Grants - operating

Grants - capital

Contributions - monetary

Interest received

Other receipts

MNet GST refund / payment

Employee costs

Materials and services

Short-term, low value and variable lease payments
Net cash provided byl{used in) 441
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and
equipment

Proceeds frem sale of property, infrastructure, plant
and equipment

Payments for investments

Proceeds frem sale of invesiments

Net cash provided by/ {used in) 442
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid - lease liability

Repayment of lease liabilities

Net cash provided by/{used in) 443
financing activities

Netincrease/(decrease) in cash & cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
financial year

Term deposits over 3 months maturity

Total cash and investments

Inflows
(Outflows)

Inflows
(Outllows)

Projections

Inflows
(Outflows)

Inflows
(Outflows)

117,995 121,358 125,493

3,725 3763 4,001

7,370 7916 10,700

11,705 11,872 12.068

4,255 9,169 1392

6,437 6907 6,321

469 586 733

302 308 615

(58,928) | (56,700} (56,882) (58,444) (59.798)

48,861) [ (7, 444) (43,622) (51.336) 53.716)

(380) (398) (408)

45,364 51,702 47401

(44,989) (50,649) (42,385)

63 743 500

(44,626} (49,906) (41,865)

EDL (a8) (42) (35) (29)

woz | qa03) (296) (304) (199)

o0} (@51) (338) (339) (228)

(16,390) 400 1457 5,308

65,358 58,456 58,856 60,313

48,958 68,456 58,856 60,313 65,621
—_—

33,000 - 25,000 25,000 25,000

83,856 85,313 90,621
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Statement of Capital Works
For the four years ending 30 June 2025

Property
Land
Total land

Buildings

Building improvements
Total buildings

Total property

Plant and equipment

Plant, machinery and equipment
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
Computers and tel icati
Software

Artwork

Total plant and equipment

Infrastructure

Roads

Bridges

Footpaths and cycleways

Drainage

Recreatienal, leisure and community
facilities

Waste management

Parks, open space and streetscapes
Aerodromes

Off street car parks

Other infrastructure

Total infrastructure

Total capital works expenditure

Represented by:

MNew asset expenditure

Assel renewal expenditure

Asset expansion expenditure
Asset upgrade expenditure

Total capital works expenditure

Funding sources represented by:
Granls

Contributions.

Council cash

Reserves

Total capital works expenditure

14
Actual

Budget

21 202

Projections

1,700 1,800 1,555

5,584 3269 4160

1,190 1,929 600

6,774 5,198 4,760

8,474 6,998 6315

1,188 2,243 1,830

25 25 25

774 546 5486

3,567 2,320 2,069

265 130 130

5,819 5,264 4,600

10,820 13,408 17,276 14,178

72 850 5,100 100

2,855 0 3540 3,700 3,295 3,802

3727000 4085 4,727 4670 4,698

11.701 I S des 986 11485 2934

- 6,930 6430 5175

- % 130 562
-

33818 30,698 38 387 31,450

451 48,814 44,989 50,649 42,365
I
]

15,517 11,964 16,207 10,212

22,919 21,621 23,973 23,681

1,979 1,552 1,446 1,218

8,399 9,852 9,023 T.254

451 48,814 44,989 50,649 42,365

3,008 - 4,255 9,169 1,392

438 78 80 380

38,151 34,307 35,536 36,455

9,220 6,259 5,864 4,138

451 48,814 44,989 50,649 42,365

2

]
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Statement of Human Resources

For the four years ending 30 June 2025

Forecast

Budget Projections

Actual
2020121 2021122 2023/24 2024/25

§'000 5'000 $'000 $'000

Staff expenditure

Employee costs - operating 57,375 56,260 57,459 58,802 60,408

Employee costs - capital 2,742 3101 3,096 3,158 3,232
— —— — —

Total staff expenditure 60,117 59,361 60,555 61,860 63,640

FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE

Staff numbers
Total staff numbers 529 528 528 528 528

A summary of human resources expenditure categorised according to the organisational structure of Council is included below:

Comprises

Budget Permanent

Department Casual Temporary

2021/22 Full Time Part time
§000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

4,971

CEO's Office, Governance, People and
Communications

3,514 68T - i

Shared Services 9,115 7,515 1,057 - 543
City Planning and Community 24,465 12,428 10,213 546 1,278
City Services 16,823 15,481 638 s 669
Total permanent staff expenditure 55,374 38,938 12,595 581 3,261
Other employee related expenditure 886
Capitalised labour costs 3,101
Total expenditure 59,361

A summary of the number of full ime equivalent (FTE) Council staff in relation to the above expendilure is included below

Comprises

Budget Permanent

Department
Temporary
202122 Full Time Part time

GCEOQ's Office, Governance, People and

Communications i 25 6 - 7
Shared Services 75 &0 11 - 4
City Planning and Community 232 106 111 3 12
City Services 157 148 B - 5
Total permanent staff expenditure 502 337 134 3 28
Other employee related expenditure -
Capitalised labour costs 26
Total staff 528

28
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3.1 Summary of Planned Human Resources Expenditure
For the four years ended 30 June 2025

CEO's Office

Permanent - Full time

Female

Male

Self-described gender
Permanent - Part time

Female

Male

Self-described gendar
Total CEO's Office

Shared Services
Permanent - Full time:

Female

Male

Self-described gender
Permanent - Part time

Female

Male

Self-described gender
Total Shared Services

City Planning & Community
Paermanent - Full time

Female

Male

Self-described gender
Permanent - Part time

Female

Male

Self-described gender
Total City Planning & Community

City Services
Permanent - Full time

Female

Male

Self-described gender
Permanent - Part time

Female

Male

Self-described gendear
Total City Services

Casuals, temporary and other expenditure
Capitalised labour costs
Total staff expenditure

3.613 3522 3.631 3.54
2.808 281 2818 2822
g07 e e1s g1e
686 689 693 586
584 586 588 560
102 103 104 108
[RES] 2211 1224 4237
7513 7,525 7,526
4,102 4,108 4,115
3411 3Ny 3421
1,057 1,082 1,087 1,072
574 978 982 986
83 a4 85 86
570 8,587 8603 E618
12,428 12,440 12,450 12,482
8873 8878 8885 8,681
5.755 5,761 5765 5771
10.213 10.224 10.235 10.247
8018 9025 8.032 £.040
1,195 1,18 1,203 1,207
22,541 22,664 22,595 22,708
15,484 15.495 15,506 15,517
3.102 3,108 3114 3.120
12,382 12,387 2,302 2,397
838 g4z 546 850
548 550 552 554
=[s] Q2 Q4 =[]
16.122 18137 18.152 16.167
4727 5859 FA37 8677
ESCE 3,066 EED 3232
59,361 60,554 61,960 3,640
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3.1 Summary of Planned Human Resources Expenditure
For the four years ended 30 June 2025

CEQ's Office
Fermanent - Full time

Female
Male

Self-described gender

Permanent - Part tima
Female
Pale

Self-described gender

Total CEO's Office

Shared Services
Permanent - Full time
Femala
Male

Self-described gender

Fermanent - Part time
Female
Male

Self-described gender
Total Shared Services

City Planning & Community

Permanent - Full time
Female
Male

Self-described gender

Permanent - Part time
Female
Male

Self-described gender

Total City Planning & Community

City Services
Permanent - Full time
Female
Male

Self-described gender

FPermanent - Part time
Female
Male

elf-described gender
Sel-d bed gend

Total City Services

Casuals and temporary staff

Capitalised labour
Total staff numbers

248 248 24.8 24.8
196 186 18.8 19.8
50 5.0 5.0 5.0
62 62 6.2 62
54 54 5.4 54
08 (] 0.8 o8
308 308 30,8 30.8
50.8 508 50.8 50.8
346 346 3486 346
253 253 253 253
10.5 105 10.5 10.5
100 100 10.0 10.0
05 0.8 0.5 08
0.4 70.4 70.4 70.4

1062 1082 108.2 1082
583 583 58.3 58.3
47.9 47 47.9 47.9

1108 1108 1108 1108
o75 78 7.5 o785
131 131 131 131

2168 2168 2168.8 2168

146.5 146.5 146.5 146.5
28.0 280 28.0 28.0

11856 1186 118.6 1185
6.4 6.4 6.4 6.4
55 X1 1] 586
08 0.8 0.8 oe

1628 162.8 162.8 162.8
313 313 313 313
28.1 28.1 26.1 28.1

528.1 528.1 528.1 5281
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4. Notes to the financial statements
This section provides detailed information to support and explain the financial statements in the previous
sections

4.1 Comprehensive Income Statement

4.2 Balance Sheet

4.3 Statement of Changes in Equity

4.4 Statement of Cash Flows

4.5 Restricled and unrestricted Cash and Investments
4.6 Capital Works Program

4.1 Comprehensive Income Statement
4.1.1 Rates and charges

Rates and charges are required by the Act and the Regulations to be disclosed in Council’s budget.

As per the Local Government Act 2020, Council has a Revenue and Rating Plan which is a four year plan for
how Council will generate income to deliver the Council Plan, program and services and capital works
commitments over a four-year period.

In developing the Budget, rates and charges were identified as an important source of revenue. Planning for
future rate increases has therefore been an important component of the financial planning process. The Fair Go
Rates System (FGRS) sets out the maximum amount councils may increase rates in a year. For 2021/22 the
FGRS cap has been set at 1.5%. The cap applies to both general rates and municipal charges and is calculated
on the basis of council's average rales and charges

The level of required rates and charges has been considered in this context, with reference to Council's othersources
of income and the planned expenditure on services and works to be undertaken for the community.

To achieve these objectives while maintaining service levels and a sirong capital expenditure program, the
average general rate will increase by 1.5% in line with the rate cap.

4.1.1 (a) The reconciliation of the total rates and charges to the Comprehensive Income Statement is as
bllows:

20

Forecast Actual dget

$'000 §'000 $'000

Rates income

Interest on rates and charges

Total rates income (including interest) 2,312 242%
Waste charges 1,886 14.13%
Total rates and charges 109540 4,278 3.91%

Rates income of $97.94 million includes:
« Base rate revenue of $96.74 million (maximum allowed per the State Government rate cap)
« New properties/improvements (supplementary rate income) - budgeted to be $0.6 million in 2021/22.
+ Cultural and recreational land charge in lieu of rates of $0.03 million.

User charges for wasle services are based on a user pay basis and full cost recovery. There is a proposed 13.5%
increased in waste service charges for 2021/22. This is due to a significant increase in waste management costs
to Council from 2021/22 due to the State Government landfill levy increase of 61% (340 pertonne increase) from
July 2021. This levy is expected to almost double over the next two years.

Interest is charged under the Local Government Act on overdue rales and charges debts. The interest rate isprescribed
in Victoria's Penalty Interest Rate Act.

The sections below (4.1.1(b) te 4.1.1(o)) provide more detailed analysis of rates and charges to be levied for2021/22
and incorporates the legislated information to be disclosed regarding rates and charges

3
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4.1.1(b) The rate in the dollar to be levied as general rates under section 158 of the Act for each type or
class of land compared with the previous financial year

of land

000184184

Uniform Rate

4.1.1(c) The estimated total amount to be raised by general rates in relation to each type or class of land,
and the estimated total amount to be raised by general rates, compared with the previous financial year

of land

2.830,010

Residential

Cemmercial 8817404 G ETA TS - 42,825 -0.84%
Industrial EECRAE] 12,062 -3.E0%
Cultural and Recreatianal apoool 34000 1,000 2.33%
Total amount to be raised by general rates 2,786,241 2.96%
4.1.1(d) The ber of ts in relation to each type or class of land, and the total number of

assessments, compared with the previous financial year

class of land
" r Number

Residential

Coemmercial 0.50%

Industrial -1.37%

Cultural and Recreatonal 0.00%
2.07%

Total number of assessments

4.1.1(e) The basis of valuation to be used is the Capital Improved Value (CIV)

4.1.1(f) The estimated total value of each type or class of land, and the estimated total value of land,
compared with the previous financial year

Change

Type ss of land

-1.06%

Residential
Commercial - 193 -4.79%
Industrial - 15 -TT1%

4 -7.04%

Cultural and Recreatonal -
Total value of land s72edl L 5esiT - 767 EET

4.1.1{g) The municipal charge under Section 159 of the Act compared with the previous financial year

Mo municipal charge is proposed for 2021/22

4.1.1(h) The estimated total amount to be raised by municipal charges compared with the previous financial
year

Mo municipal charge is proposed for 2021/22

32
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4.1.1(i) The rate or unit amount to be levied for each type of service rate or charge under Section 162 of
the Act compared with the previous financial year

Residential

Standard service

80 litre garbage. 244 litre reeycling and 240 litre garden 18 13.47%
Other waste options

Charge for larger 120 lire garbage bin 11 13.86%
Charge for larger 380 litre reeyeling bin 5 12.99%
120 litre garbage, 240 litre recycling and 240 litre garden 47 13.52%
120 litre garbage, 240 litre recycling and 120 litre garden 47 13.52%
80 litre garbage, 240 litre recycling and 120 litre garden 18 13.47%
B0 litre garbage and 240 litre recycling 38 13.47%
120 litre garbsge and 240 litre recycling 47 13.52%
Additienal 80 litre garbage 24 13.43%
Additianal 120 litre garbage 28 13.38%
Additional 240 litre recycling 1o 13.33%
Additional 280 litre recycling 18 13.66%
Additional 120 litre garden 14 13.64%
Additianal 240 litre garden 17 13.31%
Domestic change bin s 12.79%
(charged par change over not per annum}

Commereial

Commercial 240 litre garbage T 13.51%
Additional 240 litre commercial garoage 87 13.46%

4.1.1(j) The estimated total amount to be raised by each type of service rate or charge, and the
estimated total amount to be raised by service rates and charges, compared with the previous financial

year
ange
Type of Charge

$ %
Residential
Standard service
80 litre garbage, 240 litre recycling and 240 litre garden 1,851,485 14.63%
Other waste options
Charge for larger 120 Itre garbage bin 208,681 18.63%
Charge for larger 380 Itre recyzling bin 18,225 16.84%
Additional B litre garbage 17,077 34.98%
Additional 120 litre garbage 25,280 21.88%
Additional 240 litre recyeling 7.865 30.74%
Additienal 380 litre recyeling 1122 11.10%
Additional 120 litre garden a8 12.84%
Additional 240 litre garden 48,183 45.07%
Supplementary charges during year 7.100 13,47%
Commercial
Commercial 240 litre garbage 48,855 12.88%
Additional 240 litre cemmercial garbage 16,480 11.44%
Special accommodation
Retirement villages & nursing homes 25123 13.48%
Mc2 888 13.51%
Total 2,084,488 15.11%

33

Item 12.1

Attachment 1

Page 89



25 MAY 2021

4.1.1(k) The estimated total amount to be raised by all rates and charges compared with the previous

2021/22 Change
$°000

Residential 87.004.207) 2,839,618

Commercial £817.4040 L BETA TG - 42,825 -0.84%
Industrial 328 ?na-_ - 12,052 -2.89%
General rates revenue - 98733845 2,785.241 2.06%
Cultural and recreational 30,000 SIS 1000 1,000 3.33%
Supplementary rates 811,000 G48.000 - 186,000 -20.35%
Low income rebate - 2250000 23000 - 500 2.22%
Total general rates 24,786,504 87,387,545 - 184,500 -0.17%
Waste charges 12,792,668 S BT 444 2,084,488 16.11%
Total Rates and charges 108,559,860 4,705,229 4.33%

4.1.1(l) Fair Go Rates System Compliance

Council is required to comply with the State Government's Fair Go Rates System (FGRS). The table below
details the budget assumptions consistent with the requirements of the Fair Go Rates System.

Total Rates 3 2,108,512
MNumber of rateabla properties 51,257
Base Average Rate 1766.85 ) 1,821.60
Maximum Rats Increase (set by the State Government) z00%f  1.50%

Capped Average Rate 1.822.89
Maximum General Rates and Municipal Charges Revenus 63,948,443

Budgeted General Rates and Municipal Charges Revenue 93,048,404 _
11,000 [[§1648,000
94,750,404 | $187,378,645
—_—

Budgeled Supplementary Ratee
Budgeled Tetal Rates and Municipal Charges Revenue

W o e e

4.1.1(m) Any significant changes that may affect the estimated amounts 1o be raised by rates,
There are no known significant changes which may affect the estimated amounts to be raised by rates and
charges. However. the total amount to be raised by rates and charges may be affected by:
. The making of supplementary valuations (2021/22: estimated $646,000 and 2020/21: $811,000)
. The variation of returned levels of value (e.g. valuation appeals)
. Changes of use of land such that rateable land becomes non-rateable land and vice versa
. Changes of use of land such that residential land becomes business land and vice versa.

4.1.1(n) Differential rates
No differential rates are proposed for 2021/22

4.1.1(0) Cultural and recreational land; charges in lieu of rates

In accordance with Section 4(4) of the Cultural and Recreational Lands Act 1963, Cultural and Recreational
Lands to be charged in lieu of rates as per the below schedule:

Address

Veneta Club 161 Bulleen Read, Bullesn 3 15,862
‘Yarra Valley Country Club 8.15 Templestows Road. Bulleen E 14.768

Combined general rates and waste charges - average increase

20,354
0.000071

Property value - example
Rate in §

General rate (property value ¥ rate in §)
Standard waste charge

] e o]o w

Total rates and waste charges
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4.1.2 Statutory fees and fines

Forecast Actual Budget

126.25%

Infringements and costs

Town planning fees 89 7.02%
Land and praperty information cerlificates 173 24.73%
Asset protection permits 75 25.61%
Total statutory fees and fines 1.208 40.94%

Statutory fees and fines relate malnly to fees and fines levled In accordance with leglslatlon and Include
anlmal registrations, health and food premises reglstrations, parking and other flnes. The declslon to
Increase statutory fees and fines Is not made by Councll, but by the State Government under leglslation.

During 2020/21 the State Government COVID-19 restrictions had a signlficant Impact on this Income
calegory. 2021/22 |s a gradual return to pre-COVID levels

4.1.3 User fees

Hall hire and function centre charges a70.94%

Ecanomic & community wellbeing fees - 0.00%
Social and community services charges 185 T1.71%
Town planning fees - iz -12.59%
Aged services fees 186 27.83%
Registration fees (Animal, Foad & Health) 2719 26.75%
Advertising fees 10 4.35%
Culture snd recrestion feas 138 1931.47%
Chargeable works fess 483 BE B4%
Rent of Council facilities 183 10.56%
Other faes and charges 280 51.32%
Total user fees 3,022 51.49%

User charges relate to the recovery of service dellvery costs through the charging of fees to users of Councll's
sernvices. The State Government COVID-19 Restrictions had a significant Impact on councll services during
2020/21. During 2020/21 Councll also provided a range of COVID-19 rellef measures to asslst the community
Including discounted food and health registration fees, footpath trading permits, traders parking permits and
rent rellef for community use of councll facllities.

2021/22 Is a gradual return to pre-COVID revenue levels.

2021/22 Fees and Charges are proposed to Increase generally In line with forecast CPI of 1.5% and rounding.
Sectlon 6"Schedule of fees and charges” contalns a detalled llsting of the proposed 2021/22 fees and charges.
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4.1.4 Grants

‘Grants were received in respect of the following:

Summary of grants
Cemmenweslth funded grants
State funded grants

Total grants received

{a) Operating Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Financial Assistance Grants
Aged care
Food services

Taotal Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Recurrent - State Government

Aged care

Matermal and child healtn
Family and children

School crossing supervisors
Open space and bushland
Immunisatien

Emergency services
Community safety

Qther

Total Recurrent - State Government
Total Recurrent grants

N .c Ith

Aged care

Feod services

Total c Ith

N - State
Matarnal and child health
Community safety

Cemmunity Resllence (COVID)
Other

N - State

Total nen-recurrent grants

Total operating grants

(b} Capital Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Reads to recovery

Financial Assistance Grant

Total recurrent grants

Fo

nge
2020:21

$°000 $'000 $°000 %

- a8 -1%

- 2,387 -45%

- 2,485 -18%

41 1%

70 1%

48 19%

157 2%

20 G5%

- & -5%

- 123 ~14%

4 1%

41 55%

1 1%

- 0%

30 T9%

B5 0%

- 40 -2%

17 1%

- 234 -100%

- 285 -100%

142 S47%

- 158 -100%

- 2,404 ~100%

- 70 -100%

- 2,347 -G4%

- 2,802 -G4%

- 485 =18%

- 0%

2 9%

2 0%
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N t-C e "

Tuckers Raad & Faatpath reconstruction
Public tellet implementation

Warrandyte Childeare Refurbishment

Misc General Leisure (angsing replacement and upgrade

of Rec asset)
Place making and Pop Up Parks
5 year Solar and Pop Up parks

Rieschimcks Reserve Athletos Track Carpark Construction

Ruffey Lake Park Access Improvements
Fitzsimmens Lane

Total rent C

N - State

Demeney Reserve Management Plan Implementation
Risschimck Reserve Athletic Track Floodlight Design
Anderson! James/ Swilk/ Parker Arterial Read Swap

Borania Ressrve Floodlight Design

A yte Reserve AFL Flooadlight Design
Pettys Reserve Sparting Develapmant Stage 2
Schramms Reserve Modular Pavilion

Warrandyte River Reserve Park Revitalisation Project
Montgomery Reserve Urban Plaza

Total rent State

Tetal nen-recurrent grants
Taotal capital grants

Total Grants

During 2020/21 Councll recelved significant one-off operational grant funding related to COVID-19

3

$000 $'000 $ 000

3a5- -

oo I

1,200

500
Ti1

395

0%
0%
@%

0%

0%
%

=100%

4T5%

Q
138
T3 3,188

3
.

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
@%
0%
0%
0%

754

88%

3,652

264%

3,654

134%

1,469

3%

(Working for Victorla program ($2.2M), Outdoor Dinlng & Entertalnment program ($500k) and
Commonwealth Home Support funding for COVIDmeals program ($137k)
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4.1.5 Contributions

Farecast Actual
2020121
$'000

Budget

Change
2021i22
$'000 <
6,319 - 683 -9.83%

%

Monetary 7.008
Men-manetary 1,000 1,058 58 5.80%
Total contributions 8.008 7377 - 631 -7 BB%

Total contributlons Include cash and non-cash contributlons by developers In regard to open space,
development contributlon plans (DCP) and the value of land, roads and foolpaths transferred to councll

ownership by developers.

The budgeted monetary contributlons for 2021/22 Includes $6.30 milllon of open space contributions from
developers. No contributions are anticlpated In 2021/22 from the Doncaster Hill Development Contributions

Plan

All monetary contributlons are placed In a cash backed reserve to fund future capltal works projects.

4.1.6 Other income

Forecast Actual

Budget

2020121 2021/22
$°000 $°000 $°000 &
Interest 800 375 225 -37.50%
Reyalties 725 - 725 100.00%
Other 1,000 298 - oz -70.20%
Total other income 2,325 ars - 1,852 -71.05%

Other Income Is projected to decrease by $1.65 milllon or 71% per cent compared te the 2020/21 Forecast.

The change malnly relates to:

. Interest on Investments Is projected to decline by $0
low Investmentinterest rates on offer from banks.

.23 milllon compared to 2020/21 due to historlc

«  Councll's cash and deposlts are Invested In accordance with the Councll Investment Policy. The funds
are Invested with a number of financlal Institutions, and Include cash on hand, at call and short to

medium term deposlts ranging from 60 days

. Royaltles assoclated with partlal filling of Councll's former quarry are expected to end after 2020/21.

4.1.7 Employee costs

Forecast Aetual Budget
2020/24 2021122
$'000 $'000 $'000 e
Wages and salaries 80,117 59,361 (758} 1.28%
Capitalised labour (2.742) (3,101) (358} 13.09%
—
Tatal employee costs 57,375 58,200 (1.118) 1.94%

Councll provides services to our communlity through a comblnatlon of directly employed staff, temporary staff

and services purchased from contractors. The extent that a

service Is provided by staff or contractors (or

comblination of both as Is often the case) Is determined on a service by service basls. The approach provides

both an efficlent and flexlble approach to service dellvery.

\Wages and salarles (operating costs) Include wages, superannuation, WorkCover and other salary on costs

for employees Involved In service dellvery

Capltallsed labour Includes the cost of employees and temporary staff from agencles Involved In design,
supervislon andconstruction work on projects In the capltal works program.

Total employee costs are forecast to decrease by $1.1 milllon or 1.9 per cent compared to 2020/21.
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4.1.8 Materials and services

Forecast Actual Budget

Change
2020021 2021122

$'000 $'000 %

cts 11,813 13,477 1,884 14.08%

Waste

Parks. sparting reserves. street trees and bushland 7082 5006 2088 29.141%
maintenance

Reads, drainage and other infrastructure repairs and - .
maintenance 3.337 3,365 28 0.83%
Community building repairs and maintenance 1.448 1,596 150 10.40%
Community events and services 1.185 1,294 28 8.29%
Fleet costs G88| 790 102 14.84%
Aged care services 567 437 120 21.61%
Genersl materials and services B.787 5472 - 325 -4.78%
Total materials and services 32,808 32,438 - 488 -1.39%

Materlals, services and contracts Include payment to contractors for the provislon of services, the purchase of
consumables, malntenance costs and general materlals to enable Councll to provide a wide range of service
Materals, services and contracts are expected to decrease by $0.46 milllon (1.4 per cent). This key varlances are:

« Waste contracts Include collection and disposal services and operates on a contract service delivery model
Contract costs for this service are budgeted to Increase by $1.66 milllon. This Is predominately due to Increased
disposal costs resulting from a 61 per cent Increase In the State Government landflll levy from 1 July 2021 and
an Increase In gate fees as a result of new EPA landflll requirements;

« The reductlon In the 2021/22 budget for Parks and sporting reserves |s due to one-off Aquarena and Indoor
Stadlum contract variation payments during 2020/21 as a result of the Impact of COVID-19 State Government
restrictions resulting In reduced operatlons and temporary closures during lockdowns of Councll facliitles under
contract management.

4.1.9 Depreciation

Forecast Actual Budget

Property 4,321 3940 - 3 -8.82%

Plant & equipment 1,633 1,578 45 2.94%
Infrastrecture 17,587 18,588 1,001 5.69%
Computers and telecammunications 432 680 248 57.41%
Total depreciation 23,873 u,ﬁ g13 3.82%

Depreclation Is an accounting measure which attempis to allocate the value of an asset over Its useful llfe for
Councll's property, plant & equipment and Infrastructure assels such as roads and dralns. The Increase Is due
malnly to the completlon of the capltal works program and the full year Impact of depreclatlon of the 2020/21
capltal program

4.1.10 Amortisation - Intangible assets

t Actual Budget

2020/21 2021/22

$°000 $'000 %
Intangible assets 2.882 3189 18.90%
Total amortisation - intangible assets 2,882 3,189 507 18.90%

Amortisation Is an accounting measure which attempts to allocate the value of an asset over Its useful life for
Councll'sintanglble assets (software). The Increase of $0.5 milllon Is due malnly to the addition of new software

4.1.11 Amortisation - Right of use assets

Forecast Actual Budget

2020121

$'000 %

Right ef use assets a1 3T - 104 -24.70%
—

Tatal amortisation - right of use assets 421 7 104 24.70%

Amortlsatlon |s an accounting measure which atiempts to allocate the value of an asset over Its useful life for
Councli'sright of use assels. The decrease In 2021/22 |s due to the end of some leases assoclated with IT
equipment assets [printers & servers)
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4.1.12 Other expenses

Forecast Actual Budget
2020021

$'000 $'000 %
Software licences 2,589 3,214 815 23.66%
Consultants 1,832 678 1,184 -62.99%
Legal expenses 1,234 523 - T 57 62%
Insurance 1122 1,241 118 1061%
Data communications and telephone 419 403 - 18 -3.82%
Pastage 428 428 - 0.00%
Other service delivery costs 0,475 9,583 108 1.14%
Total other expenses 17109 16,070 - 1.038 -6.07%

Other expenses are budgeted to decrease by $1.04 mlllien (or 6.1 per cent) and Include a varlety of costs Incurred
to provide and support the wide varlety of services that Councll dellvers.

The decrease In 2021/22 Is malnly due to one off budget allocations In 2020/21 to acquire speclalist knowledge and
legaladvice for varlous projects Including the North East Link and contractual advice.

4.2 Balance Sheet
4.2.1 Assets
4.2.1 a Current Assets

Current assets Include cash and cash equivalents (cash held In bank accounts and term deposits or other highly
liquld Investments with terms of three months or less), other financlal assets (term deposits with terms between
three and twelve months) and monles owed to Councll by ratepayers and others

As at 30 June 2022, total current assets are projected to Increase by 53.4 milllon on the basls of 2021/22 s to return
to pre-Covld levels.

4.2.2b Non-current Assets

Property, Infrastructure, plant & equipment and Intanglble assets represents 99.9 per cent of Councll's non-current
assets. During 2021/22, these assels are projected to Increase by $17.4 milllon as a result of the capital works
program ($48 milllon). These are partly offset by depreclatlon/amortisation of assets ($28 milllon)

4.2.3 Liabilities

A4.2.2 a Current Liabilities

Total current llablitles (obligations to pay within the next twelve months) are projected to remaln at a simllar level
t02020/21.

4.2.2b Non-current Liabilities

Total non-current llabliitles are projected to remaln at a similar level to 2020/21. Non-current llabllitles of $1.40
milllonrelates to employee entitlements of long service leave.

4.2.3 Borrowings

Coundil does not currently have loan borrowings nor proposes to borraw over the four year period

Forecast Actual Budget

2020121 2021/22
$

Ameunt borrewed as at 30 June of the priar year
Amount proposed to be barrowed B - -
Ameunt prajected to be redeemed B . R

Amaunt of borrowings as at 30 June
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4.2.4 Leases by category

As a result of the introduction of AASS 16 Leases, right-of-use assets and lease liabilities have been recognised as
outlined in the table below.

Right-of-use assets
Land and buildings
IT equipment

Total right-of-use assets

Lease liabilities
Current lease Liabilities

Land and buildings

IT eguipment

Total current lease liabilities
Nan-current lease liabilities

Land and buildings

IT equipment

Total nan-current lease liabilities

Total lease liabilities

Whaere the interest rate applicable 1o a lease is nol expressed in the lease agreement, Council applies the average incremental barrowing

rate in the calculation of lease liabilities.
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4.3 Statement of changes in Equity
4.3.1 Equity

Equilty Is the difference between the value of the lotal assets and the value of total llabllitles. It represents
the net worth of Councll as at 30 June and Is made up of the following components:

«  Accumulated surplus Is the value of all the net assets less reserves that have accumulated over
time. For the year ending 30 June 2022, the accumulated surplus Is budgeted to Increase by
$20.63 million chiefly as a result of 2021/22 operating surplus.

«  Assetrevaluation reserve which represents the difference between the previously recorded value
of assets and thelrcurrent valuations and Is projected to remaln at the 2020/21 level

. Other reserves.

4.3.1 Reserves

Other reserves are cash reserves which Councll wishes to separately Identlfy as belng set aslde to meet a
speclilc purpese In the future and to which there Is no exlsting llabliity. This compenent Includes Reserves
such as the Open Space Reserve and the Doncaster Hill Development Contributlons Plan Reserve These
amounts are transferred to or from the accumulated surplus of Councll and are separately disclosed. Other
Reserves are budgeted to have a small net decrease In 2021/22 as they provide a funding source for related
projects In the capltal works program
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4.4 Statement of Cash Flows

4.4.1 Net cash flows provided bylused in operating activities

Cash flows from operating activitles Is budgeted to Increase from 2020/21 by $5.06 milllon. The Increase malnly relates
toan Increase In capltal grants and a decrease In expenditure on employee costs and materlals and services.

4.4.2 Net cash flows provided bylused in investing activities

Net cash flows used In Investing activities are projected to decrease by $20.7 milllon primarily due to the In flow of
maturing financlal assets (term deposlits) during the year.

4.4.3 Net cash flows provided by/used in financing activities

Councll Is not proposling to take up new borrowings In 2021/22

4.5 Restricted and unrestricted cash and investments

Total cash and financlal Investments held by Councll are restricted In part, and not fully avallable for Councll's operatlons.
The budgeted Statement of Cash Flows (Sectlon 3) Indlcates that Councll Is estimating at 30 June 2022 that It will have
total cash and Investments of $83.5 milllon, which Is restricted as shown In the followlng table:

Total cash and investments

Restricted cash and investments

Other Reserves 4.51 I
- Open Space reserve i .352]_
- Doncaster Hill DCP Reserve reml (1 430)

(12,143 {12,089)

Other restricted cash 452

- Trust funds and deposits

- Waste initiatives

(22,52 Tl- 524

- Cash held to fund carry forward capital works

Unrestricted cash and investments 453 2,092
Intended use of cash 4.54

- Superannustion Defined Benefits liability B.000
- Asset sale proceeds to fund capital works 4510
- Strategic Fund (15,388}
- Leng Servics Leave (©.828)

gham R t Contribution:
Unrestricted cash adjusted for intended use of cash 455 (10,612)

4.5.1 Other Reserves

These funds must be applled for specified purposes In accordance with varlous legislative requirements. While thesefunds

can earmn Interest revenues for Councll, the funds are not avallable for other purposes.
4.5.2 Other restricted cash

Councll recelves refundable deposits and other trust funds. This Includes contractor deposits, landscape bond, bonds for the
hire of Councll facllitles and other work bonds. In additlon, other restricted cash Includes the \Waste Inltlative Fund which Is

set aslde for waste and recycling related capital works projects.

4.5.3 Unrestricted cash and investments

These funds are free of all speclfic Councll commitments and represents the funds avallable to meet dally cash flow
requirements, unexpected short term needs and any budget commitments which will be expended In the following year.
Councll regards these funds as necessary to ensure that It can meet Its commitments as and when they fall due without

borrowing further funds.
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4.5.4 Intended use of cash

This Includes cash set aslde for specific future purposes by Councll which Is not subject to any external
restriction or leglslative requirements. As at 30 June 2022, Councll Is forecasting to have $25.75 milllon for
future Intended uses. This Includes:

+ Councll has set aslde $15.39 milllon In a Strateglc Fund to create the capacity for Councll to engage
In strategic property acquisition and development opportunities, major community Infrastructure
development opportunities and for other one- off specific purposes In the future where required. $12.51
millon of the amount set aslde In this fund was Internally reallocated from the previous Internal
allocation of $8 milllon for a future Defined Benefits superannuation call and $4.51 million of proceeds
from past asset sales.

« The projected long service leave llabllity at 30 June 2022 ($9.83 millon) has been set aslde to ensure
that councll has the capaclty to pay long service leave to employees when taken or upon departure.

« Confribution from Manningham Recreation Assoclation. Councll has $0.53 million set aside for future
speclfic use tied tothe contribution recelved.

4.5.5 Unrestricted cash adjusted for intended use of cash

Councll Is forecasting to hold $23.6 milllen In cash without commitments or Intended use as at 30 June 2022.
This level lsconsldered appropriate to ensure flnanclal sustalnabllity.
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4.6 Capital works program

This seclion presents a listing of the capital works projects that will be undertaken for the 2021/22 year, classified by expenditure type
and funding source. Works are also disclosed as current budget or carried forward from prior year

4.6.1 Summary

Forecast
ual
2020/21 * 2021
$'000 $'000

Budget

Praperty 2,500 10,854 14.22%
Plant and equipment 5498 5,652 154 2.81%
Infrastructure 33818 31,604 2.212 6.54%
Total 38514 28,107 - 707 .45%

* 2020/21 ineludes $4.91 million of prejects carried farward frem 2018/20

Asset expenditure types

Summary of Funding Seurces

Project
2021122 New Renewal Upgrade Grants | Contributions Council cash  Reserves
fram $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Property 10,851 323 5018 2,534 B 2,285 - 8818 1,950
Plant and equipment 5,652 1.572 2473 1.540 a5 - - 5882 -
Infrastructure 31,604 8,824 16,358 4,874 1,744 4812 77 21.885 £830
Total 48,10 13,428 23,848 8847 1.884 8,897 77 34.253 e.850]

This sectlen presents an overview of the capital works projects to be undertaken In 2021/22 by expenditure type

$48.11 milllon has been budgeted for capltal works In 2021/22.

Property ($10.85 million)

For the 2021/22 year, $10.75 million will be expended on building and building improvement projects including community facilities,

« $1.5 millon on the renewal of other community bulldings;
« $3.0 millon on upgrades to civic/depot bulldings;
« $3.8 milllon for recreation bulldings Including
+ $1.8 mlllon for Schramms Reserve Modular Pavilllon,
+ $0.8 milllen for Mullum Mullum Bowls facllity; and
« $0.7 millien for the first stage of the Deep Creek Reserve Pavlllon

« $0.8 milllon for environmental Initiatives Including solar panels and the Envirenmentally Sustalnable Design (ESD) program

An additional $1.6 milllon will be spent on land purchases to Increase open space within the Munlclpality
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Plant and Equipment including intangibles ($5.65 million)

Significant projects include the implementation of new corporate systems to improve efficiency and customer service:
« upgradefreplacement of information technolegy software, equipment and hardware at Council workplaces ($3.6 million);
+ ongolng cyclical replacement of the plant and vehicle fleet (51.8 milllon); and
+ Implementation of Electrlc Vehicle Charging ($0.1 milllon)

Infrastructure ($31.60 million)

Roads & bridges ($12.51 million)

« 55.1 million for the road network renewal program; and
«  52.0 million for Tram/Merlin Road, $1.156 million for Knees Road, $1.0 million for Tuckers Road and $1.0 millien for Jumping
Creek Road

Footpaths and Cycleways ($3.54 million)
+ 52.5 million on the design, construction of new footpaths and the renewal of existing;
+  50.9 million on the implementation of the Bicycle Strategy; and
«  50.2 million on the Main Yarra Trail extension to Warrandyte,

Drainage ($4.06 million)

« 522 million allocation for the implementation of Council's Drainage Strategy to protect properties frem inundation;
+ $1.9 million on the refurbishment and renewal of the drainage network

Recreation, leisure and community facilities ($5.46 million)
« 534 million for Peltys Reserve Sporting development;

» 51.2 million for Tom Kelly athletics track improvement works; and
»  50.8 million for other improvement projects

Parks, open space and streetscapes ($5.41 million)

$1.0 million for Lions Park \Warrandyte River Reserve;

$1.0 million for Hepburn Reserve;

$0.9 million for Playspaces Development;

$0.3 million for floodlighting in reserves;

«  50.3 million for Ruffey Lake Park Master Plan implementation; and
+ 50.5 million funding ongoing for tree planting / streetscapes.
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4.6.2 Current Budget (excluding carry forwards from 2020/21)

Capital Works Area

2021/22
PROPERTY

Land

Land Acguisition
Buildings

Recreation Building Renewal

General Bullding Renewal

Municipal Office Renewal

Gommunity Facilily Development

Park Development

Emergency Management |
Ghildren Services Initiatives
Sports Reserve Development

Solar & Environmental init

tives
Building Improvements
General Building Renewal
Accezsibility Initiatives
Municipal Office Renewal
TOTAL PROPERTY

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant, Machinery and Equipment
Plant and Equipment Renewal

Solar & Environment; itiatives

Fixtures, Fittings and Furniture

Furni

o & Equipment Renewal
Computers and
Telecommunications

formaticn Technalegy in
Transformation inifiatives
Art Works

Artworks Renewal
Artworks Development
Intangibles
Transfarmation initiatives

Infarmaticn Technalegy Ir

Informaticn Teehneiogy Renswal

TOTAL PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

diture types

Renewal  Upgrade

Expansion

$°000

Grants

$'000

Summary of Funding Seu

Contributions Council cash

$'000

$'000

Reserves

§'000

1,60 600 - - - 1,800
1,32 - 1,320 - - -

e -1 150

r0q - 700 - - -

44 - 48 - 48 -

409 178 16 208 - 400 -

50 50

7 £ - 70 -
2,500 1.250 ZB0 o 1 87e 350

849 420 420 - 1 129 -

arg 100 125 150 150 225

229 - 225 - 235 -
1,950 - 100 1,850 - 1,950 -
10,851 el 5016 2534 7o 2.285 66818 1
1,824 1.841 182 1.823

104 100 - - 100 -

25 25 25

814 102 308 282 55

359 353 - - -

10 - 10 - - 0 -

1404 140 - - 140 -
1,349 813 401 122 13 - 1.348 -

924 g2z 822

95 a4 - a1 - a5 -
5,659 572 2,473 1.540 ag - 5882 I
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Capital Works Area

INFRASTRUCTURE

Roads

Capital Werks Administration
Foofpath Renewal

Road Construction Initiatives

Road Ne

Renewal
Activity Centre Development
Streetscape Improvements
Street Light Renewal

Street Light Development

Smart City Initiatives

Road Safety Initistives

Bus Faciity Development
Traffic Management Initiatives
Traffic Management initiatives
Bridges

Road Network Renewal
Footpaths and Cycleways
Linear Park Developmant
Footpath Development - Local
Foofpath Development - PPN
Footpath Renewal

Bicycle Metwork Development
Drainage

Drainage Nefwork Development
Drainage Nefwerk Renewal

R ti I, Leisure & C

Faoilities

Flaodlighting Development
Sports Reserve Development
Sports Facility Renewal

Leisure Facility intiatives

Leisure Facilty Development
Hare Court Initiatives

Waste Management

Waste Management In

Project

2,000

150
BT 5|

1,305
910

3,605

120
3,728
1,200

152

55|

500|

@

a

et expenditure types

Renewal  Upgrade

4918

B0
200
23

®
=]
e
@

273 182

1.415 1180

48

e
a

5

Urees

ilcash Reserves
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Project nditure ty Summary of Funding Sources
Capital Works Area Renewal Upgrade |Expa Grants  Confr ilcash  Reserves
$'000 $'000 ]

Parks, Open Space and
Streetscapes
Cemmunity Facility Develepment 46 48 48

on Initiatives 400 400 - - - - - - 400
Linear Park Development 100] 100 40 a0
Park Development 2,463 1,858 456 75 7 300 - 313 1,850
Water & lrrigal Initlativas 175 85 110 178
Playspace Renewal 90 90 - - - - 80 -
Cpen Space Development 160) 152 - 8 - - - 42 118
Playspace Initiatives 940 50 598 182 - 80 - 860
Street Light Development 35 18 18 - - - - -
Flacdiighting Develepment 285 143 143
Hard Court Initiatives 5| 3 3 - - - - 5 -
Leisure Fasillty Intiatives 44 22 22 - - - - a4 -
Sports Reserve Development 215 50 185 - - - - 218 -
Streetseape Improvements 450 - 450 - - - - 450 -
Off Street Car Parks
Sports Reserve Development 12 - - 312 - - - az -
Foad Netwark Renewal 95 - 95 - - - 95 -
TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE 31,604 8,824 18,359 4,874 1.748 4812 i 21.585 4,63
TOTAL NEW CAPITAL WORK S 48,107 I 13,426 23,848 8947 1,885 I 6,897 L 34,253 6,880
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4.6.3 Summary of Planned Capital Works Expenditure
For the four years ended 30 June 2025

Asset Expenditure Types

Funding Sources

2022123 New Renewal Upgrade Expansion Total Grants Contributions

$'000 §'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 §'000
Property
Land 1,700 1,700 Q o 2 o Q 1,700
Total Land 1.700 1,700 ] 3] a [ a 1,700
Buildings 135 4.401 848 0 [3 4.880 894
Building improvements 225 &80 -] a & 1.180 0
Total Buildings A 360 5.281 823 2 [ 8.080 894
Total Property 8,474 2,060 5,291 923 0 [] 6,080 2,334
Plant and Equipment
Plant. machinery and equipment 1,168 o 1,086 118 ] 1,188 1] o 1188 ]
Fixtures. fittings and furniture 25 [ 25 o 0 25 Q o 25 a
Computers and telecommunications T4 408 218 o8 57 T4 0 o TT4 o
At Works 255 10 Q o 285 ] o 285 a
Intargibles 1231 158 2,181 0 3,567 a o 3,587 0
Total Plant and Equipment 5819 1892 1,474 2,355 57 ECEE] ] [ EX3E] ]
Infrastructure
Roads 13,408 1,048 8.810 2828 722 13,408 3,465 o 6,663 ]
Bridges 250 800 50 ] o 850 a0 o 50 a
Factpaths and sycleways 3,700 2283 1.259 118 80 3,700 a o 3700 ]
Drainage 4727 12580 1.083 1,404 o 4727 il o 4727 o
Recreational, leisure and cammunity fasilities &8 173 422 ag o L 0 78 208 a
‘Waste management o L] o 0 0 L] o 0 a
Parks, open space and strestscapes 2479 2238 1.701 513 8,830 ) [+] 3085 3,865
Off street car parks 0 a5 0 0 EC o o 98 a
Total Infrastructure B,012 14,856 6,533 1,295 30,696 4,255 78 22,498 3,865
Total Capital Works Expenditure 44 989 11,964 21,621 9,852 1 % 44 989 4,255 78 34,397 6,259
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4.6.3 Summary of Planned Capital Works Expenditure
For the four years ended 30 June 2025

Asset Expenditure Types

Funding Sources

2023124 New Renewal Upgrade Expansion Total Grants  Contributions

$'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 §'000 $'000
Property
Land 1.800 1,800 0 o 0 1.800 a o a 1,800
Total Land TE00 TE00 ] ] [] 7800 ] [ ] TEQD
Buildings 3208 135 2036 198 [ 3208 ] 4 3028 240
Building improvements 1,620 180 1.000 7re ] 1.62¢ Q [+] 1.629 o
Total Buildings 5,198 285 3636 o7 0 5,198 7 0 2958 240
Total Property 6,998 2,085 3,936 a7 1] 6,998 ] 0 4958 2,040
Plant and Equipment
Plant. machinery and equipment [ 2.01¢ 224 ] a Q o
Fixtures, ittings and furniture 0 25 o 0 0 0 o
Computers and telecommunications 178 215 -] &7 a o 4]
AR Werks 120 10 o 0 0 o o
Intangibles 240 50 1,680 0 0 o [
Total Plant and Equipment 5264 h38 2,169 1,900 ar 0 0 1]
Infrastructure
Roads 1 3 3078 10.028 3,200 B78 17.278 4,189 [+] 13107 o
Bridges 5,100 5,000 100 o 0 5,10 5,000 0 100 o
Factpaths and eways 1863 1.430 118 58 3208 a [v] 3.205 o
Drainage 1238 1.957 1,475 0 4870 a 0 4870 0
Recreational, leisure and community faciliies 588 505 387 ] 1,486 0 &0 1.408 0
Waste management ] 0 [ ] [ 0 [ o o
Parks, open space and strestscapes 1,880 3150 B40 480 0.430 a [+] 2806 3,824
Off street car parks o 100 30 ] 130 Q [+] 130 o
Total Infrastructure 38,367 13,564 17,268 6,146 38,367 3,169 B0 25,314 3824
Total Capital Works Expenditure 50 649 16,207 23973 9,023 50 649 9,169 B0 35536 5,864
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4.6.3 Summary of Planned Capital Works Expenditure
For the four years ended 30 June 2025

2024125

Property
Land

Total Land

Buildings

Bullding imarovements
Total Buildings

Total Property

Plant and Equipment

Plant. machinery and squipment

Fixtures, fitings and furniture

Computers and telecommunications

At Works
Intangibles.
Total Plant and Equipment

Infrastructure
Roads
Bridges

Fact

Drainage

ths and

wways

Recrestional, lsisure and community facilities

Waste management

Parks, open space and streatscapes

Off street car parks
Total Infrastructure

Total Capital Warks Expenditure

Asset Expenditure Types

Funding Sources

New Renewal Upgrade Expansion Total Grants  Contributions
$'000 §'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 $'000
1.555 1,555 Q o o 1.555 2 2 555
T.EGE TEES [] [] [1] 7558 0 [1] 0 TEES
4.180 138 3.976 48 o 4.180 []] o 4.180 o
800 180 450 0 0 800 ] 0 800 ]
4,780 288 4.426 48 0 4,760 [] [ 4,780 ]
5315 LEZE 7,426 LL] T 5,315 ] 0 4,760 7555
0 1,647 182 0 1,830 [ o 1.830 0
[ 25 o 0 25 o ] 25 o
178 218 o8 57 648 ] 0 548 0
120 10 0 0 130 o o 130 o
2.089 0 240 1,820 0 2,080 2 o 2,089 o
4600 798 ZA37 2,108 57 A.600 0 [ 4,600 ]
14,178 2,894 0,153 1,323 810 1.382 o 50
100 o 100 Q o ] o a
3,802 2,087 1.563 128 84 ] o 583
4,608 1,251 1.983 1,484 o o o o
2,854 447 1.338 1148 0 0 380 1]
a o ] Q o o ] o o
5178 1,426 2012 661 288 5176 a o 1870
582 0 100 482 0 582 9 0 ]
31,450 B,073 17,118 5,098 1,161 31,450 1,392 380 2,583
A2,365 10,212 73,681 7254 298| 42,365 7,392 T80 1938
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4.6.4 Four Year Capital Works Program Detail

Total 4 year

Capital Works Area Program 2021722 2022/23 202324

$'000 5'000 $'000 $'000
PROPERTY
Land
Land Acquisition Program - Open Space for Manningham 6,655 1,600 1,700 1,800 1,555
Buildings
Miscellaneous Community Facilities 190 46 48 48 48
Emergency Management Initiatives 200 50 350 50 50
Miscellaneous Building Refurbishment Works (Master) 2,150 425 525 600 600
Bucks Reserve Public Toilet AMS Buildings 40 - 40 - -
ADSS: Planned Activity Group (PAG) AMS 200 - - 200
Pines Library carpet replacement AMS Buildings 100 - 100 -
Warrandyte Childcare Centre Refurbishment 150 150
Flood Prevention measures - various sites 500 200 200 200 200
Donvale Preschool 250 - - - 250
IMen's Shed 75 - 75 -
Warrandyte Scout Hall 350 350
Aggregated Building Renewal Projects 940 - - - 940
MC2 300 50 50 100 100
Depot (BU350) - Security and evac system AMS 700 500 200
Office Accomodation Renewal 1,300 150 200 450 500
Waldau Visitor Centre 400 400 - - -
Aguarena - Agreement EF18/11204 1,246 320 326 300 300
Indoor Stadium AMS (Highball Facilities) ran 150 200 200 200
Park Orchards BMX Pavilion upgrade AMS Buildings 600 - 600 - -
Donvale Pony Club 351 - - 351 -
Wyena Pony Club 350 - 350 -
Aggregated Recreation Building Renewal Projects 550 a0 500
Childrens Services Projects 282 70 70 70 72
Mullum Mullum Bowls 800 800 - -
Deep Creek Reserve Pavilion Redevelopment 2,700 700 2,000
Schramms Reserve Pavilion No 2 Redevelopment 300 - - 300 -
Daonvale Tennis Club upgrade AMS Buildings 400 - - 400 -
Schramms Reserve #2 Modular Pavilion 1,800 1,800 - - -
9 Year Solar & ESD Program 1,440 840 200 200 200
Building Improvements
Accessibllity Improvement Programme - Council Buildings 950 225 225 250 250
Safety Improvements 175 25 a0 50 50
Templestowe Scouts upgrade AMS Buildings 115 - 15 100 -
Finns reserve Scouts upgrade AMS Buildings 75 - 75 - -
Wonga Park Hall Upgrade AMS Buildings 300 300
Public Toilet Strategy Implementation 1,250 200 450 300 300
Council Security Access Systems Upgrade 350 150 - 200 -
Doncaster East Hall Renewal Works 300 - - 300 -
Warrandyte South Community Hall Renewal Works 150 150
Depot Vehicle Security 554 50 - 504 -
MC2 Exterior 1,800 1,800 - -
Depot Cutdoor Lunchroom Upgrade 100 100
MTLC - Air Handling Works 150 5] k]
TOTAL PROPERTY 32,638 10,851 8,474 6,998 6,315
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Total 4 year
Capital Works Area Program

$'000

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant, Machinery and Equipment

2021/22

£'000

2022/23

$'000

2023724

$'000

Plant Replacement Project 7,084 1,823 1,188 2243 1,830
Electric Vehicle Charging 100 100 - - -
Fixtures, Fittings and Furniture
Furniture and Equipment (Municipal Offices) 100 25 25 25 25
Computers and Telecommunications
GIS Initiatives - Community Access and Safety (Master) 126 30 32 32 32
Computer Infrastructure Replacement 313 76 79 79 79
IT Strategy Initiatives - Other (Master) 1,128 274 285 285 285
Other Computer Infrastructure 313 76 79 79 79
PC Refresh & MS Office Upgrade 379 379 - - -
Smart City Bins and Drains Asset Monitoring 421 193 228
IMobile Computing Initiatives 333 120 Il 71 Al
Video Conferencing Functionality 40 40 - -
Intangibles
Internet and Intranet Renewal 922 922 - -
User Friendly Pet Registration & Renewal 237 - 237 -
Workplace Health & Safety Management Solution 95 95 - - -
IT Base Asset Renewal r85 45 500 240
Contract Management System 195 195 - - -
Data Warehouse & Business Intelligence 150 150 - -
Business Continuity Management Planning 363 363
Digitise Customer Refunds 540 - 540 - -
ERP (renewal of Financials, P&R, Budget Planning, HRIS) 4,159 100 730 1,500 1,829
CRM Expansion & Enhancements T02 702 - - -
Hard and Garden Waste Automation 320 - - 320 -
Worker Compliance Management 411 - 411 - -
FoodTrader Implementation 400 - 400 -
Data Warehouse Human Resources 65 65 - -
HR Service Management and Tracking 37 37
Single Customer View 621 - 621 -
Asset Management Phase 2 320 100 220 -
Art Works
Art Collection Acquisitions 120 30 30 30 30
Commissioning of public art 515 110 225 S0 90
Art Collection Conservation 40 10 10 10 10
TOTAL PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 21,335 5,652 5,819 5,264 4,600
54
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Capital Works Area

INFRASTRUCTURE
Roads

AM & Capital Works Project Management & Administration
Pram Crossings

Tuckers/Serpells -Road & Footpath reconstruction

Knees Road, Park Orchards Road Management

Jumping Creek Road

Fitzsimons Lane and Main Road Corridor

Arterial Road Pavements (Link & Collector)

Concrete ROWSs

Favement Design

Kerb & Channel replacement

Open Space Road Pavements

Road Restoration

Road Retaining Wall / Structure

Road Surfacing (Reseals)

Road Renewal - Kerb & Channel

Table Drain Sealing

Macedon Square

Local Activity Centres Infrastructure upgrades

Place Making & Pop Up Parks

Additional Street Lighting

Energy Efficient Public Lighting

Street Lighting Replacement Program

Road Furniture / Signs / Bins / Seats

Shopping Centre Enhancements

City Signage Program

Street Furniture Program

Vehicle Detection Units (Replacement)

Aggregated Bus Bay Construction Projects

Aggregated Bus Shelter Installation

Agaregated Road Safety Projects

Tram/Merlin

Aggregated Traffic Management & Control Measures Projects
Agaregated Traffic Control Devices Council Link (Arterial)

Bridges
Banksia Park Bridge
Bridges / Culverts - Roads & Reserves

Footpaths and Cycleways

Main Yarra Trail Extension to Warrandyte

Aggregated Local Footpath Design and Construction Projects
Aggregated Foolpath Construction Projects

Footpaths - Parks

Footpaths - Roads

Aggregated Bicycle Strategy Projects

o

o

Total 4 year

Program

$'000

546
200
4,000
1,150
14,643

555
2,000

15,840
1,630
300
160
120
500
250
600
180
520
210
530
300

250
639

2,000
618
244

2021/22

£'000

100
150
300
205

1,100
910

2022/23

$'000

4,508
400
75

2023724

$'000

30

63
200
45
130

135
75
15
65

170

233

212

5,000
100

500
750
400
220
850
875

4
4

-

.500

430
75

30
63
200
45
130
70
140
75
156
65
219
2357
221
84

100

.000
,060

220
890
642
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Total 4 year
Capital Works Area Program
$'000
Drainage
Melbourne Hill Road Drainage Upgrade(C,P & D) 3,500
285 Oban Road Culvert 650
North Valley Road 125
Drainage - Alva Avenue oo
Kerry Anne Crs Wonga Park Drainage 350
Drainage, 31 Yarra Street, Warrandyte 1,290
2 to 24 Euston Ave Park Orchards Easement Drainage 500
Aggregated Drainage Strategy Projects 3,950
Miscellaneous Drainage Improvements 1,755
115 Brackenbury St Warrandyle Car Park Drainage 120
8 Mitchell Ave Warrandyte Catchment Drainage 1,535
216 Yarra St Warrandyte Catchment Drainage 400
266 Yarra St Warrandyte Catchment Drainage 300
141-157 Berringa Rd Park Orchards Easement Drainage 315
4 Yarra St Warrandyte Street Drainage 550
76 Arundel Rd Park Orchards Catchment Drainage 210
39 Carrathool St Bulleen Easement Drain 175
20-34 Hillingden Crescent Doncaster Easement Drainage 275
90 Corriedale Cres Park Orchards Catchment Drainage 400
Underground / Open Drainage 1,050
Recreational, Leisure and Community Facilities
Aguarena 50m pool Upgrade 500
Floodlighting Sporting Facilities 900
Outdoor Basketball & Netball Facilities 162
Tennis Court Strategy 1,230
Aggregated Leisure and Community Projects 250
Miscellaneous General Leisure 610
Tom Kelly athletics track respray and line marking 1,200
Sportsground Refurbishment - Drainage Program 426
Pettys Reserve Sporting Development Stage 2 3,416
Cricket Nets / Coaches Boxes / Goalposls 90
Sporting Reserves 480
Implementation of Boronia Reserve Management Plan 200
Mullum Mullum Reserve 3rd Artificial Bowling Green 389
Bin Cages at Sporting Facilities 60
Rieschiecks Reserve Management Plan (inc Waldau) 900
Domeney Reserve Management Plan Implementation 56

Waste Management
Quarry Site Planning 500

2021/22

£'000

275

450

120
154

55
152

142
3,416

120

20

2022/23

$'000

156

150

2023724

5'000

500
125
350
350

450
120

075

400

550
200

350
200
300

54
160

65
150
142

30
120

389

56

500
180
54

760
158
{42

30
120

200

20
700
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Capital Works Area

Parks, Open Space and Streetscapes

Community Facilities Play Equipment AMS
Aggregated Land Acquisition Program

Implementation of Horse Riding strategy

Mullum Mullum Creek Linear Park / Currawong - Stage 1
Green Gully Linear Park Signage & Miscellaneous Works
Mullum Mullum Linear Park Stage 5

Koonung Creek Linear Park Management Plan

Ruffey Creek Linear Park

Miscellaneous Open Space Projects

Tindals Wildflower Reserve

Anderson Park Open Space Development

Swilk Reserve Open Space Development

St Clems Reserve South Open Space Development
Pettys Reserve Open Space Development

Eric Reserve Open Space Development

Aggregated Open Space Development Projects

Finns Reserve Open Space Development

Ted Ajani Reserve Open Space Development

Lions Park Warrandyle River Reserve

Signage - AMS

Implementation of Koonung Park Management Plan
Hepburn Reserve

Studley Park (paths) Tullamore Interface

Burgundy Reserve Upgrade

Ruffey Lake Park Master Plan Implementation (inc Waldau)
Templestowe Memorial Reserve Feature Replacement
Parks and Recreation Asset Renewal

Fitzsimons Reserve Masterplan

Ruffey Lake Playground upgrade - Victoria Street (Waldau)
Wombat Bend Playspace Restoration

Aranga Reserve Playspace Renewal

Astelot Reserve Playspace Renewal

Brendan Reserve Playspace Renewal

Cat Jump Park Playspace Renewal

Crawford Reserve Playspace Renewal

Doncaster Reserve Playspace Renewal

Donvale Reserve Playspace Renewal

Grover Reserve Playspace Renewal

Hollywood Playspace (GG) Playspace renewal

Jenkins Park (GG) Playspace Renewal

Joroma Reserve Playspace Renewal

Leawarra Reserve Playspace Renewal

Maggs Reserve Playspace Renewal

Maxia Reserve Playspace Renewal

Montgomery Reserve Urban Plaza/Playspace Renewal
Morris Williams Reserve Playspace Renewal

Mossdale Reserve Playspace Renewal

Swanston Reserve Playspace Renewal

Ted Ajani Reserve Playspace Renewal

Aggregated Playspace Development Projects
Warrandyte Skate Park Playspace Renewal

Changing Places facility at Ruffey Lake Park (\Waldau)
Montpellier Reserve Open Space Development (RCLP)

Total 4 year
Program

$'000

2021/22

-

£'000

000

50

,000

300
68

120

2022/23

$'000

1,300
150

850

30

2023724

$'000

48
600
71
102
100

160
800

40

275
157

1,000
72
500

65
150

20
200
80

72

-
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Capital Works Area

hullum Mullum Reserve

Total 4 year
Program

$'000

2021/22

$'000

2022/23

$'000

2023724

$'000

Sandra Reserve Playspace Renewal 75 - - 75
Fahey Park Playspace Renewal 90 - - a0
Hillcroft Reserve Playspace Renewal 90 - - 90
Koonung Creek Linear Park Playspace Renewals 300 300
Kevin Reserve New Playspace 60 - - 60
Michael Reserve Playspace Renewal 75 - - - 75
Flay Spaces - AMS 360 90 S0 90 90
Public Lighting In Reserves 35 356

Water Services 440 110 110 110 110
Water Initiatives 288 65 - 65 158
Ted Ajani Sports Field Floodlight Upgrade 10 10

Doncaster Tennis Club floodlight Upgrade courts 10 10 - -
Design of remotely automated floodlight system 10 10 - -
Rieschiecks Reserve Sports field and Hammer Throw

Floodlight 5 5

Timber Reserve Floodlight Construction 250 250 - -
Waonga Park Tennis Club Court 1 Resurface and fencing 5 5 - -
Manningham Templestowe Leisure Centre Master Plan 44 44

Fencing 695 160 - 220 3156
Agaregated Small Reserves Concept Plans 213 45 48 72 48
Stintons Reserve BMX Start Hill Gate 10 10

MC2 plaza activation master plan 60 60

Streetscapes + Tree Planting 1,800 450 450 450 450
Templestowe Village Streetscape Upgrade 150 150

Off Street Car Parks

Doncaster Senior Citizens Centre Car Park Upgrade 185 - - 185
Bulleen Park Car Park Upgrade 246 - - - 246
Car Park Reserves Upgrades 93 32 30 31
Carpark - resurfacing program 390 95 95 100 100
TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE 132,137 31,604 30,696 38,387 31,450
TOTAL CAPITAL WORKS 186,110 48,107 44,989 50,649 42,365
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5. Financial performance indicators

The following table highlights Council’s current and projected performance across a range of key financial performance indicators. These indicators provide a
useful analysis of Council's financial position and performance and should be interpreted in the context of the organisation's objectives.
The financial performance indicators below are the prescribed financial performance indicators contained in Part 3 of Schedule 3 of the Local Government
(Planning andRepeorting) Regulations 2020, Resulls against these indicators will be reported in Council's Performance Statement included in the Annual Report

Indicator

Operating position

Measure

Adjusted underlying surplus (deficit) / Adjusted

Actual

2019/20

Forecas Budget

2021122

2

Projections

2023/24

Trend

202 +lol-

Adjusted underlying result underlying revenue 5.69% 1.45% 5.44% 5.28% 5.28% o

ey .
Working Capital Gurrent assets / cument liabllities 19835%  15500% | 15968%  16482%  17269% 178.36% .
Unrestricted cash Unrestricted cash / current liabilities 36.87% 24.52% 43.79% 46.00%  50.81% +

Obligations _
Loans and borrowings Interest bearing loans and borrowings / rate revenue 0.00% 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% o
Loans and borrowings l';';?:;‘ﬂi": - :2:'&:!?’:;’;”::‘?;32 interestbearing 697%  000% 0.00%  0.00%  000%  0.00% o
Indebtedness Non-current liabilities / own source revenue 3.04% 2.80% _ 2.10% 1.89% 1.71% +

" ]
Assel renewial :‘:;f;;g?;:a' and upgrade expense / Assel 161.28%  131.19% | 192.82%  12154%  122.89% 11154% o

—

Siability ]
Rates concentration Rate revenue / adjusted underlying revenue 78.61% 80.32% | 80.84%  80.84% 80.96%  B80.89% 0
Rates effort Rate revenue { CIV of rateable properties in the 0.20% o 19%- 0.21% 021% 0.22% o

municipality

Efficiency -
Expenditure level Total expenses/ no. of property assessments 52,479 52568 82543 §2,607 §2,661 2,728 +
Revenue level Total rate revenue / no. of property assessments 51,788 $1‘815_ §1,888 $1,923 51,968 +
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Key to Forecast Trend:
+ Forecasts improvement in Council's financial performance/financial position indicator

o Forecasts that Council's performance/

p will be steady

- Forecasts deterioration in Council's financial perfermance/financial position indicator

Motes to indicators

1

@

Adjusted underlying result
An indicator of the sustainable operating result required to enable Council to continue to provide core services and meet its objectives
Working Capital

The proporfion of current liabilities represented by current assets. Council takes this indicator very seriously fo ensure that Council continue to provide services to the community, ensure
the ongoing maintenance of our community's infrastructure and deliver our capital works program without necessarily having to borrow funds. Workingcapital is forecast to remain
reasonably strong liquidity position throughout the period

Unrestricted Cash

Cash and cash equivalents held by Council are restricted in part and not fully available for Council's operations, After adjusting for restrictions, Council is projecting te remainreasonably
strong throughout the period.

Debt compared to rates
Council achieved a debt free status in November 2019 and is expected to remain debt free throughout the four year period
Asset renewal

This percentage indicates the extent of Council's renewal and upgrade against its depreciation charge (an indication of the decline in value of its existing capital assets). A percentage
greater than 100 indicates that Council is maintaining its existing assets, while a percentage less than 100 means its assets are deteriorating faster than they arebeing renewed/upgraded
and that future capital expenditure will be required to maintain assels

Rates concentration

This indicator reflects the extent of the reliance on rate revenues to fund all of Council's on-going services. The trend indicates that Council is more reliant on rate revenuecompared to all
other revenue sources

60
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6. Schedule of Fees and Charges

This section presants the faes and charges of a statutoryinon-statutory nature which will be chargad in respect to various goods and services during the financisl year 2021/22. Fess and charges are basad on information avallable at

the time of publishing and may vary during the financial year subject to any changes in Gouncil's policy or legislation.

Financial Services

General

Dishonoured Chegue and Direct Debits Administration Fee

Valuation and Rates

Land Information Certificates statutory

Land Infermation Certific ates urgent fee - Same/next day

Ci ion of hip letter P d by council rates department
Copy of Rate Notice {per Notice )

Request for ownership details (Protection Notices

Refund Administration Fee

Dirsct Debit Administration Fee (Rates)
Title Search

Historical Rates Information Maximum
Historicsl Rates Information Minimum
Batch Information Requests Maximurm
Batch Information Requests Minimum
Street Numbar Change Maximum
Street Number Change Minimum

Community Programs

Maternal and Child Health

Parent Education Program MCC resident

Parent Education Program Mon resident

Parent Education Program HealthCare Card Holder

Early Years atMC?

Child Care Full week

Child Care Full individual days

Late Fee A late fee will be charged for the late collection of children after 6:00 pm

Per application

Par application
Par application
Par application
Per notice

Per application
Par refund

Per dishanour
Par search
Par property
Par property
Per property
Par property
Par application
Fer application

Persession
Fer session
Persession

Per week
Per day

Peroccurrence

Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxsble
Non-Taxabla
Non-Taxable

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Man-Taxabbe

Non-Taxahle

Non-Taxable

61

R R R R R R R SR R R R}

44.30

27 80
&5.00
4000
1500
1500
15.00
25.00
20000
10.00
200,00
25.00
721.70
18580

33.00
47.70
12.50

“

W 0 w0 W 0 e W e e

1090
280

0.50
080
0.20

12.00
200
380

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
1.5%
1.5%

1.5%
1.7%
1.6%

2.1%
1.7%
9.6%

Non-Statutary

Statutory
Statutary
Non-Statutary
Non-Statutary
Non-Statutary
Non-Statutary
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutary
Non-Statutary
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutory

MNon-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutory

Non-Statutary
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutory

Item 12.1

Attachment 1

Page 117



25 MAY 2021

Integrated Planning
Planning Scheme Amendments
Advertising notice of approval (per letter) Fee per latter MNon-Taxable 3
Advertising cther fee (one sign erected on site) Fee por sign Mon-Taxable 3
Advertising ather fee (two signs erected on site) Fee per sign Mon-Taxable %
Advertising other fee (three signs erected on site) Fee per sign MNon-Taxable 3§
Advertising cther fee (four signs or more erezted on site) Fee per sign MNon-Taxable 5
Motice of Approval - print media (Variable fee based on each individual netice) Per Motica Mon-Taxable
Motice of Exhibition - print media (<0a) Fee por letter Maon-Taxable
Motize of exhibition (per property) (<100-460) Fee per letier Mon-Taxable §
Motice of exhibition (per property) (500>} Fee per letter Mon-Taxable §
"Stage 1 Pre-exhibition -
For:
a] considenng a request to amend & planning scheme: and
b} taking astion required by Division 1 of Part 3 of the At and
¢} considering any submissions which do not seek a change to the amendment: and
d} if spplicable, abandoning the amendment.

Per amendment Mon-Taxable  §
Stage 2 (Exhibition)
For: &) considering
(h upte and ineluding 10 submissions whish seek a change to an amendment and
where necessary referring the submissions 1o a panel. er

Per amendment Mon-Taxable 3
Stage 2 (Exhibition)
(1311 1a (and insluding) 20 submissians whish seek a change le an amendment and
where necessary referring the submissions 1o a panel: or

Per amendment Mon-Taxable 3
Stage 2 (Exhibitian)
(iii) Submissions that exceed 20 submissions which seek a change to an amendment,
and where y referring the subi to & panel; and
k) providing assistance to a panel In aceordance with section 158 of the Act and
) making a submission to a pane| appointed under Part 8 of the Act at a hearing
referred to in section 24(b) of the Act; and
d) considering the panel's repartin accordance with section 27 of the Act; and
) after considering submissions and the panel's repert, abandoning the amendment,

Per amandment Mon-Taxable 3§

62

742
21521
266.56
319.82
37317

“arisble
773
5.56
R3]

3.050.90

15.121.00

3021240

40.285.90

W e e

“

018
328
4.04
4.89
583

001
(0.00)
{0.00)

2.5%
1.5%
1.5%
1.5%
1.5%

0.1%
0.0%
0.0%

0.0%

Set by Council
Setby Council
Set by Council
Set by Council
Set by Councll

Statutory
Statutary
Statutory
Statutory

Statutary

Statutory

Statutory

Statutory
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Descriptics

Stage 3 (Adcption)
Far:

a) adopting the amendment or part of the amendment in accordance with section 28

of the Ast. and

b} submitting the amendment for approval by the Minister in accordance with seation

31 of the Act: and

c} giving the notice of the approval of the amendment required by section 36(2) of the

At

Stage 4 (Approval)
For:

a) consideration by the Minister of a request to approve the amendment in accordanze

with section 35 of the Act; and

b} giving natice of approval of the amendment in ascordance with section 38(1) of the

At

Approvals & Compliance

Animal Management
Registration Fee

Dog - Redused Fee (Sterilised) Annual Fee $53.80 + $4.10 State Gov Levy - Council

Dog - Full Fee (Men sterilised) Annual Fee $168.50 + §4.10 State Gov Levy - Council
Cat- Reduced Fee (Sterilised) Annual Fee $32.50 + $4.10 State Gov Levy - Coungil

Cat=Full Fee (Non sterilised) Annual Fee $151.20 + $4.10 State Gov Levy - Council

Dangerous Dog Annual Fee $220 30 + $4.10 State Gov Levy - Couneil
Restricted Breed Dog Annual Fee $220.30 + $4.10 State Gov Levy - Council
Menacing Dog Annual Fee $220.30 + $4.10 State Gov Levy - Council

Domestic Animal Businesses Annual Fee $272 + §20 State Gov Levy - Council

Late Registration Administration Fee

Release Fee

Release Fee Impounded Domestic Animal Dog/Cat During business hours
Release Fee Impounded Domestic Animal Dog/Cat outside of business hours
Release Fee Daily Fee - Impound Dog / Cat - Sustenance

Release Fee Impounded Animal Stock - during business hours

Release Fee Impounded Animal Stock - outside of business hours

Per amendment

Per amendment

Par Registration
Per Registration
Per Registration

Per Registration
Par Registration
Par Registration
Par Registration

Per Registration
Par Registration

Per Animal
Per Animal
Per Day

Per Animal
Per Animal

Men-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

Non-Taxable
MNen-Taxable
Mon-Taxable

Nen-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Nen-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

MNon-Taxable
Mon-Taxakble

Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Men-Taxable
Mon-Taxakble
MNon-Taxable

63

s

L

IR IR ")

AR R AR A )

481.30

481.30

57.00

170,00

38.00

153.00
221.00
221.00
221.00

28800
10.50

102.00
144.00
16.00
88.00
171.00

“

o e

@ om e e g

280

060

2320
340
340
340

4.00
0.20

1.60
220
0.30
1.40
2680

1.5%
1.5%
1.5%
1.5%

1.4%
1.8%

1.6%
1.5%
1.8%
1.8%
1.5%

Statutory

Statutory

Mon-Statutory
Men-Statutory
Mon-Statutory

Mon-Statutory
Nen-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory

Nen-Statutoery
Mon-Statutory

Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Nen-Statutery
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Releace Fes Daily Sustenance charge per day - Impaund - Small animal (Sheep,
Goats, Llama or similar)

Releate Fea Daily Fee Sustenance charge per day - Impound - Large animal (Cows
Pony. Horses or similar)

Surrender Fee

Surrender Fae Domestic Animal

Surrender Faa Stock Animal

Pet Register Information
PetRegister Inf: Access to the ion data by public
Hire Fees

Hire Faes Hire Cat Trap Fee - 2 weeks (refundable deposit $80) - Council
Animal Transport

Animal Transport Float Charge {per animal} Council impound & transport stock (3
hours) - Coungil

Boarding Fee
Boarding Fee Cattery

Fines and Prosecutions

Fines and Prosecutions Animal Infringement - Level 1 (.5 Penalty Units)
Fines and Prosecutions Animal Infringement - Level 2 (1 Penalty Units)
Fines and Prosecutions Animal Infringement - Level 3 (1.5 Penalty Units)
Fines and Prosecutions Animal Infringement - Level 4 (2 Penalty Units)
Fines and Prosecutions Animal Infringement - Level 5 (2.5 Penalty Units)
Fines and Prosecutions Animal Infringement - Level 8 (4 Penalty Units)

Fines and Frosecutions Domestic Animals Act 1984 - Infringement (5 Penalty Units)

Finaz and Prosecutions Domestic Animals Act 1994 - Infringament (10 Penalty Units)
Fines and Prosecutions Domestic Animals Act 1004 - Infringement Miner attack
infringement

Traffic Management

Parking Permit Fee

Parking Permit Fee Residential Parking

Parking Permit Fee Residential Parking

Parking Permit Fes Traders Parking

Parking Permit Fee Traders Parking

Parking Permit Fee Tradesman Parking

Parking Permit Fes Tradesman Parking

Parking Permit Fee Replacement Permit - Administrative

Unit of M

Per Animal / Day

Per Animal / Day

Per Surrender

Par Surrender

Per entry inspected

Percage / two weeks

Par transport (3 hours)

Per day

0.5 Penalty Unit
1 Penalty Unit
1.5 Penalty Unit
2 Penalty Unit
2.5 Penalty Unit
4 Penalty Unit

5 Penalty Unit

10 Penalty Unit

Per offence

Per application
Per application
Far application
Per application
Per application
Far application
Per application

Non-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

Non-Taxsble
Non-Taxabla

MNeon-Taxable

Taxable

HNon-Taxable

Taxable

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
HNon-Taxable

MNon-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Mon-Taxabhe

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
HNon-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
HNon-Taxable
Non-Taxable

64
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20.00

40.00

57.00
82.00

20.00

G4.00

21500

19.00

83.00
165.00
248.00
330.00
413.00
661.00

826 00

1.652.00

41500

65.00
85.00
38.00
368.00
48.00
48.00
10.00

@

L A A ]

@

1.00
1.00

1.00
1.00
060
0.60
0.80
080
0.20

1.8%
1.2%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

0.0%

1.5%
1.5%
1.7%
1.7%
1.7%
1.7%
2.0%

Neon-Statutery

Men-Statutory

Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory

Men-Statutery

Men-Statutery

Men-Statutory

Mon-Statutery

Statutory
Statutary
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutary

Statutory
Statutery

Statutary

Non-Statutary
Non-Statutary
MNon-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutary
MNon-Statutory
Non-Statutory
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Descriptics

Fines and Prosecutions

Fines and Prosecutions Parking Infringement (.5 Penalty Unit)
Fines and Prosecutions Parking Infringement (& Penalty Unit)
Fines and Prosesutions Parking Infringement (1 Penalty Unit)
Fines and Prosecutions Road Safely Road Rules 2017 - 0821
Fines and Prosecutions Road Safety Road Rules 2017 - 0701
Fines and Prosecutions Road Safety Road Rules 2017 - 0702
Fines and Prosecutions Road Safety Road Rules 2017 - 0704
Fines and Prosecutions Road Safety Road Rules 2017 - 0705
Fines and Prosecutions Road Safety Read Rules 2017 - 0708
Fines and Prosecutions Road Safety Road Rules 2017 - 0707
Fines and Prosecutions Road Safety Road Rules 2017 - 0708
Fines and Presesutions Read Safely Read Rules 2017 - 0711
Fines and Prosecutions Road Safety Road Rules 2017 - 0712
Fines and Prosecutions Road Safety Road Rules 2017 - 0713
Local Law

Permit Fee

Permit Fee General Permit Fee

Permit Fee Charlty Clothing Bins - Permit Fees

Permit Fee Craft market stalls

Permit Fee Circuses and camivals on CounciliCrewn land
Permit Fee Mobile Cranes

Permit Fee Obstruciions

Permit Fee Rubbish Hoppers - Annual - Aceredited

Permit Fee Activity on Footpath -Display of Goods Less than 8 square metras

Permit Fee Activity on Feetpath -Display of Geods in exeess of 6 sgquare metres (per

square metre )

Permit Fee Astivity on Footpath -Tables & Chairs Less than & square metres
Permit Fee Astivity on Foctpath -Tables & Chairs in excess of 6 square metres (per

sguare metre)

Permit Fee Signs

Fermit Fee Signs - Charitable Organisations

Permit Fee Signs - Real estate agents (inspections signs)
Fermit Fee Busking permit fee

Fermit Fes Public entertainment permit

Permit Fee Filming

Fermit Fees Use of reserves - Parks

0.5 Penalty Unit
0.6 Penalty Unit

1 Penalty Unit

Sel by Cauncil (0.8 penally unit)
Set by Council (0.5 penalty unit)
Set by Council (2.5 penalty unit)
Sel by Council (0.8 panally unit)
Set by Council (0.5 penalty unit)
Sel by Council (0.8 panally unit)
Set by Council (0.5 penalty unit)
Set by Council (0.5 penalty unit)
Sel by Council (0.8 penally unit)
Set by Council (0.5 penalty unit)
Set by Council (0.5 penalty unit)

Per application
Par Bin

Per application
Per application
Per application
Per application
Per Bin

Per Proparty

Par square maetre
Per Praperty

per square metre
Per Sign

Per Sign

Per company { year
Per application

Far application

Per hour

Per day

Men-Taxakle
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Men-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxakle
MNen-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
MNen-Taxable
MNen-Taxakble
Mon-Taxable
MNen-Taxable
Mon-Taxable

Mon-Taxakble

Mon-Taxable
MNon-Taxable
Men-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Men-Taxable
Mon-Taxable

Mon-Taxable
Non-Taxable

MNen-Taxable
Mon-Taxable

Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Men-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Men-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Men-Taxable

Men-Taxable

65
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83.00
90.00
165.00
83.00
83.00
83.00
83.00
83.00
83.00
83.00
83.00
83.00
83.00
83.00

128.00
12800
128.00
630.00
750.00
1258.00
773.00

288 00

£0.00
288.00

£0.00
1258.00

G4.00
G18.00
128.00
12800
128.00
128.00

PPART IR RT A B R IR R AR VIR R TP

W B

130
1.20
1.30
130
1.20
130
1.30
1.20
130
1.20
1.30

200
200
2,00
9.50
2640
200
11.60

120
4.40

120
2.00
1.00
9.30
200
200
2.00
200

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
1.6%
1.6%
1.8%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.8%
1.8%

1.8%
1.6%
1.6%
1.5%
1.5%
1.6%
1.5%

1.5%
1.5%

1.5%
1.6%
1.8%
1.5%
1.8%
1.6%
1.6%
1.8%

Statutory

Statutory

Statutory
Meon-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Meon-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
Meon-Statutery
Men-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
Men-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory

Mon-Statutery
Nen-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory

Men-Statutory

Meon-Statutery
Mon-Statutory

Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
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Fines and Prosecutions

Fines and Proses utions M. Local Laws

Fines and Prosecutions Manningham Community Local Laws Body Corporate /
Corporation

Impounded Goods

Release Fee

Release Fee Shopping Tralley

Release Fee Real Estate/advertising board sign (or similar)

Release Fee Other ltem

Impounded Vehicles

Release Fee

Release Fee Vehicle - Impounded or Abandoned

Release Fee Vehicle - Tow

Release Fee Daily charge / Vehicle

Inspection Fee

Inspection Fee Impounded / Abandoned Vehicle

Planning Compliance

Fines and Prosecutions

Fines and Prosezutions Planning Infringement Notice (10 Penalty Units)
Fines and Prasesutions Planning Infringement Matice (5 Panalty Units)
Permit Fee

Permit Fee Qutside of hours - Permit CMP

Fire Prevemtion

Vacant Block 1m2-1000m2 Froastive Grass Slashing Program (incarp admin fee)

Viacant Block 1001m2-2000m2 Proastive Grass Slashing Program (insorp admin fee)
\acant Block per 2001m2 -4000m2 Proactive Grass Slashing Program (incorp admin
faa)

Vasant Block per 2 4000m2 Proactive Grass Slashing Program (inserp admin fee)

Inascessible for Mashinery 1m2-1000m2 Proactive Program (incors admin fee)

Permit Fee Burn Permit - Vacant Land Only (inspection required)

Land Management

Blackberry Control - 1m2-1000m2 Proactive Program (incorp admin fee)

Blackberry Control - 1001 m2-2000m2 Proactive Program (incorp admin fee)
y Cantrol - 1001m2-2000m2 Froactive Program (insorp admin fee)

Blackberry Control > 4000m2 - by quote Proactive Pragram (incorp admin fee)

Unit of M

Per application

Per application

Per ltem
Per ltem
Per ltem

Per ltem
Per ltem
Per ltem

Per ltem

Panalty Unit
Penalty Unit

Par application

Per property {Double Slash)
Per property (Double Slash)
Per property {Double Slash)
Per Property {Double Slash}

Per Property (Single Works)
Per application / property

Council (single slash)
Coungil {single slash)
Counzil (single slash)

Par hour

Mon-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable
HNon-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable

MNon-Taxable

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable
Taxable

Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

66

200.00

500.00

66.00
117.00
66.00

181.00

178.00

20.00

5200

1.652.00

828.00

128.00

1.00
1.80
1.00

280
270
0.50

484.00

693.00

77000

708,50
200

324.50
429.00
428,00

1.5%
1.5%
1.5%

1.5%
1.5%
1.7%

0.0%
0.0%

Men-Statutery

Mon-Statutory

Mon-Statutery
Nen-Statutery
Mon-Statutory

Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory

HNon-Statutory

Statutory
Statutary

HNon-Statutory

Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
MNen-Statutery
Mon-Statutory

Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutery

Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutery
Mon-Statutory

HNon-Statutory
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Approvals & Compliance

Envirenmental Health
Food Act

Class 1 (Standard FSP) - Registration Fee High Risk Premises using a Standard FSP

Class 1 (Standard FSF) - Transfer Fee
Class 1 (Standard FSP) - Transfer Report

Class 1 (Standard FSP) - Plan Approval

Class 1 {Mon Standard FSP) - Registration Fee High Risk Premises using a Mon

Standard FSP
Class 1 (Men Standard FSF) - Transfer Fes
Class 1 (Non Standard FSP) - Transfer Report
Class 1 (Nan Standard FSP) - Flan Approval

Class 2 ( FSP)- ion Fee
FSP

Class 2 (Standard FSP) - Transfer Fee
Class 2 (Standard FSP) - Transfer Report

Class 2 (Standard FSP) - Plan Appraval

Class 2 {Men FEF) - Regi: ion Fee Moderate Risk P

Standard FSP
Class 2 (Non Standard FSP) - Transfer Fes

Class 2 (Non Standard FSP) - Transfer Report

Class 2 (Nen Standard FSP) - Plan Approval

Class 2 >20EFT F5P)-Regi 1Fee
EFT using a Standard FSP

Class 2 =20 EFT(Standard FSP) - Transfer Fee
Class 2 »20 EFT(Standard FSP) - Transfer Report
Class 2 =20EFT(Standard FSP) - Flan Appraval

Class 2 >20EFT(Non Standard FSP) - R Fee

=20EFT using a Mon Standard FSP
Class 2 =20EFT (Non Standard FSP) - Transfer Fee

Class 2 *>20EFT(Non Standard FSFP) - Transfer Report

Risk Premises using a Standard

using a Non

Risk Premises with = 20

Risk Premises with

Per registration/premise
Per registration/premise
Per registration/premise

Per registration/premise

Fer registration/premise
Per registration/pramise
Per registration/pramise

Per registration/premise

Par registration/premise
Per registration/pramise
Per registration/premise

Per registration/premise

Par registration/pramise
Per registration/premise
Per registration/pramise

Per registration/premise

Per registration/pramise

Par registration/pre:

L
Per registration/pramise

Per registration/premise

Per registration/pramise
Par registration/premise

Per registration/premise

Nen-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

Non-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Men-Taxakble

Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable

Nen-Taxable

Non-Taxable
MNon-Taxable
Non-Taxable

MNen-Taxable

Nen-Taxable
MNon-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

Non-Taxable
MNen-Taxable

Nen-Taxable

67
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81500

407.50

270.00

240.00

500 00

250.00

27000

240.00

53500
267.50
270.00

24000

435.00
217.50
270.00

240.00

1.070.00
55500
32000

31000

72000

360.00

320.00

1000

5.00

5.00

20.00

10.00

5.00

1000

5.00

MNon-Statutory
Mon-Statutary
HMon-Statutary

Non-Statutary

Mon-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Mon-Statutary

Mon-Statutory

Mon-Statutary
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutary

MNon-Statutory

Mon-Statutory
Hon-Statutary
Mon-Statutory

Hen-Statutary

Mon-Statutory
Hon-Statutary
HMon-Statutary

Mon-Statutory

HMon-Statutary
Hen-Statutary

Mon-Statutory
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Class 2 =Z0EFT (Non Standard FSP) - Plan Approval

Class 2 Group [ FSF) - Rag

a Standard FSP

Fee C Group using

Class 2 Community Group (Standard FSP) - Transfer Fee

Class 2 Community Group (Standard FSP) - Transfer Report

Class 2 Community Group [Standard FSF) - Plan Approval

Class 3 - Registration Fee Moderate to Low Risk Premises using a Minimum Records

Class 3 - Transfer Fee
Class 3 - Transfer Report
Class 3 - Plan Approval

Class 3 (C ity Graup) - R tration Fee M

to Low Risk Ci anit

Group using a Minimum Recerds.

Class 3 {Community Group) - Transfer Fee
Class 3 (Community Group) - Transfer Repon
Class 2 {Community Group) - Plan Approval
Class 2 Food Vehicle (business)

Additional class 2 food vehicle (business)
Mobile / Temporary Food Premises

Class 3 Food Vehicle (business)

Additional class 3 feed vehicle (business)

Class 2 sommunity group Food Vehicle
Additional class 2 community group food vehicle
Class 3 sommunity greup Fosd Vahisle
Additional class 3 community group food vehicle
Class 2 Temporary food premises (business)

Additional class 2 Temporary food premises (b

Class 3 Temperary losd premises (business)

) New fee adopted by Council 23

Additional class 3 Temporary food premises (b 3
Foad P inspestion fee (for i
October 218

Per registration/premise

Far registration/premise
Per registration/premise
Per registration/premise

Per registration/premise

Per I‘.Uh-llﬂl\om'ﬂf-mﬂ-.
Per registration/premise
Per registration/premise

Per registrationfpremise

Per registration/premise
Per registration/premise
Per registration/premise
Per registration/premise
Per registration/premise

Per registration/premise

FPar registration
Per registration
Par registration
Per registration
Par registration
Fer regisiration
Par registration
Per registration

Per registration

Per ragistration

Mon-Taxable

Mon-Taxable
Men-Taxable
Mon-Taxable

Nen-Taxable

Men-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Non-Taxable

MNen-Taxakble

Mon-Taxable
Men-Taxable
Non-Taxable
MNen-Taxakle
Non-Taxable

MNen-Taxable

Nen-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxsble
Nen-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Mon-Taxable

MNon-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

68

w

LI}

310.00

230.00
115.00
170.00

20000

340.00
170.00
27000

230.00

21000
105.00
17000
206.00
51500

27000

34000
180.00
21000
120,00
16000
110.00
22000
12000

200.00

110,00

117 .86

w B

@

10.00

4.00
1000

(7.80)

10.00
(5.00
500
(12.50
500
(12.50)
&00
(7.50)

5.00

(7.50)

-2.8%

2.0%

-2.8%

-10.4%
2.6%

-11.4%

-6.3%

2.5%

Non-Statutory

Mon-Statutary
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutary

MNon-Statutory

Mon-Statutary
Mon-Statutory

Mon-5Staf

tary

Mon-Statutory

HMon-Statutary

Mon-5tal

tory
Mon-Statutory

Mon-5Staf

tary

Hen-Statutary

Hen-Statutary
Mon-Statutary
Mon-Statutary
Mon-Statutory
Hen-Statutary

Hon-Stal

tory
Mon-Statutary

Hen-Stal

tary

Mon-Statutory

Hen-Stal

tary

Mon-Stal

tary

Item 12.1

Attachment 1

Page 124



25 MAY 2021

Public Health and Wellbeing Act
Registration Fee High Risk
Registration Fee High+Mod Risk
Registration Fee High+Mod+Law Risk
Registration Fee High+Low Risk
Registration Fee Mod+Low Risk
Registration Fee Mod Risk
Registratien Fee Low Risk - Ongeing
Plan Approval High Risk

Flan Appraval High+Med Risk

Plan Approval High+Mod+Low Risk
Plan Approval High+Low Risk

Plan Approval Mod+Low Risk

Plan Approval Mod Risk

Plan Approval Low Risk - Gngaing
Transfer Fee High Risk

Transfer Fee High+Mod Risk
Transfer Fee High+Mod+Low Risk
Transfer Fee High+Low Risk
Transfer Fee Mod+Low Risk
Transfer Fee Mod Risk

Transfer Fee Low Risk - Ongoing
Transfer Report High Risk

Transfer Report High+Mod Risk
Transfer Report High+Mod+Low Risk
Transfer Report High+Low Risk
Transfer Report Mod+Low Risk
Transfer Report Mod Risk

Transfer Report Low Risk - Ongoing

P bed - Fee <20 beds
Prescrived Accommadation - Renewal Fee 20 - 40 beds
= ion - Fee 240 beds

Prescrbed Accommodation - Transfer Fee <20 beds
Prescribed Accommodation - Transfer Fee 20 - 40 beds
Prescribed Accommodation - Transfer Fee >40 beds

Prescribed Accommadstion - Transfer Inspection & Report Inspection Report <20

Py bed - Transfer Inspection & Repsrt Report <40

Pressrnbed Accommadation - Transfer Inspection & Repert Inspestion Report =40

Unit of M

Per registration
Per registration
Par registration
Per registration
Per registration
Par registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Par registration
Per registration
Par registration
Par registration
Per registration
Per registration
Par registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per regisiration
Per registration
Per registration
Fer regisiration
Per registration
Par registration
Per registration
Par registration
Per registration
Par ragistration

Par registration

Per registration

Per registration

Per registration

Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
MNen-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Nen-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Nen-Taxable
Men-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Nen-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
MNon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Non-Taxable

MNon-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

69
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340,00
420.00
470.00
30000
370.00
32000
16000
240.00
24000
240.00
240.00
240,00
240.00
240,00
170.00
210.00
235.00
18500
185.00
160.00
180.00
240.00
240,00
240.00
240.00
240,00
240.00
240,00
28000
360.00
480,00
140.00
180.00
240,00

200.00

220 00

240.00

A R I AL AR AR R R AR R R R i PP P

10.00
10.00
10.00
10.00
10.00
10.00
500
5.00
500
5.00
5.00
500
5.00
5.00
500
5.00
5.00
500
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
500
5.00
5.00
500
10,00
1000
250
500
500

2.0%
2.4%
2.1%
2.6%
2.7%
3.1%
2.6%
2.1%
2.1%
2.1%
2.1%
2.1%
2.1%
2.1%
2.9%
2.4%
21%
2.6%
27%
3.1%
26%
2.1%
21%
2.1%
2.1%
2.1%
2.1%
21%
1.8%
2.8%
2.1%
1.8%
2.8%
2.1%

Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutary
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutary
Mon-Statutary
Non-Statutory
Hon-Statutary
MNon-Statutory
Mon-Statutary
Hon-Statutary
Mon-Statutary
Mon-Statutary
Hon-Statutary
Mon-Statutary
Mon-Statutary
Mon-Statutary
Mon-Statutary
Mon-Statutary
Mon-Statutary
Mon-Statutary
Hon-Statutary
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutary
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutary
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutary

Mon-Statutary

MNon-Statutory

Mon-Statutory
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Preseribed Accommedation - Plan Approval =20
Preserbed Accommedation - Plan Approval <40
Preseribed Accommedstion - Plan Approval =40
Caravan Parks Registration Fee =25

Caravan Parks Registration Fee 28 < 50
Carawvan Parks Registration Fee 50 < 100
Caravan Parks Transfer Fee <25

Caravan Parks Transfer Fee 25 < 50

Carawan Parks Transfer Fee 50 < 100

Caravan Transfer Inspection Report

Public Swimming Pool slass 1 large Large fasility =5 paals / features
Publiz Swimming Pool slass 1 Small Small facility =1 <5 pacls { festures

Vaccines

Hepatitis B Vaccines - Adult per dose

Hepatitis B Yaccines - Child per dose

Hepatitis & Vacsines - Adult per dose

Twinrix Vaccines - Adult per dose

Flu Wacsine (Mot at risk Group) per dose

Flu Vaceine (Mot at risk Group= children) per course (2 doses)
Preumovax 23 (Not at risk group) per dose
Diphtheria, tetanus, pertussis (Boostrix) per dose
Chickenpox per dose

Meningococcal ACWY per dose

Immunisation assessment & catch up advice per child
Septic Tank Domestic

Mew Installation and Major Alterations

Minor Alteration

Septic Tank Commercial

Exempt Permit

Amend Permit

Transfer permit

Sand analysis

Copy of existing septic tank system plan

On-site location of existing septic tank system

Unit of M

Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Par registration
Per registration
Per registration
Par registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration

Per registration

Per dose
Per dose
Per dose
Per dose
Per dose
Per dose
Per dose
Per dose
Per dose
Per dose
Per dose

Per application
Far application

Per application
Per application
Per application
Par application
Per application
Par applisation

MNon-Taxable
MNeon-Taxable
MNon-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxabhe
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable
HNon-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable

MNon-Taxable

70

R R AR R A R )

D A IR AR IR R Y]

W o

R A AR ]

25.00
23.00
&0.00
80.00
25.00
25.00
50.00
45.00
65.00
90.00
25.00

440.00
250.00

14835
45.00
280.00

@ e

10.00

2.3%
2.1%
1.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
3.6%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%

0.4%
0.0%
0.0%

Mon-Statutory
Men-Statutery
Men-Statutory
Statutory
Statutery
Statutory
Statutory
Statutary
Statutory
Statutary
Men-Statutery
Mon-Statutory

Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Nen-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutery
Nen-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutery

Statutory
Statutary

Statutory

Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
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Unit of M

Statutory Planning

Use

Class 1: Use only Statutory F
Single Dwelling

= (80 fee units) Par application Mon-Taxable 1.318.10 $ - 0.0% Statutory

Class 2: To develop land for a single dwelling per lot or use and develop land for a
single dwelling par lat or undertake davelapment ancillary to the use of land for a single
dwelling per lot included in the application (sther than & class 7 permit or a permit to
bdivide or lidate land) if the costof i= $10.000 or less
Statutory Fee - (12.5 fee units) Per application Mon-Taxable 190.90

3 - 0.0% Statutory

Class 3: To develop land for a single dwelling per ot or use and develop land for a
single dwelling per lot or undertake development ancillary to the use of land for a single

dwalling per lot included in the application (sther than a class & permit or a permit to

subdivide or land) if the costof is more than

$10,000 but not more than $100,000 Statutory Fee - (42.5 fee units) Per application Men-Taxable 5 620,40

]
]
]
. Tea

Class 4: To develop land for & single dwelling per lot or use and develop land for a

single dwelling per lot or undertake development ancillary to the use of land for a single

dwelling per lot included in the application (sther than & class 8 permit or & permit to
S TBA
S Tea

3 - 0.0% Statutary

subdivide ar licdate land) if the cast of is mare than
$100,000 but not more than $500,000 Statutory Fee - (87 fee units) Per application Nen-Taxable  § 1.288.50

3 - 0.0% Statutary

Class 5: Te develop land for a single dwelling per lot or use and develop land for a
single dwelling per lat or undertake development ancillary o the use of land for a single
dwelling per lot included in the application (other than a class 8 pemit or a permit to
bdivide ar land)if the cost of is mare than
$500,000 but net more than $1,000,000 Statutory F

- (94 fee units) Per applisation Mon-Taxable 3 1.392.10 3 - 0.0% Statutory

Class 8: To develep land for a single dwelling per lot of use and develop land for a
single dwelling per lot or undertake development anclllary to the use of land for a single
dwelling per lat ineluded in the application (sther than a elass 8 permit or a permit to
subdivide or liclate land) if the estimated cost of | it is more than
$1,000,000 but not more than $2,000,000. Statutory Fee

fea units) Par application Non-Taxable % 1.495.80 3 - 0.0% Statutory

7
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Vic Smart Application

Class 7 pplication if the et costaf P is $10,000 or less
Statutory Fee - {13.5 fee units)

Class 8 na ifthe lsost of Is more than
510,000 Statutery Fee - (20 fee units)

Class & VieSmart apglication to subdivide or conselidate land Statutory Fee - (13.5 fee
units)

Class 10: VicSmart application (other than a class 7. class 8 or class 9 permit)
Statutory Fee - (13,5 fee units)

Development (other than a single dwelling)

Class 11: To develop land (other than a class 2, class 3, class 7 or class 8 or a permit
to subdivide or consolidate land) if the estimated cost of developmant is less than
$100,000 Statutory Fee - (77.5 fee units)

Class 12: To develop land (other than & class 4, clase 5, or clazs B or a parmit to
bdivide o lidate land) if the lcost of W is more than
100,000 and net mere than $1,000,000 Statutory Fee - (104.5 fee units)

Class 13: To develop land (other than a class 6 or class B or & permit to subdivide or
consalidate land) if the estimated cost of development is more than $1.000,000 and
net more than $5,000,000 Statutory Fee - (230.5 fee units)

Class 14: To develop land (other than a class 8 or a permit to subdivide or consolidate
land} If the estimated cost of development is more than $5,000.000 and net more than
$15,000,000 Statutory Fee - (587 .5 fee units)

Class 15 Te develop land (sther than a elass 8 of a permit to subdivide or consolidate
land} if the estimated cost of development is more than $15,000,000 and not more
than $50,000,000 Statutery Fee - (1732.5 fee units)

Class 16: To develop land (other than a class 8 or a permit to subdivide or consolidate
land} il the estimated sost of develapment is mere than $50.000,000 Statutery Fee -
(3884 foe units)

Subdivision
Class 17: To subdivide an existing building (other than a class & permit) Statutory Fee -
(88 fee units)

Class 18- To subdivide land into 2 lots (other than a class @ orclass 17 permit)
Statutory Fes - (88 fee units)

Unit of Me:

Per application

Par application

Par application

Per application

Per application

Par application

Per applieation

Per application

Per applieation

Per application

Per application

Per application

Men-Taxable

Men-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

Men-Taxable

Nen-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

Nen-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

Mon-Taxakble

Mon-Taxable

72

3

19090

429 50

198 80

100.90

1.147.80

1.547 .60

34370

&.700.90

2585830

§7.670.10

1.318.10

1.318.10

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

Statutory

Statutary

Statutory

Statutary

Statutory

Statutary

Statutory

Statutory

Statutory

Statutory

Statutory

Statutory
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Class 18: To effect a realignment of a common boundary betwean lots or consolidate 2
or mere lots (other than a class © permit) Statutory Fee - (80 fee units)

Class 20: Subdivide land (other than a class O, class 17, class 18 orclass 10 parmit)
Statutery Fee - (88 fee units per 100 lots created)

Class 21 Applieations to sreate, vary of remeve a restriction within the meaning of the
Subdivision Act 1888. or create of remove a right of way. or create. vary or remove an
easement other than a right of way. or vary or remove a conditien in the nature of an
easement (other than night of way) in a Crown grant Statutory Fee - (88 fee units)
Other

Class 22: A permit net ctherwise pravided for in the regulation Statutery Fee - (80 fee
units)
Single dwelling

Class 1 Amendment: An smendment to 8 permit to change the uze of land allowed by
the permit or allow & new use of land.

Class 2 Amendment: An amendment to a permit (other than a permit to develop land
for a single dwelling per lot or to use and develop land for a single dwelling per lot or to
undertake development ancillary 1o the use of land for a single dwelling per lot) 1o
change the stalerment of what the permit allows o te change any or all of the
sonditions which apply to the permit,

Class 3 Amendment: Ansamendment to & class 2, class 3, class 4, class S orclass 6
permit, if the i costof any iti to be i by the
amandment i= 310 000 or less.

Class 4 Amendment: Anamendment o a class 2, class 3, class 4, class S orclass 6
permit, if the costaf any to be permitted by the
amendmaent is more than §10.000 but not mare than $100,000

Class 5 Amendment: An amendment to & ¢lass 2, class 3, class 4, class S orclass §
permit. if the costof any to be permitted by the
amendment is more than $100,000 but not maore than $500,000

Class 6 Amendment: An amendment to & class 2, class 3, class 4, class 5 or class §
parmit, if the 1 cast af any addit 1o ke permittad by the
amendment is more than $500.000.

Unit of M

Per application

Per application

Par application

Per application

Per application

Par application

Per application

Per application

Per application

Par application

Mon-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

Men-Taxable

Men-Taxable

Men-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

MNon-Taxable

Non-Taxable

73

3 1.318.10

18.10 per 100 lots creai

3 1.318.10

3 1.318.10

5 1.318.10

5 131810

3 100.00

3 B20.40

3 1.288.50

3 138210

0.0%

0.0%

Statutory

Statutery

Statutary

Statutory

Statutory

Statutory

Statutary

Statutory

Statutory

Statutory
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VicSmart

Class ¥ Amendment: Anamendment to 8 permit that is the subject of a VieSmart
, ifthe cost of the tis $10,000 or less.

Class 8 Amendment: An amendment to a permit that is the subject of a VicSmart
application, if the estimated cost of tha additional development i= more than 310,000,

Class & Amendment: An amendment te a elass © permit (1o subdivide or conselidate
land)

Class 10 Amendment; An amendmentte a ¢lass 10 permit
Development (other than a single dwelling)

Class 11 Amendment: An amendmeantto s class 11 class 12, class 13, class 14, class
15 or class 16 permit, if the estimated cost of any additional development to be
permitted by the amendment is $100.000 or less.

Class 12 Amendment: Anamendment to a class 11. class 12, class 13, class 14, class
15 or class 16 parmit, if the estimated cost of any additional devalopment to ba
permitted by the amendment is more than $100,000 but not more than 51,000,000,

Class 13 Amendment: Anamendmentto a class 11. class 12, class 13, class 14, class
15 or class 16 parmit, if the estimated cost of any additional devalopment to be
permitted by the amendment is more than $1,000.000

Subdivision

Class 14 Amendment: An amendment ta a class 17 permit (to subdivide an existing
Building).

Class 15 Amendment An amendment to & class 18 permit (to subdivide land into 2
Iots),

Class 18 Amendment: An amendmentto a class 18 permit jto effect a realignment of &
common boundary betwaen lots or cansoldate 2 or mare lots othar than a class @
permit)

Class 17 Amendment: An amendment to & class 20 permit {Subdivide land (other than
aclass 0. class 17, class 18 or class 10 permit),

Unit of M

Par applicstion

Per application

Per application

Far applisation

Per applicstion

Per application

Per application

Per application

Par application

Per application

Par applicstion

Mon-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

Men-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

Mon-Taxakle

Mon-Taxable

Mon-Taxakble

Mon-Taxable

74

2 21 Fee |
=
s 1eo.00 ENNNTEARNEN
s az050 [ TBAL
s 1eaen [ TEA
I
s 1eoeo [ TEA
3 1.147 80 -
3 1.547.60 [ TEATT
3 ERIERCE
]
3 1.318.10
3 1.318.10 NTEARENN
s 121810 TBAN
18.10 par 100 Iots cresi) TBA

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

of Fee

Statutory

Statutery

Statutory

Statutary

Statutory

Statutory

Statutory

Statutory

Statutory

Statutory

Statutory

Item 12.1

Attachment 1

Page 130



25 MAY 2021

Unit of Me:

Class 18 Amendment: An amendment to & ¢lass 21 permit (applications to create, vary

or remove a restriction within the meaning of the Subdivision Azt 1988; or create or

remave a right of way; or create, vary or remove an easement ather than a right of

wary; OF vary of remove & condition in the nature of an easement other than right of way

ina Grown grant) Par application Non-Taxable 3 131810 5 - 0.0% Statutary

Other

Class 18 Amendment: An amendment to a class 22 permil

permit not otherwise

provided for in the regulation). Per application Men-Taxable  § 1.318.10 $ - 0.0% Statutory
Reg 10: Far bined parmit apphcal Statutery Fee - Sum of the highest of

the fees which would have applied if separate applications were made and 50% of WVariathe Caleulation -

each of the other fees which would have applied if separate applications were made  Per application Nen-Taxable  referto Regulation $ - 0.0% Statutory
Regul 12: Amend an application for a permit or an application for an amendment

to a permit Statutory Fee - a) Under section 5TA(3)(a) of the Act the fee to amend an
application for a permit after notice is given is 40% of the application fee for that class.
of permit set outin the Table at regulstion 8: b) Under section 57A(3)(8) of the Actthe
fee to amend an application to amend a permit sfter notice is given iz 40% of the
application fee for that class of permit set out in the Table at regulstion 11 and any
additional fee under ¢} below; ¢} If an application to amend an ization for a permit
aramend an application 1o amend a permit has the effect of changing the class of that
permitlo a new class, having a higher application fee set out in the Table to regulation

9. the applicant must pay an addiicnal fee being the difference the original class of Wariable Caleulation -

application and the amended class of permit Per application Men-Taxable  mfer to Regulation 3 - 0.0% Statutory
Regul 13:Fora bined lication to amend permit Statutory Fee - Sum of the.

highest of the fees which weuld have applied if separate applications were made and

50% of each of the other fees which would have applied if separate applications were ‘ariable Caloulation -

rmade Far application Men-Taxable  referto Regulation 5 - 0.0% Statutory

Regulation 14: For a combined permit and planning scheme amendment Statutory Fee
- Under section B8A(4){a) of the Act: The sum of the highest of the fees which would

have applied if s2parate applications were made and 50% of each of the other fees Variable Calculation -

which would have applied if separate applications were made Par application Non-Taxable  refer to Regulation s - 0.0% Statutory

Regul 15:Fora i of ! Par application MNen-Taxzable % 32580 -4 - 0.0% Statutary

Regulation 18: For an agreement o a proposal to amend or end an agreement under

section 173 of the Act Per applization Mon-Taxable % 650.00 3 - 0.0% Statutory
75
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Regulation 18: Where a planning scheme specifies that a matter must be dene to the
safisfaction of a responsible autherity, Minister, public authority or municipal council
i Fees in d with the Subdivision {Fee) R ions 2016

Regulation 8: For ceriification of a plan of subdivision
Regulation 7: Alteration of plan under section 10(2) of the Act
Regulation 8: Amendment of certified plan under section 11(1) of the Act

Regulation 9: Checking of engineering plans

10: Er ing plan by council

Regulation 11: Supervision of warks.

Fublie apen space contribution Statutory Fee - Caleulated in accardance with the
schedule to Clause 53.01 of the Manningham Flanning Scheme

Subdivision O ‘Works Bond

compliance prior to works being completed)

{to enable issuing & statement of

Landseape Bond Refundable Charge per dwelling - senditien of glanning permit
Application fee to remove or destray or lop 2 or more trees

Applization fee to amend a permit to remove or destroy or lop 2 or more frees.

Secondary Consent Application Fee Yic Smart applications or a single dwelling with an
additional devalopment cost under $10.000

Sesondary Consent Apglication Fee Single dwelling with an additienal develepment
eost under §100 000

Secondary Consent Application Fee All sther applications.
Extension of Time Application Fea All spplicstions

Pre Application Advice Request

Statutory Planning Property Enguiries Written confirmation of planning permit
requirements

Digital copy of Flanning Permit and plans per

Unit of M

Per application
Per application

Per application
Per application

Per application

Far application

Far application

Caloulated in agsordance with t

150% of the cost of outstanding

Charge per dwelling - condition
Per application

Par application

\icSmart applications or a singl

Single dwelling with an addition

All other applications

All applications

Per request

\Written confirmation of
planning permit requirements

per application

Mon-Taxable

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Taxable

Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxahble
Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

76

$ 32580
3 174.80
5 11110

3 140.70

Wariable Caleulstion -
refer to Regulation

Wariable Caleulation -
refer to Regulation

Wariable Calsulation -
refer to Regulation

Wariable Calsulation -
refer to Scheme

Warlable Caloulation

3 1.812.00
s 550.00

3 65000

3 205.00

5 54300

3 88500

s 67200

L 41000

3 200.00

£l 208.00

&00

1300

1000

8.00

3.00

0.0%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

1.5%
0.0%

Statutary

Statulory
Statutary
Statulory

Statutory

Statutary

Statutary

Statutary

Non-Statutary

Mon-Statutary

Statutory

Stat

ary

Mon-Statutory

Non-Statutary

Non-Statutory

Non-Statutory

Non-Statutory

Mon-Statutory

Non-Statutory
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Advertising of a Planning Application - Other Up to 10 letters and 2 signs
Advertising of a Planning Application - Letters anly Up to 10 letters.
Advertising of a Planning Application - Additional letiers per latter

Advertising of a Planning Application - Additional sign/s per sign

5173 Ag s - Lodg of ag by Council at Titles Office by & Legal
Practitioner
5173 Ag s - f icn of by Council (net i

at Titles Office - requires additional fee to be added)

5173 Agreements - Review of an externally prepared agreement (not including
Ilodgement fee at Titles Office - requires additional fee to be added)

Title Search Title Search

Phetes opying Al/per sheet

Photocapying A3/per sheet

Phetes opying Ad/per sheet

Community event signage

File retrieval & scanning from Grace

Men refundable Landseape Band Administrative fee
Endarsement of CMP using Council's Template

Condition 1 Flan assessment First condition 1 assessment free and for every other

El ndition 1 plan submi

Building Services
Building Surveying

Digital copy of Bullding Permit and Approved Plans.

Report and Cansent Applications (Part 4 Dispensation Fee)

Property Information 325(1). (2 & (3)
Lad, Fee (residential and 1)

Section 204 certificates

Swimming pool registration fee

Lodgement of pool certificate fee

Lodgement of non-compliant pool certificate fee
Reguestte finalise Lapsed Parmils (miner werks )

Requestta finalise Lapsed Permits

Unit of M

Upto 10 letters and 2 signs
Upte 10 letters.

per latter

per sign

Per Agreement

Per Agreement

Per Agreement
Title Search
Par sheat

Per sheet

Par sheat

Per application
Per file

Par application
Per application

First condition 1 assessment fre

* Per spplisation of each
building permit or staged permit
for cammeraial and residential
* Per application for single
dwelling permits and
associated documents

Per application
Per application
Per application
Per application
Per application
Par application
Per application
Par application
Per application

Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Non-Taxable
HNon-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Tarable

Taxable

77

R R A

R A A ISR AR Y}

550.00

1,100.00

1.000.00
75.19
16.48

3.20
185
F0.00
87.55
11000
200.00

150.00

W o B g B B e

L R R R A R R AR}

9.00
300
0.50

50.00

50.00

20.00
131
022
005
1.10
1.35

10.00
5.00

10.00

203.00

434
687

1.6%
1.5%
5.3%

2.0%
1.7%
1.3%
0.0%
3.0%
1.6%
1.5%
0.1%
2.5%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
1.0%
1.5%

Mon-Statutary
Mon-Statutary
Mon-Statutary

Non-Statutory

Non-Statutary

Mon-Statutory

Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
MNon-Statutory
Non-Statutory
MNon-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutary
MNon-Statutory
Non-Statutory

Mon-Statutory

Non-statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutary
Statutory

Nen-statutary

MNon-statutory
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Economic & Community Wellbeing
Public Hails

Doncaster Playhouse Bond

Doncaster Playhouse Hire Per performance (5 hours)
Doncaster Playhouse Rehearsal per hour

Donzaster Playhouse Bump in/Bump out

Manningham Art Studios Bond

Manningham Art Studios Studic 1 Casual Commercial
Manningham aArt Studios Studie 1 Regular Commercial
Manningham Ant Studios Studic 1 Casual Community
Manningham Art Studios Studio 1 Regular Commurity
Manningham art Studios Studic 2 Casual Commarcial
Manningham Art Studios Studic 2 Regular Commerial
Manninghsm Art Studios Studic 2 Casual Community
Manningharm Art Studios Studio 2 Regular Community
Manningham Art Studios Studie 3 Casual Commercial
Manningham Art Studios Studic 3 Regulsr Commercisl
Manningharm Art Studios Studio 3 Casual Community
Manningham Art Studios Studie 3 Regular Community
Manningham Art Studios Studio 4 Reguisr Commereisl
Manningham Art Studios Studie 4 Regular Cammunity
Manningham Art Studios Studic 5 Regulsr Commercisl
Manningham Art Studios Studic 5 Regular Community
Manningham Art Studios Studic 8 Regular Cemmeraial
Manningham Art Studios Studic 8 Regular Community
Manningham Art Gallery Gallery 1 - Community hire fee
Manningharm A Gallery Gallery 2 - Cemmunity hire fea
Manningham Art Gallery Gallery 1 - Commercial hire fee
Manningham Art Gallery Gallery 2 - Commercial hire fee
Manningham Art Gallery Both Galleries - Community hire fee
Manningham Art Sallery Both Galleries - Commercial hire fee
AllHallz Insurance - Alcohol

AllHalls Insurance - No Alcohel

AllHalls Insurance - Regular Hire

ME* (Bulleen, Warrandyte and Denvale Reams) Community Hire
ME? (Bulleen, Warrandyte and Donvale Rooms) Commersial Hire
MGC? (Warrandyte and Donvale Rooms) Community Hire
ME? (Warrandyte and Donvale Rooms) Commercial Hire
MGC? (Doncaster, Templestows Room) Community Hire

MG (D . Templ Room) G ial Hire

Unit of M

per hire

Per performance
Per hour

Per avent

per hire

Per hour

Par hour

Per hour

Per hour

Par hour

Per hour

Per hour

Per hour

Per hour

Per hour

Per hour

Per hour

Par hour

Par hour

Per hour

Pear hour

Paer hour

Per hour
minimum 4 weeks
minimum 4 weeks
minimum 4 weeks
minimum 4 weeks
minimum 4 weeks
minimum 4 weeks
Per hire

Per hire

Per hour

Par hour

Per hour

Per hour

Per hour

Per hour

Per hour

Non-Taxable

Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

Non-Taxable

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxabla
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

78

B I R R B B R R R R AR R R R R ]

51500
464.53
92.70
9270
106.61
12154
107 64
84.08
I
4532
27 30
23.18
1391
27.30
20.60
1391
10.30
27.30
13.91
20.60
10.30
52.53
27.30
1.385.35
1.585.35
1.500.08
1.500.08
213210
2.451.92
58.74
3914
24.72
21.00
26.00
26.00
31.00
26.00
31.00

WO B B W G n dn aa dn A W W D U 1 A D A ) G W W B W G

&00
747
230
230
240
246
236
133
124
088
0850
043
030
050
0.40
030
020
070
10
0.40
4.70
047
070
2186
2185
2403
2493
3200
37.09
0.98
066
028

1.0%
1.6%
2.5%
2.5%
2.2%
2.0%
2.2%
1.6%
1.6%
1.5%
1.8%
1.8%
2.1%
1.9%
1.0%
2.1%
1.9%
2.8%
58.2%
1.0%
45.6%
0.0%
2.6%
1.8%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.5%
1.5%
1.8%
1.7%
1.1%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
MNon-Statutony
Non-Statutory
MNon-Statutony
Non-Statutory
Man-Statutory
Mon-Statutery
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Men-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Men-Statutery
Men-Statutery
Non-Statutory
Men-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
Nen-Statutory
Men-Statutory
Men-Statutory
Men-Statutery
Nen-Statutery
Men-Statutory
Nen-Statutery
Nen-Statutery
Nen-Statutery
Nen-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
MNon-Statutory
Man-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Nen-Statutery
Man-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Man-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
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Descriptics

M3 (D ter and T Room) ity Hire
ME? (D and Templ Room) Hire
MC? Insurance

Ajani Community Hall Bond Casual Hire

Ajani Community Hall Bond Regular Hire

Ajani Community Hall Casusl Hire Commercial

Ajani Community Hall Casual Hire Community/Private
Afanl Community Hall Casual setup charge - max 2 hrs

Ajani Community Hall Regular Hire Commercial

Ajani Community Hall Regular Hire Community

Ajani Community Hall Community casual 12k Hire

Ajani Centre Bond Casual Hire

Ajani Centre Bend Regular Hire

Ajani Centre Community casusal 12hr Hire

Ajani Centre Casual Hire Commercial

Ajani Centre Casual Hire Community/Private

Ajani Centre Casual setup charge - max 2 hrs

Ajani Centre Regular Hire Gommersial

Ajani Centre Regular Hire Cammunity

Currawong Bush Park {Conference Centre) Conference Room Casusl Hire
Commercial

Currawong Bush Park (Conference Centre) Conference Room Casual Hire
CommunityPrivate

Currawong Bush Park (Conference Centre) Rooms 1 & 2 - casual hire commercial

Currawong Bush Park (Conference Centre) Rooms 1 & 2 - casual hire cammunity
Currawong Bush Park {Conference Centre) Conference room with extra rooms -
commercial

Currawong Bush Park (Conference Centre) Conference room with extra rooms -
community

Currawong Bush Park (Ervirenment Centre) Camping fee per persen

Currawong Bush Park (Ervironment Centre} Casual Hire Commercial

Currawang Bush Park (Ervirenment Centre) Casual Hire Community/Private
Keoonung Room Casusl Hire community

East Doncaster HalllKoonarra Hall/Wonga Park HalliHeimat Centre (individual

resms VDemeney Resreatien Centre (Resms 4 & S Templestows Memerial Hall and
Senior Citizens Centres Bond Casual Hire

Per hour

Per heur

Per hire

Per hire

Paer hire

Per hour

Per hour

Par hour

Per hour

Par hour

Per 12 hour hire
Per hire

Par hire

Per 12 hour hire
Per hour

Par hour

Per hour

Per hour

Par hour

Per hour

Par hour

Per hour

Per hour

Per hour

Per hour

Per night

Per hour

Par hour
Par hour

Par hire

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Non-Taxable
HNon-Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable
Taxable

Non-Taxable

79

B R R N R IR A A AR ]

3

5

5

R I AR )

5

21.00
42.00
25.00
500.00
300.00
145.00
81.00
45.00
40.00
&1.00
F00.00
500.00
300,00
1.020.00
182.00
11200
68.00
49.00
56,00

42.00

31.00

31.00

2100

52 00

4z2.00

17.00

4z2.00

26.00
Qg.00

500.00

W A i e e B B B W B e

@ o e A

200
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
10.00

15.00
3.00
200
2.00
1.00
1.00

1.00
0.50
1.00
1.00
2.00

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
2.1%
1.2%
2.2%
2.5%
3.2%
1.4%
0.0%
0.0%
1.5%
1.8%
1.8%
2.8%
2.0%
2.8%

2.4%
2.9%
2.4%
3.8%
2.0%

0.0%

Mon-Statutory
Nen-Statutery
Men-Statutory
Men-Statutory
Men-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
Men-Statutory
Nen-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
Nen-Statutery
Nen-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
MNen-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
MNon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory

Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
MNon-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Men-Statutery
Men-Statutery

Nen-Statutory
Non-Statutory

Mon-Statutory
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East Doncaster HallKeenarra Hall/Wenga Park HallHaimat Cantre {ndividual
roomsyDomeney Recreation Centre (Roams 4 & B Templestows Memarial Hall and
Senior Citizens Centres Bond Regular Hire

East Doncaster HalllKoonarra H 1ga Park Cantre |
roomsyDoemeney Recreation Centre (Reoms 4 & Bl Templestowes Memarial Hall and
Seniar Citizens Centres Casual Hire Commercial

East Doncaster HallKoonarra Hall/Wonga Park HallHeimat Centre {individual
rooms iDemeney Recreation Centre (Rooms 4 & SN Templestowe Memorial Hall and
Seniar Citizens Centres Casual Hire Community/Private

East Doncaster HallKoonarra ga Park Centre
rooms)iBemeney Resreation Centre (Rooms 4 & SiTemplestowe Memarial Hall and
Senior Citizens Centres Casual setup charge - max 2 hrs

East Doncaster Hall/Koonarmra Hall\Wongs Park Hall/Heimat Centre {individual
rooms)Domeney Recreation Centre (Rooms 4 & Sy Templestowe Memaorial Hall and
Senior Citizens Centres Regular Hire Commercial

East Doncaster Hall/Koonarra HallWenga Park HallHeimat Centre {individusl
roomsyDomeney Retreation Centre (Rooms 4 & Sy Templestowe Memarial Hall and
Senior Cilizens Centres Regular Hire Community

East Doncaster HalllKoonarmra na Park Centre |
rooms)iDomeney Recreation Centrs (Rooms 4 & SWTemplestows Memerial Hall and
Senior Citizens Centres Community casual 12hr Hire

{Individual Smaller Rooms ) Senior Citizens Cantres, Domenay Racreation Centre and
Templestowe Memorial Supper Room Bond CasusliRegular Hire

{Individual Smaller Reoms) Senior Citizens Centres, Domeney Recreation Centre and
Templestowe Memorial Supper Room Casual Hire Commers ialiPrivate

(Individual Smaller Rooms ) Senior Citizens Cantres, Domeney Recreation Centre and
Templestowe Memaorial Supper Ream Casual Hire Community

(Individual Smaller Reems ) Senior Citizens Centres, Domeney Recreation Centre and
Templestowe Memorial Supper Room Regular Hire Commersial

Unit of Me:

Per hire

Per hour

Par hour

Per heur

Per hour

Per hour

Pear 12 hour hira

Per hire

Per hour

Per hour

Per hour

Non-Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Non-Taxable

80

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

300.00

101.00

64.00

43.00

21.00

27.00

546.00

100.00

47.00

32.00

27.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

0.0%

3.7%

0.0%

Non-Statutery

Mon-Statutery

Mon-Statutery

Nen-Statutery

Neon-Statutery

Non-Statutery

Nen-Statutery

Mon-Statutery

Non-Statutory

Mon-Statutery

Mon-Statutory
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(Individual Smaller Reems) Senior Citizens Centres, Domeney Reereation Centre anel

Templestows Memorial Supper Room Regular Hire Community

The Pines Learning Cantre (Function Room) Bond Casual Hire

The Pines Learning Centre (Function Rooem) Bend Regular Hire

The Pines Learning Centre {Function Room) Casual Hire Commercial
The Pines Learning Centre (Function Room) Casual Hire Community/Private
The Pines Learning Centre {Function Room) Regular Hire Commercial
The Pines Learning Centre {Function Room) Regular Hire Community
(Smaller Rooms) Pines Leamning Centre Bond CasualRegular Hire
(Smaller Rooms) Pines Leaming Centre Casual Hire Commercial
(Smaller Rooms) Pines Leaming Centre Casual Hire Community/Private
(Smaller Rooms) Pines Leaming Centre Regular Hire Commersial
(Smaller Rooms) Pines Leaming Centre Regular Hire Community

Bus Remntal

Bond

Community anly

Community only

Community enly

Buildings and Room Hire - Weekdays

Manningham Functicn Centre Council Chambers Mon - Fri per hour
Manningham Function Centre Heide Room Men - Fri per haur
Manningham Function Centre Room 1 Maon - Fri 8,00am to 5.00pm per hour
Manningham Functicn Centre Room 1 Casual Hire Community

Men - Thurs 6.00am to 11.00pm per hour

Fri=8 00am te 5 00pm per hour (Friday times updated)

Manningham Function Centre Room 2 Men - Fri 6,00am to 5.00pm per hour

Manningham Function Centre Room 2 Casual Hire Community
Man - Thurs 8.00am te 11.00pm per haur
Fri-6.00am to 5 00pm per hour (Friday times updated)

Manningham Function Centre Room 3 Men - Fri 6,00am to 5.00pm per hour

Manningham Function Centre Room 3 Casual Hire Community
Man - Thurs 8.00am te 11.00pm per haur
Fri-6.00am to 5 00pm per hour (Friday times updated)

Unit of M

Per hour

Per hire

Paer hire

Per hour
FPar hour
Per heur
Per hour
Per hire

Per hour
Per hour
Per hour
Per hour

Per hire

Half day

Full day

Par waekend
Per hour

Par hour

Per hour

Per hour

Per hour

Per hour

Par hour

Per hour

Taxable

MNon-Taxable
Nan-Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Non-Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Non-Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

a1

3

22.00

500.00
300,00
102.00
112.00
40.00
36.00
100.00
54.00
48.00
40.00
20.00

500.00
101.00
18z.00
348,00

104.00
£8.00
182.00

160.00

15000

“

B B g B B

“w oo

@

3.00
200
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00

1.00
1.00

2.00
3.00
800
200
1.00
3.00

109.00

3.00

98 00

2.00

&0.00

0.0%
0.0%
1.8%
1.8%
2.0%
2.8%
0.0%
1.0%
2.1%
2.5%
3.4%

0.0%
2.0%
1.8%
1.7%

1.8%

1.1%
1.6%

1.8%

Non-Statutory

Men-Statutory
Nen-Statutory
Men-Statutory
Men-Statutory
Nen-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
Men-Statutory
Nen-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Nen-Statutery

MNon-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
MNen-Statutery
MNon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Non-Statutory

Mon-Statutery

Non-Statutory

Mon-Statutory

Mon-Statutory

Non-Statutory
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Descriptics

Manningham Functicn Centre Reoms 1 and 2 Mon - Thur 5.00pm to 12.00am par hour

Manningham Function Centre Rooms 1 and 2 Casual Hire Community
Man - Thurs 8.00am te 11,00pm per haur
Fri-6.00am to 5 .00pm per hour (Friday times updated)

Manningham Function Centre Rooms 2 and 3 Casual Hire Commercial
Man = Thurs 6.00am to 11,00pm per hour
Fri -6 00am te 5 00pm per hour (Friday times updated)

Manningham Function Centre Rooms 2 and 3 Casual Hire Community
Mon - Thurs 6.00am to 11.00pm per hour
Fri-6.00am to 5.00pm per haur (Friday times updated)

Manningham Function Centre Rooms 1. 2 and 3 Mon- Thur 5.00pm to 12.00am paer

haur

Manningham Functien Centre Rooms 1. 2 and 3 Casual Hire Community
Mon - Thurs 6.00am to 11,00pm per hour

Fri- 6.00am to 5.00pm per hour (Friday imes updated)

Manningham Function Centre Friday - 5pm - 12.00am

Manninghem Function Centre

Manningham Function Centre

Aged and Disabifity Support Services

Food Services

Meals on Wheels 3 eourse meals (delivered) - Packaged Clients FULL COST
Meals on Wheels 3 course meals (Delivered direct by Food Services Manningham

City Couneil)
Meals on Wheals
Meaals on Wheels
Meals on Wheals
General Home Care
General Home Care
Genetal Hama Care
General Home Care
Persenal Care Service
Perscnal Care Service
Perscnal Care Service
Respite Care Servi

Respite Care Service
Respite Cars Service
Assisted Transport - One Return Trip

Per heur

Per hour

Per hour

Per hour

Per hour

Per hour
Per hour
Saturday rate

Saturday rate

Par meal

Per meal

Far meal (Low rate)
Per meal (Low rate)
Far meal (Low rate)
Per hour (Low rate)
Per hour (Low rate}
Par heur (Lew rate)
Per hour (Low rate)
Per hour (Low rate)
Per hour (Low rate)
Per hour (Low rate}
Par heur (Lew rate)
Per hour (Low rate)
Per hour (Low rate)
Per day

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Mon-Taxable
HNon-Taxable
Non-Taxable
HNon-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
HNon-Taxable

82

w o e

A R R e A ]

27700

4z27.00

3.700.00
4.635.00
4.635.00

3700

11.00
11.00
11.00
8.30
8.30
830
8.30
8.50
&.50
8.50
5.30
5.30
5.30
@.50

w o

@

"o g

@O B R A A B

500

169.00

185 00

111.00

7.00

260.00
1.300.00
365.00
365.00

0.20
020
0.20
010
010
0.10
010
010
0.10
010

1.8%

1.8%

35.1%
7.0%
T.0%

1.8%
1.8%
1.8%

2.4%
2.4%
2.4%
1.5%
1.5%
1.5%
1.9%
1.8%
1.8%
1.5%

Nen-Statutery

MNon-Statutory

Nen-Statutery

Man-Statutory

Mon-Statutery

Non-Statutery
Nen-Statutery
Non-Statutery
Non-Statutery

Non-Statutory

Mon-Statutory
Nen-Statutery
Non-Statutory
Nen-Statutery
Nen-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
MNen-Statutery
Non-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Nen-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
MNen-Statutery
Non-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
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Planned Activity Groups - High
Social Support Fee depends on nature of activity
Sacial Support Fee depends on nature of activity
Sosial Support Fee depends on nature of astivity
Sealal Suppoert Fee depends on nature of astivity
Sacial Support Fee depends on nature of activity

City Amenity

Council Sports Fields

Spart Fields - Winter Hire Grade 1 Seasanal Charge

Sport Fields - Winter Hire Grade 2 Seasonal Charge

Sport Fields - Winter Hire Grade 3 Seasonal Charge

Sport Fields - Winter Hire Grade 4 Seasonal Charge

Sport Fields - Vinter Hire Level 1 Pavilion Seasenal Charge

Sport Fields - Winter Hire Level 1 Pavilion Seasonal sub let Levy
Sport Fields - Winter Hire Level 2 Pavilion Seasonal Charge

Sport Fields - VWinter Hire Level 3 Pavilion Seasenal Charge

Sport Fields - Winter Hire Casual Ground Charge Commerzial Use
Spaort Fields - Winter Hire Casual Ground Charge Community Use
Sport Fields - Winter Hire Casual Greund Charge Finals with gate takings

Sport Fields - Winter Hire Casual Ground Charge

Sport Fields - Winter Hirs Casual Ground Charge Community use Turf wicketpreparstion

Spart Flelds - Winter Hire Casual Greund Charge Finals use Tusf wickel preparation
Spart Fields - Winter Hire Casual Pavilion Charge Commercial Use
Sport Fields - Winter Hire Casual Pavilion Charge Community Use

Sport Fields - Winter Hire Casual Pavilion Charge School Use

Reischieks Reserve Athletic Track Senler Scheels (Lecal) - {Includes pavilien cleaningeharge )

Reischieks Reserve Athlefic Track Junior Schaols (Local} - (Includes pavilion cleaningcharge)

Reischisks Reserve Athletic Track Others - (Includes pavilion cleaning charge)

Unit of

Per activity
Per activity
Per activity
Per Activity
Per activity

Seasonal
Seasonal
Seasonal
Seasonal
Seasonal
Seasonsl
Seasonal
Seasonal
Perrequest
Far reguast

Perreguest

Perrequest

Parrequest

Farrequest

Perrequest

Perrequest

Ferrequest

Par requast

Perrequest

Perrequest

a3

MNon-Taxable
MNon-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
MNon-Taxable

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Tarable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

R I A Y

R R R I A

5.00
8.00
.80

W ogn A

17.00

2.840.00
2.240.00
958.50
949,85
85310
4,200.50
528.90
355.00
441.20
220,70
441,20

W A G e e e e

220,70

14710

147,10

367.80

105.60

150,34

47510

302.40

620,40

010
010
0.20
12.00
0.30

43.00
34.00
14.50
1515
12.00
64.50
810
6.10
6.20
4.30
6.80

4.30

2.00

620

a.60

2.0%
1.7%
2.6%

1.8%

1.5%
1.6%
1.8%
1.5%
1.5%
1.6%
1.7%
1.5%
1.8%

1.8%

2.0%

1.7%

Hen-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory

Hon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Hon-Statutory
Hon-Statutory
Non-Statutory
MHon-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
MHon-Statutory
Non-Statutory

Hon-Statutory

Non-Statutory

Hen-Statutery

Mon-Statutory

Mon-Statutory

MHon-Statutory

Hon-Statutory

Mon-Statutory

Mon-Statutory

Item 12.1

Attachment 1

Page 139



25 MAY 2021

Raischieks Reserve Athletic Track Camivals - (Includes pavilion cleaning charge )
Reischieks Reserve Athletic Track Training per hour (Local}

Reischieks Reserve Athletic Track Training per hour (Dutside)

Reischieks Reserve Pavilion Hire of Pavilion

Sports Fields - Summer Grade 1 Seasonal Charge

Sports Flelds - Summer Grade 2 Seasonal Charge

Sports Fields - Summer Grade 3 Seasonal Charge

Sports Fields - Summer Grade 4 Seasonal Charge

Sports Fields - Summer Level 1 Pavilion Seasonal Charge

Sports Fields - Summer Level 1 Pavilion Seasonal sub let Levy

Sports Fields - Summer Level 2 Pavilion Seasonal Charge

Sports Fields - Summer Level 3 Pavilion Seasonal Charge

Sports Fields - Summer Casual Ground Charge Commercial Use

Sports Fields - Summer Casual Ground Charge Community Use

Sports Fields - Summer Casual Ground Charge Finals with gate takings
Sports Fields - Summer Casual Ground Charge Commenrcial use Turf wicket
preparation

Sports Fields - Summer Casual Ground Charge Community use Turf wicket
preparation

Sports Fields - Summer Casual Ground Charge Finals use Turf wicket preparation
Sports Fields - Summer Casusl Pavilion Charge Commercial Use
Sports Fields - Summer Casusl Pavilion Chargs Community Use

Sports Fields - Summer Casual Pavilion Charge Sehool Use

Sports Fields - Summer Donvale #1 Seasonal Turf wicket eharge

Sports Fields - Summer Koonung Res Seasonal Turf wicket charge
Sports Fields - Summar Schramms #1 Seasanal Turf wiskel charge
Sports Fields - Summer Zerbes Seasonal Turf wicket charge

Sports Fields - Summer Donvale #2 Seasonal Turf wicketcharge
Sports Fields - Summer Schramms #2 Seasonal Turf wicket charge
Andersen Park Synthetic Pitch Casual Use Local Sporting Club per hour
Andersen Park Synthetic Pitch Casual Use Local School per hour
Anderson Park Synthetic Pitch Casual Commercial Use per hour
Miscellaneous Works Permit

Reserve Crossing Depesit Minimum

Reserve Crossing Deposit Maximum

Unit of M

Par request
Per hour
Per hour
Per request
Seasonal
Seasonal
Seasonal
Seasonal
Seasonal
Seasonal
Seasonal
Seasonal
Per request
Ferrequest
Par request

Per request

Per request

Far request
Par request
Far request
Par request
Seasonal
Seazonal
Seasonal
Seasonal
Seazonal
Seasonal
Per request
Par request
Per request

Per request

Per request

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxabla

Taxable

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxabla
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

HNon-Taxable
Non-Taxable

84

B I R A Y

@

R R R R R R R R

© @

Tas A0
B85.55
93.80

To8.50

2.840.00
2.240.00

956.50

94085

85310

4.,280.50

528.90

45580

441.21

22060

441 21

22066

147.07

147.07
30083
19554
15833

427207

4.974.09

5.366.00

416540

3.207.80

2.087.00

44.10
44.10
101.10

37.30
37.30

T A R A A R "

R A AR R R R

11.80
145
220

12.50

43.00

34.00

14.50

15.15

12.80

4.50
810
610
679
3.34
679

283

293
617
346
287
G403
7481
&1.00
&2.80
5020
45.00
070
070
290

080
080

1.5%
2.2%
2.3%
1.6%
1.5%
1.5%
1.5%
1.6%
1.5%
1.5%
1.5%
1.7%
1.5%
1.5%
1.5%

2.0%

2.0%
1.6%
1.8%
1.7%
1.5%
1.5%
1.5%
1.5%
1.5%
1.5%
1.6%
1.8%
1.5%

1.6%
1.6%

MNen-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
MNon-Statutory
Man-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutery
Man-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Maon-Statutory
MNon-Statutony
Nan-Statutory

Non-Statutory

Non-Statutory

Non-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Nen-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
Nen-Statutory
Nen-Statutery
Nen-Statutory
Nen-Statutery
Mon-Statutory
Men-Statutory
Men-Statutory

Men-Statutery
Nen-Statutery
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Waste
Residential Service

Unit of M

Waste Service Charge B0 litre Garbage . 240 litre Recycle and 240 litre Garden Waste  Annusal

Upsize te 120 litre Garbage 120 litre Garbage
Upsize to 360 litre Recyele 360 lire Recycle
Additional Garbage 80 litre

Additional Garbage 120 litre

Additional Recycle 240 litre

Additional Recyele 380 litre

Additional Garden Waste 120 Iitre

Additional Garden Waste 240 litre

Domestic Change Bin Fee for change to waste service
Special Accommodation

Waste'V'S Waste Donvale RV

Waste'/| Waste Doncaster RV

WasteSB Waste Brooklea

WasteSA Waste Alexandra Gard

WasteWA Waste Applewsood

Waste'VR Waste Roseville RV

WasteVP Waste Pinetres RW

WasteVT Waste Templestowe RV

WasteSG Waste Greenslopes

WasteRM Waste Templestowe Manor
Waste2MAL Waste 2 Maleelm Crescent Doncaster
Waste28MIT Waste 28-30 Mitsham Road Donvale
Waste 1IBELL Waste 1 Bellevue Avenue Doncaster East
WasteSBCLAY Waste 8 Clay Drive Doncaster
Waste4BBLK Waste 46 Blackburn Road

Garden Waste Recycle Centre

Chipping and ing fees (Mar Resid ) Per Cubic Metre

Chipping and mulehing fees (Nan Manningham Residents / Cthers) Per Cuble Metre

Chipping and mulshing fees for Frant End Leader loading (Manningham Residents)

Perload

Chipping and mulching fees for Frent End Leader loading (Non Manningham

Residents / Others) Per load

Annual
Annusal
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Par request

Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual

Per auble metre

Per cubic metre

Perload

Perload

MNon-Taxable
Non-Taxable
MNon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
MNon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
MNon-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Mon-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
HNon-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
HNon-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

a5

R R IR AR LR R R R ]

A R IR ]

263.50
8050
3850

175.00

205.50
75.00

113.50
9900

124.00
58.00

186.00

1.510.00
1.052.50
177.50
257.00
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MC2

MC2-Café

MC2-Interact Australis

MC2-YMCA

ME2-Dencare

MC2-Chinese Community Services
MC2-Doncaster Kindergarten
ME2-Manningham Community Health
MC2-Library

Commercial Waste Services
Commercial Waste Disposal 240 litre
Additional Commercial Waste Disposal 240 lifre
Warrandyte Business Resyeling

Infrastructure & City Projects
Buildings, Drainage, Roads, and Cressings
Building over 2asemant

Easements, Build Over Easement Preparation Fee
Land/Road ¢losure

Legal points of discharge Application and Censent
OSD systems Amendments to approved plans

5D systems Drainage Flan Fee

Q5D systems Recumring inspection fee

Subdivision development work Plan checking 0.75% of value
bdivisi work Supe 2.6% of value

Fload level Application for fiood level information

Werk Zenes Application to create a Waork Zone in front of a development site
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Unit of M

Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual

Annual
Annual
Annual

Applicstion
Application
Application
Applicstion

Application

Application
Application
Application
Application
Application

Application

Applicstion

Men-Taxakle
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Men-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxakle
MNen-Taxable
Mon-Taxable

MNen-Taxakble
Mon-Taxable
MNen-Taxable

Mon-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Mon-Taxable

Men-Taxable

Men-Taxable
Meon-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Mon-Taxable
Nen-Taxable

MNen-Taxakble

Non-Taxable

86

R A R A A

@ @

CIRZ IR )

1.186.50

B5.50
88.00
620,00
218.00
208.50
115,00

2.566.00

514.50
842.50
117.00

24205
990.00
115.00
145.00

300,00

300,00
150.00

435.00

29000

LR A I A

@

160.00
Q.00
i2.00
&5.00
2050
2850
15 .50
346.50

6050
86.50
16.00

495
2000
200

13.6%
13.7%
13.6%
13.6%
13.6%
13.6%
13.6%
13.6%

13.6%
13.5%
13.7%

2.0%
2.0%
1.7%
0.0%

0.0%

0.0%
0.0%

Non-Statutory
Mon-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutory
Non-Statutory

MNon-Statutory
Non-Statutory
MNon-Statutory

Statutory
Statutory
Statutary
Statutory

Non-Statutory

Non-Statutory
MNon-Statutory

Statutary

Statutary

Mon-Statutory

Statutory

Item 12.1

Attachment 1

Page 142



25 MAY 2021

Miscellaneows Works Permit

Warks Within Read Reserves - Other than minor works Over 50kph speed limit -condusted
on any part of the roadway, shoulder or pathway

Warks Within Road Reserves -Other than minor works Over 50kph speed limit -not
conducted on any part of the roadway. shoulder or pathway

Works Within Road Reserves - Other than miner works Mot mere than 50kph speedimit -
condusted on any part of the roadway, shoulder or pathway

Works Within Road Reserves - ofher than minor works Mot more than 50kph speedlimit -
conducted on any part of the roadway, shoulder or pathway

Waorks Within Road Reserves - Minor works Conducted an any part of the roadway shoulder
or pathway

Warks Within Road Reserves - Minar works Mot
shoulder or pathway

dusted on any part of ¥

Traffic Management Plan Plan checking

Asset Protestion Permit Developments where the value of the work is less than erequal to
$1M (Single Dwellings, C ial, Multi Unit Developments etc}

Assel Protection Permit Developments whaere the value of the work is greater than
$1M (Single Dwellings, C ial, Mult Unit Dy P eto)

g Parmit an pancy tharge of $8 per m2 per week capped st
$400 per week. Whers otcupation is less than 7 days a minimum charge of $200 willapply.

\ehicle crossing permit Inspection of vehicle crossing

Vehicle eressing permit (reinspection) Reinspection (per return visit) of vehicle eressing
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Purpose

The Local Government Act 2020 requires each council to prepare a Revenue and Rating Plan
covering a minimum period of four years following each Council election. The Revenue and Rating
Plan establishes the revenue raising framework within which Council proposes to work.

This Revenue and Rating Plan covers the four year period 2021/22 to 2024/25.

The purpose of the Revenue and Rating Plan is to determine the most appropriate and affordable
revenue and rating approach for Manningham Council, which in conjunction with other income
sources will adequately finance the objectives in the four year Council Plan.

This plan is an integral part of Council's Integrated Planning Framework, which is created to help
Council achieve its vision.

The strategies outlined in this plan align with the objectives contained in the Council Plan and feed
into our budgeting and long-term financial planning documents as well as other strategic planning
documents under our Council’s integrated planning framework.

Figure 1: Integrated Planning Framework

Integrated Planning Framework

Citizen Engagement
Long term
Generation 2030 Community Plan e
State and
Federal Plan State of
and Legislation Counchl Plaa the ity Financial Plan
Municipal Strategic Statement Asset ManagementPlans
-
Healthy City Strategy

Medium term r

“ Resilient City Vibrant City Well Governed City

Other Coundl Strategies and Plans
(including the Revenue and Rating Plan)
Short Term %
Business Plans

[ Progress Outcome indicators I

Annual Budget
e

. Documents

. Influences
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This plan will explain how Council calculates the revenue needed to fund its activities and how it
will apportion the funding burden between ratepayers and other Council facilities and services
users.

In particular, this plan will set out the decisions that Council has made concerning the rating options
available to it under the Local Government Act 2020 to ensure the fair and equitable distribution of
rates across property owners. It will also set out principles that are used in decision making for
other revenue sources such as fees and charges.

It is also important to note that this plan does not set revenue targets for Council; it outlines the
strategic framework and decisions that inform how Council will go about calculating and collecting
its revenue.

2. Introduction

Council provides many services and facilities to our local community and, in doing so, must collect
revenue to cover the cost of providing these services and facilities. Local government has limited
capacity to raise revenue. Changing community and government expectations has led to an
expanded range of responsibilities. Changing demographics, including increased development and
population growth, results in additional infrastructure needs and service level pressures. Local
government assets are aging and require investment in renewal to maintain our service levels.

Figure 2: Budgeted Income 2021/22
Budgeted income 2021/22

® Contributions - = Contributions - Other
income
monetary non-monetary 16%  Netgain on asset
4.1% 0.7% : sale
0.1%

B Grants - capital
45%

Grants - operating
7.6%
B User fees
5.8%
u statutory fees and
fines
2.7%

B Rates and charges
74.1%

Council's revenue sources include:

* Rates and waste service charges

+ Grants from other levels of government

+ Statutory fees and fines

+ User Fees

+ Cash and non-cash contributions from other parties (i.e. developers, community groups)

+ Other income including interest from investments.
£
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Rates are the most significant revenue source for Council and make up approximately 64% of our
annual income. When combined, rates and waste service charges represent 74% of our annual
income.

The introduction of rate capping under the Victorian Government's Fair Go Rates System (FGRS)
has brought a renewed focus to Council’'s long-term financial sustainability. The FGRS continues
to restrict Council's ability to raise revenue above the rate cap, unless an application is made to
the Essential Services Commission for a variation. The rate cap set by the Minister for Local
Government for 2021/22 is 1.5% which is in line with forecast CPI.

Maintaining service delivery levels and investing in community assets remain critical priorities for
Council. This Plan seeks to reduce Council's reliance on rate income and provides options to
reduce that reliance further.

Council provides a wide range of services to the community, often for a fee or charge. The nature
of these fees and charges generally depends on whether they relate to statutory or discretionary
services. Some of these, such as statutory planning fees, are set by State Government statute
and are commonly known as regulatory fees. Inthese cases, councils usually have no control over
service pricing. However, in relation to other services, Council has the ability to set a fee or charge
and will determine that fee based on the principles outlined in this Revenue and Rating Plan.

Council revenue can also be adversely affected by changes to funding from other levels of
government. Some grants are tied to the delivery of council services, whilst many are tied directly
to the delivery of new community assets, such as roads or recreation pavilions. Council needs to
be clear about what grants it intends to apply for, and the obligations that these grants create in
the delivery of services or infrastructure.

3. Community Engagement

This Revenue and Rating Plan outlines Council's decision-making process on how revenues are
calculated and collected.

During 2020/21 Council undertook Deliberative Community Engagement processes to assist in
developing several key Council documents, including the Vision, Council Plan, Financial Plan and
Asset Plan.

Community Survey

A Community Survey was undertaken in late 2020 and told us that our community places high
importance on having a well-governed Council that spends its money wisely in the areas that matter
most to the community.

Qur community also expressed their need for Council to be financially sustainable and spend within
its budget, and to ensure we provide value for money for ratepayers. This means spending money
on essential services and infrastructure projects that deliver the most benefit to the community. We
must also consider other priorities or initiatives that are valued by our community, and balance
several priority areas while ensuring that Council remains financially sustainable.

Community Panel

A Community Panel was formed representing a cross-section of the Manningham community. Over
40 community members actively engaged in the Community Panel over four sessions in March

y-4
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The Community Panel provided important feedback and input for Council on several revenue and
funding strategies that helped shape the Revenue and Rating Plan. Some of the key feedback
provided by the Community Panel is included in the table below.

Table 1: Some key feedback from the Community Panel

FUNDING STRATEGY FEEDBACK

Seek grants and advocate to other levels of government for

Government grants -
9 funding

Full user pays for commercial, but not for community use (Council
User Fees and Charges to provide a subsidy or part-subsidy for community/not-for-profit or
where benefit for the whole community can be demonstrated)

Commercial or not-for
profit co-contributions /
Partnerships for funding
community
infrastructure

Council to consider this where alignment can be demonstrated
with community values

Charge rental income

for tenants Full charge for commercial tenants, subsidised for other tenants

Council to consider loan borrowings as a source of funding if
Loan Borrowings specific criteria are met (e.g. low interest rates, positive financial
return, for major community infrastructure)

Council to prioritise renewal of assets, rather than selling assets to

Asset Sales . .
fund major projects

Online community consultation via “Your Say Manningham”

During April 2021 Council ran a two week online consultation process on the Your Say
Manningham webpage inviting our community to tell us their ideas for our 2021/22 Annual Budget
and Revenue & Rating Plan. During this period Council received a number of ideas from our
community for Council to consider.

Rates and Charges

Of Australia’s total taxes, the Commonwealth Government collects approximately 80.3% (including
GST), and the State collects approximately 16.2%. Local government collects 3.5% of the total
taxes collected by all levels of government, in the form of property taxes (rates).

Rates are property taxes that allow a Council to raise revenue used to fund essential public services
and cater to their municipal population.

Rates are distributed between ratepayers based on the relative value of properties within the
municipality. Properties are revalued every year by the Victorian Valuer-General to maintain a fair
distribution of the rates burden between property owners. Property taxes do not take into account
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individual debt levels or income received by property owners. One of the fundamental principles of
a property tax is that those with a higher valued property relative to others within a municipality
generally contribute a larger amount in rates.

Council has established a rating structure comprised of two key elements. These are:

« General Rates
Based on property values (using the Capital Improved Valuation Methodology), which are

indicative of capacity to pay and form the central basis of rating under the Local Government
Act 1989; and

« Service Charges

A ‘user pays’ component for council services, to reflect the benefits provided by Council to
ratepayers who benefit from a service.

Rating Process

Once Council has identified the total amount it needs to collect in rates revenue (as determined by
its prescribed annual budget process), rates and charges can be calculated.

Council establishes its rate in the dollar by dividing the balance of required budget revenue by the
total value of all rateable properties in the municipality. The rate in the dollar is then multiplied by
the value of individual properties (using the Capital Improved Valuation methodology) to establish
the amount to be paid by each property owner. This amount is known as the General Rates.

General Rates are added to any municipal charge and any service charges and service rates set
by the Council, to determine the total rates and charges payable on a property.

Example: Calculating General Rates

The total value of rateable properties within a municipality is $10,000,000,000 and Council needs
to collect $40,000,000 in rates. The rate in the dollar is calculated at $0.004 ($40,000,000 /
$10,000,000,000). The rates payable on a property valued at $320,000 would be $1,280 ($320,000
X $0.004).

Rate Cap and Valuation Movement

On average, general rates will increase each year by the Victorian Government's rate cap. The
Minister for Local Government sets the rate cap in December for the upcoming rating year. Under
the Victorian Government's rate cap, Manningham and all Victorian councils must keep the average
rate increase across all properties to no more than the rate cap. The rate cap applies to the overall
rate revenue collected by Council, not each individual property.

For each individual property, the change in the annual rates will depend upon the movement in the
property value of that individual property relative to the average valuation movement across the
municipality. The annual revaluation can significantly re-align how rates are distributed between
ratepayers but of itself does not provide Council with any additional rate revenue overall.

Example: Valuation movement and rate cap

In a year where the average increase in property values was 10% across the municipality and the
rate cap is 1.5%, if:

* The value of an individual property also increased by 10%, the rates for that property would

increase by exactly 1.5% in line with the rate cap; or
-4
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+ The value of an individual property increased by less than 10% or decreased, the rates for
that property would increase by less than the rate cap of 1.5% or decrease; or

+ The value of an individual property increased by more than 10%, the rates for that property
would increase by more than the 1.5% rate cap.
Rates and charges (Waste Service Charges) are an important source of revenue, accounting for
over 74% of operating revenue received by Council. The collection of rates is an important factor
in funding Council services.

Therefore, planning for future rate increases is an essential component of the long-term financial
planning process; it plays a significant role in funding both additional service delivery and the
increasing costs related to providing Council services. Rate income also assists in funding
Council’'s annual Capital Works Program. A critical budget principle is that a minimum of 33% of
rate income is to fund the annual capital works program.

Council is aware of the balance between rate revenue (as an important income source) and
community sensitivity to rate increases. With the introduction of the State Government's Fair Go
Rates System, all rate increases are capped to a rate declared by the Minister for Local
Government, which is announced in December for the following financial year.

Council currently has a service charge to fully recover the cost of Council's waste services. The
waste service charge is not capped under the Fair Go Rates System; however, it is set each year
to cover the cost to Council of providing waste services.

4 1. Rating Legislation

The legislative framework set out in the Local Government Act 1989 determines council's ability to
develop a rating system. The framework provides significant flexibility for Council to tailor a system
that suits its needs.

Section 155 of the Local Government Act 1989 provides that a Council may declare the following
rates and charges on rateable land:

+ General rates under Section 158

* Municipal charges under Section 159

+ Service rates and charges under Section 162
+ Special rates and charges under Section 163

Manningham Council's strategy in relation to municipal charges, service rates and charges and
special rates and charges are outlined in this Plan.

In raising Council rates, Council is required to primarily use the valuation of the rateable property
to levy rates.

Section 157 (1) of the Local Government Act 1989 provides Council with three choices regarding
which valuation base to utilise: Site Valuation, Capital Improved Valuation (CIV) and Net Annual
Value (NAV).

The advantages and disadvantages of the respective valuation basis are discussed further in this
document. Whilst this document outlines Council's strategy regarding rates revenue, rates data will
be contained in Council's Annual Budget as required by the Local Government Act 2020.

Section 94(2) of the Local Government Act 2020 states that Council must adopt a budget by 30

June each year (or at another time fixed by the Minister) to include:
y-4
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a) the total amount that the Council intends to raise by rates and charges;

b) a statement as to whether the rates will be raised by the application of a uniform rate or a
differential rate:

c) a description of any fixed component of the rates, if applicable;

d) if the Council proposes to declare a uniform rate; the matters specified in section 160 of the
Local Government Act 1989,

e) if the Council proposes to declare a differential rate for any land; the matters specified in
section 161(2) of the Local Government Act 1889,

Section 94(3) of the Local Government Act 2020 also states that Council must ensure that, if
applicable, the budget also contains a statement:

a) that Council intends to apply for a special order to increase the Council's average rate cap
for the financial year or any other financial year; or

b) that Council has made an application to the ESC for a special order and is waiting for the
outcome of the application; or

c) that a special order has been made in respect of the Council and specifies the average rate
cap that applies for the financial year or any other financial year.

This plan outlines the principles and strategic framework that Council will utilise in calculating and
distributing the rating burden to property owners; however, the quantum of rate revenue and rating
amounts will be determined within the annual Manningham City Council budget.

Rate Capping

Rate capping came into effect in the 2016/17 financial year. The introduction of a rate cap has
removed Victorian Councils' autonomous ability to determine the annual level of the rate increase.
The Minister for Local Government now determines Council's annual rate increase.

Individual Councils may apply to the Essential Services Commission for a variation to increase
rates beyond the rate cap if they can demonstrate they need to raise additional revenue to continue
to deliver the services and infrastructure for their municipality needs.

Local Government Rating System Review

In 2019 the Victorian State Government conducted a Local Government Rating System Review.
The Local Government Rating System Review Panel presented their final report and a list of
recommendations to the Victorian Government in March 2020. The Victorian Government
subsequently published a response to the recommendations of the Panel's report. At the time of
publication, these recommended changes have not yet been implemented and no timelines for the
changes have been announced.

4.2. Rating Principles

The legislation specifies a number of major objectives of the rating system:

+ The equitable imposition of rates and charges.
* A reasonable degree of stability in the level of the rates effort
+ Contribute to the equitable and efficient carrying out of its functions
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+ Apply principles of financial management, simplicity and transparency.

Section 101(1) of the Local Government Act 2020 states that financial policies and strategic plans,
including the Revenue and Rating Plan, must seek to provide stability and predictability in the
financial impact on the municipal community.

Taxation Principles

In considering what rating approaches are equitable, Council needs to have regard to the principles
of taxation. The principles summarised below are the most significant in local government rating
decisions:

+ Wealth Tax

+  Equity

+ Efficiency

«  Simplicity

+ Sustainability

+ Benefit

+ Capacity to Pay
+ Diversity.

Wealth Tax

The “wealth tax” principle implies that the rates paid are dependent upon the value of a ratepayer’s
real property and have no correlation to the individual ratepayer's consumption of services or the
perceived benefits derived by individual ratepayers from the expenditures funded from rates.

Equity
Horizontal equity

Ratepayers in similar situations should pay similar amounts of rates (ensured mainly by accurate
property valuations, undertaken in a consistent manner, their classification into homogenous
property classes and the right of appeal against valuation).

Vertical equity

Those who are better off should pay more rates than those worse off (the rationale applies for the
use of progressive and proportional income taxation. It implies a “relativity” dimension to the
fairness of the tax burden).

Efficiency

Economic efficiency is measured by the extent to which people's production and consumption
decisions are affected by rates.

Simplicity

How easily a rates system can be understood by ratepayers and the practicality and ease of

administration.
,/1
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4.3.

Sustainability

Does the rating system generate sustainable, reliable revenues for Council and is it durable and
flexible in changing conditions?

Benefit

The extent to which there is a nexus between consumption/benefit and the rate burden.

Capacity to Pay

The capacity of ratepayers or groups of ratepayers to pay rates.

Diversity
The capacity of ratepayers within a group to pay rates.

The rating challenge for Council, therefore, is to determine the appropriate balancing of competing
considerations.

Rates and Charges Revenue Principles:
Property rates will:

+ be reviewed annually;
+ not change dramatically from one year to next; and

+ be sufficient to fund current expenditure commitments and deliverables outlined in the
Council Plan, Financial Plan and Asset Plan.

Differential rating (where applicable) should be applied as equitably as is practical and will
comply with the Ministerial Guidelines for Differential Rating 2013.

Determining Which Valuation Base to Use

Under the Local Government Act 1989, Council has three options as to the valuation base it
elects to use:

Capital Improved Value (CIV) Walue of land and improvements upon the land.

Site Value (SV) WValue of land only
Net Annual Value (NAY) Rental valuation based on CIV

For residential and farm properties, NAV is calculated at 5% of the Capital Improved Value. For
commercial and industrial properties, NAV is calculated as the greater of the estimated annual
rental value, or 5 per cent of the CIV.

Capital Improved Value (CIV)

Capital Improved Value is the valuation base most commonly used by local government, with over
90% of Victorian councils applying this methodology. Based on the value of both land and all
improvements on the land, it is generally easily understood by ratepayers as it equates to the

properties market value.
£
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Section 161 of the Local Government Act 1989 provides that a Council may raise any general rates
by the application of a differential rate if:

a) It uses the capital improved value system of valuing land; and

b) It considers that a differential rate will contribute to the equitable and efficient carrying
out of its functions.

Where a council does not utilise CIV, it may only apply limited differential rates in relation to farm
land, urban farm land or residential use land.

Advantages of using Capital Improved Value (CIV):

+ CIV includes all property improvements and hence is often supported because it more
closely reflects “capacity to pay’. The CIV rating method takes into account the full
development value of the property, and hence better meets the equity criteria than
Site Value and NAV.

+ With the increased frequency of valuations (previously two year intervals, now annual
intervals) the market values are more predictable and has reduced the level of objections
resulting from valuations.

* The concept of the market value of property is more easily understood with CIV rather than
NAV or SV.

+ Most councils in Victoria have now adopted CIV which makes it easier to compare relative
movements in rates and valuations across councils.

Disadvantages of using CIV:

+ The main disadvantage with C|V is the fact that rates are based on the total property value
which may not necessarily reflect the income level of the property owner as with pensioners
and low-income earners.

Site value (SV)

There are currently no Victorian councils that use this valuation base. With valuations based simply
on the valuation of land and with only minimal ability to apply differential rates, Site Value
implementation would cause a shift in rate burden from the industrial/commercial sectors onto the
residential sector. It would hinder council's objective of a fair and equitable rating system.

There would be further rating movements away from modern townhouse style developments
on relatively small land parcels to older established homes on quarter-acre residential blocks. In
many ways, it is difficult to see an equity argument being served by the implementation of Site
Value (SV).

Advantages of Site Value

* There is a perception that under site value, a uniform rate would promote development of
land, particularly commercial and industrial developments. There is, however, little evidence
to prove that this is the case.

+ Scope for possible concessions for urban farm-land and residential use land.

Disadvantages of using Site Value

+ Under SV, there will be a significant shift from the industrial/commercial sector onto the
residential sector of council. The percentage increases in many cases would be in the
extreme range.

+ SV is a major burden on property owners that have large areas of land. These ratepayers
will pay more in rates even though some of these owners may have much smaller/older
dwellings than those with smaller land areas with well-developed dwellings. A typical
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example is flats, units, or townhouses that will all pay low rates compared to traditional
housing styles.

+ The use of SV can place pressure on council to give concessions to categories of
landowners on whom the rating burden is seen to fall disproportionately (e.g. farm land and
residential use  properties). Large landowners, such as farmers, for
example, are disadvantaged by the use of site value.

+ SV will reduce Council's rating flexibility and options to deal with any rating inequities due
to removing the ability to levy differential rates.

+ The community may have greater difficulty in understanding the SV valuation on their rate
notices.

Net annual value (NAV)

NAV, in concept, represents the annual rental value of a property. However, in practice, NAV
is loosely linked to the capital improved value for residential and farm properties. Valuers derive
the NAV directly as 5% of CIV.

In contrast to the treatment of residential and farm properties, NAV for commercial and industrial
properties are assessed with regard to actual market rental. This differing treatment of commercial
versus residential and farm properties has led to some suggestions that all properties should be
valued on a rental basis.

Overall, the use of NAV is not largely supported. For residential and farm ratepayers, actual rental
values pose some problems. The artificial rental estimate used may not represent actual market
value, and means the base is the same as CIV but is harder to understand.

Recommended valuation base

In choosing a valuation base, councils must decide on whether they wish to adopt a differential
rating system (different rates in the dollar for different property categories) or a uniform rating
system (same rate in the dollar). If a council was to choose the former, under the Local Government
Act 1989 it must adopt either of the CIV or NAV methods of rating.

Manningham City Council uses Capital Improved Value (CIV) for rating valuation purposes.

Capital Improved Value (CIV) applies to all properties within the municipality to take into account
the fully developed value of the property. This basis of valuation takes into account the total market
value of the land plus buildings and other improvements.

Property Valuations

The Valuation of Land Act 1960 is the principle legislation in determining property valuations. Under
the Act, the Victorian Valuer-General conducts property valuations on an annual basis.

The value of land is always derived by the principal of valuing land for its highest and best use at
the relevant time of valuation.

Council needs to be mindful of the impacts of revaluations on individual properties to ensure that
rises and falls in council rates remain affordable and that rating ‘shocks’ are mitigated to some
degree.
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Supplementary Valuations

Supplementary valuations are carried out for a variety of reasons including rezoning, subdivisions,
amalgamations, renovations, new constructions, extensions, occupancy changes and corrections.

The Victorian Valuer-General is tasked with undertaking supplementary valuations and advises
council regularly of valuation and Australian Valuation Property Classification Code (AVPCC)
changes.

Supplementary valuations bring the value of the affected property into line with the
general valuation of other properties within the municipality. Objections to supplementary
valuations can be lodged in accordance with Part 3 of the Valuation of Land Act 1960. Any
objections must be lodged with Council within two months of the issue of the supplementary
rate notice.

Objections to property valuations

Part 3 of the Valuation of Land Act 1960 provides that a property owner may lodge an objection
against the valuation of a property or the Australian Valuation Property Classification Code
(AVPCC) within two months of the issue of the original or amended (supplementary) Rates and
Valuation Notice (Rates Notice), or within four months if the notice was not originally issued to the
occupier of the land.

A property owner must lodge their objection to the valuation or the AVPCC in writing on a prescribed
form to Manningham City Council.

4 4. Rating Differentials

Determining a Rating System

A general rate is applied to all rateable properties and can be set as a uniform rate or a number of
differential rates.

Uniform Rate

A uniform rate is a single rate in the dollar that is applied to the value (CIV) of all rateable properties.
Council has adopted a uniform rate for many years, with an exception in 2012/13 when a differential
rate was introduced for Electronic Gaming Machine lands (EGM). The EGM differential rate was
discontinued in the 2013/14 Budget.

Advantages of a Uniform Rate include:
+ Equitable distribution of rate burden
+ Efficient to administer
* Transparent and easy to understand

Disadvantages of a Uniform Rate include:

* May not be perceived as equitable as it does not take into account the level of access or
benefit that a ratepayer derives from Council services

Differential Rates

A Council may determine to raise general rates by the application of a differential rate in the dollar
to different classes of property if it considers that the differential rate will contribute to the equitable

and efficient carrying out of its functions.
£
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If a Council declares a differential rate for any land the Council must specify:
+ The objectives of the differential rate.
+ The characteristics of the land which are the criteria for declaring the differential rate.
* The rate and amount of rates payable in relation to each type or class of land.

The highest differential rate is capped at four times the lowest differential rate.

Advantages of Differential Rates include:
+ Can give Council flexibility to distribute the rate burden between groups of ratepayers,
linking it with capacity to pay.
+ Allows Council to reflect the unique circumstances of some land classes where the
application of a uniform rate may create an inequitable outcome (e.g. farming enterprises).

+ Allows Council discretion in the imposition of rates to ‘facilitate and encourage appropriate
development of its municipal district in the best interest of the community’.

Disadvantages of Differential Rates include:
+ A lower differential rate for one group results in a higher rates burden for all others.

+ The impossibility of measuring relative levels of access and consumption across the full
range of council services to determine the appropriate or equitable level of differential rate.

+ Differential rates can be confusing to ratepayers, as they may have difficulty understanding
the system. Some rating categories may feel they are unfavourably treated because they
are paying a higher level of rates than other ratepayer groups.

+ Complexity to administer.

Ministerial Guidelines issued in 2012 provide guidance on differential rates. Properties considered
appropriate for differential rates are:

= General = Industrial

= Residential = Vacant

*« Farm * Derelict

* Commercial » Cultural and recreational lands

The types and classes of land categories not considered appropriate for differential rates are:

+ Electronic gaming machine venues + Liquor licensed venues/outlets
« Fast-food premises * Businesses defines by hours of trade

Council must consider the implementation of differential rates for farm lands and retirement
villages, but are not obliged to implement differential rates for these classes of land.

Cultural and Recreational Land - charges in lieu of rates

Council currently charges two properties (Veneto Club and Yarra Valley Country Club) in lieu of
rates, under Section 4(4) of the Cultural and Recreational Lands Act. Council is required to consider
a discount for these properties under the Cultural and Recreational Lands Act, based on considered
benefits to the community and Council's services.

Recommended approach

Council is proposing to continue its long-standing practice to raise general rates through a
uniform (or single) rate in the dollar for all property types and is nhot proposing to introduce

differential rates.
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The general rate levied on a property represents a contribution toward the cost of providing
universally accessible services and infrastructure - it does not and cannot reflect the level of
services accessed or benefits derived by a ratepayer or group of ratepayers. Council considers
that granting a rate reduction to one ratepayer group is not equitable because it shifts the rate
burden onto other ratepayers.

4.5. Municipal Charge

Another principle rating option available to Councils is the application of a municipal charge. Under
Section 159 of the Local Government Act 1989, Council may declare a municipal charge to cover
some of the administrative costs of the Council. The legislation is not definitive on what comprises
administrative costs, and does not require Council to specify what is covered by the charge.

The application of a municipal charge represents a choice to raise a portion of the rates by a flat
fee for all properties, rather than sole use of the CIV valuation method.

Under the Local Government Act 1889, Council's total revenue from a municipal charge in a
financial year must not exceed 20 per cent of the combined sum total of the Council's total revenue
from the municipal charge and the revenue from general rates (total rates).

Advantages of a Municipal Charge include:

+ A municipal charge applies equally to all properties and is based upon the recovery of the
fixed cost of providing administrative services irrespective of valuation. Each ratepayer
contributes equally toward identified administrative costs.

Disadvantages of a Municipal Charge include:

+ The argument against a municipal charge is that this charge is regressive in nature and
would result in lower-valued properties paying higher overall rates and charges as a
percentage of their property value than they do at present.

Recommended approach

Council does not currently levy a Municipal Charge and is not proposing to implement a
Municipal Charge.

4 6. Special Charge Schemes

The Local Government Act 1989 recognises that councils need help to provide improved
infrastructure for their local communities. Legislation allows councils to pass on the cost of capital
infrastructure to the owner of a property that generally receives a unique benefit from
the construction works. The technical explanation of a Special Charge comes from legislation
(under the Local Government Act 1989) that allows councils to recover the cost of works from
property owners who will gain special benefit from that work.

The purposes for which special rates and special charges may be used include road construction,
kerb and channelling, footpath provision, drainage, and other capital improvement projects.

The special rate or special charges may be declared on the basis of any criteria specified by the
council in the rate (Section 163 (2)). In accordance with Section 163 (3), council must specify:

a) the wards, groups, uses or areas for which the special rate or charge is declared; and
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c) the manner in which the special rate or special charge will be assessed and levied; and

d) details of the period for which the special rate or special charge remains in force.
The special rates and charges provisions are flexible and can be used to achieve a wide range of
community objectives. The fundamental principle of special rates and charges is proof “special
benefit" applies to those being levied. For example, they could be used to fund co-operative fire

prevention schemes. This would ensure that there were no ‘free-riders' reaping the benefits
but not contributing to fire prevention.

Landscaping and environmental improvement programs that benefit small or localised areas could
also be funded using special rates or charges.

Recommended approach

Council does not currently levy a Special Rate or Special Charge and is not proposing to
implement a Special Rate or Special Charge.

4.7. Service Rates and Charges

Section 162 of the Local Government Act 1989 provides Council with the opportunity to raise
service rates and charges for any of the following services:

a) the provision of a water supply;
b) the collection and disposal of refuse;
c) the provision of sewage services;
d) any other prescribed service.
Manningham Council currently declares a cost-recovery based Waste Service Charge for the

collection and disposal of refuse. Council retains the objective of setting the service charge for
waste at a level that fully recovers the cost of Council's waste services.

Advantages of a Service Charge include:
» ltis readily understood by residents as a fee for a direct service that they receive.

+ |t provides equity in the rating system in that all residents who receive exactly the same
service level all pay an equivalent amount.

+ Ratepayers’ can vary their charge through choosing a range of waste bin options.

Disadvantages of a Service Charge include:

+ The argument against a service charge is that this charge is regressive in nature and would
result in lower valued properties paying higher overall rates and charges. The equity
objective in levying rates against property values is lost in a service charge as it is levied
uniformly across all assessments.

Council's standard kerbside waste and recycling service is based on an 80 litre garbage bin, 240
litre recycling and 240 litre garden waste bin. Ratepayers may vary the combination of bins and
bin sizes that they receive as well as order additional bins (options vary the cost of the service).

Recommended approach

It is recommended that Council retain the existing waste service charge structure, which is

based on full cost recovery of the Council’s waste services.
,/1
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4.8.

The mix of having annually determined waste service charges which fully recover the cost of waste
services combined with valuation driven rates provides a balanced and equitable outcome.

Rebates, Waivers and Concessions

Council may grant a rebate or concession in relation to a rate or charge to assist in the proper
development of the municipal district, preserve buildings or places of historical or environmental
interest, and restore or maintain buildings and places of historical, environmental, architectural or
scientific importance.

State Government Pension Rebate

Holders of a State Government pension card may be eligible for a State Government funded
Pension Rebate (of $241 in 2020/21) and a further $50.00 rebate (in 2020/21) toward the cost of
the Fire Services Property Levy. To be eligible, a ratepayer must:

» Hold a current Pensioner Concession Card from Centrelink or Veterans' Affairs or a Gold
Card from the Department of Veterans’ Affairs specifying War Widow (WW) or Totally and
Permanently Incapacitated (TPI).

+ Be responsible for payment of the rates and charges.
+ Be their residential property.

The State Government fully funds these concessions.

Low Income Rebate

Council currently grants a rebate to holders of a “Low Income” Health Care Card. The rebate is
currently $100.00 (in 2020/21) and provides additional relief to ratepayers eligible for this rebate.

Council fully funds this concession.

Rate concession for Council owned facilities

A rate concession, equivalent to the general rates, is provided to Council owned highball and
recreation facilities operated by community-based organisations under lease from Council.

General Valuation Rebate

Council currently offers a concession to those ratepayers who may suffer financial hardship due to
rate increases resulting from the general valuation of properties (now every year).

The concession is limited to 50% of the rate increase, which is above 30% and, if granted, is only
applicable to that financial year.

Recommended approach

It is recommended that Council continue to apply a:

a) Rebate for Low Income Health Care Card holders

b) Rate concession for Council owned recreation facilities that are operated by
community based organisations.

c¢) General valuation rebate to ratepayers who may suffer financial hardship as a
result of the General Revaluation of properties.

d) No other rebates or waivers are proposed.
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4.9. Collection and Administration of Rates and Charges

The purpose of this section is to outline the rate payment options, processes, and the
support provided to ratepayers facing financial hardship.

Payment options

Under section 167(1) of the Local Government Act 1989, Council must allow a person or ratepayer
to pay a rate or charge in four instalments. The Minister sets the dates of these instalments.

Payments are due on the prescribed dates below:

1st Instalment: 30 September
2nd Instalment: 30 November
3rd Instalment: 28 February
4th Instalment: 31 May

Manningham Council also offers ratepayers the option to pay in ten instalments (via direct debit).

A Council may also allow a person to pay a rate or charge in a single lump-sum payment.
Manningham Council does not provide this option and has not for over 15 years. Council also does
not provide an incentive for early payment

Council offers a wide range of payment options including:

Direct debit - savings or cheque account

Payment via our website

BPAY - phone or internet

Australia Post Billpay - in person, internet, telephone

Payment in person at the Council Civic Centre - credit/debit card, cash or cheque.

Financial Hardship

Council acknowledges that some ratepayers will experience financial difficulty from time to time
and, for some reason, may not meet able to meet payment due dates. Council has identified that it
is necessary to provide assistance and relief at times and has processes in place under the Rate
Debtor Management Policy.

Council has a range of financial hardship provisions to assist ratepayers who are experiencing
financial hardship.

The objectives of these provisions are to ensure:

appropriate assistance is granted to ratepayers enduring genuine financial hardship
all applications for rate and levy relief are treated respectfully and confidentially

ratepayers experiencing genuine financial hardship are treated with compassion and are
made aware of their legal entitlements and initiatives provided by Manningham City Council
and its service providers

a flexible approach to the timing of debt payments, the writing off or not charging of interest.

The financial hardship provisions include:

a Rate Payment Agreement that acknowledges the ratepayer's financial position
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+ a deferment of rates and charges to a mutually agreed date

+ a partial rate rebate where a rate charge increases by over 30% as a consequence of a
general revaluation.

Interest on arrears and overdue rates

Interest is charged on all overdue rates in accordance with Section 172 of the Local Government
Act 1989. The interest rate applied is fixed under Section 2 of the Penalty Interest Rates Act 1983,
which is determined by the Minister and published by notice in the Government Gazette. Interest
will be calculated from the due date of the instalment missed on the amount not paid.

State Government Fire Services Property Levy

In 2013/14, the Victorian Government introduced the Fire Services Property Levy (FSPL). Councils
collect this charge on behalf of the Victorian State Government. It is included in the Rates Notice
as an additional charge. This levy is not included in the rate cap, and increases in the levy are at
the State Government's discretion. Council plays no role in setting the FSPL, and all FSPL receipts
are remitted to the Victorian State Government every quarter.

The levy is made up of a variable component (based on the capital improved value of the property)
and a fixed component. The fixed component will vary for residential properties and non-residential
properties. The variable rates will also vary for residential properties and non-residential properties.

The State Government Fire Services Property Levy (FSPL) is shown as separate charges on the
Valuation and Rates notice.

5. Other Revenue Iltems

5.1. User Fees and Charges

User fees and charges are those that Council will charge for the delivery of services and use of
community infrastructure.

Examples of user fees and charges include:

+ Childcare fees

+ Leisure Centre, Gym, and Pool visitation and membership fees
* Animal Registration fees

* Aged and Health Care service fees

+ Leases and facility hire fees.

The provision of infrastructure and services form a crucial part of Council’s role in supporting the
local community. In providing these, Council must consider a range of ‘Best Value' principles,
including service cost and quality standards, value-for-money, and community expectations and
values. Council must also balance the affordability and accessibility of infrastructure and services
with its financial capacity and in the interests of long-term financial sustainability.

Councils must also comply with the government's Competitive Neutrality Policy for significant
business activities they provide and adjust their service prices to neutralise any competitive

advantages when competing with the private sector.
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In providing services to the community, Council must determine the extent of cost recovery for
particular services consistent with the level of both individual and collective benefit that the services
provide and in line with the community’s expectations.

Services are provided on the basis of one of the following pricing methods:
a) Market Price
b) Full Cost Recovery Price
c) Subsidised Price

Market Pricing

Market pricing is where the council sets prices based on the benchmarked competitive prices of
alternate suppliers. In general, market price represents full cost recovery plus an allowance for
profit. Market prices will be used when other providers exist in the given market, and the council
needs to meet its obligations under the government's Competitive Neutrality Policy

It should be noted that if a market price is lower than the council’s total cost price, then the market
price would represent council subsidising that service. If this situation exists and other suppliers
exist at the same price, this may mean that council is not the most efficient supplier in the
marketplace. In this situation, council will consider whether there is a community service obligation
and whether the council should provide this service.

Full Cost Recovery

Full cost recovery price aims to recover all direct and indirect costs incurred by council. This pricing
should be used in particular where a service provided by council benefits individual customers
specifically, rather than the community as a whole. In principle, fees and charges should be set at
a level that recovers the full cost of providing the services unless there is an overriding policy or
imperative in favour of subsidisation.

Subsidised Pricing

Subsidised pricing is where council subsidises a service by not passing the full cost of that service
onto the customer. Subsidies may range from total subsidies (i.e. council provides the service free
of charge) to partial subsidies, where council provides the service to the user with a discount.
Council can fund the subsidy from rate revenue or other sources such as Commonwealth and state
funding programs. Full council subsidy pricing and partial cost pricing should always be based on
knowledge of the full cost of providing a service.

As part of the Annual Budget process, Council sets the proposed fees and charges for the
upcoming financial year, taking into account a number of considerations, including:

+ The cost of service delivery (both direct and indirect costs to be taken into account when
setting prices);

+ Affordability (capacity to pay);

» The level of Council subsidy (if any) based on community benefit; and

» Competitive neutrality with commercial providers (benchmarking).

Council develops a table of fees and charges as part of its annual budget each year.
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5.2. Statutory Fees and Charges

Statutory fees, fines, and charges are those that council collects under legislation or other
government directives. The rates used for statutory fees, fines and charges are normally advised
by the state government department responsible for the corresponding services or legislation, and
generally, councils will have limited discretion in applying these fees. The fee, fine or charge set by
the State Government does not always reflect the cost of service to Council. On top of this, statutory
fees do not always increase in line with inflation (CPI).
Examples of statutory fees, fines and charges include:

+ Planning and subdivision fees

+ Building and Inspection fees

+ Infringements and fines

* Land Information Certificate fees.

Penalty and fee units are used in Victoria's Acts and Regulations to describe the amount of a fine
or afee.

Penalty units

Penalty units are used to define the amount payable for fines for many offences. For example, the
fine for selling a tobacco product to a person aged under 18 is four penalty units.

One penalty unit is currently $165.22, from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021.

The rate for penalty units is indexed each financial year to be raised in line with inflation. Any
change to the value of a penalty unit will happen on 1 July each year.

Fee units

Fee units are used to calculate the cost of a certificate, registration or licence that is set out in an
Act or Regulation. For example, the cost of depositing a Will with the Supreme Court registrar of
probates is 1.6 fee units.

The value of one fee unit is currently $14.81 in 2020/21. This value may increase at the beginning
of a financial year, at the same time as penalty units.
The cost of fees and penalties is calculated by multiplying the number of units by the fee or unit's

current value. The exact cost may be rounded up or down.

5.3. Grants

Grant revenue represents income usually received from other levels of government. Some grants
are singular and attached to the delivery of specific projects, whilst others can be recurrent and
may or may not be linked to the delivery of projects.

Council will pro-actively advocate to other government levels for grant funding support to deliver
important infrastructure and service outcomes for the community. Council may use its own funds
to leverage higher grant funding and maximise external funding opportunities.

Council considers its project proposal pipeline, advocacy priorities, upcoming grant program
opportunities, and co-funding options to determine what grants to apply for. Council will only apply
for and accept external funding if it is consistent with the Community Vision and Council Plan
priorities.

Grants from other government levels (Victorian and Australian) as a share of local government

revenue have declined over time, despite local governments’ roles expanding.
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Government Grants and Cost Shifting

Cost-shifting by higher levels of government - one of the most common forms of cost-shifting
involves a direct delegation of responsibilities from a higher level of government to the local
government sector. Local Government provides many services on behalf of the Victorian and
Australian Government.

Other levels of government typically set the fees a Council can charge to those who benefit from
these services and usually do not reflect the costs of providing the service. The net result is that
Council is obliged to use its general revenue to provide services on behalf of other levels of
government.

In other cases, a higher level of government may stop providing a service that they are responsible
for, leaving the Council to either provide the service from its own resources or leave a service gap.

Higher levels of government may also shift costs onto Council through new or increased
compliance requirements (that is, ‘raising the bar’), for which Council is not adequately
compensated. Examples of this form of cost-shifting include requirements to comply with enhanced
childcare and animal management regulations.

Another example of cost-shifting occurs when a government agency imposes a new or increased
fee or charge on Council in order to recover its own operating expenses, with no offsetting benefit
(in terms of increased services) to Council.

5.4. Contributions

Contributions represent funds received by Council, usually from non-government sources, and are
usually linked to projects.

Contributions can be made to Council in either cash payments (monetary contributions) or asset
hand-overs (non-monetary contributions).

Examples of contributions include:

+ Monies collected from developers under developer contribution plans and open space
contributions

+ Contributions from user groups towards the upgrade of facilities

+ Assets handed over to Council from developers at the completion of a subdivision, such as
roads, drainage, and streetlights (non-monetary contributions).

Contributions should always be linked to a planning or funding agreement. Council will not
undertake any work on a contribution-funded project until a signed agreement outlining the
contribution details is in place.

Contributions linked to developments can be received well before any council expenditure occurs.
In this situation, the funds will be identified and held separately by Council in a ‘Reserve’ to be used
for specific purposes only.

Council receives monetary contributions from developers for two primary purposes:

+ To improve open space and recreation (public open space contributions); and

+ To improve and develop the infrastructure and amenity of the municipality (development
contributions plan).

Council currently has a development contributions plan for the Doncaster Hill precinct, which is
finishing in the short to medium term. Council is considering introducing a Manningham-wide
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development contributions plan (DCP), which would provide a source of funding from developers
to improve and develop the area's infrastructure and amenity.

5.5. Interest on investments

Council receives interest on funds managed as part of its investment portfolio, where funds are
held in advance of expenditure, or for special purposes. The investment portfolio is managed per
Council's investment policy, which seeks to maximise the return on investment whilst minimising
risk.

5.6. Borrowings

Whilst not a source of income, loan borrowings can be an important cash management tool in
appropriate circumstances. Loan borrowings can be a major source of funding for significant
infrastructure projects that will provide benefits for future generations. This is known as 'inter-
generational equity' - where future debt repayments are matched with future benefits derived from
the infrastructure developed

Loans can only be approved by council resolution.

Council has a Loan Borrowing Strategy and Principles, which provides for loan borrowings based
on the following principles:

1. Financial performance indicator ratios relating to debt must be within the Local Government
Performance Reporting Framework expected band and within the Victorian Auditor General
low risk rating.

2. Loan duration not to exceed the lesser of 10 years or life of asset

3. Loans only for otherwise fully funded Capital projects

4, Priority for projects with above loan repayment returns

5. Loan duration to match cash flows in the funded Capital Works Program

6. Where an interest only loan is entered into then an amount equivalent to the annual principal
repayment will be provided into a cash backed reserve.

7. Council will not take loans for investment in arbitrage schemes

8. Council will secure its loan funds through competitive tendering

9. No borrowings for operating expenses

10. Loan redemption payments and debt serving costs are to be included in Council’'s annual

budget and 10 year Financial Strategy
11. Drawdown and repayment timing to minimise costs.

Borrowings will increase operating expenses through interest repayments. Borrowings could be
considered within the context of Council's long term planning, asset planning, budget and long-
term financial planning processes.

Borrowings could also be considered where the long-term financial return to Council is positive.
Business cases would be required for any proposed undertaking and should fully consider the
impacts if borrowings are proposed.

Borrowings must only be applied for where it can be proven that repayments can be met in the

Long Term Financial Plan and must not be used to fund operational expenditure.
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13 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

13.1 Manningham Quarterly Report, Quarter 3, (January - March), 2021

File Number: IN21/279

Responsible Director:  Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: 1 Manningham Quarterly Report, Quarter 3 (Jan-Mar), 2021
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Manningham Quarterly Report outlines key organisational indicators and many of
the reporting requirements under the Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework (LGPRF). The Report also enables greater transparency to monitor and
track key aspects of Council’s performance for continuous improvement purposes.

1. RECOMMENDATION

That Council note the Manningham Quarterly Report for Quarter 3,
(January — March) 2021.

2. BACKGROUND

The Manningham Quarterly Report aims to promote transparency and meet legislative
requirements under the Local Government Act (1989) and Planning and Reporting
Regulations (2008). The report contains key capital works, finance and corporate
performance information for the quarter.

3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE
3.1 Capital Works

3.1.1 The adopted 2020/21 capital budget was $49.91m. The current budget
forecast of $47.45m takes into account an initial adjustment, as a result of
final expenditure in 2019/20 and a range of income adjustments and new
grants that have been realised over the first nine months of the financial
year.

3.1.2 Total capital expenditure to the end of March 2021 was $21.08m which is
77.6% of the end of March cash flow target. This is still slightly ahead of
2019/20 expenditure levels, despite some impact from COVID-19 on
some projects. Project Managers are indicating that they are confident of
meeting this year's expenditure measures.

3.1.3 11% of the 262 projects in the 2020/21 program have been completed. A
number of large contracts were awarded this quarter, and it is anticipated
this will enable strong expenditure in the next quarter.
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3.1.4 Seven of the 262 projects are at risk for delivery by the end of the
financial year. This is due to a delay in planning, approval or consultation
for these projects. The proposed MC? Exterior project will not be delivered
this financial year, due to external factors. In the meantime, funding from
this and other at risk projects is being diverted to other new and existing
projects in Council's capital works program.

3.2 Finance

3.2.1 Atthe end of March 2021, Council was $288k or 0.7% unfavourable
compared to the year-to-date (YTD) adopted budget. The unfavourable
variance is mainly due to:

e Fees & User Charges income which are $2.78 million unfavourable
due to the impact of COVID-19 on Council's services.

e Employee Costs $918k unfavourable due to the unbudgeted costs
associated with the Working for Victoria Program and for Personal
Protective Equipment.

¢ Materials & Contracts are also $973k unfavourable, while Legal
Expenses, Software Licenses and Insurance costs are also
unfavourable in Other Expenses.

3.2.2 These are offset by Grants and Subsidies income being $2.77 million
favourable. This relates to unbudgeted funding received for the Working
for Victoria Program from the State Government and unbudgeted
Commonwealth Government support funding for the COVID-19 Meals
Program under the Commonwealth Home Support Program (CHSP).
The funding for these two programs will be expended by Council during
the 2020/21 financial year. In addition, $500k has been received from the
Local Councils Outdoor Eating & Entertainment Package funding
agreement.

3.2.3 The Full Year Forecast Surplus is currently anticipated to be $11.61
million which is $1.02 million lower than the Full Year Adopted Budget
Surplus of $12.63 million.

3.2.4 Corporate Performance

3.2.5 For overall Performance, Manningham Council is on track to deliver 97%
of all Council Plan actions by the end of the financial year, including 4%
complete. 3% off track or need to be deferred. Council has met 80% of
Key Performance Indicators.

3.2.6 For 2020/21, there are 14 Major Initiatives to progress the 2017-2021
Council Plan goals. Major Initiatives are reflective of the back to basics
approach of the Council Plan, prioritising performance in core activities
including road and park improvements.

3.2.7 12 Major Initiatives are at or above the expected target, as Officers
continue to progress the priorities to meet community needs in a safe
and considered manner during the coronavirus pandemic.
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3.2.8 Two initiatives remain behind schedule:
i. Local planning is responsive to need and planning laws has deferred
one out of three components (the Municipal Development Contributions
Plan), which is now scheduled for completion in 2021, after the
Community Infrastructure Plan.

ii. Road Improvement Program with the delay of Tram Road design due to
ongoing negotiations with the Department of Transport.

3.3 Councillor and CEO Expenses

3.3.1 All Councillors are within their annual allowance.

4. COUNCIL PLAN / STRATEGY

This report reports progress across all goals of the Council Plan, and overall action
summary and is published on the Manningham website.

5. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No officers involved in the preparation of this report have any general or material
conflict of interest in this matter.
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Quarterly Report 2020/21

Key information on Manningham Council's performance and governance for the Quarter

1- canllal worls $49.91m Adopted Budget
-$2.46m  Budget Adjustment
E%i EEE $47.45m  Updated Forecast
262 29 7 44.4%
Projects Projects Projects Projects Projects Program
Total Completed Delayed/ On Schedule To Start Completed
Incomplete

Spotlight O\

VALUE OF
CAPITAL WORKS = The adopted 2020/21 capital budget was 549.91m. The current budget forecast of 547.45m
SZ 1.08m takes into accoun an initial adjustment, as a result of over expenditure in 2019/20 and a range

.y

CAPITAL INCOME

of income adjustments and new grants that have been realised over the first nine months of
the financial year.

Total capital expenditure to the end of March 2021 was 521.08m which is 77.6% of the end of
March cash flow target, This is still slightly ahead of 2019/20 expenditure levels, despite some
impact from Covid-19 on some projects. Project Managers are indicating that they are confident

R GRANTS of meeting this year's expenditure measures,
= 11% of the 262 projects in the 2020/21 program have been completed. A number of large
5739 contracts were awarded this quarter, and it is anticipated this will enable strong expenditure in

CAPITAL WORKS
VARIANCE

$6.07m

the next quarter.

Sseven of the 262 projects are at risk for delivery by the end of the financial year. This is due to
a delay in planning, approval or consultation for these projects. The proposed MC? Exterior
project will not be delivered this financial year, due to external factors. In the meantime,
funding from this and other at risk projects is being diverted to other new and existing projects
in Council's capital works program,

Item 13.1 Attachment 1

Page 173



COUNCIL AGENDA

25 MAY 2021

YTD Budgeted

YTD Actual

FY Fore

Revenue Variation

FEES & GRANTS &
CHARGES CONTRIBUTIONS

36.7% 29.6%

$3.2m $3.0m

Year to Date Revenue
{excluding rates & charges and

Smillion net proceeds on sale of assets)
13
12
111
10
59
2
7
“)b
35
54
3
2
3 - .
User Fees & nterest Operating Capital
Charges Received Grants Grants
mBudgst Actual
Operating Result (Quarter)
Smillion Year to date variance to Budget

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.0

lan Feb Mar

134.2m 94.8m 39.4m
136.0m 96.9m 39.1m
145.3m 133.7m 11.6m
Expense Variation
® O a2
" Egig"‘i
MATERIALS & OTHER
EMPLOYEE COSTS CONTRACTS EXPENSES
2.2% 5.1% 0.6%
$0.9m $1.0m $0.2m
Year to Date Expenditure
Smillion

350

545

540

535

330

525

520

515

510

55

50 -
) Employee  Materials &  Utilities  Depreciation Other
Other Costs Contracts Expenses
Income mBudget Actual

Spotlight O\

= At the end of March 2021, Council was $288k or 0.7% unfavourable compared to the year
to-date (YTD) adopted budget. The unfavourable variance is mainly due to Fees & User
Charges income which are 52.78 million unfavourable due to the impact of COVID-19 on
Council's services, Employee Costs $918k are unfavourable due to the unbudgeted costs
associated with the Working for Victoria Program and for Personal Protective Equipment.
Materials & Contracts are also $973k unfavourable, while Legal Expenses, Software
Licences and Insurance costs are also unfavourable in Other Expenses.

= These are offset by Grants and Subsidies income being $2.77 million favourable. This
relates to unbudgeted funding received for the Working for Victoria Program from the
State Government and unbudgeted Commonwealth Government support funding for the
COVID-19 Meals Program under the Commonwealth Home Support Program (CHSP). The
funding for these two programs will be expended by Council during the 2020/21 financial
year. In addition, $500k has been received from the Local Councils Outdoor Eating &
Entertainment Package funding agreement.

= The Full Year Forecast Surplus is currently anticipated to be $11.61 million which is 51.02
million lower than the Full Year Adopted Budget Surplus of $12.63 million,
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Organisation Performance

3. Corporate Performance ik i e S

. » il 202021
Spgthght - Statutory P|ann|ng o— 2019/20 M Deferred W complete W On Track
2018/19 Monitor I off Track
Number of Planning Number of Planning Decisions e ——
o Applications Received Made lan Ferfermance
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KPI Performance Indicators (KPls)

Decisions Made

Time taken to decide Planning
within 60 days (%)

Applications (median days)

" =
'§ 100 %
o-:.-_::z T’ & 100
20 <4 »
£ * = an *>
[:]
2 0 @ a L 2
g = 60
=
< 40 E a0
* 20 2 20
o il
otrl  Qtr2 Qtr3 Otrd Qtrl 02 a3 Qtrd Council is within target to deliver

97.0% of actions and 80.3% of KPI's

Statutory Planning
Although, there was a slight decrease in the number of planning applications received for Quarter 3 mostly due to the post-Christmas holiday
period, planning applications have continued to be processed in a timely manner with an improvement in decision make within 60% days.

Council Plan 2017-2021
Our Council Plan has five themes: Healthy Community, Liveable Places and Spaces, Resilient Environment, Prosperous and Vibrant Economy and
Well Governed Council. Goals for each theme were developed with the community and partners and progressed through actions and Major
Initiatives, which are significant pieces of work, For 2020/2021 there are 14 Major Initiatives, 12 Major Initiatives are either on track or ahead of
schedule. Twa initiatives are behind schedule - Local planning is responsive to need and planning laws’ has one out of three components deferred
with the Municipal Development Contributions Plan now scheduled for completion in 2021, following completion of the Community Infrastructure
Plan. Tram Road safety improvements are also behind due to negotiations with the Department of Transport. Progress on all the Major Initiatives is
detailed in the following pages.

5 Measure of

Community Health and Wellbaing Dadlvery of astbies In the Healthy Ciy Aslion Plan 2019-2021

1
2 [Premmcte a czanected and Inclushe semimunity Datiery at least 3 acthities By 30 June 2021 Induding Defvary Including endorsement and cemmencement of Councll's new Reconciation Action Blan

|Liveabie Plases and Spaces
3

Local planning s respansive to need and planning lavws by Taclitating planning scherme amendments conskiened nigh priarty of the 2018 Planning Schame Review recommendations

Fesponeive Local planning Progress 2 addibicnal major recommendations by June 2021

Implementation of Parks IMprovement Program works as scheduled,

8 | Pt e E e Cetly's Reserve, design of Hepburn Road Park and completion of the design for Maln Yarra Fiver Trall lo Warrandyte by 20 June 2021

5 [Morth East Link Blanning Successfully collaborate with the MEL project and propanent to pursue envronmentsl, recreation, open space and constrection sutcomes for Manningham.

(Complete Program as scheduled Including

- Ceslgn for Jumping Cresk Rcad frsm Ringwood yte road to Homestead Road,

- Improve safety through Installalian f trafc signals on Tram Foad and Merin Street

- Design and consiruction of the new Hepbum Moad extension to provide new road and pedesirian connections,

& [Road Improvement Progeam

T jintegrated Transpart Daiver short term acians In the Transport ACen Flan and the Sus Asticn Flan Including contmeating 1o planning of the Suburban Rall Loop and Doncaster Busway.
& feommunity Infrastructure Blan Davelap a lang term Faan, Draft by 30 Jun 2021
Deliver 3 minimum of 50 education faor the on protection and smarter IMng. rEacnIng at least 3000

o [Education and Awareness Program

10 |Drainage mmras = S':unue 70 Upgrade Counchl drainage INfrastrciure o protect Nabllabie Nioor [evels and IMgeove commUnty Safety WIth ImpIementanen of priority aclicns of Te Municpal Dranage

11 jLead envronmental praclbos mlOP ana
Vibrant and Prosperous Economy

s
(Well Governed Council

13 Long tem sustalnably Prepars a 10 Year Long Term Financlal Plan and Annual Budget Incorporaing key strategles 1o address the lang erm sustainatility of Councll by 30 June 2021

# ata Caunel Strategy and an Climate Emirgancy Response Plan

f Through our Cizen Connect program. we will make It @asy for citizens to Interact with ws, ind out Information, request a service, provide feedback or repart an lssue . Implement 3 sulte
14 [Make It easler for ciizens to Interact witn
easlar for cliizens e v of customer focused Improvements to Increase Contact Centre First Contact Resolution (FCR) and Improve Custormen Sabstaction by 30 June 2021,
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4. " Progress Key
ajor Initiatives —

HE A l.THY [:0 M M U N ITY 1.1 A healthy, resilient and safe community

s Target

1.2 A connected and inclusive community

A

Community Health and Promote a connected and I |
Wellbeing inclusive community Community Infrastructure Plan

. — 0% 20%  40%  60%  BO%  100%
0%  20%  40% 0%  BO%  100% 0% 20% 40%  60% 80%  100%

We progressed the Healthy City Action Plan During the quarter Council's draft ) Community Infrastructure Needs

with a number of targeted consultations were Reconcilliation Action Plan has been submitted Analysis is complete. Next step is to

held with Council's advisory committees, to the Wurundjeri Woli-wurrung Corporation develop a more refined list of priorities

working groups and networks; and including Board and Reconciliation Australia for to inform future planning. Project on
comment. Planning is also underway for track

young people, carers of people with a
disability, early years, Wurundjeri Woi-
wurrung Corporation and culturally diverse
communities

Mational Reconciliation Week and a culturally
diverse communitieis forum to be held by 30
June,

LI V EA B LE FLﬂ ES 2.2 Enhanced parks, open space and streetscapes

2.2 Well connected, safe and accessible travel

2.4 Well utilised and maintained community infrastructure

L,

Local planning is responsive to
need and planning laws

0% 20%  40%  60%  BO%  100%
We are furthering recommenaations of the Flanning

Scheme Review including the translation of local policies
into the new Planning Policy Framework (PPF) ready for

Parks Improvement Program

0%  20% 40%  60%  BO%  100%
Design works for Hepburn Road Park and tender documentation

calling for an Expression of Interest process for the art commission
are underway. For the Warrandyte connection to the Main Yarra

Council consideration in Quarter 2. Officers continue to Trail, a tender process is underway to appoint a contractor to
advocate for and respond to State Government planning construct the 410 metre shared path along Taroona Avenue in
initiatives, including the Bulleen Precinct Landuse Warrandyte to connect to the Warrandyte River Reserve. Works on
Framework Plan and Amendment C125 (Yarra Valley this section are extected to start in Quarter 4. The next stage of this
Country Club) which will be the subject of a Panel and shared path connection, from Pound Road to Taroona Avenue, is in
Advisory Panel Hearing in January 2021. the concept design phase, informed by community feedback.

Roads Improvement Program Integrated Transport North East Link Project
— — —
3 . . . . .

o aow  agw cow  som  100% 0% 20%  40%  60%  B0%  100% 0% 20%  40% 0% B0%  100%
Road projects at Knees Road and Hepburn We are delivering_the short term actions of Councl continues to work with NELP on the new
underway and scheduled for completing by June  the Transport Action Plan and Bus Action Plan Bulleen Park and Ride Facility. The Urban Design
30. Jumping Creek Road (Stage 1) is complete. with input into the Doncaster Hill Framework and Landscape Plan and Community Engagement

i - and Liveable City Strategies and preparing for Report has been aparoved by the Minister. We are
Design for remaining stages on target to be the surburban Rail Loop Environment Effects noa workin throupph the vaflous construction
developed by end of financial year, Tram Road Statement anticipated in early 2021 {subject traffic im acgt assesimenl and urba de: o
design awaiting Department of Transport to government announcement) and we will P n n B

approval; negotiations have also delayed make submissions to the process outcomes of the Facility.

construction into next financial year.
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Maijor Initiatives cont.

RESILIENT

ENVIRONMENT

AN
AN
AN

Council Drainage protects habitable
floor levels and community safety

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Improvements with major projects completed
include Lilian Street and David Street, Warrandtye
and Rose Avenue, Bulleen . Works in the Hamal
Street, Donvale are currently underway with an
expected completion in May 2021, The completed
works are expected to protect around 10 houses and
many more properties that previously flooded during
major storms events. Flood mapping data continues
to be used to assess new developments.

VIBRANT AND
PROSPEROUS ECONOMY

~

Lead Environmental Practices

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

A consultant has been appointed to assist
in the preparation of the Climate
Emergency Plan in response to Council's
Climate Emergecy declaration. With a
Environment Strategy also being
prepared, the Strategy and Climate
Emergency Plan will be released for
public consultation together.

Progress Key

I Actual
e Target

3.1 Protect and enhance our environment and biodiversity

3.2 Reduce our environmental impact and adapt to climate change

~

Environmental education
and awareness

0% 20% 40% 60% a0% 100%

We held community education and awareness
programs and events, Doncaster Hill community
garden working bees, garden waste disposal and
waste drop off days, a Nature Walk, Clean Up
Australia Day events, Partnerships events included
the 2021 Learning for Sustainability Conference,
the Learn 2 Lead Student Leadership program with
the ‘How to Save Energy at Home' webinar (by the
Australian Energy Foundation), an iNaturalist
webinar and a Equiculture Horse Property
Management Course,

4.1 Grow our local business, tourism and economy

Grow the visitor economy

[+ 200 a0% 60% BO%  100%

WELL GOVERNED

COUNCIL

+0e
()
Making it easier for citizens
to interact with us

Toimprove our customer
experience, online Live chat was
introduced late last year with
customers readily using the
channel with an average of 85%
satisfaction. Results from the
voice of customer pulse surveys
are informing the intranet and

We continue to support Tourism and related industries
as they recommence by working closely with partner
Yarra Ranges Tourism to ensure information, support and
advice is provided to all operators in a timely fashion.
We have been working with operators to obtain all
necessary permits and approvals.

Council has also worked with business, local artists and
performers to create a series of COVID safe activations to
enhance visitation and interest in key locations within
Manningham.

Key: Monitoring Progress

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Target e

Actua| E—

*Target is usually 25% cumulative
across the project timeframe

In the example above, the project

is 20% complete with a target of 35%

5.1 A financially sustainable Council that manages
resources effectively and efficiently

5.2 A Council that values citizens in all that we do

Long Term Sustainability

- - N
website redevelopment project, S
= as well as other Council processes
for swimming pool registrations 0% 20%  40%  6O%  8O0%

0% 20% 40% 60% B0%

100%  and Disability Parking Permits.

The 10 year long term financial plan
is being informed through our new
deliberative community
engagement process. The Plan and
the 2021/22 Budget are developed
in line with key budget principles to
maintain long term financial
sustainability and strategies to
address rate capping, the financial
impact of State Government
restrictions associated with COVID-
19 on Council services and the
Community and other financial
challenges.
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I
9. Councillor Expenses

An allocation of $12,770 for each Counciller and $15,375 for the Mayor is budgeted each financial year to reimburse Councillors for expenses

incurred while carrying out their official roles.

Significant demands are placed on Councillors in carrying out their civic and statutory roles attending community meetings and events, capacity
building and advocacy meetings in pursuit of the best outcomes for the municipality. The Mayor has a slightly higher allowance as they are required
to carry out additional civic and ceremonial duties.

The Councillor Allowance and Support Policy guides the reimbursement of Councillor expenses. This budget is all inclusive and covers conferences
and training, travel, child minding and information and communications technology expenses. As part of Council's commitment to remaining
accountable and transparent, these expenses will be presented to the community each quarter.

Categories include: Travel (including accommodation, cab charges), Car Mileage, Childcare, Information and Communication Technology,
Conferences and Training (including professional development, workshops), General Office Expenses (including meeting incidentals), Formal
Attendances (includine community events and functions) and Other (publications).

Quarter 3, January - March 2021

_ Information . General . Allowance

Car . o Conferences X Formal X Yearto Allowance

) care Communication - Office Other Total Qtr (Financi
Mileage & Training Attendance Date (Pro-rata)

(=]

Councillor Travel

Technology Expenses Year)
CrA Chen S0 596 S0 50 S0 50 S0 S0 596 5282 58,799 512,898
(Deputy Mayor) ! !
CrAConlon S0 30 50 50 S0 £109 S0 S0 $109 £324 $9,994 414,650
(Mayar)

Cr D Diamante S0 30 S0 $0 S0 S0 S0 32,670 $2,670 | $2,670 £8,799 412,898
Cr G Gough S0 S0 50 S0 S0 50 S0 S0 S0 S0 58,799 $12,898
Cr M Kleinert 553 50 50 5145 S0 50 S0 S0 5199 5562 58,799 512,898
CrC Lange S0 30 S0 $0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 £8,799 412,898
Cr T Lightbody S0 4408 50 S0 S0 50 S0 50 5408 5448 58,799 412,898
Cr L Mayne S0 S0 50 S0 S0 &0 S0 S0 S0 S0 58,799 412,893
Cr s Mayne S0 30 S0 $0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 £8,799 412,898

Notes for the Quarter
MNew Councillors were sworn in on 10 November 2020. Allowances for the remainder of financial year is on a pro-rata basis.
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The Chief Executive Officer incurs various expenditure while carrying out duties relating to the CEO role.
Expense categories related specifically to the CEO role are travel, conferences and seminars and miscellaneous. Gifts declared are also
included in this report although not an expense to Council. The CEQ is required to be transparent in the use of Council resources as per the

Employee Code of Conduct.

Quarter 3, January - March 2021

Food and Conferences
Travel Gifts declared Miscellaneous Total Qtr Total Year

Beverage and Seminars
Andrew Day $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 S0 S0 $0.00 $0.00
Notes:
All costs are GST exclusive

Expense categories

Travel

This category covers costs associated with assisting the CEO in meeting transport costs incurred whilst attending meetings, functions and
conferences. This includes taxi services, uber services, car parking fees, airfares, accommodation costs etc.

Food and Beverage
This category covers costs associated with food or beverages that directly relate to the CEO role within a professional context.

Conferences and Seminars

This category covers registration fees associated with attendance by the CEQ at conferences, functions and seminars. Meetings such as
these are normally held by local government related organisations, professional bodies and institutions, educational institutions and private
sector providers on areas and events which support the role of the CEO or impact on the City in general.

Gifts Declared
This category relates to any gifts that exceed the token gift threshold ($50.00) that the CEQ is required to declare as per the Token Gift Policy.
This category is not added to the total expenses as it is a declaration not a cost to Council.

Miscellaneous

This category relates to any other costs associated with the CEO role not covered by the categories above.
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13.2 Report on the Conduct of the 2020 General Elections

File Number: IN21/202
Responsible Director:  Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: 1 Manningham City Council Election Report §

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In accordance with Regulation 83 of the Local Government (Electoral) Regulations
2020, this report presents to Council the Victorian Electoral Commission’s report on the
conduct of the general elections held in October 2020.

1. RECOMMENDATION

That Council note the Victorian Electoral Commission’s report on the conduct of
the 2020 general elections as shown at attachment 1.

2. BACKGROUND
Local government elections were held across Victoria in October 2020. The elections
were conducted by the Victorian Electoral Commission (VEC), as the statutory election
service provider in accordance with section 263(1) of the Local Government Act 2020

(the Act). The Minister for Local Government determined the uniform voting method for
the conduct of all elections to be by post.

3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE

The Election Report details the operational aspects of the conduct of the general
elections and includes a detailed analysis of voting and voter participation.

In accordance with regulation 83 of the Local Government (Electoral) Regulations

2020, this report presents to Council the VEC’s Election Report on the conduct of the
2020 General Elections.

4. COUNCIL PLAN/STRATEGY

General Elections are conducted in accordance with the Local Government Act 2020
and form the basis of Council’s good governance in the sound stewardship of the City.

5. IMPACTS AND IMPLICATIONS

This report is presented for information in accordance with Council’s obligations under
the Local Government (Electoral) Regulations 2020.

6. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No Officers involved in the preparation of this report have any general or material
conflict of interest in this matter.

Item 13.2 Page 180




COUNCIL AGENDA 25 MAY 2021

2020 Local government elections
Manningham City Council

Election Report

Victorian
Electoral
Commission
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Victorian
Electoral
Commission

© State of Victoria
(Victorian Electoral Commission)
April 2021

This work, the Manningham City
Council Election Report Local
Government elections 2020 is
licensed under a Creative
Commons Attribution 4.0 licence
[http://creativecommons.org/licen
ses/by/4.0/]. You are free to share
this work under that licence, on
the condition that you do not
change any content and you
credit the State of Victeria
(Victerian Electoral Commission)
as author and comply with the
other licence terms. The licence
does not apply to any branding,
including Government logos.

Level 11, 530 Collins Strest
Melbourne Victoria 3000
T131832
info@vec.vic.gov.ou
vec.wvic.gov.au

Acknowledgement of Country

The Victorian Electoral Commission pays respect to Victoria's traditional owners and their elders past
and present who have been custodians of this country for many thousands of years. Their living culture

and their role in the life of Victoria is acknowledged by the VEC.
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Letter of Transmittal

19 April 2021

Mr Andrew Day

Chief Executive Officer
Manningham City Council
PO BOX 1

DONCASTER VIC 3108

Dear Mr Day

Pursuant to Regulation 83 of the Local Government (Electoral) Regulations 2020, | submit this report to
the Chief Executive Officer of Manningham City Council on the general election held in October 2020.

Yours sincerely

I

Warwick Gately AM

Electoral Commissioner
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Manningham City Council

Introduction

The Victorian local government general
elections are held every four years as
defined by the Local Government Act 2020
(Vic) (LG Act). In 2020, general elections
were held for 76 of the 79 Victorian councils’
with Saturday 24 October marking election
day. In accordance with section 263(1) of the
LG Act, the Victorian Electoral Commission
(VEC) is the statutory election service provider
for the conduct of local government elections
in Victoria.

This report provides information on the 2020
Manningham City Council general election
including details of the end-to-end service
delivery of electoral activities throughout the
election timeline. This report also provides
details of post-election items including
compulsory voting enforcement.

About the Victorian Electoral
Commission

The VEC is an independent statutory authority
established under the Electoral Act 2002 (Vic)
(the Electoral Act). The VEC’s principal
functions are to conduct Stote elections,

local government elections, certain statutory

elections and polls, commercial and community

elections, and to support electoral
representation processes for local councils and
the Electoral Boundaries Commission for State
electoral boundaries. The VEC is also
responsible for maintaining the Victorian
register of electors and administering political
funding and denation disclosure laws. The VEC
has a mandated role to conduct electoral
research, provide communication and
education services, and inform and engage
Victorians in the democratic process.

Warwick Gately AM is the appointed Electoral
Commissioner and Liz Williams is the appointed
Deputy Electoral Commissicner. The Electoral
Commissioner and Deputy Electoral
Commissioner report to the Victorian
Parlioment in relation to the VEC’s operations
and activities.

' The Scuth Gippsland Shire Council was placed into
administration in mid-2019. The Council’s general election
has been postponed until Cetober 2021, Casey City
Council and Whittlesea City Council were placed into

The Electoral Commissioner heads the VEC’s
Executive Management Group that comprises
the Deputy Electoral Commissioner, the
Executive Director, Corporate Services and
seven Directors, each leading the main
functional areas of the VEC. Each Director acts
as subject matter experts within their legislative
responsibilities under the LG Act and the
Electoral Act.

The VEC has a dedicated local government
election program which is managed by Katring
Collins and incarporates a range of programs,
projects and activities that are supported
through strategic planning, project
management, and process mapping. The
program is overseen by the VEC’s Planning
Group and has sponsorship from the Executive
Management Group.

administration in early 2020, The Councils’ general
elections have been postponed until Cetober 2024,
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Key changes

Changes in legislation

The new LG Act received royal assent on 24 March 2020 and introduced a number of changes, some
requiring immediate implementation and others to be implemented progressively. Those requiring
immediate implementation had a significant impact on the 2020 local government election program.

Following the LG Act completing its passage through Parliament, the VEC implemented the necessary
changes to the 2020 local government election program in response to the reforms as they applied to

the elections.

The key changes from the LG Act are as follows:

Local government electoral
structures

Veting system

Enrolment and voters” rolls

Candidate qualifications

Neminations/candidate
statements

Election staff

Extraordinary vacancies

Compulsory voting

The default electoral structure for all local councils is single-counciller wards,
although some regicnal and rural local councils may be unsubdivided or
divided into wards with equal numbers of councillors in each ward.

The VEC is no longer responsible for conducting electoral representation
reviews of all local councils In Victoria.

An independent Local Government Electoral Representation Advisory Panel will
review council electoral structures. The panel includles the Electoral
Commissioner and other members appointed by the Minister for Local
Government.

The voting system (attendance or postal) is set by the Minister for Local
Government.

All local council elections are conducted according to the same voting system.

Mon-resident property owners need to apply to be enrclled (this change will be
implemented in stages leading up to the 2024 local government elections).

Amendments to the voters’ roll are completed by the VEC only (excluding
Melbourne City Council).

It is compulsory for local government candidates to complete mandatory
training prior to nominating for local government elections.

When nominating, candidates are required to declare they have completed the
mandatory Local Government Candidate Training.

The maximum number of werds for a candidate statement was increased to
300 (350 for the Melbourne City Council Leadership Team and Councillor
Groups).

The term ‘Election Manager’ replaced ‘Returning Officer’ making the term
consistent with the Electoral Act 2002,

The VEC will fix the timeline for local council by-elections (previcusly fixed by
the Minister).
Changes to the countback process which now drows on o broader pool of

ballot papers to determine the successful candidate ot a countback.

From the 2024 local government general elections onwards, it will be
compulsory for everyone enrclled on o voters’ roll to vote.

Election Report Loeal Government elections 2020 2

Item 13.2 Attachment 1

Page 186



COUNCIL AGENDA

25 MAY 2021

Manningham City Council

The LG Act made other changes to the local
government electoral landscape, including:

+ operational and technical provisions for
electoral matters are now prescribed in the
Regulations rather than being contained in
the LG Act.

+ disputed election results are now heard by
the Victorian Civil and Administrative

Tribunal (VCAT).

On 8 May 2020, the Minister determined® all of
the 2020 general elections would be held by
postal voting. As such, the VEC adjusted
preparations in response to the Minister’s
determination.

In addition, new Local Government (Electoral)
Regulations 2020 (the Regulations) came into
operation on 13 July 2020.

Response to public health crisis:
Coronavirus (COVID-19)

In response to the coronavirus (COVID-19)
global pandemic, a State of Emergency was
declared in Victoria on 16 March 2020. While
the VEC was well advanced in planning for the
elections, some uncertainty arose due to
speculation that the elections could be
rescheduled.

Following the Local Government Minister’s
confirmation on 15 May 2020 that the 2020
local government elections would proceed, the
VEC’s operating model was adjusted to deliver
a compliant election while meeting health,
safety, social distancing and hygiene
obligations to voters, election staff, councils,
candidates and all other stakeholders.

On Wednesday 1 September 2020, the
Governor in Council made amendments to the
regulations to allow certain provisions to be
varied in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Specifically, the amendments allowed the VEC
to determine an appropriate method for eligible
candidates to lodge their nomination form and
pay their nomination fee electronically; and to
allow the Election Manager to determine the
maximum number of scrutineers that may be
present for any activity at any one time. The
amended regulations commenced the day after

2 The Minister published this decision in the Government
Gazette on 18 May 2020

they were made and remain in place until
26 April 2021

On 29 September 2020, the Governor in
Council made further changes to the
Regulations to provide greater clarity of
mitigation options for any disruptions to the
voting timeline, including delays across the
postal network that could threaten the integrity
of the elections. The changes allowed the
Electoral Commissioner to alter the last day of
voting and/or the extended postal vote receipt
deadline if necessary, to maintain and protect
election integrity.

The VEC developed a COVIDSafe Election Plan?
in consultation with the Department of Health
and Human Services which complemented the
VEC’s Service Plan. The COVIDSafe Election
Plan outlined the VEC’s actions and strategies
to deliver safe and compliant local government
elections.

The plan considered all electoral operations
and activities and included changes such as
(but not limited to):

» gecguiring larger election office spaces to
accommeodate social distancing proctices

» moving operations from face-to-face to
online (when legislation permitted), for
example:

— the VEC's briefing meetings with individual
councils

— the candidate information sessions

» medifying the timeline for ballot paper
extraction and counting activities

« modifying scrutineer practices.

The VEC acknowledges the collaboration and
contributions of council officers in navigating
the changes required to the program due to
COVID-19.

% VEC COVIDSafe election plan’ -
https://www.vec.vic.gov.au/about-us/publicaticns/local -
council-election-reports-and-plans
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Election dates

The key timelines that applied to the 2020 local government elections were as follows.

Deadline fixed by the VEC for council primary enrclment data
Close of roll

Opening of the election office to the public

Certification of the voters’ roll and opening of nominations
Close of nominations

*Ballot draw

*Deadline for lodging candidate statements, photographs and
questionnaires

*General mail out of ballot packs to voters

*Close of voting
Day prescribed as Election Day
*Close of extended postal vote receipt period

Declaration of election results

*Dates with asterisks relate to contested elections only.

Monday 13 July 2020

4 pm Friday 28 August 2020
Wednesday 16 September 2020
Thursday 17 September 2020

12 noon Tuesday 22 September 2020
From 1 pm on Tuesday 22 September 2020
12 noon Wednesday 23 September 2020
Tuesday & October to

Thursday 8 October 2020

& pm Friday 23 October 2020

Saturday 24 October 2020

12 noon Friday 30 October 2020

Ne later than Friday 13 November 2020
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About Manningham
City Council

Manningham City Council is comprised of
nine councillors elected from single councillor
wards.

The electoral structure was last reviewed in
accordance with the Local Government Act 1989
through an electoral representation review in
2019.

Subsequent to the review, in April 2020 the
structure of Manningham City Council was
determined by the Minister in accordance with
the new LG Act.

Schramm  Waldau

‘Ward ‘Ward

Figure 1: The electoral structure of
Manningham City Council at the general
election held on 24 October 2020.

Voters’ roll

The VEC prepared the voters’ roll for the election
under section 8(2)(c) of the Electoral Act and in
accordance with section 249 of the LG Act. The
close of roll for the election was 4 pm on Friday
28 August 2020. Pursuant to section 242(4) of the
LG Act, the VEC certified the voters’ roll on
Thursday 17 September 2020.

At certification, the voters® roll for the 2020
Manningham City Council general election
included 87,255 enrclled voters.

Composition of the voters’ roll

The LG Act specifies that the voters® roll for a local
government election is formed by combining two
separate lists of voters.

1. The Electoral Commissioner’s list (EC list) — List
of State electors that are enrolled within that
local government area.

2. The Chief Executive Officer’s list (CEO list) —
List of council-entitled voters.

Refer to Appendix 1 for a breakdown of the
Manningham City Council general election
voters’ roll.

Amendments to the voters’ roll

In accordance with section 250 of the LG Act, the
VEC is able to amend any error or omission in the
preparation, printing or copying of the voters’ roll,
or correct any misnomer or inaccurate description
of any person, place or thing on the voters’ roll.
Following the passage of the LG Act,
amendments to the voters’ roll are to be certified
by the VEC. All voters added to the roll were
issued with a ballot pack. Where a voter was
deleted from the roll after the mail-out of ballot
material, the VEC had systems in place to ensure
that returned ballot papers from the deleted
voters could be identified and excluded from the
extraction and count. Where roll amendments
were required, the total number of voters on the
rall was updated.

Following the close of roll, the VEC made one
amendment to the voters® roll (o deletion).

Advertising and
communication
campaign
State-wide advertising

The VEC delivered a state-wide advertising
campaign to maximise public awareness and
participation amongst all eligible voters.
Campaign activities and consistent messaging
were delivered across two phases - enrolment
and voting — and through multiple traditional and
emerging mediums, including radio, digital and
social media, and offline/outdoor advertising.
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Statutory advertising

The VEC published o series of statutory notices
throughout the election as required by the LG
Act. The notices included critical information

relevant to each milestone of the election timeline.

For the 2020 statutory notices, Manningham City
Council nominated the following newspaper for
the statutory natices to appear in:

» The Age

In 2020, the VEC established a new policy
position for statutory advertising in alignment
with the updated definition of ‘publish® in the LG
Act. The policy position included the following:

all statutory and non-statutory election
advertising would be published on the VEC
website, and

+ where available, all statutory and non-
statutory election advertising would be
published in local newspapers and/or other
selected newspapers identified following
consultation with the council.

Refer to Appendix 2 for further information in
relation to the statutory advertising.

VEC website

The VEC provided council specific information
regarding the election on its website under the
‘2020 local council election’ page. The VEC
website went live for the local government
elections in early August 2020. Whilst some
council specific data remained static during the
election, the website was regularly updated with
content relevant to the election and at each key
milestone such as close of roll, nominations,
voting and results.

Media liaison

An online media webinar was held on Friday 21
August 2020. The webinar could be downloaded
or accessed at a later time for those who were
unable to participate live. The media briefing
summarised the planning and timeline for the
2020 local government elections, and also
provided a specific update in relation to the
availability of election results in light of COVID-19.

Media outlets were provided with a media
information booklet that outlined the election

timeline and key messages, and provided the
VEC’s head office media contacts. The VEC’s
communication team supported each Election
Manager as the primary media spokesperson in
relation to each election.

The VEC’s media liaison program principally
featured staged media releases aimed to
highlight key milestones during the election
timeline, and capitalise on existing general news
coverage. More information on the VEC’s media
release schedule is avoilable at Appendix 3.

Social media campaign

As part of its state-wide advertising campaign,
the VEC used paid promotions on social media
platforms including Facebook, Twitter, Instagram,
Linkedln, Snapchat and WeChat, targeting voters
through audience segmentation.

This advertising was supported by a defined
timeline of organic social media posts on the
VEC’s channels, designed to cover each of the
key messages of the communication campaign to
further extend the reach to the community and
promote conversation about the democratic
process.

VEC VoterAlert advisories

Electors on the State enrclment register are able
to sign up to the VEC’s free SMS or email alert
service VoterAlert, to receive reminder messages
pertinent to elections that affect them. They can
subscribe to receive SMS messages only, email
only, or both SMS and email.

During the general election, the VEC used its
VoterAlert service to send the following direct
messages to those State-enrolled voters on the
roll for the election.

The messages were rolled out in the following
schedule:

Wednesday 19 August to Wednesday 26 August
2020 - 59,635 VoterAlert messages were sent by
SMS and email reminding voters to enrol or
update their details by the close of roll.

Friday 9 October to Friday 13 October 2020 -
60,991 VoterAlert messages were sent by SMS and
email advising that the VEC had commenced
posting ballot packs.

Monday 19 October 2020 — 12,686 VoterAlert
messages were sent by SMS and email reminding
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voters that it was the last week to post their ballot
material back to the VEC.

In mid-October, the VEC commenced sending its
final VoterAlert — a reminder to post ballot packs
by the voting deadline. Whilst approximately
200,000 of the 1.8 million voters scheduled to
receive an alert were contacted it was identified
that an unanticipated high volume of calls was
received by both the VEC and councils as a result
of the alert. Therefore, the VEC suspended the
VoterAlert messages scheduled for the remaining
00,000 voters.

More information on the VEC’s VoterAlert
advisories is available at Appendix k.

Voter engagement

The VEC delivered an extensive voter engagement
program. The program sessions were
implemented throughout Victoria and were
specific to local demographics. Please refer to
Appendix 5 to view the full list of initiotives for
the 2020 local government elections. Due to the
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, the VEC’s
programs traditionally offered through face-to-
face education and engagement were redesigned
to comply with health, safety, social distancing
and hygiene obligations.

Blind and low vision services

Braille and large print ballot material was
avdilable to blind and low vision voters who
had registered for these products by 5 pm on
Tuesday 15 September 2020.

The VEC received and processed requests for one
braille ballet material and seven large print ballot
material for Manningham City Council.

Interpreting services

The VEC engaged the Victorian Interpreting and
Language Services’ Language Link to provide a
telephone interpreting service for telephone
enquiries from voters who had a first language
other than English. The VEC advertised direct lines
for 20 languages other than English and a
general line for all other languages.

Telephone enquiry service

A local telephone enquiry service was provided at
the election office from Wednesday 16 September

2020 until the close of voting, for enquiries
regarding the election.

The local telephone enquiry service was
supplemented by an overflow call centre at the
VEC’s head office. The overflow call centre
received calls made directly to the VEC’s head
office line (131 VEC, 131 832 or +61 3 8620 1100 for
callers outside of Australia) and diverted calls
from the election office when the election office
lines were at capacity. Additionally, emdil
enguiries were received and processed through
info@vec.vic.gov.ou.

The types of calls that are typical during an
election relate to:

« voting entitlements and compulsary voting
obligations

« enrolment questions
+ ballot pack had not been received

+ ballot material was spoilt or destroyed, so
replacement ballot material was required

» a voter advising that they were overseas or
interstate

+ queries regarding the content of the ballot
pack.

A breakdown of the daily number of calls received
by the telephone enquiry service and the overflow
call centre in respect to the election is available at

Appendix 6.

Election Manager

The VEC maintains a pool of trained senior
election officials located across the state to fill
election management roles for State and local
government elections. Election-specific training is
provided to senior election officials prior to each
election management appointment.

The size of the election management team
appointed for the conduct of an election is based
on the size of the council. As required under the
LG Act an Election Manager is appointed to
conduct the election and is supported by one or
more Assistant Election Managers for larger
councils, or a senior election official for smaller
councils.
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In accordance with section 3 of the LG Act, the
Electoral Commissioner appointed Brian Kelly as
the Election Manager for the 2020 Manningham
City Council general election.

The oppointed Assistant Election Manager was
Regina Ku.

Midway through the counts Regina Ku became
Election Manager, and Alison Bruce was
appointed Assistant Election Manager.

Election office

The Election Manager was responsible for the
establishment and management of the election
office located at Office 7, The Point Corporate
Centre, 600 Doncaster Road, Doncaster. The
election office premises were provided by

the VEC.

In accordance with the VEC’s COVIDSafe election
plan, the election office was open to the public by
appointment only. The election office was
available for appointments from Wednesday 16
September until Friday 23 October 2020 between
@ amand 5 pm. Opening hours were extended on
Thursday 22 October (2 am to 8 pm) and Friday
23 October (§ am to 6 pm) to allow for final
enquiries and the hand-delivery of ballots prior to
the close of voting. Enguiries regarding the
election were also managed by phone.

Candidates

Nominations for the election opened at @ am on
Thursday 17 September and closed at 12 noon on
Tuesday 22 September 2020. Candidates were
required to lodge their nomination forms in person
at the election office. A $250 nomination fee
applied.

On Wednesday 9 September 2020, the Electoral
Commissioner published a determination®
establishing a framework for prospective
candidates who were prevented from attending
the election office due to health directions
regarding COVID-19 under the Public Health and
Wellbeing Act 2008. The determination outlined
provisions for electronic lodgement of the

¥ WEC 2020 Determination No.l - Nominatians from
candidates impacted by COVID-19 Public Health Directions in
raspect to local government elections -

nomination form and nomination fee for affected
candidates.

Candidate information

The VEC developed a suite of resources that were
accessible to prospective candidates prior to the
nomination period. From early September,
candidates were able to access the VEC’s
information about the process of nominating and
becoming a candidate for the election. The VEC’s
online Candidate Helper, accessible via the VEC
website, went live on Thursday 3 September
2020. The Candidate Helper enabled candidates
to pre-complete their nomination form and other
forms online before lodging them with the Election
Manager.

For the 2020 elections, the VEC’s candidate
information session was recorded and available
for online streaming from the VEC website. The
session was complemented by three state-wide

interactive seminars consisting of a panel from
the VEC’s leadership and executive teams.

Nominations

At the close of nominations, 41 candidates had
nominated for election to council.

The following is a breakdown of candidate
nominations per ward:

+ Bolin Ward - four neminations

+ Currawong Ward - four nominations
« Manna Ward - four nominations

« Ruffey Ward - five nominations

« Schramm Ward - four nominations

» Tullamore Ward - four nominations

+ Waldau Ward - six nominations

.

Westerfolds Ward - six nominations
« Yarra Ward - four nominations
Ballot draws to determine the order in which the

names would appear on the ballot paper were
held at the election office following the close of

https://www.vec.vic.gov.au/abeout-
us/legislation/determinaticns
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nominations using the VEC’s computerised ballot
draw application.

See Appendix 7 for the list of candidates in ballot
draw order.

Candidate statements and photos

In accordance with Regulation 39 of the
Regulations, candidates were able to lodge a 300
word statement and submit a recent photograph
for inclusion in the ballot packs sent to voters.
The deadline for the submission of candidate
statements and photographs was 12 noon on
Wednesday 23 September 2020.

See Appendix 7.1 for o breakdown of submitted
statements and photos, and 7.2 for the sample
website version product.

Candidate questionnaires

In accordance with Regulation 43 of the
Regulations, candidates were able to complete
and lodge their answers to a set of prescribed
questions in addition to a statement and
photograph. The Election Manager accepted
questionnaire submissions lodged by all 41
candidates at the election.

The completed questionnaires were cccessible to
voters on the VEC website or by contacting the
election office.

Voting

Redirection of ballot packs

The Regulations provide that a voter may - no
later than the day the roll is certified (or a later
date if specified by the Election Manager under
Regulation 22(2)(f) of the Regulations) — make a
request in writing to the Election Manager to have
their postal ballot envelope redirected to another
address. For the 2020 elections voters had until
Thursday 17 September to submit requests for
redirection.

The Election Manager received 19 requests for
redirection of ballot packs for the election.

Early votes
A voter may request an early postal ballot

envelope (early vote) prior to the general mail out
of ballot packs. The Election Manager processes

the request and issues the early vote if the
request is assessed as reasonable. Requests for
early votes could be processed from

Wednesday 23 September 2020, the day after
nominations closed, until the commencement of
the general mail out of ballot packs on Tuesday 6
October 2020. Due to the timing of early votes,
some early voters may not have had access to the
candidate statements, photographs or
questionnaires.

Due to the impact that COVID-19 restrictions had
on election services for the 2020 elections,
requests for early votes were managed by
appointment.

The Election Manager issued four early votes for
the election.

Malil-out of ballot packs

The VEC mailed 87,250 ballot packs between
Tuesday 6 October and Thursday 8 October
2020. See Appendix B for a breakdown of the
packs mailed out on each day during the general
mail-out, noting that ballot packs were not mailed
to any voters that had passed away between the
close of the roll and generation of the mail-out
file.

This included 19 ballot packs that were redirected
to alternative addresses for voters that had
applied to redirect their ballot pack by

Thursday 17 September 2020.

In accordance with Regulation 49(3) of the
Regulations, no more than 35% of ballot packs
were mailed or delivered to voters on any one day
during the mail out period. All ballot packs were
lodged with Australia Post under the priority paid
delivery timetable.

The VEC licised closely with Australia Post during
the mail out period to confirm that ballot packs
had been delivered to voters. The VEC received
confirmation that all ballot packs had been
delivered to delivery addresses by Wednesday 14
October 2020.

During the voting period, 1,142 ballot packs were
returned to the election office by Australia Post as
return-to-sender mail. Most of this mail was due
to the addressee not residing ot the address.

Election office counter services

In arder to safeguard the health and wellbeing of
voters and VEC personnel in the COVID-19
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environment, the VEC did not provide an over-
the-counter replacement or unenrolled vote
service at election offices in the Metropolitan
Melbourne region (including Mitchell Shire
Council) for the elections. Similar restrictions were
initially imposed on election offices in Regional
Victoria and were relaxed in the final weeks of
voting. Voters were advised to request
replacement or unenrolled ballot material by
phone, which was sent to them by post.

Unenrolled votes

Unenrolled votes are issued to people whose name
cannot be found on the voters’ roll but who claim
they are entitled to vote at the election. The
unenrolled ballot pack includes a declaration that
is signed by the applicant and assessed by the
Election Manager prior to either admitting or
disallowing the vote.

The Election Manager issued 20 unenrolled votes
and following relevant checks, three were
admitted to the count.

Replacement ballot packs

Following the general mail-out of ballot packs, a
voter who claimed that their ballot pack had not
been received, or had been lost, spoilt or
destroyed, could apply to the Election Manager
for a replacement ballot pack. Requests for
replacement ballot packs within metropolitan
councils were processed and fulfilled at the
election office then lodged at the local postal
facility. In order to assist in the mail turnaround
time for regional councils, the VEC established a
centralised postal vote issuing service at head
office. Replacement vote requests were processed
at the election office and fulfilled and lodged with
Australia Post from the VEC in Melbourne.

The Election Manager issued 1,342 replacement
ballot packs across all wards during the voting
period. Please refer to Schedule 1 for further
information on replacement ballot packs issued.

Return of ballot paper envelopes

Voters were provided with a priority reply-paid
envelope for the return of their ballot paper
envelope containing their completed ballot paper.
The return mail was delivered to the election office
from local postal facilities or mail distribution

5 VEC COVIDSafe election plan’ -
https://www.vec.vic.gov.au/about-us/publications/local-
council-election-reperts-and-plans

centres. Voters who chose to hand-deliver their
vote to the election office were able to do so by
placing their ballot paper envelope containing
their completed ballot paper into ballot boxes
located at the election office. The ballot boxes
allowed voters to drop off their ballot envelopes
without interaction with staff, therefore remaining
compliant with a COVIDSafe election®.

As ballot paper envelopes were returned, they
were progressively checked by the election
management team to ensure they had been
signed by the voter. Additionally, processes were
in place to ensure that only one returned ballot
from any one voter could proceed to the
extraction and count.

The Election Manager received a total of 64,984
returned ballot paper envelopes across all wards
by the close of voting at 6 pm on Friday 23
October 2020.

The Regulations provide that the Election
Manager can accept returned ballot paper
envelopes up until 12 noon on the Friday following
the close of voting, if satisfied that the ballot
paper envelope was completed by the voter prior
to the close of voting. The Election Manager
accepted 12,402 ballot paper envelopes across all
wards during the extended postal vote receipt
period.

The total returned ballot paper envelopes for
Manningham City Council was /7,386.

The Election Manager set aside 1,775 returned
ballot paper envelopes that were not admitted to
the extraction and counting process due to the
voter not having signed the declaration envelope
or, in the case of unenrolled declaration votes, an
entitlement was not found for the person, or the
declaration envelope was not returned with the
vote.

Refer to Schedule 1 for the total certified record
of ballot papers and declaration envelopes across
all wards.
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Results

Extraction

Atotal of 75,611 ballet paper envelopes were
admitted to the extraction process.

The extraction of ballot papers occurred at the
election office commencing on Monday 26
October. The extraction of all admitted ballot
paper envelopes was completed on Monday 2
November, following the close of the extended
postal vote receipt period.

The extraction process involved separating the
declaration flaps containing voters’ details from
each admitted ballot paper envelope, and then
extracting the ballot papers from the envelopes.
This two-stage process maintains anonymity and
ensures the number of envelopes is tracked for
ongoing reconciliation.

Any returned ballot paper envelopes found not to
contain a ballot paper, or that contained more
than one ballot paper, were required to be
rejected and could not be counted. There were
172 returned ballot paper envelopes rejected
during the extraction activity.

Following the extraction of ballot papers from the
ballot paper envelopes, a total of 75,439 ballot
papers proceeded to the count.

Manual count

Ballot papers for all wards were counted
manually using the preferential method of
counting at the Election Office following the
extraction of ballot papers.

Where a candidate had not achieved an absolute
majority of votes (>50%) on first preference votes,
a preference distribution was conducted.
Preference distributions were required for all
wards.

The provisional results were published to the VEC
website as they became available. Results were
updated as finalised® once declarations had
taken place.

@ A preference distribution report can be found at 2020
il election results | Victorian Electoral Commissicn
wic.gov.au).

For a breakdown of the first preference results by
ward, refer to Appendix 9.

Recounts

At any time before a candidate is declared as
elected, a recount may be initiated by the
Election Manager or requested in writing by a
candidate stating the reasons for their request.
Such requests are assessed by the Election
Manager supported by the VEC and either
accepted or declined.

The Election Manager received one request for a
recount for Ruffey Ward, and one request for a
recount for Tullamore Ward. Of the two requests,
none proceeded to the recount process as there
was no critical margin and full operational
processes were followed.

Declaration of results

The declaration of results was scheduled later
than at previous elections, due to the impaoct of
COVID-19 restrictions on extraction and counting
timelines. As per the Service Plan, the latest date
for all results declarations to have been
completed was Friday 13 November 2020.

The results of the 2020 Manningham City Council
general election were declared at 10 am on Friday
& November 2020 at the Manningham Function
Centre, 899 Doncaster Road, Doncaster.

The VEC website was updated following the
declaration to reflect the elected candidates from
the election.

Election statistics

Participation

Participation is measured by the number of marks
on the roll as a percentage of the total enrolment
and can vary from turnout. The overall
participation rate in the Manningham City
Council election was 88.46%, which is higher than
the State average of 84.12% (excluding

Melbourne City Council) and higher than the
78.80% rate at the 2016 Manningham City
Council general election.
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Analysis of voter participation for the different
enrolment categories shows that participation is
higher for voters who are enrolled on the EC’s List
(89.63%) compared to voters enrolled on the
CEO's List (57.76%).

Refer to Appendix 10 for further information on
participation, including a breakdown by
enrolment category.

Turnout

Voter turnout is measured by the number of
formal and informal ballot papers counted in the
election as a percentage of voters on the voters’
roll for the election.

The overall voter turnout for the 2020
Manningham City Council general election was
86.46%. This is compared to the State average
turnout of 81.47% (excluding Melbourne City
Council). The voter turnout at the 2016 general
election for council was 77.41%.

Informality

The overall informal voting rate recorded at the
2020 Manningham City Council general election
was 2.52%, compared with the State average of
4.76%. An informality rate of 5.46% was recorded
at the Manningham City Council general election
held in October 2016.

Complaints

Type of complaints

At local government elections, complaints
generally fall into two broad categories:

1. The conduct of participants in the election.
Complaints about the conduct of candidates
and other participants in the election, at times
alleging a breach of the LG Act or local laws.

2.The administration of the election.
Complaints about the conduct of the election
and services to voters.

The maojority of complaints at the 2020 local
government elections related to category one,
often where the complainant alleged
inappropriate or illegal action by another person
or group associated with the election.

Complaints process

The VEC operates o streamlined complaints
process during elections, developed in
consultation with local councils and enforcement
agencies. The process requires complaints to be
lodged in writing, and they are then processed
through the VEC’s head office. For the 2020 local
government elections, customers were able to
provide feedback and complaints through an
online submission form on the VEC’s website.

Each complaint is evaluated, and an appropriate
course of action is determined. Complaints
alleging o breach of the LG Act, for example, are
forwarded to the Local Government Inspectorate
(LGI). Complaints relating to local laws are
referred to council. Complaints about the VEC’s
services or the behaviour or actions of VEC staff
and election officials are the responsibility of the
VEC. In these cases, the VEC investigates the
matter and determines the most appropriate
response. The VEC committed to responding to
each complaint within five working days, however
due to the unanticipated high volume of
complaints received this extended in some
instances.

Complaints recelved

The VEC received 31 written complaints relating to
the election for Manningham City Council. Please
see Appendix 11 for o description of complaints
received by the VEC.

Post-election activities

Storage of election material

All records from the election will be kept by the
VEC safely and secretly in accordance with
Regulation 79 of the Regulations.

Refund of nomination fees

Nomination fees were refunded to eligible
candidates on Thursday 10 December 2020.
Eligible candidates included elected candidates
or those who received at least 4% of the first
preference vote. Any forfeited nomination fees
were remitted to Council on 10 December 2020.

Courts and tribunals

The Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal
(VCAT) is responsible for hearing disputes on the
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validity of an election under section 311 of the
LG Act.

Applications for a review of the declaration of the
results of an election must be lodged within 14
days of the election and can be made by a
candidate in the election, 10 persons who were
entitled to vote at the election, or the VEC.

There were no applications to the VCAT disputing
the result of the Manningham City Council
general election.

Non-voter follow up

In accordance with section 267 of the LG Act,

the VEC has commenced its compulsory voting
enforcement program. Any person who was
required to vote at the election and failed to

vote will be issued with an Apparent Failure to
Vote Notice. Apparent non-voters have 28 days in
which to respond.

People who do not respond to that notice, or do
not provide a satisfactory response to the notice,
may be issued with an Infringement Notice that
will incur a penalty. Further follow-up by way of o
Penalty Reminder Notice may also take place -
this stage includes the original penalty and a
Penalty Reminder Notice fee. Penalties collected
on behalf of council will be reimbursed at the end
of the Infringement and Penalty Reminder Notice
stages.

Additionally, during the Infringement and Penalty
Reminder Notice stages, non-voters may request
for their matter to proceed directly to the
Magistrates® Court.

Any such requests will be actioned at the
conclusion of the Infringement and Penalty
Reminder Notice stages. The VEC will lodge the
file of any remaining non-voters with Fines
Victoria at the conclusion of the Penalty Reminder
Notice stage.

Evaluating the VEC’s
services

The VEC is committed to providing high guality
election services to its local government clients.
Through the VEC’s farmal feedback and
debriefing program, the VEC is able to gauge its
performance and seek advice for future local
government election projects.

Feedback from councils

The VEC invited feedback from councils on its
services in December 2020. Additional feedback
can be provided to the Program Manager for
Local Government elections by emailing
LGProgram2020@vec.vic.gov.au.

Internal debriefing program

After every electoral event, the VEC conducts an
internal debriefing program which includes input
from all areas across the VEC’s workforce.
Internal debriefing following the local government
elections commenced in December 2020. In due
course, the VEC will publish a consolidated report
on its performance and key statistics from the
elections. This report will be tabled in Parliament
and available on the VEC website.
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Schedule 1: Record of ballot papers and

declaration envelopes

Manningham City Council Bolin Ward election

BALLOT PAPERS PRINTED
Victorian Electoral Commission

Election Manager

BALLOT PAPERS ISSUED
General mail out

Early and replacement votes
Unenrolled declaration votes

Spoilt

Unused

DECLARATIONS RETURNED

General mail out admitted to the extraction

Early and replacement votes admitted to the extraction
Unenrolled declaration votes admitted to the extraction
Returned declarations unable to admit to extraction

Declarations returned to sencler

Declarations not returned

Total 12,252

10,465

120

1

0

Sub total 10,656
1,596

Total 12,252

2,036

63

0

21

150

Sub total 2.490
1,166

Total 10,656
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Manningham City Council Currawong Ward election

BALLOT PAPERS PRINTED
Vietorian Electoral Commission

Election Manager

BALLOT PAPERS ISSUED
General mail out

Early and replacement votes
Unenrolled declaration votes

Spoilt

Unused

DECLARATIONS RETURNED

General mail out admitted to the extraction

Early and replacement votes admitted to the extraction
Unenrolled declaration votes admitted to the extraction
Returned declarations unable to admit to extraction

Declarations returned to sender

Declarations not returned

11,250
o]
Total 11,250

9,333

136

1

o}

Sub total 9.470
1,780

Total 11,250

8,263

55

173

a0

Sub total 8,580
890

Total 9.470
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Manningham City Council Manna Ward election

BALLOT PAPERS PRINTED
Vietorian Electoral Commission

Election Manager

BALLOT PAPERS ISSUED
General mail out

Early and replacement votes
Unenrolled declaration votes

Spoilt

Unused

DECLARATIONS RETURNED

General mail out admitted to the extraction

Early and replacement votes admitted to the extraction
Unenrolled declaration votes admitted to the extraction
Returned declarations unable to admit to extraction

Declarations returned to sender

Declarations not returned

Total

Sub total

Total

Sub total

Total

11,250

0

11,250

9,147
135

1

0
9,283

1,967

11,250

7,853

51

88
1
8,233
1,050
9.283
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Manningham City Council Ruffey Ward election

BALLOT PAPERS PRINTED
Victorian Electoral Commission 11,250
Election Manager o
Total 11,250
BALLOT PAPERS ISSUED
General mail out 0,833
Early and replacement votes 171
Unenrolled declaration votes 5
Spoilt o
Sub total 10,009
Unused 1,241
Total 11,250
DECLARATIONS RETURNED
General mail cut admitted to the extraction 8,529
Early and replacement votes admitted to the extraction &7
Unenrolled declaration votes admitted to the extraction 2
Returned declarations unable to admit to extraction 213
Declarations returned to sender 136
Sub total B8.947
Declarations not returned 1,062
Total 10,009
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Manningham City Council Schramm Ward election

BALLOT PAPERS PRINTED
Vietorian Electoral Commission

Election Manager

BALLOT PAPERS ISSUED
General mail out

Early and replacement votes
Unenrolled declaration votes

Spoilt

Unused

DECLARATIONS RETURNED

General mail out admitted to the extraction

Early and replacement votes admitted to the extraction
Unenrolled declaration votes admitted to the extraction
Returned declarations unable to admit to extraction

Declarations returned to sender

Declarations not returned

11,250
o]
Total 11,250

9,679

28

2

o]

Sub total 9,869
1,381

Total 11,250

7,998

73

180

167

Sub total 8,108
1,461

Total 9.869
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Manningham City Council Tullamore Ward election

BALLOT PAPERS PRINTED
Vietorian Electoral Commission

Election Manager

BALLOT PAPERS ISSUED
General mail out

Early and replacement votes
Unenrolled declaration votes

Spoilt

Unused

DECLARATIONS RETURNED

General mail out admitted to the extraction

Early and replacement votes admitted to the extraction
Unenrolled declaration votes admitted to the extraction
Returned declarations unable to admit to extraction

Declarations returned to sender

Declarations not returned

11,250
2

Total 11,262

9,423

152

Sub total 9,583
1,669

Total 11,252

7,855

41

199

1é

Sub total 8,212
1,371

Total 9.583
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Manningham City Council Waldau Ward election

BALLOT PAPERS PRINTED
Victorian Electoral Commission 11,250
Election Manager o
Total 11,250
BALLOT PAPERS ISSUED
General mail out Q,4L5
Early and replacement votes 15
Unenrolled declaration votes 1
Spoilt o
Sub total 9,561
Unused 1,689
Total 11,250
DECLARATIONS RETURNED
General mail cut admitted to the extraction 8,180
Early and replacement votes admitted to the extraction 50
Unenrolled declaration votes admitted to the extraction 0]
Returned declarations unable to admit to extraction 175
Declarations returned to sender 10
Sub total 8,515
Declarations not returned 1,046
Total 9,561
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Manningham City Council Westerfolds Ward election

BALLOT PAPERS PRINTED
Vietorian Electoral Commission

Election Manager

BALLOT PAPERS ISSUED
General mail out

Early and replacement votes
Unenrolled declaration votes

Spoilt

Unused

DECLARATIONS RETURNED

General mail out admitted to the extraction

Early and replacement votes admitted to the extraction
Unenrolled declaration votes admitted to the extraction
Returned declarations unable to admit to extraction

Declarations returned to sender

Declarations not returned

Total

Sub total

Total

Sub total

Total

11,250

0

11,260

2,616

135

9,751

1,499

11,250

8,248

Lé

205
131
8,630
1,121

9.751
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Manningham City Council Yarra Ward election

BALLOT PAPERS PRINTED
Victorian Electoral Commission 12,250
Election Manager 0
Total 12,250
BALLOT PAPERS ISSUED
General mail out 10,309
Early and replacement votes 124
Unenrolled declaration votes 1
Spoilt 0
Sub total 10,434
Unused 1,816
Total 12,250
DECLARATIONS RETURNED
General mail cut admitted to the extraction Q,166
Early and replacement votes admitted to the extraction 34
Unenrolled declaration votes admitted to the extraction o]
Returned declarations unable to admit to extraction 20
Declarations returned to sender 12
Sub total 9,513
Declarations not returned 921
Total 10,434
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Schedule 2: Certification statement

In cccordance with Regulation 77, | certify that Schedule 1 of this report on the conduct of the 2020
Manningham City Council local government election is a true and correct account of the number of
ballot papers issued, returned and not used in this election and declarations not returned.

12

Warwick Gately AM
Electoral Commissioner
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Appendix 1: Breakdown of the voters’ roll

Manningham City Council

Voters enrolled through an entitlement under section 241 of the LG Act 84,052
Voters enrolled through entitlements under sections 22 — 2u5 of the LG Act 3,203
Total 87,255

Bolin Ward election

Voters enrolled through an entitlement under section 241 of the LG Act 10,099
Voters enrolled through entitlements under sections 242 — 245 of the LG Act 386
Bolin Ward election total 10,465

Currawong Ward election

Voters enrolled through an entitlement under section 241 of the LG Act 9,080
Voters enrclled through entitlements under sections 242 - 245 of the LG Act 256
Currawong Ward election total 9,336

Manna Ward election

Voters enrolled through an entitlement under section 241 of the LG Act 8,784
Voters enrolled through entitlements under sections 2U2 — 2uU5 of the LG Act 363
Manna Ward election total 9,147

Voters enrolled through an entitlement under section 241 of the LG Act 9,549
Voters enrolled through entitlements under sections 242 — 245 of the LG Act 284
Ruffey Ward election total 9,833

Schramm Ward election

Voters enrolled through an entitlement under section 241 of the LG Act 8,972

Voters enrclled through entitlements under sections 242 - 245 of the LG Act 707

Schramm Ward election total 9,679
Election Report Loeal Government elections 2020 24

Item 13.2

Attachment 1

Page 208



COUNCIL AGENDA

25 MAY 2021

Manningham City Council

Tullamore Ward election

Voters enrolled through an entitlement under section 241 of the LG Act 8,847
Voters enrolled through entitlements under sections 242 — 245 of the LG Act 558
Tullamore Ward electlon total 9,423

Waldau Ward election

Voters enrolled through an entitlement under section 241 of the LG Act 9,186
Voters enrolled through entitlements under sections 242 — 245 of the LG Act 260
Waldau Ward electlon total o.L4L46

Westerfolds Ward election

Voters enrolled through an entitlement under section 241 of the LG Act 9,362
Voters enrolled through entitlements under sections 242 — 245 of the LG Act 254
Woesterfolds Ward election total 9,616

Yarra Ward election

Voters enrolled through an entitlement under section 241 of the LG Act 10,153

Voters enrolled through entitlements under sections 242 — 245 of the LG Act 157

Yarra Ward electlon total 10,310
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Appendix 2: Statutory advertising
Manningham City Council election schedule of public notices

Close of roll notice (see Appendix 2.1 for example)

VEC Website 8 August 2020

The Age 14 August 2020

Notice of election (see Appendix 2.2 for example)
VEC Website 31 August 2020

The Age 4 September 2020

Voting details notice (see Appendix 2.3 for example)
VEC Website 28 September 2020
The Age 2 October 2020

Reminder notice (see Appendix 2.4 for example)

VEC Website 12 October 2020
The Age 16 October 2020

Notice of result (see Appendix 2.5 for example)

VEC Website 23 November 2020
The Age 27 November 2020
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Appendix 2.1: Close of roll notice for Manningham City Council

Your council, your vote

You must be enrolled to vote
A genersl slection will k- held for Morn

State-enrolled voters

Am | enrolled to vote?

‘You ore outomaticolly enrolled for this election if:

= you will be 18 years of oge of over on Soturdoy 24 October
2020 AND

+ you Bve in the City of Monningham AND

= you are on the State slecteral rll for your current oddress.

You need to enrol if:

* you e on MustraBion citizen aged 18 or over on
Saturday 24 October 2020 AND

= you Bve in the City of Manaingharm and you are nat on the
State electors roll OR

+ o hawe lived Ot your current ressdential oddress within the
City of Manningham for ot least @ month and have not yat
updated your enrolment detoils, including any changes to
your postol eddress.

How do | enral?

Yau can enrol online at vea.vic.gov.au

You can also download on enrelment form from the website,

A1l enrolment applicotions must be received by the Vistorian

Electoral Commission by the closa of roll at s pm on

Fridoy 28 August 2020.

How can | check my State enrolment?
You con check your enrolment details online ot vec.vic.gov.ou
at any time, or coll 1300 805 478

Manningham City Council postal election

Council-enrolled voters

Am | enrolled to vote?

To be o Council-gnralled voter, you must be:

+ 1B years of age or over on Saturday 24 October 2020 AND

- nat & State-enrolled voter wi e City of Manainghanm,

You are autematically enrclied for this edection If you were
enrolled a8 o non-resident cwner ot the most recent election for
your locel are, This includes any by-elections held since the
st ganeral slection.

f your circumstonces have chonged since the most recent
election and you are na longer o non-resident ownar of

that property, you will not be outomatically ensclled for this
slection. Depending on your circumstances, you moy still be
sligible to apply to be enrolled o5 o Council-ensolled voter
Who else can enrol & vote?

You may ok apply to enrol If:

-hased @ rateable property in the City of

e the lost election o by-election and you
are not outomatically enrolled OR

ot an Australian citizen and you lve in, and poy

. & property within the City of Manningham OR

* you py rates on o proparty You ocoupy in the City of
Manningham, for examphe you ore o shop tenant ond poy
rates to the Councl for the tenancy. end you hove no other

vec.vic.gov.au | 131 832
For anquiries in languages other than English call our interprating service:

dtorived by W, Cootely, AU

+ B 5200 0190 Ambaric + oy, 0209 0100 Arasic + Bosanak 520 0191 Boseiars 818 1200 0101 il -
* Dink : m-mmo:pmm Mdaced

"k . [
Tiarkgn 5200 0110 Turkish - Viln wmo:num&m-ummnﬁmwmwa

Malouers, Victorla

MANNINGHAM

Council in October 2020. To be able to vote in the election, you must be enrolled by the close of roll ot W pm on Fridoy 28 August 2020, Two
categories of volers con be enolled to vote in the Manningham City Councll slection: State-enrolled vaters ond Council-enrolled voters.

How do | apply to be a Council-enrolled voter?
I you meet any of the mentioned criteria and wish to enrol,
contact Manningham City Council on (03) 9840 9333 for o
council enrolment form, Council enrelment forms must be
received by the Council by the close of roll ot 4 pm on

Fridoy 28 August 2020,

How can | check if | am Council-enrolled?

You can check your enrclment detol
Council on (03) 9840 9333,

by contocting the

Thinking about standing for election?

Condidate reguiremaents have recently chonged. To nominate

o3 o candidate for Monningham City Couwncil, you must:

« be on Austrol ven ond enrclled on the voters’ roll for
Manningham City Council AND

* b elig

e to become a councillor should you be elected AND

* hawe completed the mondatory condidate troining before
Iadging your namination with the Election Manager.

For further information, visit vee.vic.gov.ou

Enrolment closes
4 pm Friday 28 August

State-enrolled voters con register for free VoterAlert SMS
and email reminders ot veevic.gov.ou
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Manningham City Council postal election

Your council, your vote
Vote by post this October

Manningham City Council election from Tussday & October
2020, Return your completed mail ASAP or
3 iver it to the Ele 1 Mo

doy 23 October 2020.

hand-del
ot épmon

If you will be away

i o will e crway when ballot packs are mailed, o your

adddress hos changed since Friday 28 August 2020,

you con request for your ballst pock to ba redirected by

iting to:

Election Manager

m City Council slection
/= Victorion Electoral Commi
Lewel 11, 530 Colling Street
Melbourne VIC 3000

Alternatively, you can emall your request to:
redirectionsgvec.vic.gov.ou

Plec

requesting redirection m

on

include the oddress for redirection. Each voter

n their request.

Requests for redirection must be recehved by

Thursday 17 September 2020.

Large print and braille ballot papers

Large print or broille ballst papers are avallable for voters
jon—please register by

er, coll (03) 8420 1222

wha are blind or have low
Tuesday 15 September 2020. To re

during business hours.

Appendix 2.2: Notice of election for Manningham City Council

MANNINGHAM

Request an early postal vote

To apply for an ey pestel vote, contoct the Election Monoger
from Wednesday 23 Septembaer 2020 on (03) 8419 1440 and
make on applicotion. You must provide o volid reason,

How to nominate as a candidate

Candidate requiremants have recently changed. To nominate
01 0 condidate, you must:

n and enrclled on the voters' roll for
| AND

Io to become o councillor should you be elected AND

+ be an Australian &
Manningham City C:

* ko o

* have completed the mandatorn

ndidote training before
ction Manager.

ladging your nomi

Te nominate, complete the nomination form ond lod
n Manager together with the 525
5 can be ladged by oppointment during
business houwrs from Thursday 17 September 2020 until
12 noon on Tussday 22 September 2020 ot:
Office 7, The Point Corporate
$00 Done: r Road, Done

nomination

Online candidate information session
Due to COVID-19 restricti
Information sestien can be streamed online from

to pre-complate Thursdoy 3 2020 compler
ate Helper. The

the VEC"s recorded candidate

Visit vec.vie.gov.ou for more inform v
ted by

nomination form
date Helper

Thursdoy 3 September 2020.

If you use the anline Condidate Halper,
pre-completed form and moke on oppointment to lodge it with

tha Election Monager along with the nomination foe. Nominations close

Call the Election Monager from Wednesdoy 16 September
2020 on (02) 8419 140 to make o nomination appointmaent, 1 2 nocn Tu eSdQ U 22 Septem ber

interactive candidate seminars bated on the information video.
To watch the informa ind aut haw e join an

onfing interactive seminar. visit vee.vie.gov.ou

on wasson of f

State-anrolled voters con register for free Voterflert
SMS and email reminders ot vee.vie.gov.ou

vec.vic.gov.au | 131 832 e O WE

Far anquirios in langusges other than English call our intargeating service:

< BT 5200 0190 Ambaric - 4,4 G209 0100 Acisic + Bossnsid 5200 0191 Bosnian - B 1209 0101 g - Victorian

- Dk e k- it 9205 0142 Khoer - #0) u Electoral
-Hl - s Rssian - Con Sestian !

+ Tiirkge 5000 G100 Turkah + VIEn 75003 0111 Vietnamess - A other naa-English lsnguages 5200 0112 Commission

dthorived by W, Groteky. AU, Electoral Commisaionas, 530 Colfing Strest, Mslsouns, Victor'a

Manningham City Council postal election =

Your council, your vote

Check the mail for your ballot pack

Ballot packs containing voting materiol will be maoiled to enrolled voters from

Tuesday & October 2020.
This Iz a pestal election anly.

If you do not receive your ballot pock by Friday 16 October 2020, plecse cal You are encouroged to vote, but you will not be fined if you don't vote, if:
(03) 8419 1440 during office hours to arrange a replocement. » you live cutside this local council area OR

How to vote correctly

You must complete your ballot paper cerrectly for your vote to count. Put the number
1in the box next to the candidate you most want to see elected, then number ALL the

other boxes in order of your cholce. You must number EVERY BOX and only use each or hund-dellvered bg & pmt Frida y 23 October

number ance.

How to return your completed ballot paper

Fellow the Instructions on your ballot paper to complete your vote, To return your
completed ballol paper, putit in the ballotl paper envelope then u

envelope provided or hand-delive

it during office hours to:

Office 7, The Point Carporate Centre, $00 Dancaster Road, Dencaster

Appendix 2.3: Voting details notice for Manningham City Council

MANNINGHAM

Voting is compulsery
Voting is compulsory for oll vaters who were on the State roll ot 4 pm on
Friday 28 August 2020,

You may be fined if you do not vote — this includes homeowners and tenants,

* you are enrclled directly with the Council to be on the voters® roll for this election,

Your completed ballot pack must be in the mail

*Local mail clearance times vary. Ballot pocks must be mailed before final clearance times in the
last week of voting. Don't risk o fine.

Stote-enrolled voters can register for free VoterAlert SMS ond emoil reminders
ot vec.vic.gov.au

vec.vic.gov.au | (03) 8619 1440 — Y}
-y Bossnsld 1300 0101 Bosrien - Carmnese .
- W osren . L Do i Victorian
] Py g—.— S Electoral
~ Tiirkge 8308 0110 Turkish - Vi & 206 0111 A cthee ame o112 Commission
Austharised by W, Ctely, Ald, Electon Commissions, 530 Collins S2seet, Makourns, Victora.
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Appendix 2.4: Reminder notice for Manningham City Council

Manningham City Council postal election /

Your council, your vote

MANNINGHAM
Check the mull for gour ballot puck Veting is compulsory
i Woting ks compulsory for oll voters who were on the Stote roll ot 4 pm on
Fridoy 28 August 2020,
This is a postal election only. You moy be fined if you do not vote — this includes homeowners and tenants,
If you do not receive your bollot pack by Friday 16 October 2020, plecse call You are encouroged to vote, but you will not be fined if you don’t vote, if:

hig local council rea OR

(013) 8419 1440 during office hours to arrange o replocement. = you lve e

= you are enrolled directly with the Council to be on the voters® roll for this election.

How to vote correctly

You must complete your ballot poper correctly for your vote to count. Put the number - .
11 the box next to the candidate you mast want to see elected, then number aLLhe  YOUF completed ballot pack must be in the mail

other bowes in order of your choice. You must number EVERY BOX and only use each or hund dellvel’ed bg 6 pm Frlduu 23 October

number once.

ry. Ballot pocks must be mailed before final clearance 1

How to return your completed ballot paper

Follow the instructions on your ballot poper to complete your vote. To return your
completed ballot poper, put it in the ballot poper envelope then use the reply-poid
envelope provided or hand-deliver it during office hours to:

State-enrolled voters can register for free VoterAlert SMS and email reminders
at vec.vic.gov.au

Office 7, The Paint Corporate Centre, 500 Doncaster Road, Doncaster

vec.vic.gov.au | (03) 8619 1440 e QW@
']
- T mﬂlwm ”mnimm Bnll-ﬂ ﬁn&nﬁlls;‘m":: q’mﬁ;‘m WWEICQDMM anlsaumm wcmﬂﬂﬂ
" BB 5206 108 Maretai - g 8200 0108 Pesan- Pyem Electoral
« Tiirkge 5009 0110 Turkish - Vidn & 0500 0111 Vietnamese + ummswuwmom Commission

Autherised by W, Gately, A, Eletoral Comemissionss, 530 Cioling Stvvet, Melbourne, Wictoris.

Appendix 2.5: Notice of results for Manningham City Council

Manningham City
Council election
Declaration of results MANNINGHAM

The following candidates were elected to the Manningham City Council ot the
general election held in October 2020:

Bolin Ward Tullamore Ward
GOUGH, Geoff DIAMANTE, Deirdre
Currawong Ward Waldau Ward
CONLON, Andrew CHEN, Anna
Manna Ward Westerfolds Ward
LIGHTBODY, Tomas KLEINERT, Michelle
Ruffey Ward Yarra Ward
MAYNE, Stephen LANGE, Carli

Schramm Ward
MAYNE, Loura

Further details about the results are available ot vec.vic.gov.au
Regina Ku

Election Manager

Friday & November 2020

Electoral
Commission

vec.vic.gov.au | 131 832 aelectonsic (P W ©) @ Victorian

Authorised by W. Gately, AM, Electercl Commissioner, 530 Collins Street, Melbourne, Victorio,
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Appendix 3: Schedule of media releases and

advisories

Manningham City Council Council-specific media releases and advisories

Enral now for the Manningham City Council election

Call for candidates for the upcoming Manningham City Council election
Candidates announced for the Manningham City Council election
Ballot packs mailed this week for Manningham City Council election
Voting closes seon for the Manningham City Ceuncil election

MNew councillors for Manningham City Council

Statewide media releases and advisories

7 August 2020

24 August 2020

23 September 2020
5 October 2020

12 October 2020

& November 2020

Victorians urged to enrol for upcoming council elections

October local council elections to proceed under COVIDSafe election plan
Last chance to enrol for Victorian council elections

Enrelment closes tomorrow for October’s council elections

Mominations open soon for Victorian local council elections

Council election information cne click away on VEC website

Accessing candidate infarmation for the 2020 Victorian local council elections
Victorian voters encouraged to sign up for free election reminders
Nominations are in for the October council elections

Autherity granted for postal vote contingency

Voting underway for Vietoria's local council elections

Meobile numbers not from VEC

Local council elections voting deadline looms

Strong voter response to local council elections

Results timeline for Victorion local council elections (media advisory, not for
publication)

Final day of voting shows high voter turnout for council elections
VEC won't risk public health for quick results in record turnout
A win for democracy in a challenging year

Didn’t vote in the election? Please explain.

7 August 2020

19 August 2020

21 August 2020

26 August 2020

31 August 2020

4 September 2020
14 September 2020
16 September 2020
23 September 2020
30 September 2020
5 October 2020

12 October 2020

19 October 2020
20 October 2020

21 October 2020

23 October 2020
28 October 2020
13 November 2020

8 February 2021
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Appendix 4: VoterAlert advisories

Appendix 4.1: SMS alerts

4.1.1 close of roll - sent from Wednesday 19 August to Wednesday 26 August 2020

Council elections will be held by post in
October. Make sure you are correctly enrolled

by 4pm 28 Aug. More info or unsubscribe at:
o https://voteralert.vec.vic.gov.au/s/tohMhASI

1+.1.2 mail out of ballot pack Friday 9 October to Friday 13 October 2020

VEC has posted a ballot pack to your enrolled
address. Voting in council elections is

compulsory. More info or unsubscribe at:
o https://voteralert.vec.vic.gov.au/s/ufDvSRO7

4.1.3 reminder close of voting - Monday 19 October 2020

Council elections: voting closes 6pm Friday.

Post your vote or return it to your election

office ASAP. More info or unsubscribe:
o https://voteralert.vec.vic.gov.au/s/usSUBKIM
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Appendix 4.2: Email alerts

4.2.1 Close of roll email

VoterAlert

2020 Local council elections

Hello

Local council elections will be held in Victoria by post this OClober. It is important
You are comectly enrolied 50 you receive a ballof pack al your comect address.

Enroiment closes at 4 pm on Friday 28 August 2020.

0 haven chands
o need to do anything

ur postal Bddress, reside

Are your details up to date?

You Can check your details cnline on the VEC's Check My Enroiment portal
Compiete all fiekds, making sure you

¥ and micdle names in te 'Given names' fiekd
* start 10 ender your suburb and pick it from the kst suggested
= siadt 1o enter your sireel name only and pick if from the list suggested.

CHECK MY ENROLMENT

Do you need 1o update your details?

CHANGE MY DETAILS

Are you eligible to vote in another council?

In @ council electon, i
enroiment

fe are two types of enrolment State ennolment and council

*You are receiving this message because you are State.enrolled

of pay rales in ancther council, you may be enrelied of
#h that council

Find out more: Enrolling for council elechions

Do | have to vote at these elections?

oting ts compulsory for State-enrolied voters. Don't fisk a fingd
f you are on the roll for Melboume City Council,
enfolled voters 1o vole

is also compulsory for council

FIND OUTMORE

o Gately, AM, Electonsl Commesair

Qur maiieg addreds i

Leved 11, 530 Cal

This message was sent 10 you by the Victorian Electoral Commission because your contact
an elacional o

detadls ane Ested on the V

VEC wetrsie | Contact us | Privacy | Leoal
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4.2.2 Ballot Pack mailout email

VoterAlert @ Vieturien Electorel Commision

2020 local council elections

vk
Wiss e mevoiied 15 vt i o 020 lncal cuncl slecions i Counci Nare

Witing in then sleciSon will Be by powt. W povsed yos & BBt pack Batwwsn Timadey 8 sesd Thunsiey  Desctsar 2000

0 L

pem o Frictay 23 Ditsber 2620
L

Didn't get a ballot pack?

¥ yons ort gat m bk pack By Friclay 36 Ocotuer, callyour iocel Election Gfice o sequsnt s saplscemest. You an e [ecion
fion contct detady on o wetets.

Are you away from your enrolled address?

e o e o Bl pack. Vi da g
Ebeton (o sortpel detey o Sur wetite

Do | have to vote?

State L ey —

FIND OUT MORE ABOUT THE ELECTION

NS SCRIGE
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4.2.3 Last week to vote email

VoterAlert

2020 local council elections

Disregard this email if you have already voted.

re gnrolied to vote in the 2020 local council eiecsons in Council Name

Voting closes § pm this Friday 23 October.

How to vote

A3 5000 25 possible. make jure you

mail your complated ballot paper in the reply-paid envelope provided

ber. However, local ma

your completed vote as seon
as pessible

Didn’t get a ballot pack?

f you haven't received a baliot pack. ghec

Do | have to vote?

\gting is compulsory for everyone on the State and Melbourn.
weters' relis. Don't risk a fine

FIND OUT MORE ABOUT THE ELECTION

Authorzed by W Gamly, AM, Erectors) Commizsiensr, 530 Coding STeel leboume, Vickra

Our mading sddress i

UNSUBSCRIBE
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Appendix 5: Voter engagement program and
initiatives

Program Program Details
Be Heard Democrocy This program nermally provides face-to-face electoral education sessions and
Ambassadoer program was adapted to an online delivery model, providing peer-led electoral education

to residents in specialist disability services and culturally and linguistically
diverse (CALD) communities. A total of 47 sessions were provided to people with
disabilities and o total of 80 sessions were provided to CALD communities
through councils and cammunity organisations hosting online sessions.

Myth busting campaign. This offline campaign addressed myths around enrelling and voting for those
experiencing homelessness or with unstable housing. Four myths were dispelled
and displayed on billbeards and street posters, in metropolitan Melbourne
areas with high populations of people experiencing homelessness. During the
enrolment period, no-fixed-address enrolment forms were distributed with
4,500 meals to those suffering financial hardship, through a spensership with
StreetSmart. This partnership included social media and Electronic Direct Mail
distribution to StreetSmart’s datobaose of homeless services and community
partners. 4 1800 freecall number was also established to support those with
financial hardship to provide support for enrclling and voting. This phone
number was advertised on posters distributed through homelessness agencies,
drug and alcohol services and services providing COVID-19 testing in hotels.

CALD in-longuage social This project produced a series of three videos in 10-12 different languages which

media videos. provided electoral information on how to enrol, how to vote by post, and how to
respond to an Apparent Failure to Vote Notice. These were widely distributed
and shared through the VEC's social media platforms and community networks.

Aboriginal short videos. This project produced five videos in collaboration with Reconciliation Victoria.
Two videos featured Aberiginal Elders and other leading Aberiginal community
members discussing the value and ways to engage with local council elections.
A further three videos, using culturally relevant animation, explained what
services councils are responsible for, how to vote and the role of a councillor.
These were shared through Aberiginal community channels and organisations.

DemGraphics young people This project invelved conducting research to identify barriers to enrclling and
co-designed social media voting with a diverse group of young people. This information was then used to
project. pilot @ social media campaign In selected councils to encourage engagement in

the elections for those aged 18-29.

Easy English tutor guide and These were produced for people with low English proficiency and designed as a

worksheets. co-read product where a person supports the learner through the worksheets.
The tutor guide and worksheets were based on the VEC’s Easy English guides
for local council elections and were available for download from the VEC’s
website in PDF and Word formats.
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Appendix 6: Daily telephone enquiries

The following graph shows the number of telephone calls recorded by the election office telephone
enquiry service including those received by the VEC’s overflow call centre and tagged as relating to
Manningham City Council during the 2020 local government elections.

Manningham City Council
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Appendix 7: Final list of candidates in ballot
paper order

Manningham City Council election

The candidates, in ballot paper order, were as follows:

Bolin Ward election

GOUGH, Geoff
CHARITAKIS, Christina
BOMANNI, Guido

SHAW, Luke

Currawong Ward election

RUAN, William
COMNLON, Andrew
LAW, Alex

CLARK, Peter

Manna Ward election

McLEISH, Paul
LIGHTBODY, Tomas
KILMARTIN, Darryl

FRAWLEY, Ben

Ruffey Ward election
MAYNE, Stephen

OAKLEY, Naomi M.
GRIVOKOSTOPOULOS, Jim
BAIN, Peter Timothy
LEUNG, Kai
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Schramm Ward election

HAYNES, Dot
GARNER, Jett
SUN, Sophia
MAYNE, Laura

Tullamore Ward election

YEE, Stella
CONLON, Luke
ROY, Grace

DIAMANTE, Deircre

Waldau Ward election

LAl Raymond
SHANMUGAPALAN, Thurairajah
CHEN, Anna

BURNHAM, Cyndy

KHOURY, Bernadette

SALEHI, Aryan

Westerfolds Ward election
KLEINERT, Michelle

BEYNON, Bob

MelNTOEH, Michelle

HINDS, Alanna

CRONSHAW, Benjamin
ZAFIROPOULOS, Mike

Yarra Ward election

LANGE, Carli
DYASON, David
BRENNAN, Maxine
DOWNIE, Meg
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Appendix 7.1: Candidate statements and photographs

Manningham City Council election

Bolin Ward election (see Appendix 7.2.1 for candidate statement leaflet)

Total number of candidates at close  Number of candidates that Number of candidates that
of nominations lodged a candidate statement lodged a candidate photograph

£
r
£

Currawong Ward election (see Appendix 7.2.2 for candidate statement leaflet)

Total number of candidates at close  Number of candidates that Number of candidates that
of nominations lodged o candidate statement lodged o candidate photograph

Manna Ward election (see Appendix 7.2.3 for candidate statement leaflet)

F
r
F

Total number of candidates at close  Number of candidates that Number of candidates that
of nominaticns lodged a candidate statement lodged a candidate photograph

£
=
£

Ruffey Ward election (see Appendix 7.2.4 for candidate statement leaflet)

Total number of candidates at close  Number of candidates that Number of candidates that
of noeminations lodged o condidate statement lodged a candidaote photograph

Schramm Ward election (see Appendix 7.2.5 for candidate statement leaflet)

o
o
o

Total number of candidates at close Number of candidates that Number of candidates that
of nominaticns lodged a candidate statement lodged a candidate photograph

Tullamore Ward election (see Appendix 7.2.6 for candidate statement leaflet)

£
r
=

Total number of candidates at close Number of candidates that Number of candidates that
of nominaticns lodged o candidate statement lodged o candidate photograph

L " "

Waldau Ward election (see Appendix 7.2.7 for candidate statement leaflet)

Total number of candidates at close Number of candidates that MNumber of candidates that
of neminations lodged a candidate statement ledged a candidate photograph
& & &
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Westerfolds Ward election (see Appendix 7.2.8 for candidate statement leaflet)

Total number of candidates at close Number of candidates that Number of candidates that
of nominaticns lodged a candidate statement lodged a candidate photograph

<] o] ]

Total number of candidates at close Number of candidates that Number of candidates that
of neminations lodged o candidaote statement lodged o candidate photograph
mn " "
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Appendix 7.2: Candidate statement leaflets

Appendix 7.2.1: Candidate statement leaflet for Bolin Ward election

Don’t Risk a Fine
VOTING CLOSES 6.00 PM

Friday 23 October 2020

Your ballot paper is attached to this leaflet,
Complete and return as soon as possible.
Se e ballol paper envelope for voting instructions,

VOTING IN THIS ELECTION IS BY POST ONLY

Your completed ballot material must be posted or in
the hands of the Election Manager on or before

Local mail clearance times may vary. Ballot material must
be mailed before final clearance times in the last week of
voling. Late vates cannot be included in Me count.
Alernatively, you may hand-deliver your envelope during
business hours to:

(fice 7, The Point Corporate Centre:

600 Doncaster Road

Doncaster

CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRES

Compigted candidate questionnaires are available at
vEC.vic.gov.au or alternatively from the Election Manager.
COMPULSORY VOTING PROVISIONS APPLY

ou have received this ballot pack Decause you are
enrplizd or this election. Voting is computsory if you were
o0 the Vickorian State electoral roll for this council on
Friday 28 August 2020

Further information on voting entitiements can be found at
VEG.VIC, 00V.80

ou may receive an Apparent Failure To Vobe Notice if
you comghete and return your ballot material after the
close of voting.

MANNINGHAM

2020 Council Election
VOTING CLOSES 6.00 PM

Friday 23 October 2020

Piew or changed bourdarses are in place for thes election

—
Bolin Ward
THIS IS A POSTAL ELECTION ONLY.

Voting is compulsory for residents

For further information visit vec.vic.gov.au or
phone (03) 8619 1440 during business hours.

@ Victorian Electoral Commission

Pt 100 Rt 1

WOTICE: Thw coteets of canditate staterests o eovidi by Boe candidaties: Ay

WOTIE: T Aoy

WOTICE: T oy

GOUGH, Geoff

Keep gang with Gough. Thank you for your past support choosing
me 1 protect our ComMmunity's inlerssss, needs and values. If re-
edected, | promise 1o continue relentiessly Bghting Yowands restoring
the bracitonal values that made Bullzen and Lower Temglestowe
awonderful place to live, Il continue battling agairs! the costly
wiices in Council, driven by egos and frings kssues. In these troubled
times, we can't affoed by have a distracted Council that & indifferant
1o senving and reflecting the real needs and values of our arsa. We
need a Council that gets back to the basics again. Council must do
properly the things that matter; bulding community infrastructure,
improving and maintaining cur roads, footpaths, draing, strestscapes,
parks, builldings and sarvices. Doing thess things properly and not
“virtug signaling” at your experss is what will keep rates low. Bolin
Ward desperately needs upgrades to Bulleen Plaza, Temphestowe
Road, and fixing the many terible NELP issues. Wish COVID and the
chalienginyg times ahead I'm determined to expand vital communily
support from councal 11l initiate policies to priortise local business
and labour to undertake our Council programs. Il coninue to
abwiys, ksten, consult, and act with responsiilly and integrity

| decal with issues opendy and honestly, sbways readily avaitsbie

10 all, Living here all my i, | understand our issises, ensuring
Council hears and understands your poirt of view. I'm dedicated.
experienced and know how 1 get things done efectively. I
constantly advocate for transparency in decisions, sound financial
management and accountaleity & our community. 'll tirelessly
fight to invest your rate money wissly and champion an efficient,
commitied and helpfd workforce that lstens and responds with
timeliness and respect I'm determined to sarve and work with you b
ensure we are ll proud of whenz we live, Keep going with Gough,

1

CHARITAKIS, Christina

My name is Christires Charitakis. My family have been proud
residents of Manningham for over 30 years. | have schooled, played
local sports and worked in Marningham 3l my We and bebeve this
i one of the best placess o be in melboume, | am hére 35 3 young
canddale bo bring a breath of fresh air 1o council and someca:

wih c2n be a voice for the youth of Manningham as we are the
future. Small business, local spars, youth employment and mental
health support is something | fael very strongly about being a long
time member of kocal sporting groups and a small business owner
ysalf. | ewe a strong relaSioreship with the diverse community of
Manningham and have had a lat of community invakement. | hear
their Farm here to be the voice on their behalf

1 edected to coundil, | wow 1 support and wark with local small
Business especially thoss with insignificant parking and congestion
i small shopping strips. Its Sme o bring young youth inta local

small busingss to keep our community growing, | will work with local
schools 1 help youth with local employment cppartunities. | will
advecate to support the upgrades and buikis of better faciises of
local sporting grounds a5 Manningham is known for their community
sports. | will work with local sporting chubs 10 spread awareness for
youth mental health a5 | fesl it is not addressad enough. | am here
o assist and voice the concems of &l Manningham residence, and
am here b see change for the better fof our growing community,

1 am very hand wirking and strong minded in what | stand for and
would be proud b represent the Bolin Ward community, Lets make 3
difference.

BONANNI, Guido

Bulleen needs a fresh face! Bom and bred Manningham since
1980, 1 enjoy my hocal area with my young famely and am aways
supperting the local comeunity. Weth grass roks in mind, its ahways
been about the kids, their grass root development and ghing them
e will b achiens alongside their peers. | have personaly supported
Manningham sporting clubs, churches, kindergartens, schools

and kocal initiatives for gver 15 years and now feei its time to give
back more. | ook forward bo representing my community in what

Is important to them, local roads, parks, events and beinging down
crime! As founder of Crime Prevension Manningham | have spent the
last 4 years giving back, and look forward to keep giving back Itis
tirme to take the next step, | am commitied b mproving Mansingham
for the beneSt of its rabe payers working with a strong and focused
team that | will bring together, this is ane of my greatest stengths.
A& 2 local business leader | understand the pressures of every day
and commit my time to local, | am local. The Balin ward & home.
Thiank you
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NOTICE: il

endorsed by

SHAW, Luke
| heave one simgile plan for being a councilior if elected. Every
peoposal will be considered with ane question in mind only. Wiat
is the benefit for the pecple of Manningham. Since 2000 we have
seen councll plans across e country take 3 similar format with
simikar,if ot identical objectives. This is not my opinion of what local
councils ane requined for Local councils should make decisions that
directly address local issues and anything else should be left to state
and federal politics. | would like to seé our councl kead the path
b recovery once restrictions are lfted. | would like to see that the
community is aware of all the great businesses within and takes full
advantage teir products and services. In return [ would like for hose
same businesses to give back to the community supporting them by
supporting local clubs and initiatives. | would like to e initiatives
that grow mutul respect between the many cultures and age groups
in Manningham. | would like Manningham 10 be a community that
local kids are safe and love to v in. When they come of age | hape
the fond memories make this generation aspire to have their children
grow up here
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Appendix 7.2.2: Candidate statement leaflet for Currawong Ward election

Don’t Risk a Fine
VOTING CLOSES 6.00 PM

Friday 23 October 2020
Your ballot paper is attached to this leaflet.
Complete and return as soon as possible.
See me ballot paper envelope for voting instructions.

VOTING IN THIS ELECTION IS BY POST ONLY

Your completed ballot material mustbe posted or in
the hands of the Election Manager on or before
6.00 pm on Friday 23 October 2020,
Local mail clearance times may vary. Ballot material must
Ibe mailed before final clearance times in the last week of
voting. Late votes canngt be included in the count.
Alternatively, you may hand-deliver your envelope during
busingss hours to:

Dffice 7, The Point Corporate Centre

600 Doncaster Road

Doncaster

CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRES

(Completed candidate questionnaires are available at
vec.vic.gov.au or alternatively from the Election Manager.
COMPULSORY VOTING PROVISIONS APPLY

“iou have received this haliot pack because you are
enrolled for this election. Voting is compulsary if you were
on the Victorian State electoral roll for this council on
Friday 28 August 2020,

Further information on vating entitiernents can be found at
VEC.NIC.QOV.30

You may receive an Apparent Failure ToVote Notice if
you complete and return your ballot material after the
close of voting.

MANNINGHAM

2020 Council Election
VOTING CLOSES 6.00 PM

Friday 23 October 2020

ew e ehanged bomaduries are = place for thi sicticn

M s Cresk
Vewmandyon A -

" Tedtan B

S Mtoen
Coneh

Currawong Ward

THIS IS A POSTAL ELECTION ONLY.

Voting is compulsory for residents.

For further information visit vec.vic.gov.au o
phone (03) 8619 1440 during business hours.

@ Victorion Electoral Gommission

Prrtd 1 120% Rstrtan e et .

RUAN, William

Geating things dome. That's eny personal motto. As your local councilkr,
| promise that | will work s hard as | can o get things done for

Currawong. | have been a local resident for over a decade. In that time,
I've developed a deep passion for our community and | want b devole
‘all ey efforts 40 impeoving R, | know its full potential: we can be a place

where el & real serse of beisnging and pride, regardiess of
whether you're a retiree or a student, whether you're raising a family, o
Inving the Independent Ié2. To achieve this, | have e foliwing prioritiss:
supgoeting the COVID recovery: renitalizing local parks; ensuring
responsibie development, growing local arts and cullure; creating a
safe, seture communiy, and cutting wastehul spending. | can guarasies
energetic leadership and an incredible work ethic & fight for your
interests. My background in meremso! mwgemmwnm law
and IT ensures |
shills and bechnological capabiities to tackle &l the modern chalianges
of being a councillor. At the same time, | believe that it's the people in the
community wha best understand its needs. | look fonward to stening
Iummmmwwﬂwmatemmww
mwkngingeuwmnammgoalmmmhmmm
vobe, we can make Currawang a place you can be proud o call home.

id

CONLON, Andrew

the best ptace to In " ] most

LAW, Alex

FmMex, ailelmq Dencaster East resident, and your lcal candidate

Iiveable cities. My goal & to keep it that wy. g tobere-
elected as your Councillor having served the last 4 years on Council
Mawmasﬂaw' M\glnshme | hayve: consistently

and

operates inbemaly resuling inan mpanmhm theak ricw highly vailues
exallente,

g for Currawong Wand as | want fo sae our council provide
more support b0 our beautiful and unigue community. | believe that
i3 starts with you being istened to 50 that we can Degin making a

grassrocts change 10 how Manningham works. | will ensure your voice
i hesard by communicating rguiary with you directly by having ward
meetings to keep you informed. This will allow your ideas and concems

respect,
This has led to improved eiﬁcm
footpaths al

improved communication md CUSIOMET SEvice.

0 council. f CONID, | will
increase the support for residents and local iraders through these

from the worst performing Council for planning approval response fimes
o one of the best. | aim & achieve excellent valss for

) |will improve the support council gives throughout
our mmmy especially bur senices and cur youth, firstly by listening
ad

| believe
for the 10 improve
traffic: management of morming south-bound raffic on Springvale
Fid at the Mitcham Rd intersection. Having successhily managed an
engingering consultancy for 28 years, serveuunlﬂemwddbum

ensuring long term and financial
Council

that are important poirits in
he commumy Tl mt.mans improving transport links within and
1 the state o ensure the
estoutcome fo us 50 wecan, gethoﬂa:eseasiy. il wok within the
+ planning 50 that Manni
awamefam Inveaibiity focuses on imprving the community first.

Chistian College for 14 years,
10 years and served &s Councilke for the st 4 years, | elieve good
maragement and good governance starts with intagrty

and industry,
na WBU&’&&!I‘CNI“QM&QW“W managament, policy
Bues,

- not pofitical party agendas. Our family have enjayed Iwnme
beautifs, harmanious and culurally diverse Curawong Wad for the
last 17 years. With & children of our own, | support services for families
and older residents along with sparts clubs and volunteer arganisations.
Iwill continue helping Currawong Ward residents with Council issues. |
will continue advocating for ﬂmwemmm maintenance,
roads and footpaths. | will
minimial it increases and maimum mlmuwm' honesty and
Integrity. Contact details: 0468 458 850 voteconlon@ymail com

2

0 |am alss currenty a comeunity
remmmwmmmemmmwm and as
@ board member of the Eastem Metropolian Regional Council of Adul,
Commurity and Further Education. We bve in a great area, and | belave,
with your support in s council election, we can make it even better. Let
me knowe what you would Il to see our councl do for our community
wia 0481 355668, COm, oF my
Faomsmem nlim.’mmcmmwa -Law-Candidate-for-
Cun

W
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CLARK, Peter

Peter Clark has Eved in Manningham, Cumrawong Ward, for over 25 years
with his il (Libby) and two children jnow adults). Hs children attended
Mikgate Primary School and East Doncaster Secondary College. Peter

i a Bachekr degy a
(physics) over 35 years apo. Today he is a consultant S0 gavemments,
‘academia, and industry in innowative areas of science and technology.
Peter has [rpe n 0 n
the . private. and not- Werking
with & wide range of privabe, cororats and gavernment clients, he has
developed strong negotiation and communication skills, and applis
sl reasoning Mow ]
part-time, Peter has the time and energy to devole 10 representing the
community at councl meetings, events and activities. Peter supports
& cap on rate rises, and will ensure that Manningham Council delvers
value for maney senvioss to which locals are entitled. Peter i particularty
keen on keeping Manningham beautitul, with mons aftention directed
0 siopping graffisl and keeping walkoways, parks and waterways

Pe . i

chean of rubbich and : ¥ o4
. and wi wiews of the
majority of residents in Council deliberations.
4
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Appendix 7.2.3: Candidate statement leaflet for Manna Ward election

Don’t Risk a Fine
OTING CLOSES 6.00 PM

Friday 23 October 2020

Your ballot paper is attached to this leaflet.
Complete and return as soon as possible.
See he ballot paper envelope for voting instructions.

VOTING IN THIS ELECTION IS BY POST ONLY

Your completed ballot material must be posted or in
the hands of the Election Manager on or before

6.00 pm on Friday 23 October 2020,
Local mail clearance times may vary. Ballot material must
be mailed beore fnal clearance times in the last week of
woling. Late voles cannot be included in the count.
Atermatively, you may hand-deliver your envelope during
business hours to:

Office 7, The Point Comparate Centre

600 Doncaster Road

Doncaster

CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRES

Completed candidate questionnaires are available at
WeC.viC.gov.au of alternatively from the Election Manager,
COMPULSORY VOTING PROVISIONS APPLY

You have received this ballot pack because you are
enrolled for this election. Voting is compulsory if you were
on the Vickorian State electoral roll for this council on
Friday 28 August 2020.

Further informeation on voting entitlements can be found at
WBCVIC.OV.a

You may receive an Apparent Failure To Vole Notice if
you complete and retum your ballot material after the
close of voting.

MANNINGHAM

2020 Council Election
VOTING CLOSES 6.00 PM

Friday 23 October 2020

Mew or changed boundasies are in place for this election

Manna Ward

THIS IS A POSTAL ELECTION ONLY.

Voting is compulsory for residents.

For further information visit vec.vic.qov.au or
phone (03) 8619 1440 during business hours.

@ Victorlan Electoral Commission

Pt 1007 A e rocycd ok

endorsed by

McLEISH, Paul

1 bring b Council 25 years experiance in IT, with roles inchuding
Chief Qperating Officer and CEQ, and 10 years at Mesill Lynch. |
et basern this Preesichnt and Treasurer of the Dornake Rate-Payers
Association, helping to defeat 2 major development a1 VCAT. During
my twe terms on Council Mve worked hard on many sul 3

)
LIGHTBODY, Tomas

| grew up in Donvale 50 | understand how even the smaliest of changes
in our community can make 3 massive impact on our collective
future and wellbeing. | ove our green spaces, our walking) tracks,

and T've bien honoured t serve as Mayor 3 times. | am seeking

your support for re-election as an independent community Councillor
whis continues i act with responsibily and integrity, | Deliev in
sound financial and iy | :
using my business experience to heip Council in controlling costs

and irmesting in technalogy to impnove services. When COVID1S hit,
Council refied upon their new [T capabilities to keep services operating,
and theres more bo be done. i re-elected | will continue to pursue
tougher planning conirols in Manningham which also enables mone
investment in affordable housing. So far Fve increased protection

from averdevelopment for the lower density areas, and now all large
developers must pay a 5%+ apen space contribution bo invest in the.
new 10-year Public Open Space and Public Tollet strategies. |am
passionate about improving pubdc transport. | changed Council peficy
o include a Bus Rapid Transit system before Dancaster Rail, which will
ncvw b built on the Eastem Freeway as part of the NE Link project. |
will continues pushing State Gowernenent for better publc transpod, and
Council for meore kocal footpaths. We've cut emissions by 25%, and

I'm determingd we continue reducing Councils greenhous pallution
If elacted | will pursue new environmental goals for Manningham,
Including a further 25% reduction in greenhouse peliution through
multi-council purchasing of renewable power, a 215t century waste
transfer facility, and separating glassBood waste for recycling. Please
Vote 1 Paul McLeish 0481 182 556 paulcmacleish@gmail com

1

KILMARTIN, Darryl

Vote 1 Darryl. One of you, not one of them. Party politics is looking
atyour local councl a5 a plaything for furthering ther broader goats.
A a totally unaligred candidate, | offer something ditferent. Honest
representation for the residents and businesses of Manna Ward,
and the people of Manningham. | lve in Hope Awe in Manna wand
and for 28 years | have raised my family in or adjacent 8 the City of

our | shaps, and | love th participate in
sporting chub: in the community, participating myself
i many spoets growing up, including coaching gymeastics As our

community grows, we must for better p tport that

fits our needs and protect our uiban greenery and neighbowfoods
from overdevelopment. With iy background in urban planning, design,
and architecture, | have the know-how and the passion to improve

thee quality of our neaghbourhoods and create a more resilient local
economy. That is wity | am proud to be standing for Marna ward at the
Manningham City Council. If elected, my peiorities will be: 1) Get urban
planning right, ensuring the community is ahwarys first and our precious
green gpaces ane preserved and improved. 2) Take envirgnmental
action, such s mowing 10 renewable energy, which will reduce the
elechricity cost, and introducing rew waste strategies that increase
recyciing and reduce unnecessary waste going to landfill. 3) Invest in
smart counci infrastructung that will save mongy in the future, allawing
more o be allocated t comenunity projacts. This means your rates will
be better purposed in our community. driving a strong kocal economy.
There is sb much Manningham City Council can da 10 support the
community, 2nd a5 your councilior | will stand frm in your interest.
Please contact me at facebook comAomasightbody or

tomas lightbody@gmail. com. Vote [1] Tomas Lightbody o help
Manningham lead the pack, not play catch-up.

M Tunstall Square in Manna ward has always been our
focal shops. My boys attended Donvale Crristian College and my
youngest still does. | helped establish the Donvale Magoies at the
Doervale (val, and my youngest plays cricket with St Davids. Ten years
on commithe at Little Athietics and now Secretary of the Doncaster
Athletic cub has led to two Life ips, but more importantly,
an excellent understanding of the inner workings of the community
group and Council relationship. Recently | have negotiated with counc
ower the athistic track ighting upgrade and the povision of & new
panilion for the adiacent cricket and football clubs, uimately achiering
successhul outcomes for the community. While running rmy own small
business, | was president of Manningham Youth and Family services,
sourcing funding from Council and State government and oversaeing
the pment and delivery ion, housing,

disability senvices. Work recogrised with a communiy service award
trom Donvale Rotary, and a Menzies Community Ausiralia Day Award
Writing this feels like | am seeking reoogniticn. Mot s0. | simgly wish
for you to know that aside from a demonstrated desie to serve the
commanity, | bring years of experience repressnting the community

o the council Vote for me 50 | can work for you on both sides of the
fence. My mobile 0433 075400
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FRAWLEY, Ben

Im standing as an independent candidate, not a member of any
political party. bve lved in Manningham for S0+ years. | have your
interests at heart, just an ordinary ratepayer who wants quality, value
for money, and transparency. My commitment is to represent your
concers to Council, being your spokesperson for Manna Ward. In
2021 we need ba rebuild and | wart Council 9 focus on supporting
local businesses, sporting groups, and not for profit crganisations

in Manningsam Bounce Back 2021. We nead o get back 1o basics,
providing high quality services such as Council childcare, well
resourced kinders, and comemunity care. We need to maintain

our infrastructuns such as footpaths roads and parks. Il support

the Council introducing a Food Organics Green service. Counclls
performance can b improved in a range of areas, ncluding how we
consult with residents, customer senvice, | believe we can move from
goed to great. I opposs inappropriate development and probect our
valuable nesghibourhood character We need to be smarter and more
efficient and provide better value for your rates. | know many have
been disappointed with the performance of some of our Councillrs,
egpecially the recent sell out on the North East Link, She decigion

o increase Councillr remuneration, some questionable Councillor
expenses and te decision to increase Council rates as people are
doing it towgh in the community. You deserve batter ! | believe in good
L [ for all our citizens

o engage and participate in decisions that affect them. I promise
availzbily 2nd will lsten 10 you with interest, compassion and
empathy. Im cptimistic abowt a bright fubure and befieve that together
as a commuriy we can respond positively making Manningham the
magst livable city in Australiz. Ben Frawley for “Manningham Bounce
Back 2021°
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Appendix 7.2.4: Candidate statement leaflet for Ruffey Ward election

Don’t Risk a Fine
VOTING CLOSES 6.00 PM

Friday 23 October 2020
Your ballot paper is attached to this leafiet.
Complete and return as soon as possible.

See the ballot paper envelope for voting instructions.

VOTING IN THIS ELECTION IS BY POST ONLY

Your completed ballot material mustbe posted or in
the hands of the Election Manager on or before

Local mail clearance times may vary. Ballot material must
be: mailed before final chearance times in the last week of
voting. Late voles cannot be included in the count.
Altematively, you may hand-deliver your envelope during
busingss hours to:

Uffice 7, The Poink Corporate Centre

600 Doncaster Road

Dorcaster

CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRES

Completed candidate questionnaires are available at
vec.vic.gov.au or alternatively from the Election Manager.
COMPULSORY VOTING PROVISIONS APPLY

You have received this ballot pack because you are
enrolled for this election. Voting is computsory if you were
o the Victorian State electoral roll for tis council on
Friday 28 August 2020,

Further information on voting entitiements can be found at
VEC.VIC.gav.au

You meay receive an Apparent Failure To Vote Notice if
you complete and return your ballot material after the
chose of voting.

,.//

MANNINGHAM

2020 Council Election
VOTING CLOSES 6.00 PM

Friday 23 October 2020

Mew or changed boundaries are in place for this election

Frersbedd e

Ruffey Ward
THIS IS A POSTAL ELECTION ONLY.

Voting is compulsory for residents.

For further information visit vec.vic.gov.au or
phone (03) 8619 1440 during business hours.

@ Victorian Electoral Commission

Perint i 100% Acvrai s eyl sk

WOTICE: Ll

MAYNE, Stephen

I'm passionate about our community having lved mast of my life in
Manningham, raising our family here with my wife Cr Paula Piccinini,
your mayor in 2019 who ks retiring at this election. Professionally, Fm
an award winning businesss jourrialist with 30 years experience, plus
B years serving as a bocal government councillor in Manningham
(2008-12) and the City of Melbourns (2012-18) where | was
entrusted to chair the Finance and Govemance committee. ur 3
chilidren attended Templestowe Heights Primary School and we ane
engaged in the local community Ehiough cubs such as The Bullants
{Pootbal/Cricieq), the Bulleen Boomers and Templestowe Park Tennis
Club, where | coached as a university student. As Australia's best
known retail shareholder advocate and the founder of independent
EZing, www.crikey.com, 've asked the hard questans and

i practics d |
won't be captured by developers, can spot a rort a mile off and will
‘watch your ratepayer dollars like a hawic If elected, I'll endeavour
to keep Manningham council debt free, fresze the rates next year
and push for extra suppart for traders at Macedan Square 10 assist
with lockdown recowery. | will fight for the best possible deal from
the North East Link, resisting bolls whillst backing Doncaster Rail.
Like all of you, | love our parks and open spaces. | will push ta bring
forward the Rufey Lake Park improvements mastarplan to delver it
in 4 years not ten. | have long camgaigned to reduce gambling harm
and will step up council's approach to reducing the $58 million per
year lost b addictive poker machines in Manningham In conclusson,
wobe for the candidate b il
multi-cultural community. will energetically represent everyons in the
new Rutfey ward, bringing experience and knowledge o council’s
avocacy and decision-making processes.

1

OAKLEY, Naomi M.

I hanve: been a singhe mum. | have 3 children and greatly enjoyed the
rewards of parenting. 'm a passionate community minded indhvidual,
with my own security business that specialises in managing the
safety of young peoples parties and events. | volunteer at numerous
chidrens sporting clubs. participate in School Council. | am an acte
fund raiser for worthy causes intluding Crisis Heroes, Cystic Fbrosis,
Black Saturday rock concert, and Sporting Event. My passion for
keeping our youth and comemunity safe will be 8 peimary focus for
seekirg election o Council. Providing safe public places for our
Yo people b celebrate, preserving Manninghanms great bushiand,
and establishing fioed term tenures for our slected Counciliors | want
to-ensure Council priritises its financial suppoet to cur community,
especially during is period of pandemic. During the August Council
Feating | asked the question why, in thess desparate times, should
wé cop & 2% rabe rise? The response was it gives Council scope
for helping various community and sporting groups Bnancially. The:
are doing it tough in
these unprecedaried times. 1 has been an extremely challenging
period for all The last annual report indicates that Council has
substantial funds with an operating surplus of $29 million, hence,
given it is Courxils responsibility 10 service its community, the 2%
rale increase dufing the pandemic was not nECessary, when relief,
and the management of mental health and the prevention of family
viglence should be the primary considerations in our community
during this pandemic. Council can and should still provide financial
support for Manninghams community groups,sporting clubs, but for
thet showt tarm, lets get through this current period of uncedainty. and
priceitise the need where it is required most Vote Naomi Dakdey 1

Businesses n

GRIVOKOSTOPOULOS, Jim

‘Widdely known as Jim Geivas, | am a resident of Manningharn far
over 20 years with children attending a local secondary school. |

am actively connected 10 our diverse community, understanding
local concerms and passionale about keeping Manningham as

the best place to lve. As an experienced Mayor and Councillor

of Mansingharm City Council and with Iiberal beliets | seek your
support to represent our community. | will strongly advocate for solid
debt free financial management of council and the review of rates
especially during these challenging times. | will voice our comemunity
CONCEITS regarting impact of the North East Link. Working hard

for you on councl with integrity in my decision making and being
socially inclissive, | will represent the concems of residents to malee
Ruley Ward a betser place Bor our families, our youth, our senioe
citizens, our sports and community groups. | believe in a council
which is openly transparent and accountable, values the views of
residents and takes a comman sense approach to achieve positive
outcomes, which has been misging in recent years. | will be a
Sr0Ng voice on i within our muni

In perticular, | will focus on retated trafc and car parking ssues,
advocate for safety within our community, making sure we retain and
improve our open spaces and parks for cur residents o enjoy. This
includes having designated off-leash areas far our pet owners. Its
time: for ratepayers to vole for change. | will bring an experenced,
accessible, committed and accountable approach to my work. It
would be an immense privilege to represent our community on
Council and help shape Mansingham for all of us to v in and enjay,
now and into the fubure. | have the experience Rutfey Ward residents
need. | humbly ask for your wote.
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HOTICE: By

MOTIGE: Hory

BAIN, Peter Timothy

| live in Dorwale with my wife and three young daughters. We have
been resadents of Manningham and surrounds for the last eighteen
years. | have over twerty years of executive and governance level
axperience across a variety of industries including health, aged
care, education, intemational aid, franchising and housing. In
thase roles | have worked closely with  variety of stakeholders
and successhully delivered fresh vision and positive change. | am
currently the business manager of Plenty Vallay Christian College. ¥
successhul in being elected to councl, | look forward to advocaing

resisting inappropriate development and caring for families and the
vulngrable. The current council is healthy and will Benefit from fresh
viionary voices rather than returning to the past

fior issves including assisting small business, recovering from COVID,

LEUNG, Kai
s your repressntative, | will represent your wishes on the Council
My am is to advocate for @ hanmonsous city Iveable to all peopls,
‘while facing real es with sustai o effectiv

solutions. | am a practising kwwyer and was praviously an accountant
‘where for more than 10 years, | was the CFO of public-listed and
private companies in various industries. | am also actively involved
in pra bona community service 2nd sit on the board of directors of
not-for profit org ian. | read kaw at ersity and am
admitted as a kwyer of the Supreme Court of Victoria and the High
Court of Australia. | hold an MBA from the University of Warwick,
United Kingdom and a B Bus (Accounting & Finance) from Edith
Cowan University. | am also a Fellow CPA of CPA Australia.
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Appendix 7.2.5: Candidate statement leaflet for Schramm Ward election

Don’t Risk a Fine
VOTING CLOSES 6.00 PM

Friday 23 October 2020

Your ballot paper is attached to this leaflet,
Complete and return as soon as possible.
See me ballot paper envelope for voting instructions.

VOTING IN THIS ELECTION IS BY POST ONLY

Your completed ballot material must be posted or in
the hands of the Election Manager on or before
6.00 pm on Friday 23 October 2020,
Local mail clearance times may vary. Ballot material must
be mailed before final clearance times in the last week of
voting. Late votes cannat be included in the count.
Altermatively, you may hand-deliver your envelope during
busingss hours to:

Dffice 7, The Point Corporate Centre

600 Doncaster Road

Doncaster

CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRES

Completed candidate questionnaires are available at
vec.vic.gov.au or alternatively from the Election Manager.
COMPULSORY VOTING PROVISIONS APPLY

“ou have received this haliot pack because you are
enrolied for this election. Voting & compulsory if you were
on the Victorian State electoral roll for this council on
Fritiay 28 August 2020.

Further information on vating entitiernents can be found at
VEC.NIC.Q0V.30

You may receive an Apparent Failure To Vote Notice if
you complete and return your ballot material after the
close of voting.

MANNINGHAM

2020 Council Election
VOTING CLOSES 6.00 PM

Friday 23 October 2020

Newr o¢ changed boundaries are in place for this lection

Schramm Ward

THIS IS A POSTAL ELECTION ONLY.

Voting is compulsory for residents.

For further information visit vec.vic.gov.au or
phone (03) 8619 1440 during business hours.

@ Victorion Electoral Gommission

Pt 120 estaten e eyt e

| hae been & hocal resident for over 25 years. | bove living in
Manningham and will continue working with indriduals, community
leaders and community groups as a strong adwocate for a better
My personal skl allow me 1 cut
through bureducratic ietoric and to gel things done. Our safety
and services for residents lifestybes, ane at stake. Less grime is
less crime: As your curment Councillor | ask for your vabe o re-
elect me. | am driven o help people and our community. For me
this i not a career. | will not tell you one thing and do another, |
have studiex] many aneas of Law and have represented people in
courts and VAT, achisving great cutcomes. | hive certificates
in Psychology and Mental Health firct aid. | am a Mental Health
Australia Ambassador. | aiso have lived with traumas that have
given me insights that enable me tn work with people on many
leweds. Having run suctissful businesses here and in the LSA, |
understand financial management and will continue to insist that
rates ane spent wisely and effectively. | will keep working to retain
and improve our facilities, parks and gardens. | am committed t
wirking with all Gvermment Agencies 1o get more for Manninghanm,
especially in regard to the enviroament, and ensuring we have a
greater local recycling capacity, Pieass feel free 1 ask me about the
many locally beneficial projects | have intiated and have in mind
for Marmingham. | am commithed b provided sensoes by our urisque
community. To find out mone about me go to
www au. For a caring,

1 Dot Haynes and call me on 0425718937

Councillor Vote

»
GARNER, Jett
My name is Jett, and | am excited to be running as an independent
candidate for our upcoming council election. Being a paralegal at a
leading social justice law firm, a3 well as a long time Manningham
local, here are several commitments | will pursue if elected as

your councillor, My first comenitment is to keep our rates lew and
encsure: that our rates are spent effectively to fund programs tat
enrich our community. Sufficient funding is essential in ensuring the
continuation of programs which benefit our community, inclding
childcare facilities and accessible ageing and care senvices in
Manringham. It is also vital that we effectively invest in local
etonomic initiatives and programs that will help affer support to our
community, including 1o those experiencing financial handship, as
we work together to overcoms economic uncertainty. My second
commitment is to ensure that the Council works with both the state
and fediral gavemments o get moee for Manningham. My third
commitment is to ensure that we keep clear of overdevelopment

50 that we can maintain our: neighbourhood character, natural
emvdronment, and quality of life, My fourth commitment is o address
any current traffic and parking issues arund our Schooks and
shopaing strips. My ffth commitment is to preserve and imprave the
amenities of our city, council services. public transport, and urban
design. Throughout my carees, | have used my voice Yo advocate for
others; if elected | plan bo use my voice 1o also advocate ke you,
and the issues that you cane about. | am all about cutting through
bureaucracy, delivering real advocacy, and meeting the needs of our
community, Piease contact me if you have any questions or even
ust to have a general chal by: emailing j 0 o
by phoring me on 0481 881 413

SUN, Sophia

A5 a retined business owner, valunteer with a local aged care
home, and Manningham local of 20 years. | am thwilled to be your
candidate for Sch the City G laction.
My positive vision for Manningham is for an even more secure

and liveabie community, where the growth of the community is in
alance with the sustainability of the environment. In the future, my
wision is alen that there ane mare oppartunities fior katal businesses
o thrive and for local employment i increase. | am commitied

0 listening to local residents and business owners and working

o ensune we: can all rebuild better from COMD-19. As a Chinese
Australian woman, not oaly do iy bilingual skills maks it easy

o communicate different cultural groups, but atso my
understanding of both cultures will help bridge the gap between
many social groups in Manningham. | will work for diversity, and
advotabe for equal rights for every member of the community.

I stand with the Greens due to a shared commitment to creats
amore justice and sustainable society, bringing the values of
ecobogical sustainability, soclal justice, and peace and non-viglence
10 all my decisions on Council, If elected, My prortes will be: 1)
Mare: funding for community programs such a5 youth empowerment
and aged care, and also for essential infrastructure. 2} Speaking up
for local business owners and helping them regain confidence in a
post-COVID landscape. 3) Presenving cur green and open spaces.
Please email me at sophia.yf sun@gmail.com bo discuss your ideas
for our community. Viole [1) Sophia Sun for an influential community
advocate for gur econamy, environment and our people.
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MAYNE, Laura
1 haave lived in Manningham all my fife. 1 am studying Law and
Commerce at University and play VFLW for the Richmond Foothall
Club. If elected, | will advocate to protect our parks and open
spaces, limil excissive development and oppose any expansion of
the Doncaster Hill development zone. The current councilions voled
unanimousty for a 2% rate rise during the COVID-19 pandemic.
1 will support a rate freeze In 2021-22 to help our community
et through this crisis. To tackle worsening traffic congestion on
Dorcaster Hill, | will advocate strongly for a council supportied
car-ghare scheme for apartment residents. This will provide more
parking and driving optians, whilst reducing cangestion. We need
improved public: transport and | will never ghve up on Dancaster
Rail, | love: walking my dog Daisy arund Fuffey Lake Park and
will endorse accelerating defivery of the 10 year Masterplan to
improve the park. | endorse policies to support small businesses
husrt by the pandemic, reduce excessive gambling harm, and build
community connection - especially for our multicultural and elderty
communities. AS a young adult invotved in our community, | have
been an active member of six local sporting dubs (baskethall,
foothall, soccer, tennis, athietics and cricket), as a player, captain
and coach. | also value culture and the arts, having perlormed
and played the piand in local bands at aged cane facilities in
Manninghar. My mether is an Italian migrant and my fathers family
g third generation Manningham having moved into the area when
it was orchards. It's e for change - we need some fresh faces on
councl who ane committed to enérgetically representing th people
of Schramm Ward, who'll probect heir community and their way of
lifee. For more information feel free o visit:
lauramaynemanningham.com
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Appendix 7.2.6: Candidate statement leaflet for Tullamore Ward election

Don’t Risk a Fine
OTING CLOSES 6.00 PM

Friday 23 October 2020
Your ballot paper is attached to this leaflet.
Complete and return as soon as possible.
See te ballot paper envelope for voting mstructions.

VOTING IN THIS ELECTION IS BY POST ONLY

Your completed ballot material must be posted or in
the hands of the Election Manager on or before

Local mail clearance times may vary. Ballot material must
be mailed betore fnal clearance times in the last week of
wvoling. Late voles cannot be included in the count.
Alternatively, you may hand-deliver your envelope during
business hours to:

Office 7, The Point Comparate Centre

600 Doncaster Aoad

Doncaster

CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRES

Completed candidate questionnaires are available at
WeC.viC.gov.au of alternatively from the Election Manager,
COMPULSORY VOTING PROVISIONS APPLY

ou have received this ballat pack because you are
enrolled for this election. Voting is compulsory if you were:
on the Vickorian State electoral roll for this council on
Friday 28 August 2020.

Further informeation on voting entitlements can be found at
VB0V

You may receive an Apparent Failure To Vote Notice if
you complete and return your ballot material after the
close of voting.

MANNINGHAM

2020 Council Election
VOTING CLOSES 6.00 PM

Friday 23 October 2020

Mew or changed boundasies are in place for this election

Tullamore Ward

THIS IS A POSTAL ELECTION ONLY.

Voting is compulsory for residents.

For further information visit vec.vic.qov.au or
phaone (03) 8619 1440 during business hours.

@ Victorlan Electoral Commission

PR VO R e e e

NOTICE: il

WOTICE: o d d

YEE, Stella
Dear fellow residents, my family and | have lived in Doncaster for 16
years and we love being a part of our local communéty. It is where
et have raised our thres children and made lfelong fiends. Wi
alsn run & small business on Ayr Street. | am actively imvolved in
groups including with the Vinnies

CONLON, Luke

Manningham is a great place to Bve and my goal is to keep it that
way. Your intesests are my interests having lived in Manningham
fow 17 years. | valoe, respect and listen bo the diverss voices of
our i o ity. | will work
hard to ménimise rate fises by focussing on increased Council

Soup Van and through COASIT. (Ralian Assist

visiting eldery Halian ladées in Manningham in their homes. My son
attended Birralee Primary School where | was elected 1o the School
Council. | have a Bachelor's degree in Social Work and a Masber’s
I Public: Palicy, We know Manningham has grown rapidly and
that i . Ther icient parking,
especially at Park & Ride and local shopping strips. Qur local school
Birralee Primary has seen student numbers soar by 400% in 8
years, requiring foureen additional portable classrooms! | believe

and goad service along with reductions to red-tape
and bureaucracy. If elected | will advocate for improvements to
our parks and their maintenance along with improvements af the
park & ride facility 1o reduce pasking pressures in our side streets.
1 will also seek to improve traffic and parking management around
ghopping centres and the Baralee Primary school. | am opposed to
parking meters and concemed about unsightly and inappropriate
development. Council is about the welfare of the city, its people.
the organisation and its peograms. | will woek hard 1o ensure

ROY, Grace

My name is Grace Ray and | am standing for Manningham Coundl
elections, in Tullamore Ward. The Tullamore ward is mostly the
suburb of Doncastir - and it's in this ward that my husband and
Ilive, where my son attends primary schood and where we have
chosen 1o make our life. | am standing for Manaingham Council
ot because it's a political stepping stone, of i oppose others, but
instead to help make our suburb a better place o live, to work and
o raise our famies. | was born in Hong Kong and raised in country
Victoria but hawe lived in Manningham since 1987, Manningham
Is @ beautiful place. we are lucky to ive here and 5o | want to help
kesep it the wonderhl place it is. My priorities are to: 1. Ensure
your council rates are spent wisely, 2. Create a genuine balance

between and
enviranment; 3. Ensure the Council genuinely advocates for

these challenges need tobe managed better

long term and financial

remain a liveable and city. | stronghy
wellbeing should be at the heart of all Council decigion-making. In
my views, the recent decision to raise rates o the maximum rate
during a pandemic {for an extra $3 million budget surplus!) failed

to put our community welibeing first. If ebected, | will advocate for

a review of the adequacy of current infrastructure, find solutions

to ouwr local schools’ growth, improve public transportation and
parking. and support initiatives that strengthen our community
including local jobs and businesses. For mare information about
these priorities, phease visit wwwstellayes community .| am
running in Tullamore Ward because | live here and as a local
resident, | genuinely care about our patch of Manningham. | ask for
your suppart for me o represent us on Council. Vate 1 for Stella Yee.
Thank you.

During these tain and difficult times, | don't think it is
appropriate for Councilors to mcrease their allowances. Foremost
s to act in the interests of residents. Council needs leaders who
listen to you, not a political party. Having studied engineering | have
the probilem solving skills to deliver sound decision making .| will
alweays listen ko your concems and work hard 1 help you with any
is5ues you have with council. | am passionate about delivering
excellent value for your rates. | am independent and firmly believe
that good decisions, sound financial management and a well fun

i come from open-mi grity. It
would be an henour to represent you and help shape Manningham
a5 a place we are all proud to live in and enjoy for a long time to
come. Please contact me on 0449 954 073 email:
votelcondon@gmail.com

Il by : and 4. Work with everyone o create a prowd
community in the Manningham City. | have a Bachelor of Science
and Bachelor of Business. My caneer sxpeniences range from being
asmall business owner, research analyst, to the corporate world
where | held senior positions in the finance sector. Aside from work
and vy family, | have always taken a keen intere<t in volunteering
within our community, Cusrently | serve a5 a general board member
a5 well a5 a member of the finance committes for ONEMDA
disability services. | also serve on the school council at Bimalee
Primiary, also on the firance comméties - 5 well as being the PFA
(Parents and Friends Association) President, for the School. This
council election please consider me for your vote, it would be my
absolute honour 1o represent you in Manningham.
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NOTICE: il

endorsed by

DIAMANTE, Deirdre

My name is Deirdre and | am asking you ko vobe for me in Tullamone
Ward. if elected as your Councillor | commit to support development
but not o support efficient ing of our rates
on services and infrastructure that better connect cur community,
suburbs and streets: 1o push for programs that simulate local
business activity, particularly businesses impactsd by the North
East Link, and to advocate for programs that support our elderly and
for greater state and federal government funding of Manningham's
charities. | have lived in Manningham for over 40 years, its where
| went to school and now where, with my husband Marcelio, | am
raising three school-age children. We love living in Manningham
and the feeling of community & something | will constantly fight
b maintain as your Councillor. | am active in the community
a3 a School Councll member and Chair, Board Director of the
igo G i and active member
of the Mansingham Business Excelience Awards and the 5t Gregory
the Great Parish community. | also cane for my aging parents and
their needs and i R
them. | have libersl values with strong experence in business and
government. As a small business owner I'm focused on growing
ities for bocal busi I aikso stand for i
and diversity recognising the value of a diverse business sector
and community. My vote in Council will always consider long-term
food, not just short-term actions that drive popularity. | cane about
the world | will leave my children and want to see Manningham as a
phace they want o Bee in and ane day raise their own family.
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Appendix 7.2.7: Candidate statement leaflet for Waldau Ward election

Don’t Risk a Fine
OTING CLOSES 6.00 PM

Friday 23 October 2020
Your ballot paper is attached to this leaflet.
Complete and return as soon as possible.

See me ballot paper envelope for voting instructions.

VOTING IN THIS ELECTION IS BY POST ONLY

Your completed ballot material mustbe posted or in
the hands of the Election Manager on or before
6.00 pm on Friday 23 October 2020,
Local mail clearance times may vary. Ballot material must
Ibe mailed before final clearance times in the last week of
voling. Late votes cannot be included in the count.
Alternatively, you may hand-deliver your envelope during
business hours o:

Dffice 7, The Point Corporate Centre

600 Doncaster Road

Doncaster

CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRES

(Completed candidate questionnaires are available at
vec.vic.gov.au or alternatively from the Election Manager.
COMPULSORY VOTING PROVISIONS APPLY

“ou have received this haliot pack because you are
enrolled for this election. Voting is compulsory if youwere
on the Victorian State electoral roll for this council on
Friday 28 August 2020,

Further information on voting entitiements can be found at
VEC.NIC.Q0V.30

Yfou may receive an Apparent Failure To Vote Notice if
you complete and return your ballot material after the
close of voting.

MANNINGHAM

2020 Council Election
VOTING CLOSES 6.00 PM

Friday 23 October 2020

e o¢ ehanged boumdaries are i place for this sheetion

Waldau Ward

THIS IS A POSTAL ELECTION ONLY.

Voting is compulsory for residents.

For further information visit vec.vic.oov.au or
phone (03) 8619 1440 during business hours.

@mnewm

Prrtid 1 120% Rstrtan e et .

LAI, Raymond
Since migrating to Ausiralia from Hong Kong in the early 1990¢, my famiy
has calied Doncaster East home. | have worked as an IT profisssional for
over 3 years and was previously invoived in an owner committee that
served thousands of residents and Dusws Ihateﬂum Mannngham

o be

SHANMUGAPALAN, Thurairajah

Doncaster East had been our home for 33 years, since our migration
in 1987 NwdﬂmMMrmmmma Doncaster

CHEN, Anna

Hhan words, A

llor, | have:
w....u.q Ruffey Lakoe Park

worked hard

CPA qualified mmt. 30 years warking for local govemments
in'Victoria including over 20 years as manage france for one of

Jocetyn,
Walker, wmm track carpak upgrad 2020°21) Resnves;
O more

susthinai thaat will kake
e chser towards becsering a carbon neutral ity My visionis for

Manningham Council to be more open and efficient. | will support a plot
program to recnat cument residents from different cultural

Cruasngioreshis 2007, D:D'ﬂ:etWMﬂD.BZUIS Fled Shicd Appeals
and member

mnmmmmmmm s fesling e th owing inVictoria, Ext dgein 905, 906, 907 i
financial impact of COWD-1_ rates reliefis Council financi and ofher reporting & and much more. As a pracsng lwyer (LM Lhnfwbmnrqlm
Deiwllmvemmrwmbewﬁwrluwm1wqw rmmrmmﬂuwmwmmwmm inclusion volunteer solcitor at the
be fo seek that vl save money and i . Financial Hardship Policy Review, EasunCmemevelcrwanmwammev
our council, Dverall, thi Review of Local Govemment Act: Financial decision making and Kniw Watch. Living ummnas.
for inesess. and gr Your Council Website development working groups. My passion for the oy

bt abity of our beoved ity | il ity matk and make egular wil listening and for our
i against jood 20 years. number of ity and wmmily“ MWamsth
andin tavor of smarter medium sized cevelopments. | vl aso suppert major everts including, Commonweaith Games 2006, Workd Swimming and sound financial

incluge post COVID- 19Wmuwwmm

v developing a climate emengency plan 10 reduce

+ |muWWemmmmrm

G resdents. i you warta

and council

tate o g

i Councilor with na political
Wmatmmmmtmuwwmlwla
Raymand. Facebook com/RaymondLasManningham

2017, When ek ill b expertise in

financial Councits o g 3 retires,

Immmtwmmummwmm My priocy il senaces. | vl

betn il ke incrsase for post ovid- sty
needs; rate

redied, 0O PENSIONEFS;

mmngrorwncmmsmmmwmmnwm

. Public transport
and carbon emissions, 5ol wil mwmh.mm

senices and enhanced onboand sanitabon. Our youth is our future. | wil
sush for a Youth Advisory Comenitiee to advise Councd and facilitate chvc

programs, using the tavourable
and to kick start Manningham's aconomy past Covid- 19( Con.ml-!ssets
(o, fooRpsaths, parks, playgrounds etc) are managed and mantained
praperty to ensure safety of cur mmw mn{mfm.mmu
support. dg | e the
time, wwmwemwmmwmmw

2

for young nesidents. As a strong supporter of
wwlwmmmmmmlas my vision for
Torall |
oﬂsamma:mwwmw.mnmwmm
any palitical party, The only party | Servit i our community Waldau Ward,
Manningham. Vobe 1 Chen, Anna
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NOTICE: Ay

BURNHAM, Cyndy
Cyndy Burnbam why vote for me? | kove this community and know | can

KHOURY, Bernadette
Bemadette Khoury. four Candidate for Waldau Ward.. lmlofl!ﬁnadu!!

SALEHI, Aryan
s afinancs professional curmently working in the insurance industry,

PO ur 3
mwammmmmummﬂvmmm

mm mmﬂlmmnmmrorwwm

o this city feel for young and fy lowe lving e jaying stybe and the many
and oid. | want to make sure our ity friens we h 0 the years. I'm p put my name
1 that the o & .‘umu ik in the local government
Tor do this we in Octob M|mnmmmmmmmm
Lt of Lt me be your voice for your interests. s i
the Waldau Werd wmmmwmmuﬁmm&mmmw
0402 507 307

i achiew: pulting your mmmirs.\ummmmz
For Aeyan Sabehi & prefierence all other candidates.

make a difference and be your voice: on your council When my husband s for greater support Iam ready to bring my knowledge and skills to serve pur community. |
Peter and | moved into our house in Doncaster East over ty number of L .rmmnemeﬂmer gham my entire ifs
nmmmmlmamm”mmemmam and kigt low, i ¥ i k inthis part of Metourne.
it onemurity where pecsle v, shop, work socilse nd pay | ek disabled, suppor our largely diverse mult alocate Schodls, |
confinues ‘spirit, not mmmhmhmamlarmm mewmmdmwwwd!mwmmmhmh»
just for ourseves, but for all of our mejnum in, After school, | eamed
mmwmmammmw and s & bachelors degres in ACCountin o
anea for f i |mmmm&wum mmmmmkun 1 will wark. councils
equipment and lighting. Up until COVID- mmnmmmwm Manningham Maronits womens group, the Marcnit for busiget susis it rate rises w ising on the
mwedhhcdmwnﬂammda‘mmﬂwml decades it Clement quality of services. assets i
want 1o being man inB,llun'-'" wmmauwvmnfuommw wmmwnummmwmmmm
mwmxmmkmdummn ¥ “a chamber of in
hirve ben thearea, but sady mawmmim|mmmmmnm alsp share many of
this s o hold e 0 COVID-19 Whilethe post COMD-19 evircrment will policy & ethics. ther .4 team member. | wll ok withresients o ensure pogety deveopment i
ngrg. 0 w-m-w ’"""-'eﬂmwg our area is sustainatle not .| commit o being
open, ransparent and yOu 10 dESCuss any

v Please consider voing 1 for me and 2 for Bemadette Khoury. Ersure
you rumber all e other candidaties in order of your prefarence.
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Appendix 7.2.8: Candidate statement leaflet for Westerfolds Ward election

Don’t Risk a Fine
OTING CLOSES 6.00 PM

Friday 23 October 2020
Your ballot paper is attached to this leaflet.
Complete and return as soon as possible.
See te ballot paper envelope for voting mstructions.

VOTING IN THIS ELECTION IS BY POST ONLY

Your completed ballot material must be posted or in
the hands of the Election Manager on or before

Local mail clearance times may vary. Ballot material must
be mailed before fnal clearance times in the last week of
wvoling. Late voles cannot be included in the count.
Alternatively, you may hand-deliver your envelope during
business hours to:

Office 7, The Point Comarate Centre

600 Doncaster Aoad

Doncaster

CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRES

Completed candidate questionnaires are available at
WeC.viC.gov.au of alternatively from the Election Manager,
COMPULSORY VOTING PROVISIONS APPLY

ou have received this ballat pack because you are
enrolled for this election. Voting is compulsory if you were
on the Vickorian State electoral roll for this council on
Friday 28 August 2020.

Further informeation on voting entitlements can be found at
WBCVIC.0V.EU

You may receive an Apparent Failure To Vote Notice if
you complete and return your ballot material after the
close of voting.

MANNINGHAM

2020 Council Election
VOTING CLOSES 6.00 PM

Friday 23 October 2020

Mew or changed boundasies are in place for this election

Westerfolds
Ward

THIS IS A POSTAL ELECTION ONLY.

Voting is compulsory for residents.

For further information visit vec.vic.qov.au or
phone (03) 8619 1440 during business hours.

@ Victorian Electoral Commission

PR VO R e e

NOTICE: il

WOTICE: o d d

KLEINERT, Michelle

| am dedicated and effective, with the ensrgy and respect that you
deserve from a local Councillor, | &m passionate sbout our open
space and our connected commurity. We are vibrant and embracing.
| know rmy community because | have grown and Bved here 2l my
life. During this Cowid-19 crisss, we have all been afected. Our

BEYNON, Bob

This election is crucial as we navigate through the current pandemic
which has had a major effect on s all. | have Ived in Manningham
fioe 40 ywars with riry wite and 4 children. | ran my own business
later in my career in Manningbam. | was a former Mayor and
Councillor. As your candidate | am accutely aware that all spheres

mental health and wellbeing is a prioeity. We need experienced
counciliors with knowledge and understanding as further rapid action
will be needed immedsately in the new council temm. | will reform
palicies for business, sporting and community clubs to survive and
thrive without wasting our rates. | stand for our local business
sconomy, which connects our whole community. | stand for quality
service for all of our residents. | stand for footpaths, park upgrades,
spoeting facilities and sensible development. | will continue the stop
of over | hawe cons defended my ity
over the last 8 years as a Councillor and Mayor. Respected by my
peers, | have participated on multigle boands in leadership positions,
elected as President of the Australian Local Government Women's
Association (Victorian Branch) in 2018 before taking on the role

of Executive Officer pant time whilst running my own business.

My greatest honour being Mayor of Manningham 201672017

where | delivered a legacy of a new mental health senvice for our
community. This resulted in a satellite office for headspace for youth
in M; Today | am a for Mentzl
Health Foundation Austraia. | am contactable on 0483 806 855, | am
100% committed to continue to represant you and get your issues.
heard. [ will continue being availabl to you, no matter how young or
wise you are. Vote 1 Michelle Klginert. Phease allow me the honour
to continue Serving you as your elecied representative.

of have greater challenges in the foreseeable future.
Accountability and value for money has never been moare important
(Clase cooperation between Federal, State and Local Govemnments

is essential | have abways listened to resident’s issues and ensured
that these are raised propenty for the attention of il Councillors
Contentious planning ssues need to be carfully explained to
concemed residents. | believe Manningham must maintain a well
balanced financial management system which maximises funding for
our services and capital works program. There is na doubt demand
fior gur senvices will rise 1 unprecedented levels in the immediate
fisture. My business career culminated in me reaching the level of
CED. I have also had a long caresr nationally in waste and recycling.
Waste is a major spend for Councils costing 1 in 4 rate dollars. |

will 0ppase maves imvohing a 4 bin system withou! a business

case along with a lagistics plan to implement such a program

We already have enough problems with bin storage and cross
contamination with our existing 3 bin system. Westerfolds Ward still
has areas which da not have constructed drains and footpaths. This
i unacceptable in established communities. Our community facilities
need to be based primarily on user friendly functionality and be
supplied on budget. Councillor's performance should be judged by
how well they deliver targeted services and capital works programs.
Vobe 1 Bob Beynon and 2 Mike Zafiropoulos remember number all
boxes.

McINTOSH, Michelle

I am standing as a candidate in the Manningham Council elections
because our community will be facing unpeecedented challenges

in the: wake of COVID-19. The Councl will play a critical roke in
supporting the economic recovery for local businesses and also in
ensuring that we are offering effective services promoting health and
wellbeing. The health senvices need o include pratection for families
affected by domestic viokence, programs to encourage & sense of
commurity belonging and expanded capabilities for vactinations

1 will advocate for and accountable

that is inclusive and diverse. | will work with Council members

0 engage with our community, isten to your concems and seek
actionable solufions that can be defvered at a local govemment
level. My training 25 a pharmacist and a career in biomedical
resaarch and education will bring vakuable skills to the Council | will
support evidenced-based initiatives that enhance our community
and enable econcmic recovery. | am passionate about matermal and
chiikd heatth, education and equal apportunity for all Manningham
residents. A commitment to social justice has guided my career and
my persoral life. | began contributing to ry local commurity 35 a
wolunteer in a not-for- profit organisation as a teanager and continued
in this organisation for over t2n years. While lving overseas between
2000-2006, | co-ordinated a local sporting competition. | have been
a resident of Manningham since 2007 with my Eamily. During this
time, | served on a local school advisary board for six years, provided
science education incursion activities and | am passionate about the
role and oppartunities for wiamen in sclence, technology, engineering
and maths (STEM) disciplines. If elected as a Council member, | will
sarve with integrity, compassion and accountabity.
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s a resident of Manningham, | value our unique city and country
fieel. Married with 2 teenage children | have recently started a
business from home after many years of senior executive roles.

| heave traveled e:nermemhwugw the wioeld as part arnq

roles and the merit of ity and the
vibrant city we are when we embrace all, no matter our heritage.

| wiass origanally invoived with Council when our bocal pocket park
ws designated 10 be sold by Council. | worked with my neighbours
and with Councilors to successfully averturn the sl decision.
This pesitive cutcome helped me understand how important & is

bo get involved in local Council and that as residents we can make
a difference in important decisions that can impact us all. | have
wanted to et more invalved in local matters and the timing i right.
Our family kwes community sport and we have discovered 50 much
of our Il area through getting out and being active, | would love
to promabe mone of this in our community. | support protecting our
preen wedge, our public spaces and neighbourhood streets. North
East Link will be undzrway, and it will be important 1o stay abreast
of this state prject, 5o Manni doesn't lose

more than it already has. | pledge to work with fellow Councillors
50 we can achieve good pobicies for Manringham We need elected
reprasertatives that listen to residents and help mae sensible, well
batanced decisions. | want 10 ensure that we have new perspectives
and busingss minded, active citizens N cur

With such a vibrant community, diverse local businesses and
beautiful natural ervironment, Manningham is a great place to be
{even being a relatively new resident myself). | am a candidate
becauss | am passionate about democracy and advocating for better
public policy for the community. Local Counc is an underrated
form of government, overgeeing many things that affect our lives.
and can make 0ur local commanity better, With a dynamic and
inncwvative vision, Local Council can and should play a rol in
nurturing  friendly, just and sustainable community, | am inspired
by the Doughnut Ecenomics medel of ensuing that evenyone is
ppa ith their bagic needs and "“wnlelmngmmm

o NOTICE: Ay Ay
4
q.
HINDS, Alanna CRONSHAW, Benjamin ZAFIROPOULOS, Mike

I have lived with my family in this wonderful city for 20 years and am
currently Deputy Mayor. | am seeking your support for re-glection,

I have had a bong and diverse public life and serve my community
a5 JP. My credentials include: former Fitzroy Mayos, former General
Manager of SBSTV; Life Australia Day Ambassador, Chair of several
woluntary boards and govemment advisory committaes. | have
exnzcutive expenence in all thres levels of government, which &
waluable to the Councillor role. In the 2010 Australian Honours, |
was awarded the (AM), in recognition of my work and commitment
o the community. As Councillor, | have initiated and supported
decisions, which protect our unigue emironment, invest in parks and

the means of te envi ‘articularty in thess

times we need 1o ensure that everyone is supported with social

connection and other needs We akso have & role as & community in
! e :

vide y relief for COVID-19; and prepare
s for !mrs and fires. | mhea e Liveabibty, Innovation and
Technology Committee, which is making Council services easier and
m msscue | supported funding and facﬂrrr improvements of

local

1 elimate change. Presenvng and creating. space:
is also beneficial for mental health and for exercise. as | know as
a keen Westerfolds parkrunner. Post-election | would encourage
pecple to continu 1o b engaged with the services and community

of the Manni ouncil, because our ity
and democracy is all the richer with broad participation. For more
infarrmation about me, | am curmently completing a Bachelor of Arts
(Honours) at the University of Melbourne, with my thesis on early

needs. Vote 1 for Alanna Hinds, Vote 2 for Michelle Kiginert and
continue to number all of the boxes in onder of your preferences.

ght around y. | am pkanning on
continuing study with a Masters of Public Pclw‘*"‘ i

s and oMMty org

ﬁwdinu overlays, and advocated for NE-link MDES | believe that
Council sheukd be mare transparent and improve the way it engages
with the eomenuriity. | am always keen b listen to the views of
residents and weicome feedback and new ideas. If elected again |
will propose Council continues 1o support residents and busingsses
affected by COVID-19; no increased rates in 2021, given the angaing
impact of the pandemic; a fair share of Council resources is allocated
o our Ward; our amem; safety and quality of lifi ane maintained

My prior civic experience also includes being a candidate in the 2018
State Election for the Eastem Metropolitan Region.

L1 better roads; more trees e.0. along
hesmlns Blackhum Roads; walking/cycling trail improvements;
niew smart bus routes; and shopping precinct enhancements. | look
farward to continue sending my city. Yate 1 Mike Zafiropoulas, 2 Bob
Baynon and remember to fll 2l the squares.
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Appendix 7.2.9: Candidate statement leaflet for Yarra Ward election

Don’t Risk a Fine
OTING CLOSES 6.00 PM

Friday 23 October 2020

Your ballot paper is attached to this leaflet.
Complete and return as soon as possible.
See he ballol paper envelope for voting mstructions.

VOTING IN THIS ELECTION IS BY POST ONLY

Your completed ballot material must be posted or in
the hands of the Election Manager on or before

Local mail clearance times may vary. Ballot material must
be mailed before final clearance times in the last week of
wvoling. Late voles cannot be included in the count.
Alternatively, you may hand-deliver your envelope during
business hours fo:

Office 7, The Point Comparate Centre

600 Doncaster Aoad

Doncaster

CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRES

Completed candidate questionnaires are available at
VBC.VIC.g0v.2u Of altematively from the Election Manager,
COMPULSORY VOTING PROVISIONS APPLY

You have received this ballot pack because you are
enrolled for this election. Vioting is compulsory if you were
on the Vickorian State electoral roll for this council on
Friday 28 August 2020.

Further informeation on voting entitlements can be found at
WBCVIC.0V.a

You may receive an Apparent Failure To Vote Notice if
you complete and return your ballot material after the
close of voting.

MANNINGHAM

2020 Council Election
VOTING CLOSES 6.00 PM

Friday 23 October 2020

Mew or changed boundasies are in place for this election

Yarra Ward

THIS IS A POSTAL ELECTION ONLY.

Voting is compulsory for residents.

For further information visit vec.vic.qov.au or
phone (03) 8619 1440 during business hours.

@ Victorlan Electoral Commission

PP VO R i e e

NOTICE: il

WOTICE: o d Ay

LANGE, Carli

| have been honoured to serve the diverse needs of all Yarra Ward
residents since 2011, a5 a Warrandyte advocate, | am a local
header whi reflects e values of our community, and understands
most needs, pressures and pleasures that come with life over
four generations in our leafy green Ward. | am proud 1 report
that | have embraced change by putting the needs of residents,
local busil and first. Local the
greatest influence on our unique environment and | promote
inngvative decisions to secure its future. My teaching background
has taught me that difference between peaple strengthens us,
and confict is best resolved when Al parties are heard. As an
Independent {no poliscal affliation) Councillor, | will listen o cur
community (authentic). | work towards achieving the best results
for our i i d | am X
| will defend our Green Wedge to work towards the protection
of local reserves, parklands and sporting Facilities, incuding
Gycling and walking connections. My support for maintenance of
community infrastructure, school mentos progeams, health and
the suppont services for famiies and older residents is paramount,
a5 i my desire to help Council control coests, to minimise future
rabe increases, My priorities extend to environmental and

ity security, i ing GFA alerts, fire risk

deveh rather than

iy and
overdevelopment far ongoing sustainability. MP Ryan Smith quotes:

Carli by a passionate o i
community. as well as a willingness to bring people together for a
common goal. nnovative decisions o secure our future; authentc,
proactive and transparent advocacy. Vote 1 Carli Lange.

DYASON, David
Wonga Park, Warrandyte and Park Orchards the Yarra Villages)

fal attention in 3 that is recehing
enomous pressure from wbanisation. Whist we are slowly
qgetting use to multi-story developments a1 the gateway, its a
full understanding of the Yama Wand Villages that will heip define
s and differentiate us from that urbanisation pressure. | stand
for good planning that allows more streamlined processes and
a better understanding of our needs so that we can drive betier
policy. All three of cur villages must have increased i that
supports business and community, but with policy hat enhances
thee character that we've nurtured and protected for this long.
Community has atways been a large part of my Efe and now it's
time to contribute my experience at Council and ensure the Yarra
Ward gets effective representation.

BRENAN, Maxine
My name is Maxing Brenan and | am standing as a candidate for
arra ward, Manningham City Council. | kove where | live and want it
o risenain an incrodibile place bo live for future generations. Moving
forward after this pandemic, kocal communities and their concems
e oing to become more important and having a council that is
responsive and embraces change is going o be an integral part of
the fusture. | befieve that | can be a vessel for that change and can
be & strong voice for everyone in our comemunity, | have lived in Park
Orchards for more than 20 years and consider myssif a local. | have
been involved in the community for numerous years, as a parent
with a health care and education, bo being i
in local school and education boards, b now being the Chairperson
of the Park Orchards Community House. | believe that | can bring a
fresh perspective and diligent attitude to the council, which paired
with my passion for cur community will make me an excellent
candidate, | want 3 council thal responds well 1 development
and addreszes the big picture whilst looking at the needs of ur
community and what is going to make it an amazing place to live
for years b come. I elected as an independent Councillor | will
listen, be accountabl and help achieve the best for our community.
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DOWNIE, Meg

I've sight years i councillor experience and a history
of desirering good outcomes. | know how 10 get things done. 1l
continue to fight for family parks, upgrades to sporting tacilities, top
class kindergartens, and the retention of the green wedge. | believe
Council can provide a wide range of excellent community services
within a carefully planned budget. I'm a strong supporter of sensible
planning. AN applicants must be treated fairly. | admire and support

. p § . and sporting
clubs who make vital contributions to our community, | undertake
to: treat & residents with respect, have regular ward meetings
inchuding one before budget discussions start, meet regularty
with PORA, WCA and Neighbourhood Houses, personally answer
all comegpondence from residents, vole apainst an increase in
councillor allowances, immediately ssek ways th support residents
and bysi affiected by COVID and h isions made by
councillors, not taceless bureaucrats. We must do more for seniors
and our youth, who are our future. Il consult with the CRAs and SES
to ensure they are well supported by Council and Manningham is
prepared for &l emengencies. Roads need to be improved but not
closed for work, A sensible solution i needed for walking dogs. Tl
advocate for an additional secure anea for dogs to exercise offiash.
1 don't play political pames. | know and will work with all politidans
for fuanding opportundties. Il aways make time o listen to residents
and advocabe on your bihalf. 1 be visibhe and approachable. My
background s teaching and sales. I've been a probation officer and
scouster. | lve in Domvale with my hushand and two dogs. Vole 1
Dowmie | recommend vating in the following order from battom to
top of the ballot paper 1, 2, 3, 4 with a number in every square,
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Appendix 8: Daily breakdown of the general

mail-out

Manningham City Council election

6 October 2020 7 October 2020 8 October 2020 Total
29,664 29,664 27,922 87,250

Bolin Ward election

6 October 2020 7 October 2020 8 October 2020 Total

3,568 3,668 3,349 10,465

Currawong Ward election
6 October 2020 7 October 2020 8 October 2020 Total

3,173 3,178 2,987 9,333

Manna Ward election

6 October 2020 7 October 2020 8 October 2020 Total
3,110 3,110 2,927 9,147

Ruffey Ward election

6 October 2020 7 October 2020 8 October 2020 Total

3,343 3,343 3,147 2.833

Schramm Ward election

6 October 2020 7 October 2020 8 October 2020 Total

3,291 3,291 3,007 9,679

Tullamore Ward election

6 October 2020 7 October 2020 8 October 2020 Total

3.204 3,204 3,015 Q.423

Waldau Ward election

6 October 2020 7 October 2020 8 October 2020 Total
3.21 3,21 3,023 Q445
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Westerfolds Ward election

6 October 2020 7 October 2020 8 October 2020 Total

3,269 3,269 3.078 9,616

Yarra Ward election

6 October 2020 7 October 2020 8 October 2020 Total
3,505 3,505 3,200 10,309
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Appendix 9: Result information

Manningham City Council election

Bolin Ward Count summary

Enrolment: 10,465

Formal votes: 8,881

Informal votes: 190 (2.09% of the total votes)

Voter turnout: 9,071 (86.68% of the total enrclment)

Candidates (In ballot paper order) | First preference votes Percentage

GOUGH, Geoff 3.904 414.97%
CHARITAKIS, Christina 2,375 26.74%
BONANNI, Guido 1,860 20.943%
SHAW, Luke 652 7.34%

Successful candidate

GOUGH, Geoff

Currawong Ward Count summary

Enrolment: ©.,336

Formal votes: a,18

Informal votes: 184 (2.22% of the total votes)

Voter turnout: 8,302 (88.92% of the total enrolment)

Candidates (In ballot paper order) | First preference votes Percentage

RUAN, William 1,132 13.94%
CONLCN, Andrew 3,070 37.82%
LAW, Alex 1,167 14.38%
CLARK, Peter 2,7u9Q 33.86%

Successful candidate

CONLON, Andrew

Election Report Loeal Government elections 2020 &1
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Manna Ward Count summary

Enrolment: 9,147

Formal votes: 7,658

Informal votes: 232 (2.94% of the total votes)

Voter turnout: 7,800 (B6.26% of the total enrolment)

Candidates (In ballot paper order) | First preference votes Percentage

McLEISH, Paul 2,142 27.97%
LIGHTBODY, Tomas 2,64 34.L40%
KILMARTIN, Darryl 1,266 16.53%
FRAWLEY, Ben 1,609 21.01%

Successful candidate

LIGHTBODY, Tomas

Ruffey Ward Count summary

Enrolment: 2,833

Formal votes: 8,376

Informal votes: 205 (2.39% of the total votes)

Voter turnout: 8,581 (87.27% of the total enralment)

Candidates (In ballot paper order) | First preference votes Percentage

MAYNE, Stephen 3,441 41.08%
OAKLEY, Naomi M. 1,278 15.26%
GRIVOKOSTOPOULOS, Jim 2,027 24.20%
BAIN, Peter Timothy o7y 11.63%
LEUNG, Kai 656 7.83%

Successful candidate

MAYNE, Stephen
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Schramm Ward Count summary

Enrolment: 0,479

Formal votes: 7.836

Informal votes: 220 (2.73% of the total votes)

Voter turnout: 8,054 (B3.23% of the total enrolment)

Candidates (In ballot paper order) | First preference votes Percentage

HAYNES, Dot 2,383 30.11%
GARNER, Jett 1,420 18.12%
SUM, Sophia 1,187 15.15%
MAYNE, Laura 2,8u6 36.32%

Successful candidate

MAYNE, Laura

Tullamore Ward Count summary

Enrolment: Q.423

Formal votes: 7,669

Informal votes: 205 (2.60% of the total votes)

Voter turnout: 7,874 (83.56% of the total enrclment)

Candidates (In ballot paper order) | First preference votes Percentage

YEE, Stella 2,402 32.49%
CONLON, Luke 1,529 19.94%
ROY, Grace 1,272 16.59%
DIAMANTE, Deirdre 2,376 30.98%

Successful candidate

DIAMANTE, Deircre
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Waldau Ward Count summary

Enrolment: 2444

Formal votes: 7.957

Informal votes: 259 (3.15% of the total votes)

Voter turnout: 8,216 (86.98% of the total enrolment)

Candidates (In ballot paper order) | First preference votes Percentage

LAl Raymond 1,298 16.31%
SHANMUGAPALAN, Thurairajah 900 12.44%
CHEN, Anna 2,763 34.72%
BURNHAM, Cyndy 1,236 15.53%
KHOURY, Bernadette 1,207 16.30%
SALEHI, Aryan 373 L.&60%

Successful candidate

CHEN, Anna

Westerfolds Ward Count summary

Enrolment: 2,615

Formal votes: 8,078

Informal votes: 199 (2.40% of the total votes)

Voter turnout: 8,277 (86.08% of the total enrolment)

Candidates (Iin ballot paper order) | First preference votes Percentage

KLEINERT, Michelle 3,14 38.55%
BEYNOCN, Bob 1,490 18.45%
McINTOSH, Michelle 938 1.61%
HINDS, Alanna 4 4.96%
CRONSHAW, Benjamin 371 4.59%
ZAFIROPOULOS, Mike 1,764 21.84%

Successful candidate

KLEINERT, Michelle
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Yarra Ward Count summary

Enrolment: 10,210

Formal votes: 8,963

Informal votes: 209 (2.28% of the total votes)

Voter turnout: 0,172 (88.96% of the total enrolment)

Candidates (In ballot paper order) | First preference votes Percentage

LANGE, Carli 3,679 141.05%
DYASON, David 2,600 20.01%
BRENAN, Maxine 868 Q.68%
DOWNIE, Meg 1,816 20.26%

Successful candidate

LANGE, Carli
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Appendix 10: Election participation statistics

Note: Participation is measured by the number of marks on the roll as a percentage of total enrolment
and can vary from turnout (total ballot papers counted as a percentage of total enrolment).

Manningham City Council election

Enrolment category

Voters enrolled through section
241 of the LG Act

aged 18 to 69 years ald on
election day

aged 70 years and over on
election day

Voters enrolled through sections
243 - 245 of the LG Act

Council total

Bolin Ward election

Comparator for 2016
Manningham City
Council general
election

Participation as a
percentage of voters
enrolled in each
category for 2020
Manningham City
Council general

election
89.63% 80.48%
88.94% 80.77%
01.99% 79.37%
57.76% L9942
88.46% 78.80%

Statewide postal
election comparator for
2020 LG elections
(excl. Melbourne City
Council)

86.27%

85.48%

20.14%

60.96%

84.12%

Enrolment category

Participation as a percentage of
voters enrolled in each category
for 2020 Manningham City
Council general election

Statewide postal election
comparator for 2020 LG elections
(excl. Melbourne City Council)

Voters enrolled through section 241 20.05% B86.27%

of the LG Act

aged 18 to 49 years old on election 88.96% 85.48%

day

aged 70 years and over on election 93.21% Q0.au%

day

Voters enrolled through sections 243 58.74% 60.96%

- 245 of the LG Act

Ward total 88.95% 84.12%
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Currawong Ward election

Enrolment category

Voters enrolled through section 241
of the LG Act

aged 18 to 49 years old on election
day

aged 70 years and over on election
day

Voters enrolled through sections 243
- 245 of the LG Act

Ward total

Manna Ward election

Participation as a pereentage of
voters enrolled in each category
for 2020 Manningham City
Council general election
91.60%
01.23%
03.16%

57.42%

90.66%

Statewide postal election
comparator for 2020 LG elections
(excl. Melbourne City Ceuncil)

B6.27%

85.48%

90.14%

60.96%

84.12%

Enrolment cotegory

Participation as o percentage of

voters enrolled in each category

for 2020 Manningham City
Councll general election

Statewide postal election
comparator for 2020 LG elections
(excl. Melbourne City Council)

Voters enrolled through section 241 BO.42% B86.27%

of the LG Act

aged 18 to 49 years old on election B8.45% 85.48%

day

aged 70 years and over on election 02.77% Q0.au%

day

Voters enrolled through sections 243 60.06% 60.96%

- 245 of the LG Act

Ward total 88.26% B8L4.12%
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Ruffey Ward election

Enrolment category

Voters enrolled through section 241
of the LG Act

aged 18 to 49 years old on election
day

aged 70 years and over on election
day

Voters enrolled through sections 243
- 245 of the LG Act

Ward total

Schramm Ward election

Enrolment cotegory

Participation as a pereentage of
voters enrolled in each category
for 2020 Manningham City
Council general election

90.23%

89.68%

91.90%

60.56%

89.37%

Participation as o percentage of
voters enrolled in each category
for 2020 Manningham City
Councll general election

Statewide postal election
comparator for 2020 LG elections
(excl. Melbourne City Ceuncil)

Statewide postal election
comparator for 2020 LG elections
(excl. Melbourne City Council)

B6.27%

85.48%

90.14%

60.96%

84.12%

Voters enrolled through section 241 87.32% B86.27%

of the LG Act

aged 18 to 49 years old on election 86.07% 85.48%

day

aged 70 years and over on election 91.11% Q0.au%

day

Voters enrolled through sections 243 55.73% 60.96%

- 245 of the LG Act

Ward total 85.01% B8L4.12%
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Tullamore Ward election

Enrolment categery Participation as a percentage of Statewide postal election
voters enrolled in each category comparator for 2020 LG elections
for 2020 Manningham City (excl. Melbourne City Council)
Council general election
Voters enrolled through section 241 87.53% B6.27%
of the LG Act
aged 18 to 49 years old on election 86.09% 85.48%
day
aged 70 years and over on election 91.39% Q0.4%
day
Voters enrolled through sections 243 56.29% 60.96%

- 245 of the LG Act

Ward total 85.68% 84.12%

Waldau Ward election

Enrolment cotegory Participation as o percentage of Statewide postal election
voters enrolled in each cotegory comparator for 2020 LG elections
for 2020 Manningham City (excl. Melbourne City Council)
Councll general election
Voters enrolled through section 241 80.63% B86.27%
of the LG Act
aged 18 to 49 years old on election 80.02% 85.48%
day
aged 70 years and over on election 91.:0% Q0.au%
day
Voters enrolled through sections 243 61.15% 60.96%
- 245 of the LG Act
Ward total 88.84% BL4.12%

Westerfolds Ward election

Enrolment cotegory Participation as o percentage of Stotewide postal election
voters enrolled in each cotegory comparator for 2020 LG elections
for 2020 Manningham City (excl. Melbourne City Council)
Council general election
Veters enrolled through section 241 89.07% 86.27%
of the LG Act
aged 18 to 49 years old on election 88.60% 85.48%
day
aged 70 years and over on election 90.91% Q0.u%
day
Voters enrolled through sections 243 56.30% 60.96%
- 245 of the LG Act
Ward total 88.21% BL.12%
Election Report Loeal Government elections 2020 &9
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Yarra Ward election

Enrolment category Participation as a percentage of
voters enrolled in each category
for 2020 Manningham City

Council general election

Statewide postal election
comparator for 2020 LG elections
(excl. Melbourne City Ceuncil)

Voters enrolled through section 241 21.48% B86.27%
of the LG Act

aged 18 to 49 years old on election 01.35% 85.48%
day

aged 70 years and over on election 92.24% Q0.4%
day

Voters enrolled through sections 243 56.69% 60.96%
- 245 of the LG Act

Ward total 90.95% 84.12%
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Appendix 11: Complaints
Written complaints received by the VEC

Date Nature of the complaint

21 August 2020 Clarification of Process, Procedure or Legislation -

VEC Administration (Website)

28 August 2020 Simple Complaint - Veting (Ballot Papers)

29 August 2020 Clarification of Process, Procedure or Legislation -

Enrolment (Entitlements)

22 September 2020 Complex Complaint - Candidates and Parties

(Nominations)

24 September 2020 Clarification of Process, Procedure or Legislation -

Candidates and Parties (Candidates)

29 September 2020 Clarification of Process, Procedure or Legislation -

Advertising or Election Material (Legislation)

29 September 2020 Allegation of potential breach of the law - External
Agency os Regulator - Advertising or Election

Material (Misleading or Deceptive Information)

30 September 2020 Complex Complaint - Advertising or Election

Material (Candidate Statement or Questionnaire)

5 October 2020 Complex Complaint - Advertising or Election

Material (Misleading or Deceptive Information)

& October 2020 Allegation of potential breach of the law - External
Agency os Regulator - Advertising or Election

Material (Misleading or Deceptive Information)

7 October 2020 Allegation of potential breach of the law - External
Agency as Regulator - Advertising or Election

Material (Misleading or Deceptive Information)

8 October 2020 Allegation of potential breach of the law - External
Agency os Regulator - Advertising or Election

Material (Authorisation)

12 October 2020 Simple Complaint - Enrolment (Incorrect or not

updated enrolment details)

13 October 2020 Allegation of potential breach of the law - External
Agency as Regulator - Candidates and Parties

(Candidates)

18 October 2020 Clarification of Process, Procedure or Legislation -
VEC Administration (Candidate Statement or

Questionnaire)

13 October 2020 Simple Complaint - Veting (Ballot Papers)

13 October 2020 Simple Complaint - Voting (Ballot Papers)

14 October 2020 Allegation of potential breach of the law - External
Agency as Regulator - Advertising or Election

Material (Misleading or Deceptive Information)

Action taken by the VEC

Response provided

Response provided

Response provided
Action taken and responded
Response provided
Response provided

Referred to LGI

Response provided
Referred to Other Agency

Response provided

Referred to LG

Action token and responded

Response provided

Investigated. No response
provided as anonymous
submission

Response provided

Action token and responded
Action taken and respended

Response provided
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15 October 2020

17 October 2020

18 October 2020

20 October 2020

21 October 2020
22 October 2020

24 October 2020

25 October 2020

28 October 2020

29 October 2020

31 October 2020

11 Movember 2020

27 November 2020

Allegation of potential breach of the law - External
Agency os Regulator - Advertising or Election
Material (Location of Signs)

Simple Complaint - Voting (Ballot Papers)

Clarification of Process, Procedure or Legislation -
Candidates and Parties (Misleading or Deceptive
Information)

Allegation of potential breach of the law - External
Agency as Regulator - Advertising or Election
Material (Misleading or Deceptive Information)
Simple Complaint - Voting (Postal Voting Process)
Simple Complaint - Voting (Ballot Papers)

Simple Complaint - Voting (Postal Vote Never
Received)

Complex Complaint - A Veoting Centre or Election
Office (Postal Vote Mever Received)

Criticism - VEC Administration (Scrutineers)

Criticism - A Vioting Centre or Election Office
(Scrutineers)

Complex Complaint - A Veoting Centre or Election
Office (VEC Procedures)

General Question - Voting (Postal Vote Never
Recelved)

General Question - Other / Multiple (Other)

Actioned by Council

Action taken and responded

Response provided

Response provided

Response provided
Action token and responded

Response provided

Action token and responded

Action token and responded

Action taken and responded

Response provided

Response provided

Response provided
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13.3 Appointment of Authorised Officers - Planning and Environment Act 1987

File Number: IN21/228
Responsible Director:  Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: 1 S11A Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation -
Roland Abrahams &
2 S11A Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation - Anna
Mealyea §

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In accordance with the Planning and Environment Act 1987(the Act), Council is
required to authorise officers for the purpose of enforcing the provisions of the Act. Itis
proposed to appoint the Council officers detailed below as Authorised Officers pursuant
to Section 147(4) of the Act.

The Local Government Act 1989 also empowers Council to appoint a person, other
than a Councillor, to be an authorised officer for the purposes of the administration and
enforcement of any Act, regulations or local laws which relate to the functions and
powers of the Council.

A person who is appointed to a position has the powers of that position under the
legislation which they have been appointed. Authorisations are necessary to facilitate
the efficient and effective function of councils as they enable authorised officers to
carry out compliance or enforcement under legislation related to their functions and
powers of the Council.

Authorised officers will continue to be appointed under s224 of the Local Government
Act 1989, as there are no provisions for appointing authorised officers under the Local
Government Act 2020.

1. RECOMMENDATION

In the exercise of the powers conferred by section 224 of the Local Government
Act 1989 and the other legislation referred to in the attached instrument of
appointment and authorisation, Council resolves that:

A. Roland Abrahams and Anna Mealyea be appointed as authorised officers;

B. theinstruments will come into force immediately upon execution and will
remain in force until Council determines to vary or revoke the Instrument or
the officer ceases their employment with Council; and

C. thelInstruments be signed and sealed.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The Planning and Environment Act 1987 (the Act) regulates enforcement of the
Act and is reliant on authorised officers acting on behalf of the Responsible
Authority which is Council.
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2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

The Act, unlike the Local Government Act 1989, does not permit appointments to
be made by the Chief Executive Officer and therefore in order for the officer to
legally undertake the duties of their position under the Act, it is necessary for
Council to make appointments by formal resolution.

The Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation has been prepared based on
advice from Maddocks Lawyers and empowers the relevant officer to exercise
those powers granted in the Instrument.

The appointment will come into force immediately upon its execution under the
Seal of Council and will remain in force until varied or revoked by Council or the
officer ceases employment with Council.

In addition to the appointment under the Act, Council pursuant to Section 224 of
the Local Government Act 1989, may appoint any person other than a Councillor
to be an authorised officer for the purposes of the administration and
enforcement of most other Acts, Regulations or Local Laws which relate to the
functions and powers of Council. This broader Instrument of Appointment and
Authorisation has already been carried out, in respect to the designated officers,
under the delegated authority of the Chief Executive Officer as the first part of a
dual appointment process.

The appointment will be recorded in the Authorised Officers Register that is
required to be kept by Council and is available for public inspection.

3. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No officers involved in the preparation of this report have any general or material
conflict of interest in this matter.
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer” means -

Roland Abrahams

By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1. under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument.

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked.

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 25 May 2021.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Date: ...

Item 13.3

Attachment 1
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer” means -

Anna Mealyea

By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1. under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument.

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked.

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 25 May 2021.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Date: ...

Item 13.3

Attachment 2
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13.4 Informal Meetings of Councillors

File Number: IN21/231

Responsible Director:  Chief Executive Officer

Attachments:

Strategic Briefing Session- 20 April 2021 §

Yarra Ward Meeting-23 April 2021 §

Tullamore Ward Meeting-28 April 2021 §

Waldau Ward Meeting-28 April 2021 §

Pre-briefing Heritage Advisory Committee-28 April 2021 §
Councillor Only Time-28 April 2021 §

Councillor Only Time-4 May 2021 §

LIT Review Catch Up-4 May 2021 §

Garden Waste Centre & Bushfire Prone Initiatives Pre
SBS- 4 May 2021 §

10 Strategic Briefing Session-4 May 2021 1

11 MEMPC-7 May 2021 §

12 MFMPC- 7 May 2021 §

13 Strategic Briefing Session-11 May 2021 §

14 Waldau Ward Meeting-12 May 2021 §

15 Tullamore Ward Meeting-12 May 2021 §

16 Yarra Ward Meeting-14 May 2021 §

17 Strategic Briefing Session- 18 May 2021 I

O©CoO~NOUITDSWNBEF

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Chapter 6, sub rule 1 of the Governance Rules adopted by Council on 25 August 2020,
requires a record of each meeting that constitutes an Informal Meeting of Councillors to
be reported to Council and those records are to be incorporated into the minutes of the
Council Meeting.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council note the Informal Meetings of Councillors for the following
meetings and that the records be incorporated into the minutes of this Council
meeting:

Strategic Briefing Session - 20 April 2021

Yarra Ward Meeting — 23 April 2021

Tullamore Ward Meeting - 28 April 2021

Waldau Ward Meeting — 28 April 2021

Pre-briefing Heritage Advisory Committee- 28 April 2021
Councillor Only Time - 28 April 2021

Councillor Only Time- 4 May 2021

LIT Review Catch Up- 4 May 2021

Garden Waste Centre & Bushfire Prone Initiatives Pre SBS- 4 May 2021
Strategic Briefing Session — 4 May 2021

MEMPC-7 May 2021

MFMPC-7 May 2021

Strategic Briefing Session — 11 May 2021

Waldau Ward Meeting- 12 May 2021

Tullamore Ward Meeting- 12 May 2021

Yarra Ward Meeting- 14 May 2021

Strategic Briefing Session- 18 May 2021
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1.

3.

BACKGROUND

1.1 In accordance with section 60 of the Local Government Act 2020, Council
adopted its Governance Rules (Rules) on 25 August 2020 with the Rules coming
into effect from 1 September 2020.

1.2 Chapter 6, sub rule 1 of the Rules requires the Chief Executive Officer to ensure
a summary of matters discussed at an informal meeting is tabled at the next
convenient Council meeting and recorded in the minutes of that meeting.

1.3 AnInformal Meeting of Councillors is a meeting that:

e is scheduled or planned for the purpose of discussing the business of
Council or briefing Councillors;

e s attended by at least one member of Council staff; and
is not a Council meeting, Delegated Committee meeting or Community Asset
Committee meeting.

DISCUSSION / ISSUE

2.1 Summaries of the following informal meetings are attached to this report:

Strategic Briefing Session- 20 April 2021

Yarra Ward Meeting- 23 April 2021

Tullamore Ward Meeting- 28 April 2021

Waldau Ward Meeting- 28 April 2021

Pre-briefing Heritage Advisory Committee- 28 April 2021
Councillor Only Time- 28 April 2021

Councillor Only Time- 4 May 2021

LIT Review Catch Up- 4 May 2021

Garden Waste Centre & Bushfire Prone Initiatives Pre SBS- 4 May 2021
Strategic Briefing Session- 4 May 2021

MEMPC-7 May 2021

MFMPC-7 May 2021

Strategic Briefing Session- 11 May 2021

Waldau Ward Meeting- 12 May 2021

Tullamore Ward Meeting- 12 May 2021

Yarra Ward Meeting- 14 May 2021

Strategic Briefing Session- 18 May 2021

DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No officers involved in the preparation of this report have any general or material
conflict of interest in this matter.

ltem 13.4
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Informal Meeting of Councillors ﬂ

Chapter 6, Sub rule 1 of the Governance Rules 2020 MANNINGHAM

MEETING DETAILS

Meeting Name: Strategic Briefing Session

Date: Tuesday, 20 April 2021 Time Opened: 7:00 pm
Time Closed: 11.30 pm

Location: Council Chambers, Manningham Civic Centre

Councillors Present:  Cr Andrew Conlon (Mayar), Cr Anna Chen (Deputy Mayor), Cr Deirdre
Diamante, Cr Geoff Gough, Cr Michelle Kleinert, Cr Carli Lange,
Cr Tomas Lightbody, Cr Laura Mayne, Cr Stephen Mayne

Officers Present: Andrew Day, Chief Executive Officer
Angelo Kourambas, Director City Planning & Community
Phillip Lee, Director Shared Services
Rachelle Quattrocchi, Director City Services
Andrew McMaster, Corporate Counsel and Group Manager Governance & Risk
Kerryn Paterson, Group Manager People and Communications

Other Officers in Attendance

lon Gorst, Chief Financial Officer

Grant Jack, Group Manager Infrastructure & City Projects

Lee Robson, Group Manager Community Programs

Wayne Eddy, Coordinator Asset Management and Capital Works

Yuki Cheah, Coordinator Management Accountant, Financial Services
Georgina Snaddon, Senior Corporate Planning and Performance Advisor

Apologies: Nil

Items discussed:
1. Draft 2021/22 Operating & Capital Budget;
2. Draft 10 Year Financial Plan — high level;
3. Major initiatives.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

Left meeting Time Left /

Councill It
ouncillor L for ltem (Y/N)  Time Returned
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Informal Meeting of Councillors ﬂ

Chapter 6, Sub rule 1 of the Governance Rules 2020 MANNINGHAM

MEETING DETAILS

Meeting Name:

Date:

Location:

Councillors Present:

Officers Present:

Apologies:

Items discussed:

Statutory Planning Yarra Ward Councillor

Meeting

Friday, 23 April 2021 Time Opened: 2:00 pm
Time Closed: 02:30 pm

Zoom

Cr Carli Lange

Fiona Troise & Niall Sheehy

1. New Planning Applications for Yarra Ward
2. Planning Applications Watch List for Yarra Ward:-

PLN21/0041 - Park Orchards Reserve Maternal & Child Health Care
- 568-574 Park Road, PARK ORCHARDS

PLN21/0072 - 37 Brushy Park Road, WONGA PARK

PLN21/0075 - 270 Yarra Street, WARRANDYTE

PLA21/0036 - 321 Ringwood-Warrandyte Road, WARRANDYTE
PLA19/0043 — (Bramleigh) - 420 Ringwood Warrandyte Road,
WARRANDYTE

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

Councillor

Left meeting Time Left /

It
em for Item (Y/N)  Time Returned
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Informal Meeting of Councillors ﬂ

Chapter 6, Sub rule 1 of the Governance Rules 2020 MANNINGHAM

MEETING DETAILS

Meeting Name: Statutory Planning Tullamore Ward Councillor
Meeting
Date: Wednesday, 28 April 2021 Time Opened: 2:00 pm
Time Closed: 2:30 pm
Location: Zoom

Councillors Present:  Cr Deirdre Diamante
Officers Present: Fiona Troise & Niall Sheehy

Apologies:

New Planning Applications for Tullamore Ward

Imperial apartment building issues

5 Toronto - NOD

Planning Applications Watch List for Tullamore Ward:-

e PLN20/0549 — 394 Manningham Road DONCASTER
e PLA21/0007 — 49 Rathmullen Quadrant DONCASTER

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

Items discussed:

ol

Left meeting Time Left /

Councillor Item for Item (Y/N)  Time Returned
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Informal Meeting of Councillors ﬂ

Chapter 6, Sub rule 1 of the Governance Rules 2020 MANNINGHAM

MEETING DETAILS

Meeting Name: Statutory Planning Waldau Ward Councillor
Meeting
Date: Wednesday, 28 April 2021 Time Opened: 11:56 am
Time Closed: 12:10 pm
Location: Councillor Lounge

Councillors Present:  Cr Anna Chen

Officers Present: Niall Sheehy
Apologies:
Items discussed: 1. New Planning Applications for Waldau Ward

2. Planning Applications Watch List for Waldau Ward:-

PLA21/0004 - 12 Chippendale Court TEMPLESTOWE

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

Councillor Item Left meeting Time Left /
for Item (Y/N) Time Returned
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Informal Meeting of Councillors ﬂ

Chapter 6, Sub rule 1 of the Governance Rules 2020 MANNINGHAM

MEETING DETAILS
Meeting Name:

Date:

Location:

Councillors Present:

Officers Present:

Apologies:

Items discussed:

Heritage Advisory Committee Meeting Preparation
Wednesday, 28 April 2021 Time Opened: S5pm
Time Closed: 5:45pm

Via Teams (on line) meeting

Cr Deirdre Diamante

Frank Vassilacos — Manager Integrated Planning,
Lydia Winstanley — Coordinator City Planning,
Matthew Lynch — Strategic Planner

N/A

e Preparations for the forthcoming Heritage Advisory Committee
Meeting

e November Agenda - Council’s Heritage Festival

¢ Update provided on the gateposts relating to property in
Templestowe

e Liveable City Strategy 2040 presentation August meeting

e Officers to identify other items for the future HAC meetings,
including the 2022 review of the Manningham Planning Scheme.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

Councillor

Left meeting Time Left /

It
em for Item (Y/N)  Time Returned
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Informal Meeting of Councillors ﬂ

Chapter 6, Sub rule 1 of the Governance Rules 2020 MANNINGHAM

MEETING DETAILS

Meeting Name:

Councillor Only Time

Date: Tuesday, 27 April 2021 Time Opened: 6: 00 pm
Time Closed: 7.00 pm

Location: Koonung Room

Councillors Present:  Deputy Mayor Cr Chen
Mayor Cr Conlon
Cr Diamante
Cr Gough
Cr Kleinert
Cr Lange
Cr Lightbody
Cr L.Mayne
Cr S.Mayne

Officers Present: CEO- Andrew Day

Apologies:

Items considered: 1. Flag policy
2.  Council agenda

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

Left meeting Time Left /

Councill It
ouncillor e for Item (Y/N)  Time Returned
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Informal Meeting of Councillors ﬂ

Chapter 6, Sub rule 1 of the Governance Rules 2020 MANNINGHAM

MEETING DETAILS

Meeting Name:

Councillor Only Time

Date: Tuesday, 4 May 2021 Time Opened: 06: 00 pm
Time Closed: 07: 00 pm

Location: Koonung Room

Councillors Present:  Deputy Mayor Cr Chen
Mayor Cr Conlon
Cr Diamante
Cr Gough
Cr Kleinert
Cr Lange
Cr Lightbody
Cr L.Mayne
Cr S.Mayne

Officers Present: CEO- Andrew Day

Apologies:

Staff matters

Community Buses

Indigenous reconciliation initiatives
Statement of intent and moving of motions

Items considered:

BN =

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

Left meeting Time Left /

Councillor . for Item (Y/N)  Time Returned
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Informal Meeting of Councillors ﬂ

Chapter 6, Sub rule 1 of the Governance Rules 2020 MANNINGHAM

MEETING DETAILS

Meeting Name:

Date:

Location:

Councillors Present:
Officers Present:

Apologies:

Items discussed:

LIT Review/ Catch up

Tuesday, 4 May 2021 Time Opened: 01:30 pm
Time Closed: 02:30 pm
Philip Lee’s Office

Michelle Kleinert

Philip Lee, David Bellchambers

Follow up discussion from the LIT Committee Meeting held on 26/04/2021

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

Councillor

Left meeting Time Left /

It
em for Item (Y/N) Time Returned

[
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Informal Meeting of Councillors ﬂ

Chapter 6, Sub rule 1 of the Governance Rules 2020 MANNINGHAM

MEETING DETAILS

Meeting Name:

Date:

Location:

Councillors Present:

Officers Present:

Apologies:

Items discussed:

Garden Waste Centre and Bushfire Prone
Initiatives Pre SBS Catch Up

Tuesday, 4 May 2021 Time Opened: 5.30 pm
Time Closed: 6.00 pm

Council Chambers

Mayor Andrew Conlon, Cr Michelle Kleinert, Cr Carli Lange,
Cr Thomas Lightbody, Cr Anna Chen

Rachelle Quattrocchi, Ben Middleton, Drago Lijovic, Courtney Power

History of the Garden Waste Centre
Legislative Requirements

Garden Waste Disposal Days

Garden Waste Disposal Day Survey Results
The Future of the Garden Waste Disposal Days

o WM e

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

Councillor

Left meeting Time Left /

It
em for Item (Y/N)  Time Returned
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Informal Meeting of Councillors ﬂ

Chapter 6, Sub rule 1 of the Governance Rules 2020 MANNINGHAM

MEETING DETAILS
Meeting Name:

Date:

Location:

Councillors Present:

Officers Present:

Apologies:

Items discussed:

Strategic Briefing Session
Tuesday, 4 May 2021 Time Opened: 7:00 pm
Time Closed: 10:37 pm

Council Chambers, Manningham Civic Centre

Cr Andrew Conlon (Mavyor), Cr Anna Chen (Deputy Mavyor), Cr Deirdre
Diamante, Cr Geoff Gough, Cr Michelle Kleinert, Cr Carli Lange, Cr Tomas
Lightbody, Cr Laura Mayne and Cr Stephen Mayne

Andrew Day, Chief Executive Officer

Angelo Kourambas, Director City Planning & Community

Philip Lee, Director Shared Services

Rachelle Quattrocchi, Director City Services

Andrew McMaster, Corporate Counsel and Group Manager Governance & Risk
Kerryn Paterson, Group Manager People and Communications

Other Officers in Attendance

Kim Tran, Governance Officer

Lee Robson, Group Manager — Community Programs

Justin Hanrahan, Manager Economic and Community Wellbeing
Bronwyn Morphett, Coordinator Social Planning and Community

1. Healthy City Strategy 2021-2025 Progress Update
2. Review Draft Council Plan Actions

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

Councillor

Left meeting Time Left /

Item for Item (Y/N)  Time Returned
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Informal Meeting of Councillors ﬂ

Chapter 6, Sub rule 1 of the Governance Rules 2020 MANNINGHAM

MEETING DETAILS

Meeting Name: Municipal Emergency Management Planning
Committee (MEMPC)
Date: Friday, 7 May 2021 Time Opened: 10am
Time Closed: 12pm
Location: Council Chambers

Councillors Present:  Cr Carli Lange

Officers Present: In person - Helen Napier, Ben Middleton, Amber Thorgersen, John O'Brien, ,
Scott Morone, Sarah Francis, Justin Hanrahan
Via Teams - Dean Graham Sam Bradley, Michael Tregonning, Travis Fitch,
Andrew Mangan, Frank Vassilacos, Kurt Pitts

Apologies:

Items discussed: 1. REMPC Updates

2. North Eastlink Project

3. General Business

e Manningham VicPol Changes
EM Legislation and Planning Reform
Community Representation on MEMPC
LGV Council and Emergencies Project
Business Representative on the MEMPC
Emergency Services Reception 5 May 2021
CERA Update and Planning
Coronavirus Update
Community Engagement Update
NSP Decommissioning Process for Indoor locations
Grants and Projects Update
Training and Exercise Update
Incidents
e |tems without notice

4.  Sub Committee Reports
5. Agency Reports

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

* & 9 & & 5 & 5 s s

Left meeting Time Left /

Councillor -l for Item (Y/N)  Time Returned
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Informal Meeting of Councillors ﬂ

Chapter 6, Sub rule 1 of the Governance Rules 2020 MANNINGHAM

MEETING DETAILS
Meeting Name:

Date:

Location:

Councillors Present:

Officers Present:

Apologies:

Items discussed:

Municipal Fire Management Planning
Committee (MFMPC)

Friday, 7 May 2021 Time Opened: 8.15am
Time Closed: 9.45am

Council Chambers
Cr Carli Lange

In person - Helen Napier, Ben Middleton, Amber Thorgersen, Kurt Pitts,
Andrew Graydon, Scott Morone, Sarah Francis
Via Teams - Dean Graham Sam Bradley, Michael Tregonning

Review TOR/membership/Governance of Sub Committee
SFMPC — Guidance to RSFMPC and MFMPC
FAARS
Fire Mitigation Meeting Update
Regquest to Burn from CFA and Council Report
VFRR Review — 17 June — Save the date
EMRSFMPC April Meeting Update
Garden Waste Disposal Days
NSP Update
. EM Engagement Update
. City Compliance Update
. Other Business
e CFA Update
¢ FRV Update
e DELWP/PV Update

LRNOURLNE

=
N2 O

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

Councillor

Left meeting Time Left /

AL for Item (Y/N)  Time Returned
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Informal Meeting of Councillors ﬂ

Chapter 6, Sub rule 1 of the Governance Rules 2020 MANNINGHAM

MEETING DETAILS
Meeting Name:
Date:

Location:

Councillors Present:

Officers Present:

Apologies:

Items discussed:

Strategic Briefing Session
Tuesday, 11 May 2021 Time Opened: 6:10 pm
Time Closed: 9:00 pm

Council Chambers, Manningham Civic Centre

Cr Andrew Conlon (Mavyor), Cr Anna Chen (Deputy Mavyor), Cr Deirdre
Diamante, Cr Geoff Gough, Cr Carli Lange, Cr Tomas Lightbody, Cr Laura
Mayne, Cr Stephen Mayne

Andrew Day, Chief Executive Officer

Angelo Kourambas, Director City Planning & Community

Phillip Lee, Director Shared Services

Grant Jack, Acting Director City Services

Andrew McMaster, Corporate Counsel and Group Manager Governance & Risk
Kerryn Paterson, Group Manager People and Communications

Other Officers in Attendance

lon Gorst, Chief Financial Officer

Yuki Cheah, Coordinator Management Accountant, Financial Services
Georgina Snaddon, Senior Corporate Planning and Performance Advisor

Cr Michelle Kleinert
Rachelle Quattrocchi, Director City Services

Draft 2021/22 Operating & Capital Budget
Draft 10 Year Financial Plan — high level
Draft ‘Revenue and Rating Plan’.
Reviewed Council Plan Actions
Manningham Quarterly Report

e wn e

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

Councillor

Left meeting Time Left /

Item for Item (Y/N)  Time Returned
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Informal Meeting of Councillors ﬂ

Chapter 6, Sub rule 1 of the Governance Rules 2020 MANNINGHAM

MEETING DETAILS

Meeting Name:

Statutory Planning Waldau Ward Councillor

Meeting
Date: Wednesday, 12 May 2021 Time Opened: 12:00 pm
Time Closed: 12:40 pm
Location: Councillor Lounge

Councillors Present:  Cr Anna Chen
Officers Present: Fiona Troise

Apologies: Niall Sheehy
Items discussed: New Planning Applications for Waldau Ward

Planning Scheme maps and Mixed Use Zone controls

Tullamore Estate and potential report coming soon

Planning Applications Watch List for Waldau Ward:-
PLN21/0069 — 18 The Grange TEMPLESTOWE

PLN21/0074 -6 May Street DONCASTER EAST

PLA21/0004 - 12 Chippendale Court TEMPLESTOWE
PLA20/0170 - 1/15 Andersons Creek Road DONCASTER EAST

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

PR W e

Left meeting Time Left /

Councillor Item for ltem (Y/N)  Time Returned
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Informal Meeting of Councillors ﬂ

Chapter 6, Sub rule 1 of the Governance Rules 2020 MANNINGHAM

MEETING DETAILS

Meeting Name: Statutory Planning Tullamore Ward Councillor
Meeting
Date: Wednesday, 12 May 2021 Time Opened: 9:15 am
Time Closed: 9:40 am
Location: Zoom

Councillors Present:  Cr Deirdre Diamante

Officers Present: Fiona Troise & Niall Sheehy

Apologies:

Items discussed: 1. New Planning Applications for Tullamore Ward
2. Potential Council report for Tullamore Estate

3. Planning Applications Watch List for Tullamore Ward:-
e PLN20/0549 — 394 Manningham Road DONCASTER

e PLA21/0007 — 49 Rathmullen Quadrant DONCASTER

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

Left meeting Time Left /

Councill It
ouncillor em for Item (Y/N)  Time Returned
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Informal Meeting of Councillors ﬂ

Chapter 6, Sub rule 1 of the Governance Rules 2020 MANNINGHAM

MEETING DETAILS

Meeting Name:

Date:

Location:

Councillors Present:

Officers Present:

Apologies:

Items discussed:

Statutory Planning Yarra Ward Councillor

Meeting

Friday, 14 May 2021 Time Opened: 9:30 am
Time Closed: 10:05 am

Zoom

Cr Carli Lange
Fiona Troise

Niall Sheehy

New Planning Applications for Yarra Ward

Park Orchards Chalet site

Sassafras Lollies lighting

Planning Applications Watch List for Yarra Ward:-

e PLN21/0041 - Park Orchards Reserve Maternal & Child Health Care -
568-574 Park Road, PARK ORCHARDS

PLN21/0072 - 37 Brushy Park Road, WONGA PARK
PLN21/0075 - 270 Yarra Street, WARRANDYTE

PLAZ21/0036 - 321 Ringwood-Warrandyte Road, WARRANDYTE
PLN21/0169 - 6 Wilkinson Way PARK ORCHARDS
PLN21/0176 - 557-559 Park Road PARK ORCHARDS

el

. & & & @&

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

Councillor

Left meeting Time Left /

Item for Item (Y/N)  Time Returned

Iltem 13.4 Attachment 16 Page 279



COUNCIL AGENDA

25 MAY 2021

Informal Meeting of Councillors ﬂ

Chapter 6, Sub rule 1 of the Governance Rules 2020 MANNINGHAM

MEETING DETAILS
Meeting Name:

Date:

Location:

Councillors Present:

Officers Present:

Apologies:

Items discussed:

Strategic Briefing Session
Tuesday, 18 May 2021 Time Opened: 7:06 pm
Time Closed: 11:00 pm

Council Chambers, Manningham Civic Centre

Cr Andrew Conlon (Mayor), Cr Anna Chen (Deputy Mayar), Cr Deirdre
Diamante (7.58pm arrived) , Cr Geoff Gough, Cr Michelle Kleinert, Cr Carli
Lange, Cr Tomas Lightbody, Cr Laura Mayne, Cr Stephen Mayne

Andrew Day, Chief Executive Officer

Angelo Kourambas, Director City Planning & Community

Phillip Lee, Director Shared Services

Rachelle Quattrocchi, Director City Services

Andrew McMaster, Corporate Counsel and Group Manager Governance & Risk
Kerryn Paterson, Group Manager People and Communications

Other Officers in Attendance

Kim Tran, Governance Officer

Frank Vassilacos, Manager Integrated Planning

Gabrielle O'Halloran, Senior Strategic Planner

Sinead Holmes, Senior Urban Designer

Justin Hanrahan, Manager Economic and Community Wellbeing
Helen Napier, Manager City Amenity

Nil

Yarra Strategic Plan (YSP) Update

Liveable City Strategy — Endorse Community Consultation

Draft RAP & Cultural Protocols

Garden Waste Recycle Centre Decommissioning and Closure and
Bushfire Prone Area Initiatives

Land Encroachment Policy
6. Arundel Road Park Orchards Road Closure

Bwon o

w

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

Councillor

Left meeting Time Left /

il for Item (Y/N) Time Returned
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13.5 Documents for Sealing

File Number: IN21/226
Responsible Director:  Chief Executive Officer
Attachments: Nil

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The following documents are submitted for signing and sealing by Council.

1. RECOMMENDATION
That the following documents be signed and sealed:

Consent to Build Over an Easement

Agreement under Section 173 of the Planning and Environment Act 1987
Council and Y Ling and J Xiao

12 Virginia Court, Bulleen

2. BACKGROUND

The Council’s common seal must only be used on the authority of the Council or the
Chief Executive Officer under delegation from the Council. An authorising Council
resolution is required in relation to the document listed in the recommendation section
of this report.

3. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No officers involved in the preparation of this report have any general or material
conflict of interest in this matter.

Iltem 13.5 Page 281




COUNCIL AGENDA

25 MAY 2021

14 URGENT BUSINESS

15 COUNCILLORS’ QUESTION TIME

16 CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS

There are no Confidential reports.
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